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1 | SHAPIRO LAW FIRM, P.C.
Jay L. Shapiro (No. 014650) 0CT 28 2015 P 25U
2 || 1819 E. Morten Avenue, Suite 280
Phoenix, Arizona 85020 AL DAY '
3 | Telephone (602) 559-9575 EJ f‘ 7 (,u {77
4 | LIBERTY UTILITIES Arzona Comoration Commisgj
Todd C. Wiley (No. 015358) DOCKETED
51 12725 W. Ind1an School Road, Suite D-101
Avondale, Arizona 85392 00T 2 8 2015
6
Attorneys for Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. [ DoeRETE G e L ;
7
8 BEFORE THE ARIZONA CORPORATION COMMISSION
9
10} IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION | DOCKET NO: WS-02676A-15-
11 | OF LIBERTY UTILITIES (RIO RICO
WATER & SEWER) CORP., AN ARIZONA
12 | CORPORATION, FOR A
DETERMINATION OF THE FAIR VALUE | APPLICATION
13 | OF ITS UTILITY PLANTS AND
PROPERTY AND FOR INCREASES IN ITS WS 3 _
14 | WATER AND WASTEWATER RATES -02676A-15-0368
AND CHARGES FOR UTILITY SERVICE - _
15 | BASED THEREON.
16 Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp., an Arizona public service
17 | corporation (“Liberty Rio Rico™), hereby applies for an order establishing the fair value of
18 | its plant and property used for the provision of public water and wastewater utility service
19 | and, based on such finding, approving permanent rates and charges for utility service
20 | designed to produce a fair return thereon. In support thereof, Liberty Rio Rico states as
21 | follows:
22 1. Liberty Rio Rico is an Arizona public service corporation engaged in
23 | providing water and wastewater utility services in portions of Santa Cruz County,
24 | Arizona, pursuant to certificates of convenience and necessity granted by the Arizona
25 || Corporation Commission. During the Test Year, Liberty Rio Rico served approximately
26 | 6,404 water and 2,046 wastewater service connections.
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2. Liberty Rio Rico’s business office is located at 12725 W. Indian School
Road, Suite D-101, Avondale, Arizona 85392 and its telephone number is (623) 935-
9367. The primary management contact is Matthew Garlick. Mr. Garlick is employed by
Liberty Ultilities (“Liberty’’) as President — AZ/TX.

3. The person responsible for overseeing and directing the conduct of this rate
application is Gerald Becker, Liberty Utilities’ Utility Rates and Regulatory Manager.
Mr. Becker was assisted by Liberty Rio Rico’s rate case consultant, Thomas Bourassa,
and undersigned legal counsel. Mr. Becker’s mailing address is 12725 W. Indian School
Road, Suite D-101, Avondale, Arizona 85392; his telephone number is (623) 298-3769;
and his e-mail address is Gerry.Becker@libertyutilities.com. Mr. Bourassa’s mailing
address i1s 139 W. Wood Drive, Phoenix, Arizona 85029; hjs telephone number is
(602) 246-7150; and his e-mail address is tjbl 14@cox.net. All discovery, data requests
and other requests for information concerning this Application should be directed to
Mr. Becker, including copies by e-mail, as well as to Mr. Garlick by e-mail at
Matthew.Garlick@libertyutilities.com, and to Mr. Bourassa, with a copy by e-mail
to undersigned counsel at jay@shapslawaz.com and whitney@shapslawaz.com, and
to Liberty’s Assistant General Counsel at Todd.Wiley@libertyutilities.com.

4, Liberty Rio Rico’s present rates and charges for utility service were
approved by the Commission in Decision No. 73996 (July 30, 2013) using a test year
ending February 29, 2012. There have been no other changes to Liberty Rio Rico’s rates
since the current rates went into effect on or after July 31, 2013.

5. Liberty Ri‘p Rico’s revenues from its utility operations are presently
inadequate to provide a fair rate of return on the fair value of its utility plant and property
devoted to public service. Operating expenses have caused the revenues produced by the
current rates and charges for service to become inadequate to meet operating expenses and

provide a reasonable rate of return. Therefore, Liberty Rio Rico requests that the
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Commission approve certain adjustments to its rates and charges for utility service so that
Liberty Rio Rico may recover its operating expenses and be given an opportunity to earn a
just and reasonable rate of return on the fair value of its property. Liberty Rio Rico agrees
to use its original cost rate base as its fair value rate base in this proceeding to minimize
disputes and reduce rate case expense.

6. Filed concurrently herewith are the schedules required pursuant to A.A.C.
R14-2-103 for rate applications by Class “B” utilities. The test year utilized by Liberty
Rio Rico in connection %with the preparation of such schedules is the 12-month period that
ended December 31, 2&)14. Liberty Rio Rico requests that the Commission utilize such
test year in connection with this Application, with appropriate adjustments to obtain a
normal or more realistic relationship between revenues, rate base and expenses during the
period in which the rates established in this proceeding are in effect.

7. During the test year, Liberty Rio Rico’s adjusted gross revenues were
$3,032,792 from water utility service. The adjusted operating income from the water
division was $340,290, leading to an operating income deficiency of $421,899.
The adjusted fair value rate base was $8,861,632. Thus, the rate of return on water
operations during the test year was 3.84 percent.

8. During the test year, Liberty Rio Rico’s adjusted gross revenues were
$1,478,323 from wastewater utility service. The adjusted operating income from the
wastewater division was $320,976, leading to an operating income deficiency of
$139,640. The adjusted fair value rate base was $5,355,381. Thus, the rate of return on
wastewater operations during the test year was 5.99 percent.

9. Liberty Rio Rico submits that these rates of return are inadequate to allow it
to obtain debt, pay a reasonable dividend to its stockholder, maintain a sound credit rating,

and/or enable Liberty Rio Rico to attract additional capital on reasonable and acceptable




O o0 3 N i B W =

N N NN N N e e e e e e e e ek e
T Y S S =N« I - - R B Y T N VS S i =)

26

SHAPIRO LAW FIRM
A PROFESSI ONAL CORPORATION

terms in order to continue the investment in utility plant necessary to adequately serve
customers.

10.  Liberty Rio Rico is seeking an increase in water utility revenues equal to
$683,836, an increase in revenues of 22.55 percent. The adjustments to Liberty Rio
Rico’s rates and charges that are proposed herein, when fully implemented, will produce a
rate of return on the fair value rate base equal to 8.60 percent from water operations.

11.  Liberty Rio Rico is seeking an increase in wastewater utility revenues equal
to $226,351, an increase in revenues of 15.31 percent. The adjustments to Liberty Rio
Rico’s rates and charges that are proposed herein, when fully implemented, will produce a
rate of return on the faii value rate base equal to 8.60 percent from wastewater operations.

12.  Filed concurrently in support of this Application is the Direct Testimony of
Matthew Garlick, providing an overview of Liberty Rio Rico and its parent, Liberty
Utilities Co., introducing Liberty Rio Rico’s request for approval of the Fair Value
Arizona Rate Evaluation Model or “FARE,” and discussing (1) the Purchased Power
Adjuster Mechanism (“PPAM”) and Property Tax Adjuster Mechanism (“PTAM”) for
which Liberty Rio Rico is seeking approval, (2) the proposed modifications to Liberty Rio
Rico’s tariff of rates and charges, and (4) Liberty Rio Rico’s request for financing.

13. Liberty Rio Rico also submits the direct testimony of Peter Eichler.
Mr. Eichler’s testimony details the FARE. The FARE is a ratemaking mechanism
developed following the disappointing decision of the Arizona Court of Appeals rendering
the System Improvement Benefits surcharge unlawful. The FARE was designed to
comply with Arizona law, including Arizona’s unique “fair value” requirement, and to
promote rate gradualism and rate stability, and to mitigate regulatory lag

14.  Liberty Rio Rico also submits the direct testimony of William Killeen.
Mr. Killeen’s testimony provides an overview of Liberty Utilities’ business model, cost

allocation manual, and corporate cost allocation process.
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15. Finally, Liberty Rio Rico submits the Direct Testimony of Thomas J.
Bourassa, in two separate volumes that collectively provide an overview of Liberty Rio
Rico’s rate filing, discussion of the revenue requirement, including the “A” through “F”
schedules, development of the rate base and income statement adjustments, cost of equity
capital and related issues, proposed rates, including the “H” schedules, and discussion of
the effects of the proposed rates on customers’ bills. Liberty Rio Rico’s “D” Schedules,
which concern the cost of capital, are attached to the volume of Mr. Bourassa’s testimony
addressing cost of capital. The remaining schedules for the water and wastewater
divisions are separately bound and filed concurrently with the Application.

16.  Attached' hereto as Attachment 1 are water and wastewater plant
descriptions, a completed water use data sheet for the 2014 calendar year, and wastewater
flows for January 2014-December 2014.

17.  Attached hereto as Attachment 2 is Liberty Rio Rico’s proposed tariff of
rates and charges.

18.  Attached hereto as Attachment 3 is Liberty Rio Rico’s proposed PPAM.

19.  Attached hereto as Attachment 4 is Liberty Rio Rico’s proposed PTAM.

WHEREFORE, Liberty Rio Rico requests the following relief:

A. That the Commission, upon proper notice and at the earliest possible time,
conduct a hearing in accordance with A.R.S. § 40-251 and determine the fair value of
Liberty Rio Rico’s utility water and wastewater plants and property devoted to providing
water and wastewater utility service;

B. Based upon such determination, that the Commission approve permanent
adjustments to the rates and charges for water and wastewater utility service provided by
Liberty Rio Rico, as proposed herein, or approve such other rates and charges as will
produce a just and reasonable rate of return on the fair value of Liberty Rio Rico’s utility

plant and property;




1 C. That the Commission approve Liberty Rio Rico’s request for approval of the
2 | FARE;
3 D. That the Commission approve Liberty Rio Rico’s request for a PPAM and
4 | PTAM; and
5 E. That the Commission authorize such other and further relief as may be
6 | appropriate to ensure that Liberty Rio Rico has an opportunity to earn a just and
7 | reasonable return on the fair value of its utility plant and property and as may otherwise be
8 | required under Arizona law.
9 RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED this 28th day of October, 2015.
10
SHAPIRO IRM, P.C.
11
12 By:
13 rten Avenue, Suite 280
Phoenix, AZ 85020
14
and
15
6 LIBERTY UTILITIES
Todd C. Wiley
17 Assistant General Counsel
12725 W. Indian School Road, Suite D-101
18 Avondale, AZ 85392
19 Attorneys for Liberty Utilities
20 (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp.
21 | ORIGINAL and fifteen (15) copies of the
foregoing, together with the direct testimonies
72 | and schedules supporting this application
were delivered this 28th day of October, 2015, to:
23 Docket Control
74 | Arizona Corporation Commission
1200 W. Washington Street
75 | Phoenix, AZ 85007
26 | By:LOWANG T
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COMPANY NAME: Liberty Utilities Rio Rico (Water and Sewer) Inc.

Name of System: Rio Rico Utilities Inc.

ADEQ Public Watet System Number: 12-011

WATER UTILITY PLANT DESCRIPTION

WELLS
ADWRID Pump Pump Yield Casing Casing Meter Size | Year
Number* Horsepower (gpm) Depth Diameter (inches) Drilled
. (Feet) (Inches)
55-502579 200 1100 650 16 8 1983
55-619359 75 625 250 10 6 1985
55-604302 20 16 2 1972
55-604364 75 625 251 10 6 1968
55-604363 75 650 603 12 8 1970
55-604366 20 10 2 1967
55-587292 200 975 605 16 10 2003
558-206176 250 1300 650 16 10 2005
*  Arizona Depattment of Water Resources Identification Number
OTHER WATER SOURCES
Name or Description C(agp;::)ty Gallons I(’il;rfll::lslz:nc;rs;)btained
N/A
BOOSTER PUMPS FIRE HYDRANTS
Hotsepower Quantity Quantity Standard Quantity Other

40 2 315

30 8

25 13

20 8

15 10

10 3

7.5 9

3 2

13




STORAGE TANKS PRESSURE TANKS
Capacity Quantity Capacity Quantity
1.0 1 5000 11

640 1 2000 10
200 1 1500 3
150 1
100 1
010 - 4

Note: If you are filing for more than one system, please provide separate sheets for each

system.
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COMPANY NAME Liberty Utilities Rio Rico (Water and Sewer) Corp
Name of System: Rio Rico Utilities Inc. (Water) ADEQ Public Water System Number: 12-011

WATER UTILITY PLANT DESCRIPTION (CONTINUED)

MAINS CUSTOMER METERS
| Size (in inches) Material Length (in feet) Size (in inches) Quantity
| 4” and under Various 325458 5/8X % 6566
| Over 4” Various 1,478,264 3/4 10
1 1.
11/2 17
2 44
Comp. 3 24
Comp. 4 4
Comp. 6 1

For the following three items, list the utility owned assets in each category for each system.

TREATMENT EQUIPMENT

_Gas chlorination system using 150# cylinders

STRUCTURES:

_(2) 20’ x 20’ storage sheds
(6) 8 x & chlorination buildings (at well sites)

OTHER:

Note: If you are filing for more than one system, please provide separate sheets for each
system.
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COMPANY NAME: Liberty Utilities Rio Rico (Water and Sewer) Corp

Name of System: Rio Rico Utilities Inc. (Water)

ADEQ Public Water System Number: 12-011

WATER USE DATA SHEET BY MONTH FOR CALENDAR YEAR 2014

MONTH NUMBER OF GALLONS GALLONS GALLONS
CUSTOMERS SOLD PUMPED PURCHASED

: (Thousands) (Thousands) (Thousands)
JANUARY 6,774 52,165,916 63,443,000 0
FEBRUARY 6,775 48,009,919 55,075,000 0
MARCH 6,780 46,464,914 63,608,000 0
APRIL 6,782 61,913,723 77,024,000 0
MAY 6,782 62,110,318 76,296,000 0
JUNE 6,800 83,708,328 85,109,000 0
JULY 6,800 86,865,125 70,339,000 0
AUGUST 6,790 61,562,309 74,693,000 0
SEPTEMBER 6,791 59,152,416 62,113,000 0
OCTOBER 6,791 52,346,422 65,700,000 0
NOVEMBER 6,791 52,757,323 62,354,000 0
DECEMBER 6,798 50,470,918 54,899,000 0
TOTALS — g 3 810,653,000 0

What is the level of arsenic for each well on your system? _See attached mg/1
(If more than one well, please list each separately.)

If system has fire hydrants, what is the fire flow requirement? _1150_GPM for __2__hrs

If system has chlorination treatment, does this treatment system chlotinate continuously?

(X ) Yes

( )Y No

Is the Water Utility located in an ADWR Active Management Area (AMA)?

(X) Yes

( )No

Does the Company have an ADWR Gallons Per Capita Per Day (GPCPD) requitement?

(X)) Yes

( )No

If yes, provide the GPCPD amount: 111

Note: If you are filing for more than one system, please provide separate data sheets for
each system.
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COMPANY NAME Liberty Utilities Rio Rico (Water and Sewer) Cotp

Name of System: Rio Rico Utilities Inc.

Wastewater Inventory Number (if applicable):

WASTEWATER UTILITY PLANT DESCRIPTION
TREATMENT FACILITY

TYPE OF TREATMENT

(Extended Aeration, Step Aeration, Oxidation Ditch,
Aerobic Lagoon, Anaerobic Lagoon, Trickling Filter,

Septic Tank, Wetland, Etc.)

Evaporative Ponds

DESIGN CAPACITY OF PLANT

Villas 12 - 0.050 MGD

(Gallons Per Day) Villas 13 - 0.050 MGD
LIFT STATION FACILITIES
Location Quantity Horsepower | Capacity Per Wet Well
of Pumps Per Pump Pump (GPM) | Capacity (gals)
Lift Staton #1 2 88 725 32,313
Lift Station #2 2 47 500 9,000
Lift Station #3 2 47 500 9,000
Lift Station #4 2 15 175 8,000
Lift Station #5 2 3 27 1,608
FORCE MAINS
Size Material Length (Feet)
4-inch PVC 3,714
dinch DI 120
G-inch PVC 19,946
6-inch DI 693
MANHOLES CLEANOQUTS
Type Quantity Quantity
Standard 535 132
Drop 15

Note: If you are filing for more than one system, please provide separate sheets

for each system.

17




COMPANY NAME Liberty Utilities Rio Rico (Water and Sewer) Cotp

Rio Rico Utilities Inc.

Name of System: Wastewater Inventory Number (if applicable):

WASTEWATER UTILITY PLANT DESCRIPTION (CONTINUED)

COLLECTION MAINS SERVICES
Size Length Size
(in inches) Material (in feet) (in inches) Material Quantity
4 - PVC 2,845 4 VARIOUS 2,057
6 PVC 3,335 6 VARIOUS 147
6 AC 7,938 8 PVC 10
8 PVC 28,583
8 AC 186,156
8 DI 2,232
10 AC 12,298
10 PVC 42
12 AC 14,494
12 DI 60
14 AC 3,060
16 DI 494
18 DI 170

FOR THE FOLLOWING FIVE ITEMS, LIST THE UTILITY OWNED ASSETS IN EACH CATEGORY

PER WASTEWATER SYSTEM

None
SOLIDS PROCESSING AND HANDLING
FACILITIES

. None

DISINFECTION EQUIPMENT (Chlorinator,
Ultra-Violet, Etc.)

None
FILTRATION EQUIPMENT

(Rapid Sand, Slow Sand, Activated Carbon, Etc.)

STRUCTURES Wooden Storage Shed (20° x 20°)

uildings, Fences, Etc.
g

Mobile Generator — 150 KXW Diesel Powered
Diesel Powered 4” solids handling pump

OTHER
(Laboratory Equipment, Tools, Vehicles, Standby
Power Genetators, Etc.

Note: If you are filing for more than one system, please provide separate sheets
for each system.
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COMPANY NAME Liberty Utilities Rio Rico (Water and Sewer) Corp

Name of System: Rio Rico Utilities Inc.

Wastewater Inventory Number (if applicable):

WASTEWATER FILOWS
MONTH/YEAR NUMBER OF TOTAL MONTHLY | SEWAGE FLOW ON
(Most Recent 12 Months) SERVICES SEWAGE FLOW PEAK DAY
January 2043 10,526,000 372,000
February 2059 ~ 10,319,000 405,000
March 2062 11,469,000 409,000
April 2066 11,113,000 432,000
May 2063 11,552,000 404,000
June 2068 10,863,000 406,000
July 2035 10,906,000 393,000
August 2035 11,065,000 410,000
September 2035 11,085,000 495,000
October 2045 13,318,000 508,000
November 2042 18,030,000 672,000
December 2049 20,520,000 711,000
PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION AS APPLICABLE

PER WASTEWATER SYSTEM

Method of Effluent Disposal

(leach field, surface water discharge, reuse, injection wells, groundwater

recharge, evaporation ponds, etc.)

Villas 12 — Evaporative Ponds
Villas 13 — Evaporative Ponds

Groundwater Permit Number N/A
ADEQ Aquifer Protection Permit Number 101731
ADEQ Reuse Permit Number N/A
EPA NPDES Permit Number N/A

Note: If you are filing for more than one system, please provide separate sheets
for each system.

19
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LIBERTY UTILITIES (RIO RICO WATER & SEWER) CORP. Sheet No. i

DOCKETNO. _____ Cancelling Sheet No. __
TABLE OF CONTENTS

Sheet

No.
STATEMENT OF CHARGES FOR WATER SERVICE ......ccccoooiiiiiiiiiniinireeceeeeee e 1
L. RATES ...ttt sttt at e et at e st st e s et s b e ae e st e eae et esba et e ebe et eentanneenneas 1
A. Monthly Usage Charge ........cceceeevvreiiieriinriietieseeetestessrtesisesseresenessessssnessvssanes 1
B. CommOdity RAtES.......cooiiieiriiniiiieeee ettt et s et sae e senesanenaeens 3
C. Service Line and Meter Installation Charges...........ceccevvevveeeieieereeceeeieecee e 5

D. Other Service CRarges ........cocovieeveeeiieniestirtetere ettt et se e s s aesveans 6

11 TAXES AND ASSESSMENTS ...ttt sttt iteev st s e e ae e esens 7
II.  PERMITTED COSTS.....oo ettt et et e st e iee e e s se e s e e s e e e esteasse s sasssasssanseans 8
STATEMENT OF TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR WATER SERVICE..........cccccceeveerennen. 9
L. CROSS-CONNECTION OR BACKFLOW TARIFF......ccccooirreeeieeeeieecieeie e 9
PUIPOSE. ...ttt st e e e s be e ae e ste e sebaesbaessaeesnneensaeenbaeesseeseanas 9
REQUITEIMENL. ...c..ceventiiiieteictete ettt ettt sttt ettt b b st eba st e sae e be s essennasanes 9
1L INTERRUPTIBLE SERVICE; COMPANY’S LIABILITY LIMITATIONS................ 11
III.  RULES AND REGULATIONS .....ootiitetitetertiiereenieereseessntesassessaaneesssessassessaessaseens 12
IV.  CURTAILMENT PLAN ..ottt sttt ssaeste st esae e s e aessesssassaessseneennaenen 13
STATEMENT OF CHARGES FOR WASTEWATER SERVICE..........cccovviieieiececeeene 16
L RATES ettt ettt et et e s e s e e e s e s e e b e e be e b e e s bsesaeereeeneenbeenssersenss 16
A. Monthly Minimum Charge ..........occevveeenieeiniienienieceeieseseeeeeeeeee e 16
B. Commodity Rates (All Meter SiZeS).....ccocvvvirvrrirrireienieeeeeieeeecre e 17
C. Service Line and Meter Installation Charges..........ccccceevvrveveevenveeceeeieeceene, 18
D. Other Service Charges .....c.coceeverierienienienieieeee ettt er e er s eaes 19
IL. TAXES AND ASSESSMENTS ..ottt ettt ss e 20
I, PERMITTED COSTS.....o ettt srestee e e et e ese s se et et esse e e reeneennenearens 21

Issued: Effective: ____

ISSUED BY:

Matthew Garlick, President
Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp.
12725 W. Indian School Road, Suite D-101
Avondale, AZ 85392




LIBERTY UTILITIES (RIO RICO WATER & SEWER) CORP. Sheet No. ii

DOCKETNO. ____ Cancelling Sheet No. _
STATEMENT OF TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR WASTEWATER SERVICE............... 22
I. CUSTOMER DISCHARGE TO SYSTEM......uiiiiitreeieeeeertee e et esin e seeeane 22
A. Service Subject 10 ReGUIAtION.......cc.eeeieiieeieeieeeeeceeee ettt 22
B. Waste LImMItAtIONS ....cveeoeeeieiieiirieeiteetesie et e st sete e et e st e et e saessbe st aesesaaeaas 22
C. Inspection and Right Of ENtry .....ccccevvveiriereiinieenereneeceeceeeee e 22
D. Termination of Water Service for Violation of Wastewater Rules and
REGUIALIONS ...couviiiiieiiiiiiieiie et eree st e e s e e s e s snna s saeessnensesssssaensnans 22
II. RULES AND REGULATIONS ...ttt sie et et eieete st e e saae st e e srne e 24

ALTERNATE RATES FOR WATER AND WASTEWATER (ARWW) DOMESTIC
SERVICE — SINGLE FAMILY ACCOMMODATION.......cccccevtniinrtencneeentreeeeneeeeeseenene 25

Issued: Effective:
ISSUED BY:

Matthew Garlick, President
Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp.
12725 W. Indian School Road, Suite D-101
Avondale, AZ 85392



LIBERTY UTILITIES (RIO RICO WATER & SEWER) CORP. Sheet No. 1

DOCKET NO. Cancelling Sheet No.

Applies to all WATER service areas
STATEMENT OF CHARGES FOR WATER SERVICE

L RATES

In Decision No. , issued , the Commission approved the following rates
and charges effective :

A. Monthly Usage Charge

Minimum

Meter Size (All Classes) Charge"

Inches Per Month

5/8” x 3/4” Meter § 1890
3/4” Meter 28.35
1> Meter 47.25
1 1/2” Meter 94.50
2” Meter 151.20
3” Meter 302.40
4” Meter 472.50
6” Meter 945.00
8” Meter 1,512.00
10” Meter 2,173.50
12 Meter 4,063.50
Morningstar Ranch Community Association — 6 inch 671.00
Standpipe (hydrant, bulk) 4.34

' Low Income Tariff — A 15% discount is available on monthly minimum and commodity charges to qualified
residential customers meeting the low income qualifications.

% A 5 percent discount is applicable to the public schools operated by the Santa Cruz County School District No. 35
receiving water and/or wastewater utility services from the Company.

Issued: Effective:
ISSUED BY:

Matthew Garlick, President
Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp.
12725 W. Indian School Road, Suite D-101
Avondale, AZ 85392



LIBERTY UTILITIES (R1IO RICO WATER & SEWER) CORP. Sheet No. 2

DOCKET NO. Cancelling Sheet No. ___

Applies to all WATER service areas
STATEMENT OF CHARGES FOR WATER SERVICE

Minimum
Meter Size Charge
Inches Per Month

Fire Lines:
4 inches (D
6 inches €9)]
8 inches (1
10 inches )
12 inches (D

(1) As authorized by A.A.C. R14-2-408(B), the charge for fire lines shall be 2 of the equivalent
meter size or $10, whichever is great for all meter sizes.

Issued: Effective:
ISSUED BY:

Matthew Garlick, President
Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp.
12725 W. Indian School Road, Suite D-101
Avondale, AZ 85392




LIBERTY UTILITIES (RIO RICO WATER & SEWER) CORP. Sheet No. 3

DOCKET NO. Cancelling Sheet No. __

Applies to all WATER service areas
STATEMENT OF CHARGES FOR WATER SERVICE

B. Commodity Rates

The rate for use in addition to the minimum stated above shall be at the following rates per 1,000
gallons.

Meter Size (All Classes) Consumption
Charge™
5/8” x 3/4” Meter 0 to 3,000 gallons $1.94
3,001 to 9,000 gallons 3.59
Over 9,000 gallons 434
3/4” Meter 0 to 4,000 gallons 3.59
Over 4,000 gallons 4.34
1” Meter 0 to 23,000 gallons 3.59
Over 23,000 gallons 4.34
1 1/2” Meter 0 to 45,000 gallons 3.59
Over 45,000 gallons 434
2” Meter 0 to 72,000 gallons 3.59
Over 72,000 gallons 4.34
3” Meter 0 to 144,000 gallons 3.59
Over 144,000 gallons 4.34
4 Meter 0 to 225,000 gallons 3.59
Over 225,000 gallons 4.34
6” Meter 0 to 450,000 gallons 3.59
Over 450,000 gallons 4.34

> Low Income Tariff — A 15% discount is available on monthly minimum and commodity charges to qualified residential
customers meeting the low income qualifications.

* A 5 percent discount is applicable to the public schools operated by the Santa Cruz County School District No. 35 receiving
water and/or wastewater utility services from the Company.

Issued: Effective:
ISSUED BY:

Matthew Garlick, President
Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp.
12725 W. Indian School Road, Suite D-101
Avondale, AZ 85392




LIBERTY UTILITIES (RIO RICO WATER & SEWER) CORP.

Sheet No. 4

DOCKET NO. Cancelling Sheet No.

Applies to all WATER service areas
STATEMENT OF CHARGES FOR WATER SERVICE

Meter Size Consumption Charge
8” Meter 0 to 720,000 gallons 3.59
Over 720,000 gallons 4.34

10” Meter 0 to 1,025,000 gallons 3.59
Over 1,025,000 gallons 4.34

12> Meter 0 to 1,025,000 gallons 3.59
Over 1,025,000 gallons 4.34

Morningstar Ranch Community Association 5.64

Issued: Effective:

ISSUED BY:

Matthew Garlick, President
Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp.
12725 W. Indian School Road, Suite D-101
Avondale, AZ 85392
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C. Service Line and Meter Installation Charges

(Refundable pursuant to A.A.C. R14-2-405)

Meter Size Service Line Meter Total
5/8 x 3/4” Meter At Cost At Cost At Cost
3/4” Meter At Cost At Cost At Cost
1” Meter At Cost At Cost At Cost
1 1/2” Meter At Cost At Cost At Cost
2” Meter At Cost At Cost At Cost
3” Meter At Cost At Cost At Cost
4” Meter At Cost At Cost At Cost
6” Meter At Cost At Cost At Cost
8” Meter At Cost At Cost At Cost
10” Meter At Cost At Cost At Cost
12” Meter At Cost At Cost At Cost
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D. Other Service Charges

Service Charge
Establishment $25.00
Re-Establishment (within 12 months) )]
Re-Connection (Delinquent) 2)
Meter Test (if correct) $30.00
Meter Re-Read (if correct) 20.00
Deposit (Residential) 3)
Deposit (Non-Residential) @)
Deposit Interest 6.00%
NSF Check $10.00
Late Payment Penalty 1.5% per month
Deferred Payment Finance Charge 1.5% per month
Moving meter at customer request At Cost
After Hours Service Charge (a) $50.00
1) As authorized by A.A.C.R14-2-403(D), residential and non-residential customers shall pay the applicable minimum

charge times number of months disconnected.

(2) Customer shall pay the actual cost of physical disconnection and Establishment (if same customer) and there shall be
no charge for disconnection if no physical work is performed.

3) As authorized by A.A.C. R14-2-403(B), the deposit for residential customers is two times average bill.
4) As authorized by A.A.C. R14-2-403(B), the deposit for non-residential customers is two and one-half times average
bill.
(a) At customer’s request. No charge for service during normal working hours.
Issued: Effective:
ISSUED BY:

Matthew Garlick, President
Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp.
12725 W. Indian School Road, Suite D-101
Avondale, AZ 85392




LIBERTY UTILITIES (RIO RICO WATER & SEWER) CORP. Sheet No. 7

DOCKET NO. Cancelling Sheet No. __

Applies to all WATER service areas
STATEMENT OF CHARGES FOR WATER SERVICE

IL TAXES AND ASSESSMENTS

In addition to all other rates and charges authorized herein, the Company shall collect from its
customers all applicable sales, transaction, privilege, regulatory or other taxes and assessments as may
apply now or in the future, per A.A.C. R14-2-409(D)(5).
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. PERMITTED COSTS

Costs shall be verified by invoice.

B. For services that are provided by the Company at cost, costs shall include labor,
materials, other charges incurred, and overhead not to exceed 10%. However,
prior to any such service being provided, the estimated cost of such service will
be provided by the Company to the customer. After review of the cost estimate,
the customer will pay the amount of the estimated cost to the Company.

C. In the event that the actual cost is less than the estimated cost, the Company will
refund the excess to the customer within 30 days after completion of the
provision of the service or after Company’s receipt of invoices, timesheets or
other related documents, whichever is later.

D. In the event the actual cost is more than the estimated cost, the Company will bill
the customer for the amount due within 30 days after completion of the provision
of the service or after the Company’s receipt of invoices, timesheets or other
related documents, whichever is later. The amount so billed will be due and
payable 30 days after the invoice date. However, if the actual cost is more than
five percent (5%) greater than the total amount paid, the customer will only be
required to pay five percent (5%) more than the total amount paid, unless the
Company can demonstrate that the increased costs were beyond its control and
could not be foreseen at the time the estimate for the total amount paid was made.

E. At the customer’s request, the Company shall make available to the customer all
invoices, timesheets or related documents that support the cost for providing such
service.

F. Permitted costs shall include any Federal, State or local taxes that are or may be

payable by the Company as a result of any tariff or contract for water facilities
under which the Customer advances or contributes funds or facilities to the
Company.
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L CROSS-CONNECTION OR BACKFLOW TARIFF

A. Purpose.

The purpose of this tariff is to protect the Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer)
Corp. - Water Division (“Company”) from the possibility of contamination caused by the
backflow of contaminates that may be present on the customer’s premises by requiring the
installation and periodic testing of backflow prevention assemblies pursuant to the provisions of
Arizona Administrative Code (A.A.C.) R14-2-405.B.6 and A.A.C. R18-4-215.

B. Requirement.

In compliance with the rules and regulations of the Arizona Corporation Commission and
the Arizona Department of Environmental Quality, specifically A.A.C. R14-2-405.B.6 and
A.A.C. R18-4-215 relating to backflow prevention:

1.

The Company may require a customer to pay for and install a backflow-
prevention assembly if A.A.C. R18-4-215.B or C applies.

Any backflow-prevention assembly required to be installed by the customer
under paragraph 1 of this tariff shall comply with the requirements set forth in
A.A.C.R18-4-215.D and E.

Subject to the provision of A.A.C. R14-2-407 and 410 and in accordance with
paragraphs 1 and 7 of this tariff, the Company may terminate service or deny
service to a customer who fails to install a backflow-prevention assembly as
required by this tariff.

The Company shall give any existing customer who is required to install a
backflow-prevention assembly written notice of said requirement. If A.A.C.
R14-2-410.B.1.a. is not applicable, the customer shall be given thirty (30) days
from the time such written notice is received in which to comply with this notice.
If the customer can show good cause as to why she or he cannot install the device
within thirty (30) days, the Company or Commission Staff may suspend this
requirement for a reasonable period of time.
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5. Testing shall be in conformance with the requirement of A.A.C. R18-4-215.F.
The Company may require the customer to pay to have the backflow-prevention
assembly tested as long as the Company does not require an unreasonable
number of tests. The Company may also require the customer to pay for repairs
to a backflow-prevention assembly.

6. The customer shall provide the Company with records of installation and testing.
For each backflow-prevention assembly, these records shall include:

assembly identification number and description;

location;

date(s) of test(s);

description of repairs and recommendations for repairs made by tester;
and

e. the tester’s name and certification number.

o op

7. In the event the backflow-prevention assembly does not function properly or fails
any test, and an obvious hazard as contemplated under A.A.C. R14-2-410.B.1.a.
exists, the Company may terminate service immediately and without notice. The
backflow-prevention assembly shall be repaired or replaced by the customer and
retested before service is restored.

8. In the event the backflow-prevention assembly does not function properly or fails
any test, or in the event that a customer fails to comply with the testing
requirement, and A.A.C. R14-2-410.B.1.a. is not applicable, the backflow-
prevention assembly shall be repaired or replaced within fourteen (14) days of
the initial discovery of the deficiency in the assembly or its function. Failure to
remedy the deficiency or dysfunction of the assembly, or failure to retest, shall be
grounds for termination of water service in accordance with A.A.C. R14-2-410.
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II. INTERRUPTIBLE SERVICE; COMPANY’S LIABILITY LIMITATIONS

The Company will supply only such water at such pressures as may be available from
time to time as a result of the normal operation of its water system. The Company will maintain a
minimum water pressure of 20 p.s.i. and will not guarantee a specific gallons per minute flow rate
at any public fire hydrants or fire sprinkler service. In the event service is interrupted, irregular or
defective, or fails from causes beyond the Company’s control or through ordinary negligence of

its employees or agents, the Company will not be liable for any injuries or damages arising
therefrom.
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II1. RULES AND REGULATIONS

The Company has adopted the Rules and Regulations established by the Commission as
the basis for its operating procedures. A.AC. R14-2-401 through A.A.C. R14-2-411 will be

|
|
Applies to all WATER service areas

controlling of Company procedures, unless specific Commission Order(s) provide otherwise.
|
|
|
|
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CURTAILMENT PLAN

ADEQ Public Water System Number: 12-011

Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. (“Company”), is authorized to curtail water service to
all customers within its certificated area under the terms and conditions listed in this tariff.

This curtailment plan shall become part of the Arizona Department of Environmental Quality Emergency
Operations Plan for the Company.

The Company shall notify its customers of this new tariff as part of its next regularly scheduled billing after
the effective date of the tariff or no later than sixty (60) days after the effective date of the tariff.

The Company shall provide a copy of the curtailment tariff to any customer, upon request.

Stage 1 Exists When:

Company is able to maintain water storage in the system at 100 percent of capacity and there are no known
problems with its well production or water storage in the system.

Restrictions: Under Stage 1, Company is deemed to be operating normally and no curtailment is
necessary.

Notice Requirements: Under Stage 1, no notice is necessary.

Stage 2 Exists When:

a. Company’s water storage or well production has been less than 80 percent of capacity for at least
48 consecutive hours, and

b. Company has identified issues such as steadily declining water table, increased draw-down
threatening pump operations, or poor water production, creating a reasonable belief the Company
will be unable to meet anticipated water demand on a sustained basis.

Restrictions: Under Stage 2, the Company may request the customers to voluntarily employ water
conservation measures to reduce water consumption by approximately 50 percent. Outside watering should
be limited to essential water, dividing outside watering on some uniform basis (such as even and odd days)
and eliminating outside watering on weekends and holidays.

Notice Requirements: Under Stage 2, the Company is required to notify customers by delivering
written notice door to door at each service address, or by United States first class mail to the billing address
or, at the Company’s option, both. Such notice shall notify the customers of the general nature of the
problem and the need to conserve water.
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Stage 3 Exists When:

a. Company’s total water storage or well production has been less than 50 percent of capacity for at
least 24 consecutive hours, and

b. Company has identified issues such as a steadily declining water table, increased draw down
threatening pump operations, or poor water production, creating a reasonable belief the Company
will be unable to meet anticipated water demand on a sustained basis.

Restrictions: Under Stage 3, Company shall request the customers to voluntarily employ water

conservation measures to reduce daily consumption by approximately 50 percent of Stage 1 consumption.
All outside watering should be eliminated, except livestock, and indoor water conservation techniques
should be employed whenever possible.

Notice Requirements:

1.

Company is required to notify customers by delivering written notice to each service address, or
by United States first class mail to the billing address or, at the Company’s option, both. Such
Notice shall notify the customers of the general nature of the problem and the need to conserve
water.

2. Beginning with Stage 3, Company shall post at least 6 signs showing the curtailment stage. Signs
shall be posted at noticeable locations, like at the well sites and at the entrance to major
subdivisions served by the Company.

3. Company shall notify the Consumer Services Section of the Utilities Division of the Corporation
Commission at least 12 hours prior to entering Stage 3.

Stage 4 Exists When:

a. Company’s total water storage or well production has been less than 25 percent of capacity for at
least 12 consecutive hours, and

b. Company has identified issues such as a steadily declining water table, increased draw down

threatening pump operations, or poor water production, creating a reasonable belief the Company
will be unable to meet anticipated water demand on a sustained basis.
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Restrictions: Under Stage 4, Company shall inform the customers of a mandatory restriction to
employee water conservation measures to reduce daily consumption. Failure to comply will result in
customer disconnection. The following uses of water shall be prohibited:

Trrigation of outdoor lawns, trees, shrubs, or any plant life is prohibited

Washing of any vehicle is prohibited

The use of water for dust control or any outdoor cleaning uses is prohibited

The use of drip or misting systems of any kind is prohibited

The filling of any swimming pool, spas, fountains or ornamental pools is prohibited
Restaurant patrons shall be served water only upon request

Any other water intensive activity is prohibited

Notice Requirements:

1. Company is required to notify customers by delivering written notice to each service address, or
by United States first class mail to the billing address or, at the Company’s option, both. Such
notice shall notify the customers of the general nature of the problem and the need to conserve

water.

2. Company shall post at least 6 signs showing curtailment stage. Signs shall be posted at noticeable
locations, like at the well sites and at the entrance to the major subdivisions served by the
Company.

3. Company shall notify the Consumer Services Section of the Utilities Division of the Corporation

Commission at least 12 hours prior to entering Stage 4.

Customers who fail to comply with the above restrictions will be given a written notice to end all outdoor
use. Failure to comply within two (2) working days of receipt of the notice will result in temporary loss of
service until an agreement can be made to end unauthorized use of outdoor water. To restore service, the
customer shall be required to pay all authorized reconnection fees. If a customer believes he/she has been
disconnected in error, the customer may contact the Commission’s Consumer Services Section at 1-800-
222-7000 to initiate an investigation.

Once Stage 4 has been reached, the Company must augment the supply of water by hauling or through an
emergency interconnect from an approved supply or must otherwise provide emergency drinking water for
its customers until a permanent solution has been implemented.
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I.  RATES

In Decision No. , issued , the Commission approved the following rates and
charges to become effective :

A. Monthly Minimum Charge

Meter Size (All Classes) Charge™

Inches Per Month
5/8” x 3/4” Meter $ 5483
3/4” Meter 63.22
1” Meter 7732
1 1/2” Meter 114.14
2” Meter 158.34
3” Meter 275 83
4> Meter 408.88
6” Meter 777 03
8” Meter 1,183.66
10” Meter 1,773.69
12 Meter 2.522.32

> Low Income Tariff — A 15% discount is available on monthly minimum and commodity charges to qualified
residential customers meeting the low income qualifications.

¢ A 5 percent discount is applicable to the public schools operated by the Santa Cruz County School District No. 35
receiving water and/or wastewater utility services from the Company.
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B. Commodity Rates (All Meter Sizes)

Commercial and Multi-Tenant Only

0 to 7,000 gallons $0.00
Over 7,000 gallons 7.00
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C. Service Line and Meter Installation Charges

Service Line Size Charge
4” Meter At Cost
6” Meter At Cost
8” Meter At Cost
10” Meter At Cost
12” Meter At Cost
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D. Other Service Charges

Service Charge
Establishment $25.00
Re-Establishment (within 12 months) €))
Reconnection (Delinquent) 2)
Deposit (Residential) 3)
Deposit (Non-Residential) @)
Deposit Interest 6.00%
NSF Check $10.00

Deferred Payment Finance Charge

1.5% per month

Late Charge

1.5% per month

After Hours Service Charge at Customer Request

$50.00 (5)

M Per A.A.C. R14-2-603(D), residential and non-residential customers shall pay applicable

minimum charge times number of months disconnected.

2) Customer shall pay the actual cost of physical disconnection and Establishment (if same
customer) and there shall be no charge for disconnection if no physical work is performed.

3) As authorized by A.A.C. R14-2-603(B), the deposit for residential customers is two times

average bill.

4) As authorized by A.A.C. R14-2-603(B), the deposit for non-residential customers is two and one-

half times average bill.

&) The after-hours service charge shall apply to any service requested by Customer that is
performed by Company after regular business hours and shall be in addition to the regular

business hours service charge.
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II. TAXES AND ASSESSMENTS

In addition to all other rates and charges authorized herein, the Company shall collect
from its customers all applicable sales, transaction, privilege, regulatory or other taxes and
assessments as may apply now or in the future, per A.A.C. R14-2-608(D)(5).
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|
| III. PERMITTED COSTS

A. Costs shall be verified by invoice.

| B. For services that are provided by the Company at cost, costs shall include labor,
materials, other charges incurred, and overhead. However, prior to any such service
being provided, the estimated cost of such service will be provided by the Company to
the customer. After review of the cost estimate, the customer will pay the amount of the
| estimated cost to the Company.

C. In the event that the actual cost is less than the estimated cost, the Company will refund
the excess to the customer within 30 days after completion of the provision of the service
or after Company’s receipt of invoices, timesheets or other related documents, whichever
is later.

D. In the event the actual cost is more than the estimated cost, the Company will bill the
customer for the amount due within 30 days after completion of the invoices, timesheets
or other related documents, whichever is later. The amount so billed will be due and
payable 30 days after the invoice date.

E. At the customer’s request, the Company shall make available to the customer all
invoices, timesheets or related documents that support the cost for providing such service.

F. Permitted costs shall include any Federal, State or local taxes that are or may be payable
by the Company as a result of any tariff or contract for wastewater facilities under which
the Customer advances or contributes funds or facilities to the Company.
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CUSTOMER DISCHARGE TO SYSTEM

A.

Service Subject to Regulation

Company provides wastewater service using treatment and collection facilities
that are regulated by numerous county, state and federal Statutes and Regulations. Those
Regulations include limitations as to domestic strength wastewater and the type of
wastewater that may be discharged into the system by any person directly or indirectly
connected to the plant.

Waste Limitations

Company has established the permissible limits of concentration as domestic
strength wastewater and will limit concentration for various specific substances,
materials, waters, or wastes that can be accepted in the sewer system, and to specify those
substances, materials, waters, or wastes that are prohibited from entering the sewer
system. Each permissible limit so established shall be placed on file in the business
office of Company, with a copy filed with the Commission. No person shall discharge, or
cause to be discharged, any new sources of inflow including, but not limited to, storm
water, surface water, groundwater, roof runoffs, subsurface drainage, cooling water, or
polluted industrial process waters into the sanitary sewer. Company will require an
affidavit from all non-residential customers, and their professional engineer, stating that
the wastewater discharged to the system does not exceed domestic strength or applicable
pre-treatment standards.

Inspection and Right of Ent

Every facility that is involved directly or indirectly with the discharge of
wastewater to the Treatment Plant may be inspected by Company as it deems necessary.
These facilities shall include but not be limited to sewer; sewage pumping plants; all
processes; devices and connection sewer; and all similar sewerage facilities. Inspections
may be made to determine that such facilities are maintained and operated properly and
are adequate to meet the provisions of these rules and this tariff. Inspections may include
the collection of samples. Authorized personnel of Company shall be provided
immediate access to all of the above facilities or to other facilities directly or indirectly
connected to the Treatment Plant at all reasonable times including those occasioned by
emergency conditions. Any permanent or temporary obstruction to easy access to the
user’s facility to be inspected shall promptly be removed by the facility user or owner at
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the written or verbal request of Company and shall not be replaced. No person shall
interfere with, delay, resist or refuse entrance to an authorized Company representative
attempting to inspect any facility involved directly or indirectly with a discharge of
wastewater to the Treatment Plant. Adequate identification shall be provided by
Company for all inspectors and other authorized personnel and these persons shall
identify themselves when entering any property for inspection purposes or when
inspecting the work of any contractor.

All transient motor homes, travel trailers and other units containing holding tanks must
arrive at Company’s service area in an empty condition. Inspection will be required of
said units prior to their being allowed to hookup to the wastewater system.

Termination of Water Service for Violation of Wastewater Rules and Regulations

Company is authorized to discontinue water service to any person connected to
both its water and sewer systems who violates Company’s wastewater terms and
conditions as set forth in this section or in any way creates a public health hazard or the
likelihood of such a public health hazard. This termination authority does not apply to
non-payment for water or wastewater services.

Issued:

Effective:
ISSUED BY:

Matthew Garlick, President
Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp.
12725 W. Indian School Road, Suite D-101
Avondale, AZ 85392




LIBERTY UTILITIES (R1IO RICO WATER & SEWER) CORP. Sheet No. 24

DOCKET NO. Cancelling Sheet No.

Applies to all WASTEWATER service areas
STATEMENT OF TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR WASTEWATER SERVICE

IL. RULES AND REGULATIONS

Company has adopted the Rules and Regulations established by the Commission as the
basis for its operating procedures. A.A.C. R14-2-601 through A.A.C. R14-2-609 will be
controlling of Company procedures, unless specifically approved tariffs or Commission Order(s)
provide otherwise.
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ALTERNATE RATES FOR WATER AND WASTEWATER (ARWW)
DOMESTIC SERVICE — SINGLE FAMILY ACCOMMODATION
APPLICABILITY

Applicable to residential water and wastewater service for domestic use rendered to low-
income households where the customer meets all the program qualifications and special
conditions of this rate schedule.

TERRITORY
Within all customer service areas served by Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer)
Corp. (“Liberty Rio Rico”).
f RATES
Fifteen percent (15%) discount applied to the regular filed tariff.
PROGRAM QUALIFICATIONS

1. Liberty Rio Rico bill must be in your name and the address must be your primary
residence or you must be a tenant receiving water service by a sub-metered
system.

2. You may not be claimed as a dependent on another person’s tax return.

3. You must reapply each time you move residences.

4. You must renew your application once every two (2) years, or sooner, if
requested.

5. You must recertify each year by submitting a declaration attesting to your
continuing eligibility, and provide one of the following items as proof of
eligibility: 1) copy of tax return from prior year; or 2) copy of W2 form from prior
year; or 3) copy of welfare / food stamp cards.

6. You must notify Liberty Rio Rico within thirty (30) days if you become ineligible
for ARWW.

7. Your total gross annual income of all persons living in your household cannot

exceed the income levels below:

Issued:

Effective:
ISSUED BY:

Matthew Garlick, President
Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp.
12725 W. Indian Schoo! Road, Suite D-101
Avondale, AZ 85392
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DOCKET NO Cancelling Sheet No. __

Applies to all WATER and WASTEWATER service areas
ALTERNATE RATES FOR WATER AND WASTEWATER (ARWW)
DOMESTIC SERVICE - SINGLE FAMILY ACCOMMODATION

Effective: January 20, 2016

No. of Person Total Gross
in Household Annual Income

1 FXX, XXX

2 XX XXX

3 XX, XXX

4 XX, XXX

5 XX, XXX

6 XX XXX

For each additional person residing in the household, add $X, XXX

For the purpose of the program the “gross household income” means all money and non cash
benefits, available for living expenses, from all sources, both taxable and non taxable, before
deductions for all people who live in your home. This includes, but is not limited to:

Wages or salaries Social Security, SSI, SSP Rental or royalty income

Interest or dividends from: Scholarships, grants, or other aid  Profit from self-employment

Savings account, stocks or bonds used for living expenses (IRS form Schedule C, Line 29)

Unemployment benefits Disability payments Worker’s Compensation

TANF (AFDC) Food Stamps Child Support

Pensions Insurance settlements Spousal Support

Gifts

Issued: Effective:
ISSUED BY:

Matthew Garlick, President
Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp.
12725 W. Indian School Road, Suite D-101
Avondale, AZ 85392
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DOCKET NO. Cancelling Sheet No. __

Applies to all WATER and WASTEWATER service areas
ALTERNATE RATES FOR WATER AND WASTEWATER (ARWW)
DOMESTIC SERVICE - SINGLE FAMILY ACCOMMODATION

SPECIAL CONDITIONS

1.

Application: An application on a form authorized by the Commission is required for
each request for service under this schedule. A customer must reapply every two (2)
years.

Recertification: A customer enrolled in the ARWW program must, each year, recertify
by submitting a declaration attesting to continuing eligibility, and provide one of the
following items as proof of eligibility: 1) copy of tax return from prior year; or 2) copy of
W2 form from prior year; or 3) copy of welfare / food stamp cards.

Commencement of Rate: Eligible customers whose applications have been approved
shall be billed on this schedule commencing with the next regularly scheduled billing
period that follows receipt of application by Liberty Rio Rico.

Verification: Information provided by the applicant is subject to verification by Liberty
Utilities. Refusal or failure of a customer to provide documentation of eligibility
acceptable to Liberty Rio Rico, upon request by Liberty Rio Rico, shall result in removal
from this rate schedule.

Notice from Customer: It is the customer’s responsibility to notify Liberty Rio Rico if
there is a change of eligibility status.

Rebilling: Customers may be re-billed retroactively for periods of ineligibility under the
applicable rate schedule.

Master-metered: A reduction will be calculated in the bill of master-metered customers,
who have sub-metered tenants that meet the income eligibility criteria, so an equivalent
discount (15%) can be passed through to eligible customer(s).

Participation Cap: The ARWW program is limited to 2,200 water division customers and
725 wastewater division customers. Applications will be reviewed and approved on a
first come, first served basis. Applicants will be placed on a waiting list if the
participation cap has been met.

Issued:

Effective:
ISSUED BY:

Matthew Garlick, President
Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp.
12725 W. Indian School Road, Suite D-101
Avondale, AZ 85392
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DOCKET NO. Cancelling Sheet No,

RECOVERY OF COST OF LOW INCOME TARIFF AND CUSTOMER SURCHARGES

Under the terms of Company’s Alternate Rates for Water and Wastewater (ARWW) Domestic
Service, qualifying low-income customers receive a 15 percent discount applied to the Company’s regular filed
tariff rates for water and wastewater service. The cost of the ARWW tariff shall be recovered by Company
from a monthly low income tariff surcharge on all residential water and wastewater customers who are not
participating in the ARWW program. Specifically, Company is entitled to seek recovery of direct costs (i.e.,
those costs directly associated with the program, and would not be incurred in the absence of the program).
Company shall account for those direct costs separately from other operating costs.

Company shall be entitled to implement a low income tariff surcharge on non-participating residential
water and wastewater customers as follows.

° For customers participating in ARWW, the Company shall maintain separate balancing
accounts for water and wastewater customers detailing the beginning and ending balance of
the cumulative unrecovered program costs each month.

. Company’s authorized rate of return shall be applied monthly to the average of the beginning
balances of the cumulative unrecovered program costs for water and wastewater service and
included in the beginning balances for the following month.

. Using the separate balancing accounts for water and wastewater customers, Company shall
calculate separate monthly surcharges for water and wastewater customers. The water and
wastewater surcharges shall be calculated as follows:

(Ending Balance for Low-Income Tariff Balancing Account including amortized
carrying costs during recovery period/Number of active water and wastewater
connections at year end)/12

. The ending balance in the balancing accounts shall equal the beginning balances plus
discounts allowed on bills for the twelve month tracking period, plus direct program costs
incurred in the twelve month period plus carrying charges less surcharge fees billed in the
twelve month tracking period.

. Company shall implement monthly water and wastewater surcharges for the ARWW program
for each twelve month period of the ARWW Program. Company shall be calculate the
monthly water and wastewater surcharges each year based on the active number of water and
wastewater connections as of December 31 of the prior year. Company shall file notice of the
water and wastewater surcharges, along with a report on the ARWW Program, with the
Arizona Corporation Commission on or before January 31 and the surcharges shall be
implemented on customer bills in February of each year with the recovery period ending in
January of the following year.

Issued: Effective:
ISSUED BY:

Matthew Garlick, President
Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp.
12725 W. Indian School Road, Suite D-101
Avondale, AZ 85392
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DOCKET NO. Cancelling Sheet No. ___

Application for
Alternate Rates for Water and Wastewater (ARWW)

To qualify for Liberty Rio Rico ARWW please check (v') all that apply:

= I am a Liberty Rio Rico residential customer and the Liberty Rio Rico account is in my name.

i I am a sub-metered tenant within the Libertv Rio Rico service area.

r My household income is at or below the income level in the listing below.
Houschold Size - Total Gross Annual Tneeme from All Sources
1 XX XXX
2 SXX XXX
3 SXX XXX
4 XX XXX
5 SXX XXX
6 $XX, XXX

For each additional person residing in the household, add $5,610.

The definition of “gross houschold income™ (before taxes) is all money and non cash benefits available for living expenses from all
sources, both taxable and non taxable, before deductions, including expenses, for all people who live in your home. This includes, but
is not limited to the following (please check (v') all that apply):

I Wages. salaries or profit from self-emplovment Social Security. SSI or SSP
Disability and/or Workers” Compensation pavments Food Stamps
Insurance and/or legal settlements TANF (AFDC)
Pensions Veterans Affairs benefits

Spousal and/or child support Unemplovment benefits

Scholarships. grants. or other aid used for living Rental and/or rovalty income

il i By
THTETEETTE

Interest/dividends from: savings, stocks, bonds, or
retirement accounts

Cash, gifts and/or other income

Please print the following information. Incomplete information will delay your discount. The name used to apply for the discount
must be the same as the name on the Liberty Rio Rico statement.
PLEASE PRINT LEGIBLY

Liberty Rio Rico Account Number
(As shown on statement)

Total No. of persons living in Household’s Total Gross Annual Income: Contact Phone Number
household: $

Name as shown on Liberty Rio Rico statement

Liberty Rio Rico Service Address

City State Zip Code

Please attach one of the items listed as proof of income for eligibility verification: Copy of tax return from prior year, or copy of W2
from prior year, or copy of welfare / food;stamp cards.

By signing below, I certify under penalty of perjury that this information is true and correct under the laws of the State of Arizona. I will
provide proof of income and I will notify Liberty Rio Rico of any changes that affect my eligibility. I understand that if I receive the
discount without meeting the qualifications for it, I may be required to pay back the discount I received.

Customer Signature Date

Note: An Application for ARWW must be submitted every two years. A Declaration of Eligibility must be submitted annually for
verification. Please allow 30-45 days for processing.

Office Use Only:  Date Verified Verified By Expires
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DOCKET NO.

Cancelling Sheet No. ___

Declaration of Eligibility

Alternate Rates for Water and Wastewater (ARWW)

To recertify enrollment in the ARWW Program please fill out the following attesting to continuing eligibility:

PLEASE PRINT LEGIBLY

Name as shown on Liberty Rio Rico statement

(As shown on statement)

Liberty Rio Rico Service Address

City

State

Zip Code

|
|
!
‘ Liberty Rio Rico Account Number
|
|
|

Contact Phone Number

Work Phone Number

Your Name (Please Print)

Last submitted an Application for Alternative Rates (ARWW)

on

and hereby confirm my eligibility for the year ending

(dd/mm/yyyy)

(dd/mm/yyyy)

Please attachone of the items listed below as proofaf income for eligibility verification:

Copy of tax return from prior year,
or copy of W2 form from prior year,
or copy of welfare / food stamp cards.

By signing below, I certify under penalty of perjury that this information is true and correct under the laws of the State of
Arizona. 1 will provide proof of income and I will notify Liberty Rio Rico of any changes that affect my eligibility. I understand
that if I receive the discount without meeting the qualifications for it, ] may be required to pay back the discount I received.

Customer Signature

Date

Note: An Application for ARWW must be submitted every two years. A Declaration of Eligibility must be submitted annually

for verification.
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DOCKET NO. Cancelling Sheet No. __

Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. Alternate Rates for Water and Wastewater (ARWW)

Applicability
Applicable to residential water and wastewater service for domestic use rendered to low-income households where the customer
meets all the Program Qualifications and Special Conditions of this rate schedule.

Territory
Within all customer service areas served by Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp.

Discount

Fifteen percent (15%) discount applied to the regular filed tariff. The discount will be applied to the customer’s total bill before
any adjustments and application of any other taxes, credit, penalties or fees.

Program Qualifications

e  The Liberty Rio Rico account must be in your name and the address must be your primary residence in our service area or
you must be a tenant receiving water service by a sub-metered system.

You may not be claimed as a dependent on another person’s tax return.

You must reapply each time you move residences.

You must renew your application once every two (2) years or sooner if requested.

You must recertify each year by submitting a declaration attesting to your continuing eligibility, and provide one of the
following items as proof of eligibility: 1) copy of tax return from prior year; or 2) copy of W2 form from prior year; or 3)
copy of welfare/food stamp cards.

You must notify Liberty Rio Rico within thirty (30) days if you become ineligible for ARWW.

Your total gross annual income of all persons living in your household cannot exceed the income levels provided on the
application.

Special Conditions

e  You must fill out and sign the ARWW Application completely. Incomplete information will delay your discount. You must
reapply every two (2) years.

e  You must recertify your enrollment in the ARWW annually by submitting a Declaration of Eligibility and providing one of
the following items as proof of eligibility: 1) copy of tax return from prior year; or 2) copy of W2 form from prior vear; or

3) copy of welfare/food stamp cards.
e  Customers shall be billed on this schedule commencing with the next regularly scheduled billing period that follows the

receipt and approval of the application by Liberty Rio Rico.

e  Documentation of your gross annual income must be provided to Liberty Rio Rico for verification of eligibility for ARWW.
Refusal or failure to provide documentation of acceptable eligibility to Liberty Rio Rico shall result in removal from this
rate schedule.

e It is the customer’s responsibility to notify Liberty Rio Rico if there is a change in eligibility status.

e You may be re-billed for any periods of ineligibility under the applicable rate schedule.

e  Master-metered customers who have sub-metered tenants will receive a reduction in the billing. Sub-metered tenants must
qualify and meet the income eligibility criteria so an equivalent discount (15%) can be passed through to eligible
customer(s).

e The ARWW program is limited to 2,200 water division customers and 725 wastewater division customers.

How to Submit Completed ARWW Application and/or Declaration of Eligibility

Mail, Fax or Email your ARWW Application and Declaration of Eligibility to:
Liberty Ultilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp.

1060 Yavapai Drive, Suite 9

Rio Rico, AZ 85648

Fax: 520-281-7433

Email: customerserviceriorico@libertywater.com
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LIBERTY UTILITIES (RIO RICO WATER & SEWER) CORP.

PROPOSED PLAN OF ADMINISTRATION FOR
PURCHASED POWER ADJUSTMENT MECHANISM

I GENERAL DESCRIPTION.

This document is the Plan of Administration (“POA”) for the Purchased Power
Adjustment Mechanism (“PPAM”) for Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp.
(“Liberty Rio Rico” or “Company”) approved by the Arizona Corporation Commission
(“Commission”) in Decision No. on , 2016. The PPAM allows
Liberty Rio Rico to pass through to its customers the increase or decrease in purchased
power costs that result from a rate change for any Commission-regulated electric service
provider supplying retail electric service to the Company.

II. PPAM RELATED FILINGS.

A.  Within 60 days of the effective date of a Commission Decision authorizing
a rate change in the approved tariffs for any Commission-regulated electric service
provider supplying retail electric service to the Company, the Company shall file with
Docket Control an analysis of the actual impact on the energy portion of the Company’s
electric service costs.

B. The Company will provide the Commission with spreadsheets detailing
exactly how the Company’s purchased power expenses were calculated in the time period
prior to a change in the rate that the Company must pay for purchased power. These
calculations will include basic service charges and rate and volume figures. That is, the
Company will break down its total purchased power bill into the amount due to fixed fees,
volume of electricity used, and the rates paid per unit of electricity. For the period
following the rate change, the Company will provide the same information, then compare
the two periods, isolating any change in purchased power cost that is due exclusively to a
rate change. The specific intent is to show exactly how much of any increase or decrease
is due to changes in rates beyond the Company’s control and how much is due to a change
in the amount of power that the Company consumes. The Company will only recover
increases or refund decreases that are due to changes in rates.

C.  Allrevised schedules filed with the Commission pursuant to the provisions
of this PPAM will be accompanied by documentation prepared by the Company in a format
approved by Utilities Division Staff of the Commission and will contain sufficient detail
to enable the Commission to verify accuracy of the Company’s calculations.

D. The surcharges will not become effective until approved by the Commission.

1




E. The Company will file annually with the Commission a report detailing the
Company’s purchased power costs and any conservation or power-shifting measures

employed by the Company.

F. The Company shall provide notice (in a form acceptable to Staff) of the rate
increases to customers with the bill where the rate increase first appears.

III. APPLICATION TO SEWER CUSTOMERS.

A. The increase or decrease in purchased power costs that are due to changes in

rates at the Company’s sewer facilities will be allocated on a per capita basis.

B. See the following example:

Test Year Current Year

Purchased Power Purchased Power

Rate $0.0800===> | Rate $0.1000
Kilowatt Hours Used 1,250,000 Kilowatt Hours Used 1,250,000
Purchased Power Purchased Power

Expense $100,000 Expense $125,000

TestYearPurchased bor
Increase in Purchased Poy
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LIBERTY UTILITIES (RIO RICO WATER & SEWER) CORP.

PROPOSED PLAN OF ADMINISTRATION FOR
PROPERTY TAX ADJUSTMENT MECHANISM

I GENERAL DESCRIPTION.

This document is the Plan of Administration (“POA™) for the Property Tax
Adjustment Mechanism (“PTAM?”) for Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp.
(“Liberty Rio Rico” or “Company”) approved by the Arizona Corporation Commission
(“Commission”) in Decision No. on , 2016. The PTAM allows
Liberty Rio Rico to pass through to its customers the increase or decrease in property taxes
that results from a change in the applicable assessment ratio and/or property tax rates.

II. PTAM RELATED FILINGS.

A. Within 60 days of the effective date of a change in the assessment ratio and/or
property tax rates applicable to the Company, the Company shall file with Docket Control
an analysis of the actual impact on the Company’s property tax expenses.

B. The Company will provide the Commission with spreadsheets detailing
exactly how the Company’s property tax expenses were calculated in the time period prior
to a change in the assessment ratio and/or property tax rate that affects the Company’s
property tax expenses. These calculations will include the assessment ratio, the property
tax rates, and the value of the property that was taxed. For the period following the
change(s), the Company will provide the same information, then compare the two periods,
isolating any change in property tax expense that is due exclusively to changes in the
assessment ratio and/or property tax rates. The specific intent is to show exactly how much
of any increase or decrease in property tax expense is due to changes in the assessment
ratio and tax rates beyond the Company’s control and how much is due to changes in the
value of the property the Company owns. The Company will only recover increases or
refund decreases that are due to changes in the assessment ratio and tax rates.

C. All revised schedules filed with the Commission pursuant to the provisions
of this PTAM will be accompanied by documentation prepared by the Company in a format
approved by Ultilities Division Staff of the Commission and will contain sufficient detail
to enable the Commission to verify accuracy of the Company’s calculations.

D. The surcharges will not become effective until approved by the Commission.

E. The Company will file annually with the Commission a report detailing the
Company’s property tax expenses.




F. The Company shall provide notice (in a form acceptable to Staff) of the rate
increases to customers with the bill where the rate increase first appears.

III. APPLICATION TO SEWER CUSTOMERS.

A. The increase or decrease in property tax expenses that are due to changes in
the assessment ratio and/or property tax rates at the Company’s sewer facilities will be
allocated on a per capita basis.

B. See the examples on the next page:



Change in Assessment Ratio Excmple

Test Year Current Year

Assessment Ratio 20.00% ‘ Assessment Ratio 21.00%
Property Full Cash Value $10,000,000 Property Full Cash Value $10,000,000
Assessed Valuation $2,000,000 Assessed Valuation $2,100,000

Change in Assessed Valuation

Current Year Assessed Valuation $2,100,000
Test Year Assessed Valuation $2,000,000
Increase in Assessed Valuation Due to Increase in Assessment Ratio $100,000
Test Year Current Year

Total Property Tax Rate 10.00% Total Property Tax Rate 10.00%
Assessed Valuation $2,000,000 Assessed Valuation $2,100,000
Property Tax Expense $200,000 - | Property Tax Expense $210,000
' PTAM Charge on Sample Custonter Bill . .
Increase in Property Tax Expense ue to increase m Assessment Ratio $10’060
Number of Sewer Customers. - 20 000
PTAM Charge on Sample Customdr Bill = $0.50

Change in Total Property Tax Rate Example

Test Year Current Year

Total Property Tax Rate 10.00% ‘ Total Property Tax Rate 11.00%
Assessed Valuation $2,000,000 Assessed Valuation $2,000,000
Property Tax Expense $200,000 Property Tax Expense $220,000

1

Pass Through Calculation i
$220,000

Current Year Proper‘ty Tax Expens - :
Test Year Property Tax Expense 1 Ty . o . .5200,000
Increase in Property Tax Expense O ue to Rate !ncrease Lty R TR T = =$20,000

PTAM Charge on Sample Custom * Bill: . e
Ancrease in Property Tax Expense le to Rate Increase $20 000

I Number of Sewer Customers 20 000

PTAM Chargeé on SampleCustome'Blll TS L kel e e - 4100
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SHAPIRO LAW FIRM

A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION

>

INTRODUCTION.
PLEASE STATE YOUR NAME AND BUSINESS ADDRESS.

My name is Matthew Garlick. My business address is 12725 W. Indian School
Road, Suite D-101, Avondale, Arizona 85392.

BY WHOM ARE YOU EMPLOYED AND IN WHAT CAPACITY?

I have been employed by Liberty Utilities since 2000. On June 1, 2015, I became
President of the Liberty Utilities regulated utilities in Arizona and Texas, including
Liberty Utilities (Bella Vista Water) Corp. (“Liberty Bella Vista™) and Liberty
Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. (“Liberty Rio Rico™) (collectively
“Liberty BV/RR” or “Applicants”™).

ON WHOSE BEHALF ARE YOU TESTIFYING IN THIS PROCEEDING?
I’m providing this testimony on behalf of both of the Applicants.

PLEASE DESCRIBE YOUR RESPONSIBILITIES AS PRESIDENT OF
LIBERTY UTILITIES IN ARIZONA/TEXAS.

I am responsible for Liberty Utilities’ water and sewer operations in Texas and
Arizona.' This includes directing the daily operations and administration of all of
the utilities, including their financial and operating results, capital and operating
cost budgeting, rate case planning and oversight, and rate setting policies and
procedures. As President, I also oversee customer and development services,
environmental, health and safety, accounting/finance, human resources,

engineering, and conservation planning.

' In Arizona, along with Applicants, Liberty Utilities also owns and operates Liberty

Utilities (Black Mountain Sewer) Corp. (“Liberty Black Mountain”), Liberty Utilities
(Entrada Del Oro Sewer) Corp., Liberty Utilities (Gold Canyon Sewer) Corp., and Liberty
Utilities (Litchfield Park Water & Sewer) Corp. (“Liberty Litchfield Park”) Liberty
Black Mountain recently filed a rate case with the Commission.

1
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WHAT OTHER POSITIONS HAVE YOU HELD WITH LIBERTY
UTILITIES?

I was hired in January 2000 as a Technical Services Supervisor. In November
2009, I was named Business Manager of Liberty Utilities (Litchfield Park Water &
Sewer) Corp. (formerly known as Litchfield Park Service Company), and was
responsible for operations for approximately 40,000 utility customers. In March
2012, I assumed the role of Director of Operations — Arizona, and was responsible
for operations throughout Arizona, as well as Texas, Missouri, and Illinois. In June
2015, I became President of our operating utilities in Arizona and Texas.

WHAT WAS YOUR EDUCATION AND EMPLOYMENT PRIOR TO
LIBERTY UTILITIES?

For 15 years prior, I was a Senior Project Geologist with an environmental
engineering firm called Environmental Science and Engineering. My role was to
direct and support other project scientists in the daily work activities on various
State of Arizona Water Quality Assurance Revolving Fund (WQARF) groundwater
remedial projects. I earned a Bachelor of Science degree in Earth Science from
Northern Arizona University.

DO YOU HOLD ANY CERTIFICATIONS?

I hold the highest level of Operator Certifications (Grade IV — WD, WP, WWT,
and Grade III in WWC) in Arizona. I am also a certified Backflow Tester.
Additionally, I belong to several professional organizations such as the American
Water Works Association (AWWA), and American Backflow Prevention
Association (ABPA).

HAVE YOU TESTIFIED BEFORE THIS OR ANY OTHER COMMISSION?
No, however, my direct testimony was filed in the Liberty Black Mountain rate

proceeding on June 22, 2015, Docket Nos. SW-02361A-15-0206 and SW-02361A-
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15-0207 (consolidated). That rate case is scheduled for hearing in early 2016.
Now, I am concurrently prefiling this direct testimony in rate proceedings for
Liberty Bella Vista and Liberty Rio Rico. We intend to request that the two rate
cases be consolidated for processing at the Commission.

WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF YOUR TESTIMONY IN THIS
PROCEEDING?

To support Applicants’ request for rate relief. Specifically, I will provide general
background on the Liberty Utilities companies, and on Liberty Bella Vista and
Liberty Rio Rico. I will then introduce Applicants’ request for approval of the Fair
Value Arizona Rate Evaluation Model or “FARE.” I will also address Applicants’
requests for approval of a purchased power adjuster mechanism and property tax
adjuster mechanism, various changes that are being proposed to Applicants’ tariffs
of rates and charges, and the financing applications that are being concurrently
filed for consolidation into the rate case dockets.

WHAT IS THE FARE, MR. GARLICK?

The FARE is a ratemaking mechanism we developed following the disappointing
decision of the Arizona Court of Appeals rendering the System Improvement
Benefits (“SIB”) surcharge unlawful. We designed the FARE to comply with
Arizona law, including Arizona’s unique “fair value” requirement, and to promote
rate gradualism and rate stability, and to mitigate regulatory lag. The FARE will
use regular filings in an open and transparent process that ensures that the cost of
service to the customer reflects the utility’s current cost of service. I will provide
additional background testimony on the FARE in my direct testimony below, and
Peter Eichler explains the proposed FARE in detail in his direct testimony. A copy
of Liberty Utilities” written FARE proposal is attached to my testimony as Exhibit
MG-DT1, and a copy is also attached to Mr. Eichler’s direct testimony.
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OVERVIEW OF LIBERTY UTILITIES.

PLEASE PROVIDE AN OVERVIEW OF LIBERTY UTILITIES.

Liberty Utilities Co. (“Liberty Utilities™) is a Delaware corporation that operates
regulated gas, water, sewer and electric utilities in ten states—Arizona, Arkansas,
California, Iowa, Illinois, Missouri, Georgia, Massachusetts, New Hampshire and
Texas.” Liberty Utilities Co. is a subsidiary of Liberty Utilities (Canada) Corp.
(“Liberty Utilities Canada”). The Arizona utilities are wholly owned subsidiaries
of Liberty Ultilities (Sub) Corp., which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Liberty
Utilities. Algonquin Power & Utilities Corp., or APUC, a publicly traded member
of the Toronto Stock Exchange, ultimately owns all of the Liberty Utilities entities,
including Applicants.

APUC is a $4.1 billion electric generation, transmission and distribution
utility company based in Oakville, Ontario. APUC is listed on the Toronto Stock
Exchange and is a registrant with the U.S. Security and Exchange Commission.
APUC subsidiaries own and operate regulated utilities in the United States, and
own non-regulated generation facilities and regulated electric transmission and
natural gas pipelines throughout the United States and Canada. The distribution
business group operates in the United States as Liberty Utilities and provides rate-
regulated water, wastewater, electricity and natural gas utility services to nearly
half a million customers.> The electric generation business group operates as
Algonquin Power Co. and owns or has interests in a portfolio of North American

based contracted wind, solar, hydroelectric and natural gas powered generating

? Liberty Utilities Co. has also recently reached agreement to acquire three other regulated
water companies—two in California and one in Montana.

? Liberty Utilities currently has over 480,000 regulated utility customers in the United
States. Upon regulatory approval for the water company acquisitions in California and
Montana, Liberty Utilities will have over 550,000 regulated customers.
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facilities representing more than 1,150 MW of installed capacity. The transmission
business group invests in rate regulated electric transmission and natural gas
pipeline systems in the United States and Canada. Common shares and preferred
shares of APUC are traded on the Toronto Stock Exchange under the symbols
AQN, AQNPRAA and AQN.PR.D. The APUC  website is
www.AlgonquinPowerandUtilities.com.

WHAT IS LIBERTY UTILITIES' OVERALL PHILOSOPHY REGARDING
THE OPERATION OF ITS REGULATED UTILITY BUSINESSES?

Liberty Utilities promotes a common set of organizational values to help guide
day-to-day business decisions. Those organizational values are Family, Quality,
Efficiency, Community, Care and Commitment. They are the foundation of the
Liberty Utilities culture and provide guidance on day-to-day business operations.
Overarching all of those organizational values is Safety. Liberty Utilities considers
Safety a meta-level value and places safety of customers, employees and
community first and foremost. In addition to local operations, strategic oversight
and administrative support services are provided centrally from Liberty Utilities
Canada and APUC to the local utility businesses. We take this approach because
we believe these services can be provided more cost effectively and in a manner
that ensures consistent quality across all of our operating utilities if provided on a
shared services basis. We strive to ensure, however, that doing so will not detract
from the local presence that is valued by our customers and regulators. Customers
receive significant benefits from this shared services model and the local approach
in the provision of high quality utility service.

HOW DOES LIBERTY UTILITIES’ REGULATORY PHILOSOPHY
INFLUENCE THE WAY IN WHICH IT APPROACHES THE
MANAGEMENT AND OPERATION OF THE UTILITIES IT OWNS?



http://www.AlgonquinPowerandUtilities.com
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We believe that there is no adequate substitute for local management, local
decision-making and local operational control for a utility that is serious about
achieving the highest level of customer satisfaction and maintaining strong
regulatory compliance. We believe that utilities can best meet the needs of
customers and regulators when the people making the decisions impacting the
communities they serve are located near those customers and are in easy, regular,
close contact with customers and regulators. In terms of operating its regulated
utilities, Liberty Utilities focuses on local management control and operation.

3

We operate on the following corporate principles—“Local. Responsive. We
Care.” Each state has a President who directs the utilities in that state. I am that
President in Arizona and Texas. The state presidents have local decision making
authority and responsibility, including operational and financial authority. We
have system operators and local customer service representatives to interact with
customers directly. Customers, based on our experience, appreciate the “local”
aspect of our service, and we try to accomplish that wherever reasonably possible.
We have been successful in implementing this local service approach in Arizona.
WHAT ROLE DOES LIBERTY UTILITIES PLAY IN THE OPERATION
AND MANAGEMENT OF APPLICANTS?

Liberty Utilities is more than just a holding company — it is the operator of each of
the Applicants. Employees that operate, administer and manage the day-to-day
operations are employed by Liberty Utilities Service Corp. (“LUSC”™), a direct
subsidiary of Liberty Utilities. Liberty Utilities is also Applicants’ source of
capital for utility plant investment and operations with investment capital
ultimately coming from APUC.

ARE THERE ADVANTAGES TO OPERATING IN THIS MANNER?

Yes, there are substantial advantages. To start, operating in this manner achieves
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economies of scale that allow us to provide great service at a reasonable price. As
stand-alone utilities, Applicants would have to hire and pay full time engineering
staff, human resources, safety and rates personnel, repair and maintenance staff,
accounting and billing staff, and customer service and management. In turn, those
stand-alone costs would be incorporated into rates. We all see these financial
realities daily in the hundreds of small water and sewer utilities regulated by the
Commission. In Arizona, Liberty Utilities currently has 107 employees working to
provide the best possible service at a reasonable cost to the customers of six
different regulated water and wastewater utilities.

BUT DO APPLICANTS REALLY NEED THAT MANY FULL-TIME
EMPLOYEES TO OPERATE SAFELY AND RELIABLY?

Neither Applicant has any full-time staff, which illustrates the benefits of Liberty
Utilities’” operations model. For example, we currently have a substantial project
for Liberty Black Mountain—the Boulders WWTP closure—and our engineering
and regulatory staff spend a great deal of time focused on that project. Several
years ago, we had a major plant expansion at the Liberty Litchfield Park Palm
Valley Water Reclamation Facility, and we are expecting another expansion of that
facility in the near future. The next time it may be Liberty Bella Vista or Liberty
Rio Rico. Under our structure, each of our Arizona utilities has access to personnel
with experience and expertise available to focus on major capital improvement
projects for multiple utilities. And while the engineers and operators focus on
capital improvements and maintenance of the existing systems, the billing clerks
focus on getting bills out and payments in, and customer service handles customer
inquiries. Each of us has a role in the running of all utility operations and that
allows us to have the right people with the right skills available to do the job for

each and any utility as needed. This operational structure also allows us to share
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those necessary costs over multiple entities, in turn reducing service costs and rates
for customers.

DOESN’T THIS ARRANGEMENT RESULT IN CONFUSION OVER THE
COSTS FOR LIBERTY UTILITIES’ VARIOUS ARIZONA UTILITIES?

No. All direct costs related to each utility’s specific operations are direct charged.
Common costs are pooled and allocated through a central cost allocation.
Mr. Killeen, Director, Regulatory Strategy for Liberty Utilities (Canada) Corp.,
addresses the corporate cost allocations from APUC and Liberty Utilities Canada
in his direct testimony. All of the costs are scrutinized in the ratemaking process.
OVERVIEW OF LIBERTY BELLA VISTA.

PLEASE PROVIDE AN OVERVIEW OF LIBERTY BELLA VISTA.

Liberty Bella Vista provides water service to approximately 9,357 customers.
There are roughly 8,133 residential customers, 1,035 commercial customers, and
189 fire protection customers. Liberty Bella Vista’s certificated service territory is
located in Cochise County. Liberty Bella Vista’s service area is not part of an
Active Management Area.

In 2014, in accordance with Commission Decision No. 72251 (April 7,
2011), Liberty Bella Vista (which comprises the City System and the South
System) merged with Liberty Utilities (Northern Sunrise Water) Corp. (which
comprised the Crystal/Mustang subsystem and the Coronado/Sierra Sunset
subsystem) andiLiberty Utilities (Southern Sunrise Water) Corp. (which comprised
the Cochise/Horseshoe subsystem and the Miracle Valley subsystem). Liberty
Bella Vista is the surviving entity.

PLEASE DESCRIBE LIBERTY BELLA VISTA’S WATER RESOURCES.
The City System has 18 wells capable of producing 9.288 mgd and 15 reservoirs
providing 6.143 mg of storage. The South System has 13 wells capable of
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producing 0.642 mgd and 12 reservoirs providing .709 mg of storage. The South
System has challenges with regard to availability of groundwater.

The Coronado/Sierra Sunset subsystem has two wells (75 gpm and 65 gpm)
and 70,000 gallons of storage. The Sierra Sunset well pumps directly into the
distribution system (after chlorination) while the Coronado well pumps to storage.
The Crystal/Mustang subsystem has two wells (45 gpm and 120 gpm) and 100,000
gallons of storage. The Crystal well pumps either directly into the distribution
system (after chlorination) or into the Mustang storage tank, while the Mustang
well pumps directly into the storage tank. The Mustang site includes a Variable
Frequency Drive (VFD) booster station that feeds the distribution system.

The Cochise/Horseshoe (interconnected) subsystem has four wells capable
of producing 190 gpm and 180,000 gallons of storage. The Miracle Valley
subsystem has two wells (100 gpm and 250 gpm) and 150,000 gallons of storage.
These three subsystems are also chlorinated.

WHAT IS LIBERTY BELLA VISTA’S COMPLIANCE STATUS?

To the best of our knowledge, Liberty Bella Vista is currently in compliance with
the rules and regulations of the Arizona Department of Environmental Quality
(“ADEQ”), Arizona Department of Water Resources (“ADWR”) and the
Commission.

WHEN DID THE CURRENT RATES GO INTO EFFECT?

The current rates were approved in Decision No. 72251 (April 7, 2011).
These rates were based on a test year ended March 31, 2009, so it will have been
five years between test years.

WHAT SIGNIFICANT CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS HAS LIBERTY
BELLA VISTA MADE SINCE ITS LAST TEST YEAR ENDED?

In the City System, Liberty Bella Vista replaced the two-zone booster station at




1 Well 18 (the largest facility in the service area) with a two-zone VFD booster
2 station. The existing station was over 30 years old and at the end of its service life.
3 In the Northern Sunrise System, Liberty Bella Vista drilled a new well at the
4 Crystal site because the old well had gone dry. Liberty Bella Vista also completely
5 removed and replaced 386 water meters in this system that were 20 years old and
6 contributing to water loss. At the Crystal site, Liberty Bella Vista installed a
7 transmission line to the Mustang reservoir, which now provides redundancy for the
8 Crystal/Mustang subsystem. At the Coronado site, Liberty Bella Vista installed
9 two new 35,000-gallon reservoirs for a total of 70,000 gallons of storage for
10 customers in the area. New electrical controls were also installed to replace old
11 units that were at the end of their service lives.
12 In the Southern Sunrise System, Liberty Bella Vista replaced the existing
13 booster station at the Cochise site (Naranja), which was at the end of its service
14 life. Liberty Bella Vista also completely removed and replaced 330 water meters
15 in this system that were 20 years old and contributing to water loss. Liberty Bella
16 Vista also installed a VFD booster and a water main to loop the existing system.
17 In addition to these improvements, Liberty Bella Vista added SCADA at
18 several sites throughout all systems and installed a solar power generating system
19 and completed an additional 798 water meter replacements in the Liberty Bella
20 Vista South system. Also, Liberty Bella Vista constructed a compressed natural
21 gas (CNG) loading station in Sierra Vista, AZ for company vehicles. The CNG
22 facility was completed recently and is anticipated to begin operations by mid-
23 November 2015.
24 | Q. HAVE THERE BEEN ANY NOTEWORTHY CHANGES IN OPERATIONS
25 SINCE THE LAST RATE CASE?
26 | A. Yes. Interconnections made between Sierra Sunset and Coronado, between
Araortssionst Coneasarion
‘ 10
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Mustang and Crystal, and between the South and Cochise, plus other projects
already mentioned have added redundancies to the systems and increased reliability
to customers.

Q. ARE YOU PROPOSING THAT ANY POST TEST YEAR PLANT BE
INCLUDED IN LIBERTY BELLA VISTA’S RATE BASE?

A. Yes. For all of the Liberty Bella Vista systems, we have $872,771.77 of post test
year plant. Nearly $450,000 of this amount was for the CNG Facility project I
mentioned earlier. Just over $210,000 was spent to install solar panels on the
office building in Sierra Vista. There were a few other projects also included in
this post test year plant. In addition, we have roughly $21,000 and $19,000 of post
test year plant for the Northern and Southern Sunrise systems. All of these post
test year plant improvements are used and useful or will be before a hearing in this
case in the service of our existing customers.

Q. CANYOUPROVIDE AN UPDATE REGARDING EFFORTS TO ADDRESS
NON-ACCOUNT WATER IN THE LIBERTY BELLA VISTA SYSTEM?

A. Yes. In the last rate case, Liberty Bella Vista was ordered to monitor non-account
water and report back to the Commission.® Since then, we have reduced non-
account water in the former Northern and Southern Sunrise company systems
considerably. During the test year, Liberty Bella Vista’s total non-account water
was approximately 5 percent. This reduction in water loss to well below the
10 percent threshold we know the Commission expects to see is largely due to the
meter replacement program I discussed above, and to improvements in our

management and operations as we continue to integrate these systems together.

* Decision No. 72251 at 53-34. Compliance filings were made on August 8 and
December 13 of 2012 and Liberty Bella Vista’s water loss has remained under 10 percent.

11
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WHY IS LIBERTY BELLA VISTA IN NEED OF RATE RELIEF AT THIS
TIME?

Since the last Liberty Bella Vista rate case, operating expenses have increased and
Liberty Bella Vista has made significant capital improvements to provide more
reliable service to its customers, particularly those who were previously served by
Liberty Utilities (Northern Sunrise Water) Corp. and Liberty Utilities (Southern
Sunrise Water) Corp. prior to merger of those companies into Liberty Bella Vista.
As a result, Liberty Bella Vista is significantly under earning.

OVERVIEW OF LIBERTY RIO RICO.

PLEASE PROVIDE AN OVERVIEW OF LIBERTY RIO RICO.

Liberty Rio Rico provides both water and wastewater service. Liberty Rio Rico’s
service area is located in Santa Cruz County north of the city of Nogales. Liberty
Rio Rico’s water and wastewater CC&Ns are geographically the same. However,
due to varied terrain, wastewater service is generally concentrated in the central
portion of the service area and includes fewer customers. Those who are not
provided sewer service by Liberty Rio Rico use septic tanks.

Liberty Rio Rico’s water customers include a number of commercial, a few
industrial, and several irrigation customers. The 5/8” metered residential class,
which is the largest customer class, uses an average of 6,723 gallons per month per
connection. Liberty Rio Rico is an industry leading provider of water and
wastewater services in Santa Cruz County, and has received several awards in the
past for operational excellence, including the Arizona Water Association (formerly
AWPCA) Small Water Distribution System of the year for 2003, 2005, and 2010,
and the 2005 Small Wastewater Collection System of the year, as well as an Award
of Merit for its outstanding safety record in 2010. These awards are given for

significant efforts to provide safe drinking water and protect public health.

12
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PLEASE DESCRIBE LIBERTY RIO RICO’S WATER RESOURCES.

Liberty Rio Rico’s water supply comes from groundwater. Groundwater is
pumped from six wells directly into the distribution system or into one of five
storage facilities for later distribution to customers. All water supplies are
chlorinated prior to delivery to customers for disinfection purposes. Due to the

vast elevation differences within the distribution system, including seven different

- 150-foot pressure zones, Liberty Rio Rico utilizes 27 booster stations to maintain

proper pressure. Liberty Rio Rico’s service territory is within the Santa Cruz
Active Management Area.

DOES LIBERTY RIO RICO PROVIDE WATER SERVICE FOR
IRRIGATION?

Yes. Liberty Rio Rico supplies water to three school complexes, one resort, and
two parks, including the one used for the local Little League. Liberty Rio Rico
also supplies water to Rio Rico Properties for use in irrigating medians, common
areas and drip irrigation, and provides separate irrigation water to a few residential
customers who requested a dedicated irrigation line. There is one golf course in
the service area, but Liberty Rio Rico only supplies domestic water for potable use.
Liberty Rio Rico does not provide water for landscape irrigation to any golf
courses at this time. The golf course in Liberty Rio Rico’s CC&N has its own
well, which the golf course uses for irrigation needs. Additionally, our wastewater
is treated at the Nogales International Wastewater Treatment Plant (“NIWTP”),
and, even if we owned the effluent, transporting effluent from that plant over 1/2
mile, uphill and under the Santa Cruz River, would be extremely cost prohibitive.

And Liberty Rio Rico does not own the rights to the effluent from the NIWTP.

13
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PLEASE DESCRIBE LIBERTY RIO RICO’S PRIMARY WASTEWATER
TREATMENT FACILITIES.

As mentioned, Liberty Rio Rico has purchased 550,000 gallons per day of
treatment capacity from the City of Nogales. Liberty Rio Rico also has two sets of
three evaporative ponds. The first set of three ponds (called the Villas 12) has a
general permit to treat up to 20,000 gallons per day of sewage. The second set of
three ponds (called the Villas 13) is permitted to treat up to 150,000 gallons per day
of sewage on an emergency basis only. The collection system includes five lift
stations, four of which pump wastewater for treatment under our agreement with
the City, and the remaining pump to the evaporative ponds.

WHAT IS LIBERTY RIO RICO’S COMPLIANCE STATUS?

To the best of our knowledge, Liberty Rio Rico is currently in compliance with the
rules and regulations of ADEQ, ADWR and the Commission.

WHEN DID THE CURRENT RATES GO INTO EFFECT?

The current rates were approved in Decision No. 73996 (July 30, 2013). These
rates were based on a test year ended February 29, 2012.

WHAT SIGNIFICANT CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS HAS LIBERTY RIO
RICO MADE SINCE ITS LAST TEST YEAR ENDED?

Liberty Rio Rico rehabilitated Water Plant 30. This was a 33-year old facility
serving the southwest quadrant of the service territory at the end of its service life.
The rehabilitation included installation of VFD pumps, new electrical and controls.
Another project involved continuation of the Automated Meter Reading (“AMR”)
system installation. The AMR system installation included replacement of
approximately 1,500 meters, as well as replacing outdated meter reading

equipment.

14




O 0 N N R W e

[N N O O O T N T g T
[ I S R = BN - B - RS BN« N, TR SR U'C I NO R SO )

26

SHAPIRO LAW FIRM

A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION

Since the last test year, we made significant improvements to replace water
service lines at the end of their service life (+30 years). In Liberty Rio Rico’s
service area, when a service line leaks, it is more cost effective to replace the entire
service line as opposed to repairing it. On average, Rio Rico has approximately
100 service line replacements on an average annually. Replacement involves
paving and other construction and engineering work required by Santa Cruz
County, which accounts for about 40 percent of the total cost for each service line
replacement.

WOULD YOU BE ABLE TO AVOID THESE COSTS IF YOU HAD JUST
REPAIRED THE SERVICE LINES INSTEAD OF REPLACING THEM?
No. The costs arise largely due to required access through streets and roadways,
and we need the same access to repair a water service line as we do to repair it.
That means we would incur the same paving, access and construction costs to
repair the lines as to replace the lines. Given the age and condition of these service
lines, it is much more cost effective and operationally more advantageous to
replace these aging and deteriorating lines, rather than conduct piecemeal repairs.
ARE YOU PROPOSING ANY POST TEST YEAR PLANT BE INCLUDED
IN LIBERTY RIO RICO’S RATE BASE?

Yes. We have $1,393,902.78 of post test year plant. Almost $540,000 of this
amount is for meter replacements. I discuss the issue with old and leaky meters
above. We also incurred nearly $500,000 engineering and constructing a major
booster station project. The remaining post test year plant relates to various other
projects recently completed. All of these post test year projects are re used and
useful serving existing customers or at least will be before the hearing in this rate

case.

15
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THANK YOU. CAN YOU PROVIDE AN UPDATE REGARDING
EFFORTS TO ADDRESS WATER LOSS?

Yes. In the last rate case we were ordered to monitor non-account water and report
back to the Commission.” We have done so, and made several filings with the
Commission. During 2014, Liberty Rio Rico’s water loss was 9.9 percent.

WHY IS LIBERTY RIO RICO IN NEED OF RATE RELIEF AT THIS
TIME?

Because Liberty Rio Rico continues to under earn. Under earning by Arizona’s
regulated water and wastewater utilities is certainly nothing new — it has been a
drag on our segment of the industry as long as I have been a part of it. I don’t have
the past ratemaking experience to single out any specific causes, but any system
that is always one to two years behind what is really happening seems to me to be
inherently unable to keep up. Liberty Rio Rico is an example. This is the fourth
rate case for Liberty Rio Rico in a decade and basically it has yet to earn its
revenue requirement.

IS THAT WHY YOU MENTIONED LIBERTY RIO RICO WAS SEEKING
APPROVAL OF THE FAIR VALUE ARIZONA RATE EVALUATION
MODEL OR FARE?

Yes, the inability to achieve our revenue requirement and authorized return was a
significant factor that led us to first support the SIB, and now to develop and
propose the FARE.

3 Decision No. 73996 at 58.
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LIBERTY’S PROPOSED FAIR VALUE ARIZONA RATE EVALUATION
MODEL — THE FARE.

IN THE INTRODUCTION TO THIS TESTIMONY YOU MENTIONED
THAT THE FARE FOLLOWED THE COURT OF APPEALS RULING IN
THE SIB APPEAL. CAN YOU PLEASE ELABORATE?

Yes. The Court’s decision was a substantial step back. While the SIB alone would
not have remedied all of the difficulties with ratemaking in Arizona, it was a
significant step in the right direction. The SIB would have provided an assured
revenue stream to fund certain plant replacements, which in turn would have made
it easier to obtain the capital needed to fund those improvements. Without it, we
are back to the drawing board.

What our ratemaking experts came up with is a different ratemaking model
for Arizona utilities based on the unique fair value requirements of Arizona law.
The FARE will use regularly scheduled filings to reach updated fair value findings,
promoting rate gradualism and rate stability, and minimizing the adverse
consequences of regulatory lag. The intent, purpose and result will be to keep rates
fair by updating revenues, plant and expenses each year in a simplified but entirely
open and transparent process.

AND YOU ARE PROPOSING THAT THE COMMISSION APPROVE THE
FARE FOR BOTH LIBERTY BELLA VISTA AND LIBERTY RIO RICO?

Yes. Liberty Utilities proposes the FARE for Liberty BV/RR as a pilot program
authorized by the Commission for five years, during and after which it can be
further evaluated and refined by all stakeholders. Given the current regulatory
environment for Arizona water and wastewater utilities, coupled with the

substantial need for capital investment to address aging and deteriorating

17
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infrastructure, we feel strongly that some type of alternative ratemaking model
must be considered.

BUT WON’T THIS CREATE AN OVERWHELMING AMOUNT OF
WORK FOR COMMISSION STAFF?

We hope not, and we have tried to design a mechanism that isn’t overwhelming on
the regulators. Mr. Eichler explains how we propose detailed annual filings
updating revenues, plant and expenses, and how quarterly FARE filings will be
available to all interested parties to provide current financial and operational
information and provide a timely snapshot of each company’s operations and
finances. It’s all part of what we hope will become a systematic flow of
operational and financial information from us to the regulators to allow for a more
efficient analysis of annual FARE filings and enhance the transparency of the
ratemaking process. This process is intended to allow Commission Staff and other
stakeholders to stay well informed, at their own pace.

Don’t get me wrong — we are not naive. This is different, and change is
rarely easy. But what we have is not working. All Arizona utilities will have
trouble adequately meeting the needs of Arizona customers over the long haul
without some fundamental changes in the way rates are set. That means we can be
proactive, Wosz together and find ways to make these changes for the long-term
public interes?t, or we can ignore the problem and deal with it later, reactively,
under crises conditions. We are committed to working hard to develop the best
possible model, one that is entirely open and transparent, and to making the
transition as non-burdensome as possible. We can only hope our regulators can
meet us part way in this effort with the vision to see that change is needed, despite

the hurdles.

18
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FAIR ENOUGH. BUT HOW WILL CUSTOMERS AND REGULATORS
BENEFIT FROM THE FARE?

The starting point in summarizing the benefits of a model like the FARE is to

understand and acknowledge that the current regulatory model for water and

wastewater utilities in Arizona is not working for customers, regulators or utilities.

Therefore, we need a model that will benefit Arizona’s utilities, utility customers,

and regulators. We believe the FARE is such a model.

In the FARE paper attached to my testimony, we provide a summary of the

benefits to be realized from the FARE. These benefits include -

Transparency — The FARE is an exceptionally open and transparent
rate making model using quarterly and annual FARE filings to reflect
updated and ongoing information about utility financial and
operational status.

Rate Gradualism and Rate Stability — The FARE brings greater
stability to residential customer bills, which allows customers to
budget and plan for cost increases.

Rate Shock — The FARE promotes rate gradualism and rate stability
while minimizing the risks of rate shock.

The FARE Works Both Ways — By also capturing reductions in
operation and maintenance expenses, operating efficiencies will
provide timely benefits to customers.

Streamlined and Less Costly Rate Making Process — The FARE
provides a set schedule for 4-6 years of rate setting for Liberty
BV/RR. All stakeholders benefit by streamlined and less costly rate

making procedures.

i 19
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) Reduce Regulatory Lag and Encourage Needed Utility
Investment — The FARE is designed to reduce the adverse
consequences of regulatory lag and, in so doing, make investment
into Arizona water and wastewater utility infrastructure more
attractive.

° Closer Scrutiny by Regulators and Other Parties — As proposed
with quarterly and annual filings, the FARE results in a close and
ongoing scrutiny of a utility rather than once every few years if a
general rate case is filed.

e  Other Tangible Benefits — The FARE will result in better and more
reliable provision of water and sewer service by Arizona utilities,
including reduced water loss.

So, I think the benefits of the FARE can be summarized as'(l) an open,
transparent, streamlined process (2) that promotes rate gradualism and rate stability
while minimizing rate shock and (3) mitigating the adverse consequences of
regulatory lag through annual updates to reflect increases and decreases in the cost
of service. I think this will make investment in Arizona more attractive, and that
will be good for everyone.

ADJUSTMENT MECHANISMS.
ARE THE APPLICANTS ALSO SEEKING APPROVAL OF ANY
ADJUSTMENT MECHANISMS?

Yes, Applicants are seeking Commission approval of two adjuster mechanisms:
(1) a Purchased Power Adjuster Mechanism (“PPAM”);® and (2) a Property Tax
Adjuster Mechanism (“PTAM”).” Mr. Bourassa identifies and explains the

% Application, Attachment 3.
7 Application, Attachment 4.
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methodology for these adjusters in his direct testimony.®
Q. WHY DOES LIBERTY STILL NEED THESE ADJUSTERS IF THE
COMMISSION APPROVES THE FARE?

A. Because we believe the costs covered by these two adjusters — the rate we pay for

power and the rate at which our property taxes are set — should not impact the
determination of whether we are in the FARE’s “Established Range” of plus or
minus 20 basis points. They are narrowly defined expenses outside the utility’s
control, costs that consistently increase, and it isn’t fair to automatically require the
Applicants to bear the expected and routine increases in those costs.

Q. BUT DON’T THESE TYPES OF ADJUSTERS DISCOURAGE UTILITIES
FROM MANAGING THEIR OPERATING EXPENSES?

A. I don’t agree with that. We are talking about necessary costs of service, and many
of these expenses are largely or entirely outside of our control. The rate for power
and the components of the property tax evaluation are not within our control.
Because they are not within our control, the notion that operating expenses will run
wild with adjusters is nonsense. Further, the notion that utilities are going to go out
and just spend extra money on things like power, taxes, or chemicals because those
costs are recoverable is nonsense. The scrutiny in ratemaking is such that this sort
of practice would likely be found and dealt with harshly. Even if the Commission
didn’t mind us running up costs because we had adjusters, our shareholder would.
We have an extensive capital and expense review process, and running up
operating expenses because of an adjuster would be rejected out of hand. It’s hard
enough to deliver consistent, competitive returns, especially relative to other

utilities in the Liberty family operating in states that use things like forward

® Direct Testimony of Thomas J. Bourassa — Rate Base, Income Statement and Rate
Design (“Bourassa Dt.”) at 34-36.
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looking test years. I have no intention of reducing those returns further by running

up operating costs.

Q. THANK YOU. WOULD YOU PLEASE SUMMARIZE THE PPAM?

A. The PPAM allows Applicants to increase rates in order to recover increases in

purchased power costs resulting from increases in the rates charged by Sulphur
Springs Valley Electric Cooperative (“SSVEC”) and Arizona Public Service
(“APS”) for Liberty Bella Vista, as well as Unisource for Liberty Rio Rico, our
electric utility providers. These changes in rates can only come about due to an
order of the Commission, which, again, is something beyond our control.
In addition, the form of the PPAM is consistent with the form of PPAM approved
in Decision No. 74437 (April 18, 2014) for Liberty Litchfield Park. Mr. Bourassa
explains the specifics of the PPAM further in his direct testimony.’

Q. WHATIF SSVEC’S, APS’S, AND/OR UNISOURCE’S RATES GO DOWN?

A. Then our operating expenses will go down and the PPAM will adjust the rates to
recognize that decrease. Again, adjusters are fair because they work whether costs
go up or down. I assume that’s why the Commission has approved and recognized
purchased power and other similar adjusters for electric and gas utilities for many,
many years.

Q. PLEASE SUMMARIZE THE PTAM.

A. As Mr. Bourassa explains in his direct testimony, the PTAM would allow rates to
adjust, up or down, based on changes in the property tax rate and/or assessment
ratios.'® Like the rates for power charged by SSVEC, APS, and/or UniSource,
these factors are outside of our control. Also, like increases in purchased power,

increases in property taxes, if unrecovered, will undermine Applicants’ ability to

° Bourassa Dt. at 35.
14,
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earn its authorized return. The PTAM addresses this in a manner similar to that in
which the PPAM addresses changes in the rates for power.

ADDITIONAL POST TEST YEAR CHANGES.

ARE APPLICANTS AWARE OF ANY POST TEST YEAR CHANGES

THAT IT PROPOSES TO INCLUDE?

Yes. Applicants are aware of some increased regulation and changes regarding the
Revised Total Coliform Rule (“RTCR”), and ADEQ is requesting that the
Applicants submit updated plans by January 2016. These changes will require the
installation of additional sampling stations in order to comply with the RTCR.
Applicants expect that there will be some additional investment in plant along with
some increased operating expenses but these amounts are yet unknown. Applicants
intend to update these estimates once the changes have been quantified.

TARIFF CHANGES.

DO APPLICANTS PROPOSE ANY CHANGES OR MODIFICATIONS TO

TARIFFS?

Yes. A copy of the proposed tariff is attached to each respective rate application as
Attachment 2."' The changes are being proposed for a few different reasons.
For one thing, we are seeking to standardize all of the tariffs for Liberty Utilities’
operating subsidiaries in Arizona. Standardizing our tariffs is intended to promoté
efficiency by streamlining administration and accounting for all of our Arizona
utilities, and reducing confusion. Other changes are intended to clarify or correct

certain items that have been carried over from tariff to tariff over the years.

""" A redline comparing the new tariff to the current tariff has also been included in the
Company’s workpapers.
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Q. CAN YOU SUMMARIZE SOME OF THE SPECIFIC CHANGES BEING

PROPOSED?

A. Yes.

Rates: Applicants’ proposed rates have been inserted.

Additional Charges: Applicants are proposing simplified statements of
charges that will standardize charges as much as possible across all of
Liberty Utilities’ companies in Arizona. At Liberty Rio Rico, for example,
the establishment fee would decrease from $30 to $25 and the NSF fee
would decrease from $15 to $10. Applicants are also proposing to calculate
certain fees based on formulas in order to more accurately align charges
with actual costs. For example, the delinquent reconnection charge would
change from a flat amount of $30 to being driven by the actual cost of
disconnection.  Further, the after-hours service charge would be $50,
regardless of the work process performed.

Curtailment: Applicants propose to continue their existing tariffs, which are
included in Attachment 2 to the Application. The only proposed change is

to update to Liberty Bella Vista’s tariff with its proper name.

Q. HAVE THE APPLICANTS PROPOSED ANY CHANGES TO THE LOW

INCOME TARIFF?

A. As discussed also by Mr. Bourassa, the Applicants are not making substantive

changes to the low income discounts offered to qualifying customers. However, in

reviewing the application in the instant proceeding, the Applicants have determined

that certain discounts have been provided to qualifying low income customers but

the Applicants have not recovered those amounts through a low income surcharge

billed to the customers. The Applicants propose that they be able to recover the

cumulative under recovered amounts over a three year period once new rates are
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IX.

°

e

established as a result of this proceeding.

FINANCING.

IN HIS DIRECT TESTIMONY, MR. BOURASSA MENTIONS NEW
CAPITAL STRUCTURES EQUAL TO 70 PERCENT EQUITY AND 30
PERCENT DEBT. WHY ARE APPLICANTS PROPOSING NEW
CAPITAL STRUCTURES?

Liberty Bella Vista presently has a capital structure of 89.68 percent equity and
10.32 percent debt, and Liberty Rio Rico has a capital structure of 100 percent
equity. We are seeking to standardize the capital structure of the Arizona operating
utilities at 70 percent equity and 30 percent debt. So the specific purpose of the
debt financing is to infuse more debt into Applicants’ capital structures and bring
the debt level to 30 percent.

WHAT AMOUNT OF DEBT APPROVAL IS BEING REQUESTED?

Liberty Bella Vista is seeking to obtain approval to finance debt of up to
$4,700,000. This amount of debt will allow the rebalancing of Liberty Bella
Vista’s capital structure from its present 89.68-10.32 capital structure to the 70-30
equity to debt structure Mr. Bourassa utilized in the rate filing and then to maintain
that structure at those levels on a going-forward basis. Similarly, Liberty Rio Rico
is seeking to obtain approval to finance debt of up to $8,900,000. This amount of
debt will allow the rebalancing and maintenance of Liberty Rio Rico’s capital
structure from its present 100 percent equity capital structure to the 70-30 equity to
debt structure.

DOES THIS CONCLUDE YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY?

Yes.
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wg Liberty Utilities

FAIR VALUE ARIZONA RATE EVALUATION MODEL (FARE)

“Despite recent
reform efforts,
Arizona utilities
continue to
struggle with
aging
infrastructure and
the adverse
impacts of
regulatory lag.”

Despite recent reform efforts, Arizona utilities continue to struggle with aging
infrastructure and the adverse impacts of regulatory lag. This comes at a time
when hundreds of Arizona water and wastewater utilities require substantial
capital investment to address aging and deteriorating infrastructure, as
illustrated by the graph below. In order to achieve meaningful improvement to
the Arizona regulatory process, Liberty Utilities requests that the Arizona
Corporation Commission consider other regulatory models that comply with
the difficult requirements of Arizona law, while also addressing regulatory lag
and promoting rate gradualism.

Estimated Total Water and Wastewater Costs, 2008-2032 (Nominal Millions)

Water  Wastewater

: i o

Total Capital Costs $0716  $14162

“Infrastructure Needs and Funding Alternatives for Arizona: 2008 - 2032,"
L. William Seidman Research Institute, Arizona State University, published
by Arizona Investment Council, May 2008.

Fair Value Arizona Rate Evaluation Model
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“The FARE will
use regularly
scheduled filings
to reach updated
fair value findings,
promoting rate
gradualism and
rate stability and
minimizing the
adverse
consequences of
regulatory lag.”

Toward that end, Liberty Utilities is proposing that the Commission approve
and adopt the Fair Value Arizona Rate Evaluation (“FARE") model, a
ratemaking model based specifically on Arizona's constitutional “fair value”
requirement. The FARE would be approved initially for two entities: Liberty
Utilities (Bella Vista Water) Corp. (“Liberty Bella Vista”) and Liberty Utilities
(Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. (‘Liberty Rio Rico") (collectively “Liberty
BV/RR"). The FARE will use regularly scheduled filings to reach updated fair
value findings, promoting rate gradualism and rate stability and minimizing the
adverse consequences of regulatory lag. The intent, purpose and resuit will
be to keep rates fair by updating all factors affecting rates—the FARE can
move “up or down” to keep rates fair by tracking the underlying costs.

The FARE for Liberty BV/RR would be a pilot program authorized by the
Commission as set forth below, during and after which it can be evaluated
and refined by all stakeholders. Given the current regulatory environment for
Arizona water and wastewater utilities, some type of alternative ratemaking
model must be considered. As set forth below, the FARE was specifically
designed to comply with Arizona's constitutional fair value requirement.

Fair Value Arizona Rate Evaluation Model
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“Given the
undisputed need
for massive water
and wastewater
infrastructure
investment over
the coming
decades, this is

- not a sustainable

scenario for either

_ Arizona utilities or

utility customers.”

ARIZONA’S REGULATORY ENVIRONMENT FOR
WATER/WASTEWATER UTILITIES

Arizona water and wastewater utilities continue to bear the substantial burden
of regulatory lag, which, from the standpoint of the national investment
community, demonstrates that Arizona is a less attractive regulatory
environment for water and wastewater utilities. The adverse consequences of
that fact include restricted access to capital for regulated utilities: investors
have options, and facing choices with similar or better returns, they will
choose the investments with less risk. Given the undisputed need for
massive water and wastewater infrastructure investment over the coming
decades, this is not a sustainable scenario for either Arizona utilities or utility
customers.!

Recognizing those challenges, today and in the future, key utilities and utility
groups have tried to improve that regulatory environment, but those efforts
have been ineffective to date. The industry seemed to have achieved some
relief when the Commission adopted the System Improvement Benefits (“SIB")
mechanism. Unfortunately, that achievement was short-lived. In RUCO v.
Arizona Corporation Commission (August 2015), the Arizona Court of Appeals
found the SIB unconstitutional under Arizona law.

Now, all stakeholders are grappling with the potentially far-reaching
implications of that decision on regulation of all Arizona utilities. The Court of
Appeals decision appears to limit the Commission’s ability to use rate base
adjustor mechanisms to reduce regulatory lag or to make more gradual rate
changes (shielding customers from “rate shock”), while simultaneously
allowing public service corporations a reasonable opportunity to earn their
authorized returns.

' See e.g., “Infrastructure Needs and Funding Alternatives for Arizona: 2008 - 2032,” L. William Seidman Research
Institute, Arizona State University, published by Arizona Investment Council, May 2008; “Drinking Water
Infrastructure Needs Survey and Assessment,” U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, February 2009; “2015
Report Card for Arizona’s Infrastructure,” American Society of Civil Engineers, May 2015.

Fair Value Arizona Rate Evaluation Model
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- “In its decision,

distinct from other

The undoing of the SIB revolved around the Court’s interpretation of the fair
value requirement unique to Arizona’s Constitution. The Arizona Constitution

~ the Court of requires the Commission to “ascertain the fair value of property” when it sets
Appeals expressly rates.2 “[TJhe Commission is required to find the fair value of the company’s
recognized and property and use such finding in determining what are just and reasonable
stated that rates.”® The Court of Appeals determined that the proposed SIB didn’t comply
Arl.zona has & with Arizona's fair value requirement for several reasons:
unique
consfifutional (1) “the documentation AWC must submit to obtain approval of
regulatory . . . L
environment surcharges is substantially less than what is required in a rate

case”;

jurisdictions...” . o
(2) “it is undisputed that the Commission will not conduct a full

fair value determination when it evaluates AWC's surcharge
requests”;

(3) the Commission will not “take into consideration all of the
various ratemaking elements that would be looked at and
scrutinized in a general rate case proceeding. That would
include such things as revenues, expenses, and, of course,
capital expenditures and the prudency considerations for each
one of those ratemaking elements”;

(4) “when the Commission considers surcharge requests, other
critical valuation factors will be premised on a past rate case
that, at the outer reaches of the SIB cycle, will be five years
old. Such a process is inconsistent with the mandate that the
Commission perform a fair value determination ‘at the time of
inquiry’™; and

(5) “Additionally, the Commission will not be assessing savings
or other efficiencies attributable to capital improvements when
it approves surcharges.”*

2 Ariz. Const. Art. 15, § 14.
3 Ariz. Corp. Comm’n v. Ariz. Pub. Service Co., 113 Ariz. 368, 370, 555 P.2d 326, 328 (1976).

4 RUCO v. Ariz. Corp. Comm’n, at 14-15, [ 40-43.

Fair Value Arizona Rate Evaluation Model
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“In making that
statement, the
Court of Appeals
clearly
distinguished
Arizona rate
making and
Arizona's
regulatory
environment from
other state
jurisdictions.
Under the plain
language of that
decision, Arizona
is a more difficult
and riskier
regulatory
environment
compared to other
jurisdictions.”

In its decision, the Court of Appeals expressly recognized and stated that
Arizona has a unique constitutional regulatory environment distinct from other
jurisdictions: “[w]e recognize the Commission’s legitimate desire to ‘initiate
innovative procedures in an attempt to deal promptly and equitably with
increasingly complex regulatory matters,’ and its corresponding goal of
avoiding ‘a constant series of extended rate hearings [that] are not
necessary to protect the public interest'.... But the question before us is not
whether the SIB mechanism represents prudent public policy. Our focus is
on the propriety of that mechanism given the unique and express
provisions of our state constitution."s

In making that statement, the Court of Appeals clearly distinguished Arizona
rate making and Arizona’'s regulatory environment from other state
jurisdictions. Under the plain language of that decision, Arizona is a more
difficult and riskier regulatory environment compared to other jurisdictions.
This follows from the fact that given the Court’s interpretation of Arizona'’s fair
value requirement, the Commission does not have the latitude afforded public
utility commissions in other states. In Arizona, many of the ratemaking tools
designed to further the public interest by reducing regulatory lag and
promoting rate gradualism appear to be unavailable to the Commission. That
is, unless it first engages in long, complex and costly rate cases every time a
rate needs to change (beyond changes that arise from a narrowly defined
change in certain operating expenses under approved adjustor mechanisms).

Under this regulatory regime, utility owners and investors are strongly
incentivized to spend capital in other jurisdictions. Investors facing the choice
between two alternatives providing similar yield will select jurisdictions that
have the flexibility to and do use well-established ratemaking tools like
Distribution System Improvement Charges (DSICs), balancing accounts,
forward looking test years, decoupling mechanisms, generic ROEs and other
rate making mechanisms designed to minimize the adverse impacts of
regulatory lag, streamline rate cases and promote and encourage investment
in utility infrastructure. Some of the limitations inherent in Arizona today are
the resuit of the Court's decision in RUCO v. Arizona Corporation
Commission. Some, however, are due to the use of Arizona's historic test

$ RUCO v. Ariz. Corp. Comm’n, at 17, {] 48 (emphasis added).

Fair Value Arizona Rate Evaluation Model
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“The FARE will
minimize
regulatory lag,
streamline
ratemaking and
incent needed
capital investment
while benefitting
utility customers
by providing
gradual rate
changes, rate
stability, and more
frequent regulator
scrutiny of utility
costs and
expenses before
the cost of service
to the customer
changes, up or
down.”

year model. Problems with Arizona’s historic test year model are even more
pronounced with the SIB declared unlawful.

THE FARE PILOT PROGRAM FOR LIBERTY BV/RR

Liberty Utilities ultimately views the recent Court of Appeals opinion as a
strong indication of the need for meaningful improvement to the Arizona
regulatory process for water and sewer utilities.® Liberty Bella Vista and
Liberty Rio Rico request that the Commission implement and evaluate a rate
setting mechanism that complies with Arizona’s fair value requirement. The
Fair Value Arizona Rate Evaluation model or FARE, developed by Liberty
Utilities, is such a mechanism. The FARE will minimize regulatory lag,
streamline ratemaking and incent needed capital investment while benefitting
utility customers by providing gradual rate changes, rate stability, and more
frequent regulator scrutiny of utility costs and expenses before the cost of
service to the customer changes, up or down. Vitally, the FARE allows the
cost of service to the customer to move up or down to ensure that rates
reflect the most current cost information available.

WHAT IS THE FARE?

The FARE is a significant improvement in fair value ratemaking that uses a
traditional, well-established rate formula coupled with annual filings to ensure
that the rates for service reflect current operating and financial criteria as
determined by known, objective and measurable data. Under the FARE, rates
will be established in a general rate case using the well-established formula:

Revenue Requirement = Operating Expenses + Return on Rate Base

¢ Many other states have adopted and implemented alternative ratemaking mechanisms. Pennsylvania, lllinois,
Indiana and New York, for example, have implemented DSIC mechanisms to address the growing need for utilities
to replace aging infrastructure. Alabama, Georgia, Louisiana, Mississippi, Oklahoma, South Carolina and Texas
have approved rate stabilization tariffs. Georgia and lllinois have adopted and implemented formula rate
mechanisms. Other states, such as California, use forward looking test years.

Fair Value Arizona Rate Evaluatiqn Model
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“With updated and
detailed
operational and
financial data, and
using the same
capital structure,
cost of capital,
and rate design
approved in the
order adopting the
FARE, the
Commission will
have all of the
information
necessary to make
a new finding of
fair value and
approve a new
annual cost for
service for each
Company based
on such finding.”

Thereafter, Liberty Bella Vista and Liberty Rio Rico will make annual filings
updating the necessary components of the revenue requirement. With
updated and detailed operational and financial data, and using the same
capital structure, cost of capital, and rate design approved in the order
adopting the FARE, the Commission will have all of the information necessary
to make a new finding of fair value and approve a new annual cost for service
for each Company based on such finding.

ANNUAL FARE FILING

Between twelve to fifteen (12-15) months after implementation of new rates
approved in an order authorizing the FARE, and every twelve (12) months
thereafter, Liberty Bella Vista and Liberty Rio Rico will file annual FARE
schedules reflecting the following’:

e Calculation of Revenue Deficiency or Surplus

e (Current rate base for PIS, A/D, ADITs, AIAC/CIAC and other usual rate
base factors

e Income Statement

e Operating Revenues

e Operating Expense Summary
e Depreciation Expense

o Taxes

e Rate Schedules?

7 For example, if the Commission issued a decision approving the FARE for Liberty Bella Vista and implementing
new rates effective December 1, 2016, then the first FARE filings by Liberty Bella Vista would occur on March 1,
2018 for the 12 months ended December 31, 2017. The Company then would make annual filings on March 1 of

each following year.

8 Copies of the proposed schedules are included as Attachment A.

Fair Value Arizona Rate Evaluation Model
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FARE TIMELINE
Day 1: FARE Filing

Day 45: Staff
" Review/Response

Day 60: Company
Reply

Day 90: Hearing
(if necessary)

Day 150: FARE
Order

“The Commission
will use the annual
FARE filing to
make a fair value
determination and
set the cost of
service for the
forthcoming year.”

PROCESSING THE ANNUAL FARE FILING

STEP ONE - Commission Staff and other parties will have 45 days to review
the FARE filing and file responses and recommendations. During that review
period, Liberty BV/RR will answer discovery (data requests for additional
information) on an expedited basis (5-7 days maximum). The Commission’s
regulations prescribe limits on the time required to process rate cases,
but Arizona law does not prohibit expedited processing of utility rates.

STEP TWO - Liberty BV/RR will have 15 days to review the analysis and
recommendations of Staff and any other party and file a reply in support of its
FARE request along with their final request and recommendations if different
than the initial annual FARE filing.

STEP THREE - If there is no material dispute between the parties regarding
the determination of fair value, the Commission shall issue its order making a
fair value finding and approving rates thereon within 80 days of the annual
FARE filing. If there is a material dispute between the parties regarding the
determination of fair value, the Commission shall schedule a hearing to be
held no more than 90 days after the annual FARE filing date, and thereafter,
issue its order making a fair value finding and approving rates thereon within
150 days of the annual FARE filing date.

USE OF THE ANNUAL FARE FILING

The Commission will use the annual FARE filing to make a fair value
determination and set the cost of service for the forthcoming year. The
Commission’s decision would utilize Liberty Bella Vista's and Liberty Rio
Rico’s then current rate bases, revenues and expenses, with adjustments for
then known and measurable changes, to make a fair value finding and, if
necessary, reset the cost of service for another year, using the same formula,
the same cost of capital, and the same rate design approved in the rate case
in which the FARE was first authorized.

Fair Value Arizona Rate Evaluation Model
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“Under the FARE, if
the Commission’s
fair value

 determination

shows that Liberty
Bella Vista’s
and/or Liberty Rio
Rico’s earnings
are within an
“Established
Range” equal to
plus or minus 20
basis points from
the authorized rate
of return on equity
(ROE), there will
be no change in
the revenue
requirement and
rates for the one
year period

- covered by the

annual FARE
filing.”

Under the FARE, if the Commission’s fair value determination shows that
Liberty Bella Vista’s and/or Liberty Rio Rico's earnings are within an
‘Established Range” equal to plus or minus 20 basis points from the
authorized rate of return on equity (ROE), there will be no change in the
revenue requirement and rates for the one year period covered by the annual
FARE filing. For example, if the approved ROE for Liberty Bella Vista is 9.5%
and the annual FARE filing shows that the Company has earned 9.3% during
the first year of the FARE, then there will not be any changes in the cost of
service paid by customers. If Liberty Bella Vista's or Liberty Rio Rico’s
earnings fall outside the Established Range, the Commission shall set a new
revenue requirement based on its fair value finding and the costs of service
shall be increased or decreased as necessary to produce the authorized
ROE. For example, if the approved ROE for Liberty Bella Vista is 9.5% and
the annual FARE filing shows that the Company has earned 9.0% during the
first year of the FARE, then the revenue requirement and rates shall be set to
achieve a 9.5% ROE based on the updated cost of service.®

Additionally, if Liberty Bella Vista's and/or Liberty Rio Rico's annual FARE
filing reflects that either Company is under-earning or over-earning by 100
basis points or more, then that Company shall file a general rate application
within 120 days of the Commission issuing such finding, unless the
Commissioner orders otherwise pursuant to a request filed by Liberty Belia
Vista or Liberty Rio Rico.

9 The inverse is also true: if the actual ROE for a utility is more than 20 basis points greater than the authorized

ROE, rates will be lowered.

Fair Value Arizona Rate Evaluation Model
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“This systematic
flow of operation
and financial
information will
allow for a more
efficient analysis
of annual FARE
filings and
enhance the
transparency of
the ratemaking
process by
allowing
Commission Staff
and other
stakeholders to
stay well
informed.”

ADDITIONAL FEATURES OF THE FARE

Quarterly FARE Updates - In addition to the annual FARE filing, Liberty
Bella Vista and Liberty Rio Rico shall make quarterly FARE filings available to
all interested parties to provide current financial and operational information
and provide a timely snapshot of each Company’s operations and finances.
These quarterly filings are intended to be informational only and not require
additional action by Commission Staff or other parties. This systematic flow
of operation and financial information will allow for a more efficient analysis of
annual FARE filings and enhance the transparency of the ratemaking process
by allowing Commission Staff and other stakeholders to stay well informed.
Quarterly filings will be made within 60 days of the close of each quarter in
which the FARE is in effect and shall include:

o Quarterly Profit/Loss Statement

o Quarterly Balance Sheet

o Quarterly Income Statement

o Quarterly Operating Expense Summary

o Quarterly Plant Schedules

o Statement of Any Significant Plant Investment

Under the FARE, Liberty BV/RR would be subject to requests for information
regarding the quarterly FARE filings in the same manner as discovery would
be conducted with respect to an annual FARE filing. This will allow
Commission Staff and other parties to stay informed about the operational
and financial status of Liberty BV/RR, in turn allowing Commission Staff and
other parties to have detailed working knowledge of the Companies before
the annual FARE filings. Liberty BV/RR will also work with Commission Staff
and other parties to develop templates for the quarterly and annual FARE
filings.

Fair Value Arizona Rate Evaluation Model
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“Absent exigent
circumstances,
Liberty BV/RR
would not file a

- general rate case
for at least four (4)
years after the
FARE is approved,
and a general rate
case will be filed
within five (5)
years of FARE
approval, unless
required earlier
under the FARE or
otherwise ordered
by the
Commission.”

“The FARE is an
exceptionally
transparent rate
making model.
The process will
be open and
transparent
through the use of
quarterly and
annual FARE
filings.”

Along with the formula for determining the revenue requirement in future
FARE filings, the Commission will determine the applicable cost of capital,
capital structure, and rate design in the general rate case approving the
FARE. The Commission then will use the established cost of capital, capital
structure and rate design for the annual FARE filings. This will reduce the
time necessary for the Commission’s fair value determination as part of the
annual FARE filings.

Absent exigent circumstances, Liberty BV/RR would not file a general rate
case for at least four (4) years after the FARE is approved, and a general rate
case will be filed within five (5) years of FARE approval, unless required
earlier under the FARE or otherwise ordered by the Commission.

Adjustment mechanisms for operating expenses that are chiefly outside the
utility’s control (e.g., CAP water, rates for purchased power, property tax
rates) would continue to be used in concert with the FARE and
notwithstanding the 20 basis point Established Range. The FARE also could
include a correction mechanism. Although not included in this pilot proposal,
the FARE could incorporate an annual review as part of the FARE process,
allowing correction of any calculation or other errors relating to the prior year's
FARE filing and determination.

BENEFITS OF THE FARE TO ARIZONA'S UTILITY
CUSTOMERS, ARIZONA UTILITIES AND THE COMMISSION

Implementation and adoption of the FARE will certainly benefit Arizona
ratepayers, Arizona’s utilities and the Commission itself in many ways.
Liberty Utilities summarizes these benefits below.

e Transparency - The FARE is an exceptionally transparent rate making
model. The process will be open and transparent through the use of quarterly
and annual FARE filings. Those quarterly and annual filings will provide the
Commission and any interested parties with updated and ongoing information
about utility financial and operational status.

e Rate Gradualism and Rate Stability ~ Use of the Established Range
brings a great deal of stability to residential customer bills, which allows
customers to budget and plan for cost increases. Likewise, commercial

Fair Value Arizona Rate Evaluation Model
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g Liberty Utilities

“The FARE
promotes rate
gradualism and
rate stability while
minimizing the
risks of rate
shock.”

“All stakeholders
benefit by
streamlined and

- less costly rate
making
procedures.”

customers can better plan for rate increases, in turn fostering economic
development.

e Rate Shock - The FARE promotes rate gradualism and rate stability
while minimizing the risks of rate shock.

e The FARE Works Both Ways — All FARE filings will be mandatory. As
such, the utility can't avoid a reduced revenue requirement and decreased
rates, if circumstances warrant. By also capturing reductions in operation and
maintenance expenses, operating efficiencies will provide timely benefits to
customers.

e Streamlined and Less Costly Rate Making Process - The FARE
provides a set schedule for approximately six years of rate setting for Liberty
BV/IRR. All stakeholders benefit by streamlined and less costly rate making
procedures. The FARE will result in more efficient use of limited resources.

e Sharing of Reduced Expenses - Filing of updated expense information
under the FARE captures and addresses reductions in operation and
maintenance expenses. That means that operating efficiencies provide timely
benefits to ratepayers.

e Reduce Regulatory Lag and Encourage Needed Utility Investment -
The FARE is designed to reduce the adverse consequences of regulatory lag
and, in so doing, make investment into Arizona water and wastewater utility
infrastructure more attractive.

e Closer Scrutiny by Regulators and Other Parties — As proposed with
quarterly and annual filings, the FARE results in a close and ongoing scrutiny
of a utility rather than once every few years if a general rate case is filed.

e Other Tangible Benefits — The FARE will result in better and more
reliable provision of water and sewer service by Arizona utilities, including
reduced water loss.

e Compliance with Arizona’s Fair Value Requirement — As written, the
FARE proposed as a pilot program for Liberty BV/RR is designed to comply
with Arizona's fair value requirement and, specifically, the recent SIB
decision.

Fair Value Arizona Rate Evaluation Model

13




Liberty Utilities

l ’

Attachment A
FAIR VALUE ARIZONA RATE EVALUATION
(FARE) MODEL
SCHEDULES 1-20




Line
No.

10
1"

12

[APPLICANT NAME]
Year Ended

Computation of Increase in Gross Revenue

Requirements As Adjusted

Description
Fair Value Rate Base (a)

Adjusted Operating Revenues (b)

Adjusted Operating Expenses (b)

Adjusted Operating Income (b} (Ln. 2~ In. 3)

Current Rate of Return (%) (In. 2/In. 1) x 100
Required Rate of Retum on Fair Value Rate Base (% )c)
Required Operating Income (In. 6 xIn. 1)

Operating Revenue Deficiency (In. 4 - In. 7)

Gross Revenue Conversion Factor (d)

Increase in Gross Revenue Requirement (In. 8 x In. 9)
Revenue Requirement (In. 2 + In. 10)

% Increase (In. 10/ In. 2) x 100

Projected Revenue
Customer Class Due to Increase in Rates(e)

% Dollar
Increase (Decrease)(e)

SUPPORTING SCHEDULES:

(a) Schedule 2

(b) Schedule 11

(c) As authorized in last general rate case decision
(d) Schedule 15

{e) Schedule 16

Exhibit
Schedule 1
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Line
No.

[APPLICANT NAME]
Year Ended
Revenues and Expenses

(1) (2)

Year End
Book
Description Results (a)

Total Rate Revenues

Total Other Operating Revenues

Adjustment (b)

Exhibit
Schedule 11

3)

Year End
Adjusted
Results
(Col. 2+ Col 3.)

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses
(by Function)

Depreciation and Amortization (b)
Property Taxes (c)

Other Taxes (c)

Income Taxes (d)

(A)

Total Operating Expenses

(A)

Operating Income

(A)

SUPPORTING SCHEDULES:
(a) Income Statement for 12 Months Ended
{b) Schedule 12

RECAP SCHEDULES:
(A) Schedule 1
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Line

[APPLICANT NAME]
Year Ended
Computation of Gross Revenue Conversion Factor (GRCF)

No. _Description

1

2

3

Arizona Effective Income Tax Rate (a)
Federal Effective Income Tax Rate (a)
Property Taxes (a)

Uncollectible Factor (a)

Total Tax Percentage

Operating Income % = 100% - Total Tax Percentage

1 = Gross Revenue Conversion Factor (A)

Operating Income %

SUPPORTING SCHEDULES:
(@) As needed

Exhibit
Schedule 15

Percentage
of
Incremental
Gross
Revenues

100.000%

RECAP SCHEDULES:
(A) Schedule 1




[APPLICANT NAME] Exhibit
Year Ended Schedule 16
Summary of Rate Revenues by Customer Classification

M @ 3 4 (5)

Revenues Revenues Revenue %
Line from from Increase (Decrease) Increase(Decrease)
No.  Customer Classification Present Rates{a) Proposed Rates(a} (Col. 3-Caol. 2) (Col. 4/Col.2)
Total Revenues
SUPPORTING SCHEDULES: RECAP SCHEDULES:

(a) Schedule 17 (A) Schedule 1



91 ainpayas (v)

'SATMNAIHOS dvIi3d

‘S3TNAIHOS ONLLYHOddNS

(ssep Jswoysno Aq paje}ogns)

(WIZT105 7% 10D} (#1003 -5 100}
(aseamaq)esessnu| (aseasda() aseasouy|
% anuanay

() (9)

L1 ainpeyds
Naux3

S9)ey pasodoig
sanuaAvy
fejoL

()

$8jey j0asald
sanuaAey
ejoL

)

{eyuopdunsuoy (eysmewosn)
abelony JO JaquinN
ebelany

B0IAIBG JO SSED

(e (@) (1)

ssejD pajiejaq Aq anuaaay Jo sishleuy

papu3 Jesp
[IWVYN LNVOITddY]

ON
aun




SAMNAIHIS VI

6} 8lnpayos (e)

(ssejo Jawoysno Aq pajejoigns)

03711 00) (6710001 100 ey sajey {eysaEy 700777100 (G103-9100) [eJseed  (eysofeyd {eJUoidinsucy (eJUSHawnsusy (&) sJawolsng BHABS JO SSEID  ON
(osessaeq) (esesagQ) pasodoig uesaig (eseansg) {eseasoaqy) pasodoid uasaid ueipapy abesaay 10 Jequiny eu
feseasu| jeseaiou) jesesudu| jaseasay| abelany

% %

g uelpep #Q olERAY
(1) (it) (o1) (6) (8) () (9) (s} ] (€} (2) (1)
siskleuy g
81 anpayog T pepuzaeer
nx3 [3WVYN LNVOINddY]




‘S3TNA3IHIS dvO3

0L J0 % UoRdwnsuoy [Ej0110 %
uojdwnsuon  aAneWWND  S(ig ‘ON
sAlEInWIWND

(2) (9) (c)

61 8|npaydg
yqyx3g

S|Iig eAEINWWNn, (€] Uojawnsuoy) So0ig Ag
siiig Jo Jaquiny

) () (2)

:uojdwnsuo) uelpap
:uondwnsuo) abelany
1SIBWI0ISNY JO 1BqUINN abielaay

‘S3TINAIHOS ONILAOddNS

¥0[d  ON
aun

(1)

sjueuiwislag bupg
papu3 Jes A
[3WVYN INVOI1ddY]

‘uonduosaqg

:8|npayag sjey




‘S3TNA3HOS 403

sbuey)
Jefjog

(9

0Z 8Inpeyoas
nqiyx3

ajed
pasodoiq

(s)

‘S3TINATHIS ONILHOddNS
ajey )20|g uondusssg  SNpsydS ‘oN
jussald aley aury

() () (2 (1)

$3INPaYOg ajey aanejuasaiday ul sabueyn
pepu3 Jeaj
[3IWVYN LNVDITddY]




O 0 3 N R W N

NN NN NN = e e b e e e e e e
[ T . A 2 I U - BN o B - - B I~ N U, T~ U T S B =)

26

SHAPIRO LAW FIRM

A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION

SHAPIRO LAW FIRM, P.C.

Jay L. Shapiro (No. 014650)
1819 E. Morten Avenue, Suite 280
Phoenix, Arizona 85020
Telephone (602) 559-9575

LIBERTY UTILITIES

Todd C. Wiley (No. 015358)

12725 W. Indian School Road, Suite D-101
Avondale, Arizona 85392

Attorneys for Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp.

BEFORE THE ARIZONA CORPORATION COMMISSION

IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION | DOCKET NO: WS-02676A-15-

OF LIBERTY UTILITIES (RIO RICO
WATER & SEWER) CORP., AN ARIZONA
CORPORATION, FOR A
DETERMINATION OF THE FAIR VALUE
OF ITS UTILITY PLANTS AND
PROPERTY AND FOR INCREASES IN ITS
WATER AND WASTEWATER RATES
AND CHARGES FOR UTILITY SERVICE
BASED THEREON.

DIRECT TESTIMONY OF
PETER EICHLER

October 27, 2015
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SHAPIRO LAW FIRM
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> o

> o > O

>

INTRODUCTION.
PLEASE STATE YOUR NAME AND BUSINESS ADDRESS.

My name is Peter Eichler. My business address is 354 Davis Road, Oakville,
Ontario L6J 2X1.

BY WHOM ARE YOU EMPLOYED AND IN WHAT CAPACITY?

I am employed by Liberty Utilities as Vice President of Strategic Planning.

ON WHOSE BEHALF ARE YOU TESTIFYING IN THIS PROCEEDING?

I am providing this testimony on behalf of Liberty Utilities (Bella Vista Water)
Corp. (“Liberty Bella Vista™) and Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer)
Corp. (“Liberty Rio Rico™) (collectively “Liberty BV/RR” or “Applicants™).
WHAT ARE YOUR RESPONSIBILITIES AS VICE PRESIDENT OF
STRATEGIC PLANNING?

My responsibilities include oversight for Regulatory Strategy, Customer
Experience Strategy, and Operations Strategy. As part of my role, I regularly
evaluate the regulatory environments within which Liberty Utilities operates and
provide advice to Liberty’s management teams about investment decisions.

HAVE YOU HELD OTHER POSITIONS WITH LIBERTY UTILITIES?
Yes. I was previously Manager of Financial Planning & Analysis. In that role I
was in charge of financial planning, including ensuring overall accountability for
rate cases. I was also responsible for analyzing regulatory related accounting and
finance issues and responding to related discovery issues. I have also held the
positions of Director of Regulatory Strategy, in which my responsibilities included
crafting strategies to enhance relationships with state regulatory agencies and
developing mechanisms by which customers and utility owners alike can benefit.
I'have also held the position of Director, Liberty Services which was an

unregulated affiliate of Liberty Utilities focused on providing hot water heater

1
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rentals, rooftop solar leases, and compressed natural gas initiatives. I have also
represented Liberty Utilities interests as a board member in the Missouri Energy
Developers Association.

PLEASE DESCRIBE YOUR PROFESSIONAL AND EDUCATIONAL
BACKGROUND.

Before joining Liberty Utilities, I spent four years at regulated electric utilities in
Ontario, Canada, working in the areas of Corporate Finance, Ratemaking and
Regulatory Affairs.

I am a designated accountant, having received the Certified Management
Accountant (“CMA™) designation in Canada, which is now referred to as a
Chartered Professional Accountant (“CPA, CMA”). That designation is similar to
a Certified Public Accountant designation in the United States. In addition, I have
completed a Masters of Business Administration degree from the University of
Windsor in Ontario, Canada, and I have a Bachelor of Commerce degree with a
specialization in Finance from Ryerson University in Toronto, Canada.

DO YOU HAVE ANY SPECIALIZED TRAINING RELATED TO UTILITY
RATEMAKING?

In addition to my work experience, I completed NARUC’s Utility School in
November, 2009.

HAVE YOU TESTIFIED BEFORE THIS OR ANY OTHER PUBLIC
UTILITIES COMMISSION?

Yes. I testified before the Arizona Corporation Commission (“Commission™) in
the 2009 rate proceeding for Liberty Rio Rico. Now, I am concurrently prefiling
this direct testimony in rate proceedings for Liberty Bella Vista and Liberty Rio
Rico.
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I have also testified in proceedings before the Arkansas Public Service
Commission, the California Public Utilities Commission, the Georgia Public
Service Commission, the Illinois Corporation Commission, the Iowa Ultilities
Board, the Massachusetts Department of Public Utilities, the Missouri Public
Service Commission, the New Hampshire Public Utilities Commission, and the
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality. A listing of my regulatory
testimony is attached as Exhibit PE-DT1.

WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF YOUR TESTIMONY IN THIS
PROCEEDING?

My testimony is limited to supporting the Applicants’ request for approval of the
Fair Value Arizona Rate Evaluation Model or “FARE.”

LIBERTY’S PROPOSED FAIR VALUE ARIZONA RATE EVALUATION
MODEL — THE FARE.

WHAT IS THE FARE, MR. EICHLER?

The FARE is a ratemaking mechanism designed to comply with Arizona law,
including the unique “fair value” requirement, promote rate gradualism and rate
stability, and to mitigate regulatory lag. The FARE will use regular filings in an
open and transparent process that ensures that the cost of service to the customer
reflects the utility’s current cost of service, which cost includes a return on the
current level of investment in plant. The fundamental components, the timeline,
the filing requirements and the justifications and benefits of the FARE are set forth
in Liberty Utilities Proposed Fair Value Rate Evaluation (FARE) Model attached
to my testimony as Exhibit PE-DT2.
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WHY DO YQU BELIEVE THE COMMISSION SHOULD CONSIDER NEW
APPROACHES TO SETTING RATES FOR WATER AND WASTEWATER
UTILITIES IN ARIZONA?

Our Arizona subsidiaries seem to always be chasing but never achieving their
revenue requirements and authorized returns. The authorized returns are already
lower in Arizona compared to almost every state in which we do business, and then
we are unable to even achieve those returns due to adherence to the historic test
year and limited use of adjusters. Then, the Commission took a step in the right
direction with approval of the System Benefits Improvement surcharge or SIB, and
the court overruled it.

The need for alternative ratemaking models did not go away with the
decision to invalidate the SIB; it made the need more paramount. The FARE is a
new approach to setting rates that is balanced and will benefit utilities and
customers, which is why Liberty Utilities is requesting that the Commission adopt
the FARE as a pilot program for Liberty Bella Vista and Liberty Rio Rico to be
implemented and evaluated over the next few years.

SO THE FARE IS A TOTALLY NEW RATEMAKING METHODOLOGY
FOR ARIZONA?

No, it as a “different approach” to setting rates. The FARE (1) still uses the basic
historical test year concept with pro forma adjustments for known and measurable
changes; (2) still follows the well-established formula that rates should be derived
from a revenue requirement that equals operating expenses plus a return on and of
rate base; and (3) will be established in a general rate case. Additionally, the
FARE does not use forecasts, does not alter that way cost of capital is determined,
and does not alter how rate designs are established. The FARE requires a fair

value finding each year, which finding will incorporate consideration of the full
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range of current information concerning revenues, plant and expenses. We drafted
that aspect of the FARE to specifically comply with Arizona’s fair value
requirement as set forth in the SIB Decision issued by the Court of Appeals.

THEN WHAT MAKES THE FARE A “DIFFERENT APPROACH” TO
RATEMAKING IN ARIZONA?

Under the FARE, the amount paid by the customers will be annually determined
and updated in an open and transparent process intended to ensure that the utility
has a reasonable opportunity to recover its operating expenses and earn its
authorized returns. This regulatory model will enhance the ability of utilities, like
Liberty Bella Vista and Liberty Rio Rico, to attract capital for investment in needed
and critical utility infrastructure, while also ensuring that rate changes are gradual.
SO THE RATES FOR UTILITY SERVICE WOULD BE ADJUSTED
EVERY YEAR OF THE FARE?

I would not choose to use the term “adjusted.” I would say that, under the FARE,
the Commission will make a full fair value finding each year and rates will then be
updated or maintained each year based on the full range’ of information concerning
revenues, plant and expenses. The FARE would be approved in a general rate
case, where fair value rate base, operating expenses, rate of return and a rate design
will be developed and used to set rates for water and wastewater service by
Applicants. Each year thereafter, using more current fair value rate base and
operating expense information, the revenue requirement and rates will be updated.
The manner in which rate base is used to determine rates, the cost of capital, and
the rate design will not be altered following the general rate order approving the

FARE.
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WHY WON’T THE COST OF CAPITAL AND RATE DESIGN BE
“UPDATED” IN THE ANNUAL FARE FILINGS?

First, that would pretty much turn the annual FARE filing into a lengthy and time
consuming general rate case. We are looking for a way to mitigate regulatory lag
that does not require a general rate case very year. And, as I understand it, in the
SIB decision, the court said the Commission can’t set rates without a fair value
finding, and that a fair value finding can’t be made just by looking at rate base.
But the court did not say a general rate case was required to make a fair value
finding.

Second, absent a major change in circumstances, the rate design shouldn’t
need to be revaluated every year. The rate design approved in the general rate case
approving the FARE can be applied to any revenue requirement. Moreover, if the
need for a significant change were necessary, the Commission could consider it in
the annual FARE process and, if necessary, order a new filing on rate design. But
we think that will rarely be necessary and rate design can be addressed again in the
general rate case in four to five years.

Third, while cost of capital does change from year to year, and even within a
year, we are trying not to make the process longer, unduly expensive or overly
burdensome. Not doing an annual cost of capital analysis furthers that goal. Since
capital costs are far more likely to increase than decrease over the proposed life of
this pilot program given historically low interest rates today, this seemed a
reasonable compromise for a pilot program.

SO IF THE COMMISSION APPROVES THE FARE IN THESE GENERAL
RATE CASES, LIBERTY CAN JUST “UPDATE” THE RATES FOR
BELLA VISTA AND RIO RICO CUSTOMERS EVERY YEAR?

Not without Commission approval. Each year after the rates approved in these two
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rate cases go into effect, Applicants will make a filing with schedules reflecting all

of the following:

Calculation of Revenue Deficiency or Surplus

Current rate base for Plant In Service (PIS), Accumulated
Depreciation (“A/D”), Accumulated Deferred Income Taxes
(ADITs), Advances In Aid of Construction

(ATAC)/Contributions In Aid of Construction (CIAC) and other
rate base factors

Income Statement

Operating Revenues
Operating Expense Summary
Depreciation Expense

Taxes

Rate Schedules'

Commission Staff and other parties would be allotted time to review the

FARE filing and file responses and recommendations. We suggest 45 days, during

which Liberty BV/RR will answer data requests for additional information on an

expedited basis. Then, Liberty BV/RR will have 15 days to review the analysis

and recommendations of Staff and any other party and file a reply in support of its

final FARE request. A goal of the FARE is to streamline and expedite rate setting

in Arizona, as shown in the attached proposed timeline for implementation of the

FARE:

! Copies of the proposed schedules are included as part of the FARE paper attached as
Exhibit PE-DT2.
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PROPOSED TIMELINE FOR IMPLEMENTATION OF FARE

| FARE FILING

DAY 150

FARE O DER AND IMPLEMENTATION OF RATES

WILL THERE BE A HEARING BEFORE ANY CHANGES OR UPDATES
ARE IMPLEMENTED?

That is ultimately up to the Commission. In our model, if there is no material
dispute between the parties regarding the determination of fair value, we believe
the Commission can issue its order making a fair value finding and approving rates

thereon within 90 days of the annual FARE filing and without a hearing. On the
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other hand, if there is a material dispute between the parties regarding the
determination of fair value, we suggest that the Commission would schedule a
hearing to be held no more than 90 days after the annual FARE filing date, and
then issue its order making a fair value finding and approving rates within 150 days
of the annual FARE filing date.

IS A “MATERIAL DISPUTE” DEFINED IN THE FARE PROPOSAL?

No. Materiality will have to be determined largely on a case-by-case manner and
within the Commission’s discretion. If no dispute is found, we respectfully
presume that the Commission order updating the rates would state something like
“having found no material dispute, we Order.... ” If there is a material dispute that
the parties cannot resolve, then it would go to hearing. Our hope, though, is that
the transparent, information rich process we have designed will minimize disputes
and foster resolution.

AND LIBERTY BELIEVES THIS ALL COMPLIES WITH ARIZONA’S
CONSTITUTIONAL FAIR VALUE REQUIREMENT?

Yes. I am not a lawyer and will not try to argue our legal analysis. What I can say
is that our specific intent was to design a ratemaking model in full compliance with
Arizona’s unique legal requirements. It is my understanding that the recent appeals
court decision did not say rates could not be set in the manner we are suggesting.
As I mentioned above, I understand that the court held that rates must be set based
on a fair value finding, and that this fair value finding can’t be limited to changes
in plant after the rates are set. Instead, the fair value finding must also include
evaluation of other ratemaking factors. That is precisely what the FARE is
intended to do by capturing changes in revenues, plant investment and operating

expenses from year to year.
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ARE THE TYPICAL CHANGES IN COSTS FROM YEAR TO YEAR
SIGNIFICANT ENOUGH TO WARRANT AN ANNUAL REVIEW
PROCESS SUCH AS LIBERTY IS SUGGESTING?

I would say on the whole, yes, although in any given year, the changes may not be
significant. This is one reason we have proposed an “Established Range” as part of
the FARE proposal. The Established Range essentially is an earnings band
intended to keep earnings for utilities within that approved bandwidth, so to speak.

Specifically, we propose that if the Commission’s fair value determination
shows that either applicant’s earnings are within an “Established Range” of plus or
minus 20 basis points from the authorized ROE, there will be no “update” to the
revenue requirement and rates for the one year period covered by the annual FARE
filing. For example, if the approved ROE for Liberty Bella Vista is 10.0 percent
and the annual FARE filing shows that Liberty Bella Vista has earned 9.8 percent
during the first year of the FARE, then there will not be any changes in the cost of
service paid by customers and, therefore, no update to the rates. On the other hand,
if Liberty Bella Vista earned 9.5 percent during the first year of the FARE (50 basis
points below the authorized ROE), the Commission would determine an updated
revenue requirement based on its fair value finding and the rates paid by the
customers would be updated as necessary to produce the authorized revenues and
return.

Additionally, under our proposal, if the annual FARE filing reflects that
either Applicant is under-earning or over-earning by 100 basis points or more, then
that applicant would be required to file a general rate application within 120 days
of the Commission issuing such finding. The FARE also allows a utility that is
under-earning by 100 basis points or more to request that the Commission grant a

waiver from that filing requirement. There may be circumstances where a utility

10
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may not want to file a full rate case under the FARE, even though it is under-
earning.

AND YOU MENTIONED THAT THE FARE WORKS EQUALLY TO
REDUCE RATES FOR CUSTOMERS IF WARRANTED?

Yes. While the adverse impacts of regulatory lag primarily fall on the utility,
fundamental fairness compelled us to try to design a mechanism that worked
equally for customers and utility alike. The simple goal is to mitigate regulatory
lag in order to ensure that the cost paid for service by the customer actually
provides us with a reasonable opportunity to earn our authorized returns. If
changes in our operations or plant ihvestment mean the costs are lower, then the
customers should realize that benefit of the FARE, in which case the revenue
requirement and rates would be lower. Either way, regulatory lag should be
eliminated to the greatest extent possible.

BUT, MR. EICHLER, ISN'T REGULATORY LAG AN INEVITABLE
PART OF UTILITY RATEMAKING?

Yes, but only to a certain extent. Even under the FARE, there will still be up to a 1
to 1.5 year delay between cost increases and recovery. This is why we believe the
Commission should take any and all reasonable steps to negate the adverse
consequences of regulatory lag. As I understand the “regulatory compact,”
regulation by the Commission is supposed to act in place of the competitive
marketplace. If the cost of chemicals goes up because there is an increase in
shipping costs, the vendor is going to raise the price of those chemicals to recover
the cost increase. Obviously, Liberty Bella Vista and Liberty Rio Rico can't do
that. Nor should they have to wait years, emphasis on the plural, to avoid losing

money because the costs of service went up considerably after a rate case.

11




1§ Q. WOULD YOU AGREE, THOUGH, THAT REGULATORY LAG DOES

2 BENEFIT CUSTOMERS?

3 | A. No. Regulatory lag in Arizona undermines efforts to promote gradualism. Under

4 the current regulatory regime, customers can’t budget and plan for cost increases,

5 and rate shock in Arizona is a regular occurrence. The FARE was designed and

6 drafted to alleviate these issues. Regulatory lag also postpones the time when

7 customers benefit from cost savings achieved by utilities during operations. And

8 regulatory lag chills investment.

9 I do not think anyone legitimately disputes that the ability to attract capital
10 is critical. Nor does there appear to be any dispute that the need for capital
11 investment in utility infrastructure is staggering.” But it’s hard to invest capital in
12 Arizona when that investment will not see a return for at least two years after the
13 investment is made, often longer, and then even when the plant hits rate base, the
14 nature of ratemaking in Arizona is such that our subsidiaries almost never realize
15 our authorized revenue levels. Compared to the other states where Liberty Utilities
16 has regulated utility subsidiaries, where things like future test years are used and
17 adjuster mechanisms are the norm, it shouldn’t be difficult to see that investment is
18 more attractive in those other states.
19| Q. HOW DOES THE FAILURE TO AMELIORATE REGULATORY LAG
20 UNDERMINE EFFORTS TO PROMOTE RATE GRADUALISM, MR.
21 EICHLER?

221 A It makes ratemaking lumpy. Instead of rates that gradually go up or down to reflect
23 the constantly changing realities of plant investment and operating expenses, you
24 end up with general rate cases every few years and much larger, often huge,
25
26 | ? Exhibit PE-DT2 at 2.
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increases being necessary for the utility to recover its costs and earn a return on
rate base. In order to reduce or even eliminate the chance of very large rate
increases, regulated companies in Arizona need enhancements to the existing
ratemaking model such as the FARE that updates all rate base items such as plant
investment along with expenses every year.
MR. GARLICK INDICATES IN HIS DIRECT TESTIMONY THAT
QUARTERLY FILINGS ARE INTENDED TO AID STAFF |IN
PROCESSING THE FARE FILINGS?
Yes. We have proposed quarterly FARE filings available to all interested parties to
provide current financial and operational information and provide a timely
snapshot of each Company’s operations and finances. Quarterly filings will be
made within 60 days of the close of each quarter in which the FARE is in effect
and include:

e (Quarterly Profit/Loss Statement

e Quarterly Balance Sheet

e Quarterly Income Statement

e Quarterly Operating Expense Summary

e Quarterly Plant Schedules

e Statement of Any Significant Plant Investment

The quarterly filings would basically reflect a rolling 12-month period for
all of the elements of each Company’s revenue requirement. And under the FARE,
Liberty BV/RR would be subject to requests for information regarding the
quarterly FARE filings in the same manner as discovery related to the annual

FARE filing.

13
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WOULD STAFF AND OTHER PARTIES BE REQUIRED TO DO
ANYTHING WITH RESPECT TO THESE QUARTERLY FILINGS?

Not as proposed. The quarterly filings are intended to be informational only.
We are trying to build a process predicated on a systematic flow of operational and
financial information from us to the regulators. The goal is to make the process
more efficient and enhance the transparency of the ratemaking process.

MR. EICHLER, ARE YOU SUGGESTING THAT THE FARE WILL
ACTUALLY BE SIMPLER TO IMPLEMENT THAN THE CURRENT
APPROACH?

Yes, I guess [ am. To us, filing one general rate case every four to five years, with
annual and quarterly filings each year in between, seems like less work than a
general rate case every one, two or three years. Commission Staff could assign one
or two specific analysts to Liberty Utilities. Those analysts would be responsible
for reviewing the quarterly fillings, and processing the annual filings for Staff.
Those analysts would be exposed to Liberty, and how we do business, and our
financial information on a regular basis. Each filing simply would update what the
analysts already know. It would mean that each new rate case does not require an
analyst to learn all about the utility, reviewing thousands of pages of documents
supporting years of plant and operations. This should make things easier and
therefore less costly, not harder.

ARE THERE OTHER STATES WHERE SIMILAR MODELS ARE BEING
IMPLEMENTED?

Yes, and this sort of formulaic approach to setting rates is used at the federal level
as well. Our efforts actually began by looking at the GRAM, or Georgia Rate
Adjustment Mechanism. This particular ratemaking model was first used in

Georgia in 2011 for natural gas distribution utilities. The GRAM is similar in

14




1 many ways to rate stabilization, decoupling and other non-volumetric mechanisms
2 employed all across the U.S.> However, the GRAM was merely a starting point —
3 we adopted several features and then designed the FARE to work in compliance
4 with Arizona law, using the same general historical ratemaking concept already in
5 place. So, while the FARE shares some similarity with ratemaking models used in
6 other states, it is unique. I also would re-emphasize that we do not view the FARE
7 as a rate adjustment mechanism. Rather, the FARE is a rate-setting model based
8 on the fair value requirements of Arizona law, and incorporating all of the fequired
9 elements of ratemaking in Arizona. Again, the annual FARE process does not
10 change how the rates were set; it merely updates the critical inputs.
11 | Q. THANK YOU MR. EICHLER. WOULD YOU LIKE TO ADD ANYTHING
12 ELSE TO YOUR TESTIMONY IN SUPPORT OF THE FARE?
13 | A. We certainly recognize that the Commission has a number of competing factors to
14 consider; we do not expect the Commission or anyone else to rubber-stamp the
15 FARE. We understand this is a process. We brought together a significant amount
16 of expertise and have worked hard to put forth a proposal that tries to balance a
17 number of competing and sometimes conflicting considerations. Now we ask that
18 it be given full and fair consideration, and we hope that the end result is the best
19 possible model for all stakeholders.
20 We firmly believe that the FARE benefits all stakeholders. The FARE is an
21 exceptionally transparent rate making model. The FARE process will use quarterly
22 and annual FARE filings to provide the Commission and any interested parties
23 with updated and ongoing information about the utility’s financial and operational
24
> There were approximately 20 states with some form of approved decoupling tariff as of
25 December 2011 including Arizona (Southwest Gas). There were also at least 7 states
26 | with approved rate stabilization tariffs as of December 2011.
SHAPIRO LAW FIRM
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status. This information allows for close and ongoing scrutiny of a utility rather
than once every few years in a general rate case. In fact, the FARE provides a set
schedule for approximately six years of rate setting for Liberty BV/RR. All of this
will streamline the ratemaking process, making it less costly in future.

The result of that transparent process will be rate gradualism and rate
stability, allowing customers to budget and plan for cost increases. This means rate
shock will be minimized to the greatest extent possible. The FARE is also
designed to reduce the adverse consequences of regulatory lag and, in so doing,
make investment into Arizona water and wastewater utility infrastructure more
attractive. That access to capital is critical to the health and future of every utility
we operate and every customer Liberty Utility serves in Arizona.

DOES THIS CONCLUDE YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY?
Yes.

16
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Eichler - Regulatory Testimony History

Docket Type Description Year Jurisdiction Subject Matter Supported Docket Number
1 Rate Case In the matter of Rio Rico Utilities Inc. 2009 Arizona Corporation Corporate allocations, accounting and WS-20676A-09
request for increase in rates Commission tax matters, organizational structure,
compliance
2 Rate Case In the Matter of Bella Vista Company, 2009 Arizona Corporation Corporate allocations, accounting and W-02465A-09
Northern Sunrise, and Southern Sunrise Commission tax matters, organizational structure,
Company Joint Application for Rate compliance
increase
3 Rate Case In the matter of Tall Timbers Utilities Inc. 2010 Texas Commission on Rate Increase, Revenue Requirement, 20694
Application for Rate Increase Environmental Quality Revenue Allocation, Cost Allocations,
Capital Expenditures, etc.
4 Eminent Domain In the matter of the City of Tyler v Tall 2010 Special Judicial Utility valuation, operations N/A
Timbers Utilities Subcommittee of the
Texas Commission on
5 Acguisition Joint Petition of Liberty Utilities and 2011 New Hampshire Public Corporate philosophy, financing, rates DG 11-040
National Grid to acquire Granite State Utilities Commission and ratemaking, corporate allocations
Electric Co. and EnergyNorth Natural Gas
Inc.
6 Acquisition Request to acquire Atmos Energy's lllinois 2011  lllinois Corporation Corporate philosophy, financing, rates IL 11-0559
assets Commission and ratemaking, corporate allocations
7 Acquisition Request to acquire Atmos Energy's lowa 2011 lowa Utilities Board Corporate philosophy, financing, rates SPU-2011-0008
assets and ratemaking, corporate allocations
8 Acquisition Request to acquire Atmos Energy’s 2011 Missouri Public Service Corporate philosophy, financing, rates GM-2012-0037
Missouri assets Commission and ratemaking, corporate allocations
9 Rate Case In the matter of California Pacific Electric 2012  California Public Utilities ~ Corporate allocations, accounting and A-12-02-014
Company request for Rate Increase Commission tax matters, organizational structure,
compliance
10 Financing Request to enter in to an intercompany 2012 |llinois Corporation Approval of financing, merger of IL 12-0326
loan arrangement Commission entities
11 Rate Case In the matter of Granite State Electric 2013 New Hampshire Public Corporate allocations, accounting and DE 13-063
request for Rate Increase Utilities Commission tax matters, organizational structure,
compliance
12 Acquisition Request to acquire United Water 2013 Arkansas Public Service Corporate philosophy, financing, rates 12-061-U
Arkansas Commission and ratemaking, corporate allocations
13 Acquisition Request to acquire Atmos Energy's 2013 Georgia Public Service Corporate philosophy, financing, rates DN 36278
Georgia assets Commission and ratemaking, corporate allocations
14 Acquisition Request to acquire New England Gas Co. 2013 Massechusetts Corporate philosophy, financing, rates DPU 13-009

Department of Public
Utilities

and ratemaking, corporate allocations,
tax matters



EXHIBIT PE-DT2




Liberty Utilities

————— ——————J
—_—-—
_
———
—

LIBERTY UTILITIES PROPOSED

FAIR VALUE ARIZONA RATE EVALUATION
(FARE) MODEL

FOR LIBERTY UTILITIES (BELLA VISTA WATER) CORP
AND LIBERTY UTILITIES (Ri0 Rico WATER & SEWER) CORP.

September 2015

Prepared by
Matthew Garlick
Todd Wiley, Esq.
Liberty Utilities

Jay L. Shapiro, Esq.
Shapiro Law Firm P.C.

Paul Walker
Insight Consulting, LLC

Tom Bourassa, CPA




g Liberty Utilities

“Despite recent
reform efforts,
Arizona utilities
continue to
struggle with
aging
infrastructure and
the adverse
impacts of
regulatory lag.”

FAIR VALUE ARIZONA RATE EVALUATION MODEL (FARE)

Despite recent reform efforts, Arizona utilities continue to struggle with aging
infrastructure and the adverse impacts of regulatory lag. This comes at a time
when hundreds of Arizona water and wastewater utilities require substantial
capital investment to address aging and deteriorating infrastructure, as
illustrated by the graph below. In order to achieve meaningful improvement to
the Arizona regulatory process, Liberty Utilities requests that the Arizona
Corporation Commission consider other regulatory models that comply with
the difficult requirements of Arizona law, while also addressing regulatory lag
and promoting rate gradualism.

Estimated Total Water and Wastewater Costs, 2008-2032 (Nominal Millions)

Water  Wastewater

Total Capital Costs $30716  $14162

“Infrastructure Needs and Funding Alternatives for Arizona: 2008 - 2032,
L. William Seidman Research Institute, Arizona State University, published
by Arizona Investment Council, May 2008.

Fair Value Arizona Rate Evaluation Model
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“The FARE will
use regularly
scheduled filings
to reach updated
fair value findings,
promoting rate
gradualism and
rate stability and
minimizing the
adverse
consequences of
regulatory lag.”

Toward that end, Liberty Utilities is proposing that the Commission approve
and adopt the Fair Value Arizona Rate Evaluation (‘FARE") model, a
ratemaking model based specifically on Arizona’s constitutional “fair value”
requirement. The FARE would be approved initially for two entities: Liberty
Utilities (Bella Vista Water) Corp. (“Liberty Bella Vista”) and Liberty Utilities
(Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. (“Liberty Rio Rico") (collectively “Liberty
BV/RR"). The FARE will use regularly scheduled filings to reach updated fair
value findings, promoting rate gradualism and rate stability and minimizing the
adverse consequences of regulatory lag. The intent, purpose and result will
be to keep rates fair by updating all factors affecting rates—the FARE can
move “up or down” to keep rates fair by tracking the underlying costs.

The FARE for Liberty BV/RR would be a pilot program authorized by the
Commission as set forth below, during and after which it can be evaluated
and refined by all stakeholders. Given the current regulatory environment for
Arizona water and wastewater utilities, some type of alternative ratemaking
model must be considered. As set forth below, the FARE was specifically
designed to comply with Arizona’s constitutional fair value requirement.

Fair Value Arizona Rate Evaluation Model
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“Given the
undisputed need
for massive water
and wastewater
infrastructure
investment over
the coming
decades, this is
not a sustainable
scenario for either
Arizona utilities or
utility customers.”

ARIZONA’S REGULATORY ENVIRONMENT FOR
WATER/WASTEWATER UTILITIES

Arizona water and wastewater utilities continue to bear the substantial burden
of regulatory lag, which, from the standpoint of the national investment
community, demonstrates that Arizona is a less attractive regulatory
environment for water and wastewater utilities. The adverse consequences of
that fact include restricted access to capital for regulated utilities: investors
have options, and facing choices with similar or better returns, they will
choose the investments with less risk. Given the undisputed need for
massive water and wastewater infrastructure investment over the coming
decades, this is not a sustainable scenario for either Arizona utilities or utility
customers.!

Recognizing those challenges, today and in the future, key utilities and utility
groups have tried to improve that regulatory environment, but those efforts
have been ineffective to date. The industry seemed to have achieved some
relief when the Commission adopted the System Improvement Benefits (“SIB")
mechanism. Unfortunately, that achievement was short-lived. In RUCO v.
Arizona Corporation Commission (August 2015), the Arizona Court of Appeals
found the SIB unconstitutional under Arizona law.

Now, all stakeholders are grappling with the potentially far-reaching
implications of that decision on regulation of all Arizona utilities. The Court of
Appeals decision appears to limit the Commission’s ability to use rate base
adjustor mechanisms to reduce regulatory lag or to make more gradual rate
changes (shielding customers from “rate shock”), while simultaneously
allowing public service corporations a reasonable opportunity to earn their
authorized returns.

! See e.g., “Infrastructure Needs and Funding Alternatives for Arizona: 2008 — 2032,” L.. William Seidman Research
Institute, Arizona State University, published by Arizona Investment Council, May 2008; “Drinking Water
Infrastructure Needs Survey and Assessment,” U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, February 2009; “2015
Report Card for Arizona’s Infrastructure,” American Society of Civil Engineers, May 2015.

Fair Value Arizona Rate Evaluation Model
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“In its decision,
the Court of
Appeals expressly
recognized and
stated that
Arizona has a
unique
constitutional
regulatory
environment
distinct from other
~ jurisdictions...”

The undoing of the SIB revolved around the Court's interpretation of the fair
value requirement unique to Arizona’s Constitution. The Arizona Constitution
requires the Commission to “ascertain the fair value of property” when it sets
rates.2 “[Tlhe Commission is required to find the fair value of the company’s
property and use such finding in determining what are just and reasonable
rates.”> The Court of Appeals determined that the proposed SIB didn't comply
with Arizona's fair value requirement for several reasons:

(1) “the documentation AWC must submit to obtain approval of
surcharges is substantially less than what is required in a rate
case”,

(2) “it is undisputed that the Commission will not conduct a full
fair value determination when it evaluates AWC's surcharge
requests”;

(3) the Commission will not “take into consideration all of the
various ratemaking elements that would be looked at and
scrutinized in a general rate case proceeding. That would
include such things as revenues, expenses, and, of course,
capital expenditures and the prudency considerations for each
one of those ratemaking elements”;

(4) “when the Commission considers surcharge requests, other
critical valuation factors will be premised on a past rate case
that, at the outer reaches of the SIB cycle, will be five years
old. Such a process is inconsistent with the mandate that the
Commission perform a fair value determination ‘at the time of
inquiry”; and

(5) “Additionally, the Commission will not be assessing savings
or other efficiencies attributable to capital improvements when
it approves surcharges.”

2 Ariz. Const. Art. 15, § 14.

3 Ariz. Corp. Comm’n v. Ariz. Pub. Service Co., 113 Ariz. 368, 370, 555 P.2d 326, 328 (1976).
4 RUCO v, Ariz. Corp. Comm’n, at 14-15, 91 40-43.
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“In making that
statement, the
Court of Appeals
clearly
distinguished
Arizona rate
making and
Arizona’s
regulatory
environment from
other state
jurisdictions.
Under the plain
language of that
decision, Arizona
is a more difficult
and riskier
regulatory
environment
compared to other
jurisdictions.”

In its decision, the Court of Appeals expressly recognized and stated that
Arizona has a unique constitutional regulatory environment distinct from other
jurisdictions: “{w]e recognize the Commission’s legitimate desire to ‘initiate
innovative procedures in an attempt to deal promptly and equitably with
increasingly complex regulatory matters," and its corresponding goal of
avoiding 'a constant series of extended rate hearings [that] are not
necessary to protect the public interest'.... But the question before us is not
whether the SIB mechanism represents prudent public policy. Our focus is
on the propriety of that mechanism given the unique and express
provisions of our state constitution."s

In making that statement, the Court of Appeals clearly distinguished Arizona
rate making and Arizona's regulatory environment from other state
jurisdictions. Under the plain language of that decision, Arizona is a more
difficult and riskier regulatory environment compared to other jurisdictions.
This follows from the fact that given the Court's interpretation of Arizona's fair
value requirement, the Commission does not have the latitude afforded public
utility commissions in other states. In Arizona, many of the ratemaking tools
designed to further the public interest by reducing regulatory lag and
promoting rate gradualism appear to be unavailable to the Commission. That
is, unless it first engages in long, complex and costly rate cases every time a
rate needs to change (beyond changes that arise from a narrowly defined
change in certain operating expenses under approved adjustor mechanisms).

Under this regulatory regime, utility owners and investors are strongly
incentivized to spend capital in other jurisdictions. Investors facing the choice
between two alternatives providing similar yield will select jurisdictions that
have the flexibility to and do use well-established ratemaking tools like
Distribution System Improvement Charges (DSICs), balancing accounts,
forward looking test years, decoupling mechanisms, generic ROEs and other
rate making mechanisms designed to minimize the adverse impacts of
regulatory lag, streamline rate cases and promote and encourage investment
in utility infrastructure. Some of the limitations inherent in Arizona today are
the result of the Court's decision in RUCO v. Arizona Corporation
Commission. Some, however, are due to the use of Arizona’s historic test

S RUCO v. Ariz. Corp. Comm’n, at 17, ] 48 (emphasis added).
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“The FARE will
minimize
regulatory lag,
streamline
ratemaking and
incent needed
capital investment
while benefitting
utility customers
by providing
gradual rate
changes, rate
stability, and more

frequent regulator

scrutiny of utility
costs and
expenses before
the cost of service
to the customer
changes, up or
down.”

year model. Problems with Arizona’s historic test year model are even more
pronounced with the SIB declared unlawful.

THE FARE PILOT PROGRAM FOR LIBERTY BV/RR

Liberty Utilities ultimately views the recent Court of Appeals opinion as a
strong indication of the need for meaningful improvement to the Arizona
regulatory process for water and sewer utilities.® Liberty Bella Vista and
Liberty Rio Rico request that the Commission implement and evaluate a rate
setting mechanism that complies with Arizona’s fair value requirement. The
Fair Value Arizona Rate Evaluation model or FARE, developed by Liberty
Utilities, is such a mechanism. The FARE will minimize regulatory lag,
streamline ratemaking and incent needed capital investment while benefitting
utility customers by providing gradual rate changes, rate stability, and more
frequent regulator scrutiny of utility costs and expenses before the cost of
service to the customer changes, up or down. Vitally, the FARE allows the
cost of service to the customer to move up or down to ensure that rates
reflect the most current cost information available.

WHAT IS THE FARE?

The FARE is a significant improvement in fair value ratemaking that uses a
traditional, well-established rate formula coupled with annual filings to ensure
that the rates for service reflect current operating and financial criteria as
determined by known, objective and measurable data. Under the FARE, rates
will be established in a general rate case using the well-established formula:

Reyvenue Requirement = Operating Expenses + Return on Rate Base

& Many other states have adopted and implemented alternative ratemaking mechanisms. Pennsylvania, lllinois,
Indiana and New York, for example, have implemented DSIC mechanisms to address the growing need for utilities
to replace aging infrastructure. Alabama, Georgia, Louisiana, Mississippi, Oklahoma, South Carolina and Texas
have approved rate stabilization tariffs. Georgia and lllinois have adopted and implemented formula rate
mechanisms. Other states, such as California, use forward looking test years.

Fair Value Arizona Rate Evaluation Model
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“With updated and
detailed
operational and
financial data, and
using the same
capital structure,
cost of capital,
and rate design
approved in the
order adopting the
FARE, the
Commission will
have all of the
information
necessary to make
a new finding of
fair value and
approve a new
annual cost for
service for each
Company based
on such finding.”

Thereafter, Liberty Bella Vista and Liberty Rio Rico will make annual filings
updating the necessary components of the revenue requirement. With
updated and detailed operational and financial data, and using the same
capital structure, cost of capital, and rate design approved in the order
adopting the FARE, the Commission will have all of the information necessary
to make a new finding of fair value and approve a new annual cost for service
for each Company based on such finding.

ANNUAL FARE FILING

Between twelve to fifteen (12-15) months after implementation of new rates
approved in an order authorizing the FARE, and every twelve (12) months
thereafter, Liberty Bella Vista and Liberty Rio Rico will file annual FARE
schedules reflecting the following’:

e Calculation of Revenue Deficiency or Surplus

e Current rate base for PIS, A/D, ADITs, AIAC/CIAC and other usual rate
base factors

e Income Statement

e Operating Revenues

e Operating Expense Summary
e Depreciation Expense

o Taxes

o Rate Schedules®

7 For example, if the Commission issued a decision approving the FARE for Liberty Bella Vista and implementing
new rates effective December 1, 2016, then the first FARE filings by Liberty Bella Vista would occur on March 1,
2018 for the 12 months ended December 31, 2017. The Company then would make annual filings on March 1 of

each following year.

8 Copies of the proposed schedules are included as Attachment A.
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FARE TIMELINE
Day 1: FARE Filing

Day 45: Staff
" Review/Response

| Day 60: Company
Reply

Day 90: Hearing
(if necessary)

Day 150: FARE
Order

- “The Commission
will use the annual
FARE filing to
make a fair value
determination and
set the cost of
service for the
forthcoming year.”

PROCESSING THE ANNUAL FARE FILING

STEP ONE - Commission Staff and other parties will have 45 days to review
the FARE filing and file responses and recommendations. During that review
period, Liberty BV/RR will answer discovery (data requests for additional
information) on an expedited basis (5-7 days maximum). The Commission’s
regulations prescribe limits on the time required to process rate cases,
but Arizona law does not prohibit expedited processing of utility rates.

STEP TWO - Liberty BV/RR will have 15 days to review the analysis and
recommendations of Staff and any other party and file a reply in support of its
FARE request along with their final request and recommendations if different
than the initial annual FARE filing.

STEP THREE - If there is no material dispute between the parties regarding
the determination of fair value, the Commission shall issue its order making a
fair value finding and approving rates thereon within 90 days of the annual
FARE filing. If there is a material dispute between the parties regarding the
determination of fair value, the Commission shall schedule a hearing to be
held no more than 90 days after the annual FARE filing date, and thereafter,
issue its order making a fair value finding and approving rates thereon within
160 days of the annual FARE filing date.

USE OF THE ANNUAL FARE FILING

The Commission will use the annual FARE filing to make a fair value
determination and set the cost of service for the forthcoming year. The
Commission’s decision would utilize Liberty Bella Vista’s and Liberty Rio
Rico’s then current rate bases, revenues and expenses, with adjustments for
then known and measurable changes, to make a fair value finding and, if
necessary, reset the cost of service for another year, using the same formula,
the same cost of capital, and the same rate design approved in the rate case
in which the FARE was first authorized.

Fair Value Arizona Rate Evaluation Model
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“Under the FARE, if
the Commission’s
fair value

- determination
shows that Liberty
Bella Vista’s
and/or Liberty Rio
Rico’s earnings
are within an
“Established
Range” equal to
plus or minus 20
basis points from
the authorized rate
of return on equity
(ROE), there will
be no change in
the revenue
requirement and
rates for the one
year period
covered by the
annual FARE
filing.”

Under the FARE, if the Commission’s fair value determination shows that
Liberty Bella Vista’'s and/or Liberty Rio Rico's earnings are within an
“Established Range” equal to plus or minus 20 basis points from the
authorized rate of return on equity (ROE), there will be no change in the
revenue requirement and rates for the one year period covered by the annual
FARE filing. For example, if the approved ROE for Liberty Bella Vista is 9.5%
and the annual FARE filing shows that the Company has earned 9.3% during
the first year of the FARE, then there will not be any changes in the cost of
service paid by customers. |If Liberty Bella Vista's or Liberty Rio Rico’s
earnings fall outside the Established Range, the Commission shall set a new
revenue requirement based on its fair value finding and the costs of service
shall be increased or decreased as necessary to produce the authorized
ROE. For example, if the approved ROE for Liberty Bella Vista is 9.5% and
the annual FARE filing shows that the Company has earned 9.0% during the
first year of the FARE, then the revenue requirement and rates shall be set to
achieve a 9.5% ROE based on the updated cost of service.®

Additionally, if Liberty Bella Vista's and/or Liberty Rio Rico’s annual FARE
filing reflects that either Company is under-earning or over-earning by 100
basis points or more, then that Company shall file a general rate application
within 120 days of the Commission issuing such finding, unless the
Commissioner orders otherwise pursuant to a request filed by Liberty Bella
Vista or Liberty Rio Rico.

% The inverse is also true: if the actual ROE for a utility is more than 20 basis points greater than the authorized
ROE, rates will be lowered.

Fair Value Arizona Rate Evaluation Model
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Liberty Utilities

“This systematic
flow of operation
and financial
information will
allow for a more
efficient analysis
of annual FARE
filings and
enhance the
transparency of
the ratemaking
process by
allowing
Commission Staff
and other
stakeholders to
stay well
informed.”

ADDITIONAL FEATURES OF THE FARE

Quarterly FARE Updates - In addition to the annual FARE filing, Liberty
Bella Vista and Liberty Rio Rico shall make quarterly FARE filings available to
all interested parties to provide current financial and operational information
and provide a timely snapshot of each Company's operations and finances.
These quarterly filings are intended to be informational only and not require
additional action by Commission Staff or other parties. This systematic flow
of operation and financial information will allow for a more efficient analysis of
annual FARE filings and enhance the transparency of the ratemaking process
by allowing Commission Staff and other stakeholders to stay well informed.
Quarterly filings will be made within 60 days of the close of each quarter in
which the FARE is in effect and shall include:

o Quarterly Profit/Loss Statement

o Quarterly Balance Sheet

o Quarterly Income Statement

o Quarterly Operating Expense Summary

o Quarterly Plant Schedules

o Statement of Any Significant Plant Investment

Under the FARE, Liberty BV/RR would be subject to requests for information
regarding the quarterly FARE filings in the same manner as discovery would
be conducted with respect to an annual FARE filing. This will allow
Commission Staff and other parties to stay informed about the operational
and financial status of Liberty BV/RR, in turn allowing Commission Staff and
other parties to have detailed working knowledge of the Companies before
the annual FARE filings. Liberty BV/RR will also work with Commission Staff
and other parties to develop templates for the quarterly and annual FARE
filings.

Fair Value Arizona Rate Evaluation Model
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“Absent exigent
circumstances,
Liberty BV/RR
would not file a
general rate case
for at least four (4)
years after the
FARE is approved,
and a general rate
case will be filed
within five (5)
years of FARE
approval, unless
required earlier
under the FARE or
otherwise ordered
by the
Commission.”

“The FARE is an
exceptionally
transparent rate
making model.
The process will
be open and
transparent
through the use of
quarterly and
annual FARE

- filings.”

Along with the formula for determining the revenue requirement in future
FARE filings, the Commission will determine the applicable cost of capital,
capital structure, and rate design in the general rate case approving the
FARE. The Commission then will use the established cost of capital, capital
structure and rate design for the annual FARE filings. This will reduce the
time necessary for the Commission’s fair value determination as part of the
annual FARE filings.

Absent exigent circumstances, Liberty BV/RR would not file a general rate
case for at least four (4) years after the FARE is approved, and a general rate
case will be filed within five (5) years of FARE approval, unless required
earlier under the FARE or otherwise ordered by the Commission.

Adjustment mechanisms for operating expenses that are chiefly outside the
utility’s control (e.g., CAP water, rates for purchased power, property tax
rates) would continue to be used in concert with the FARE and
notwithstanding the 20 basis point Established Range. The FARE also could
include a correction mechanism. Although not included in this pilot proposal,
the FARE could incorporate an annual review as part of the FARE process,
allowing correction of any calculation or other errors relating to the prior year's
FARE filing and determination.

BENEFITS OF THE FARE TO ARIZONA’S UTILITY
CUSTOMERS, ARIZONA UTILITIES AND THE COMMISSION

Implementation and adoption of the FARE will certainly benefit Arizona
ratepayers, Arizona’s utilities and the Commission itself in many ways.
Liberty Utilities summarizes these benefits below.

e Transparency - The FARE is an exceptionally transparent rate making
model. The process will be open and transparent through the use of quarterly
and annual FARE filings. Those quarterly and annual filings will provide the
Commission and any interested parties with updated and ongoing information
about utility financial and operational status.

e Rate Gradualism and Rate Stability - Use of the Established Range
brings a great deal of stability to residential customer bills, which allows
customers to budget and plan for cost increases. Likewise, commercial

Fair Value Arizona Rate Evaluation Model
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“The FARE
promotes rate
gradualism and
rate stability while
minimizing the
risks of rate
shock.”

“All stakeholders
benefit by
streamlined and
less costly rate
making
procedures.”

customers can better plan for rate increases, in turn fostering economic
development.

e Rate Shock - The FARE promotes rate gradualism and rate stability
while minimizing the risks of rate shock.

e The FARE Works Both Ways - All FARE filings will be mandatory. As
such, the utility can’t avoid a reduced revenue requirement and decreased
rates, if circumstances warrant. By also capturing reductions in operation and
maintenance expenses, operating efficiencies will provide timely benefits to
customers.

e Streamlined and Less Costly Rate Making Process ~ The FARE
provides a set schedule for approximately six years of rate setting for Liberty
BV/RR. All stakeholders benefit by streamlined and less costly rate making
procedures. The FARE will result in more efficient use of limited resources.

e Sharing of Reduced Expenses - Filing of updated expense information
under the FARE captures and addresses reductions in operation and
maintenance expenses. That means that operating efficiencies provide timely
benefits to ratepayers.

e Reduce Regulatory Lag and Encourage Needed Utility Investment -
The FARE is designed to reduce the adverse consequences of regulatory lag
and, in so doing, make investment into Arizona water and wastewater utility
infrastructure more attractive.

e Closer Scrutiny by Regulators and Other Parties — As proposed with
quarterly and annual filings, the FARE results in a close and ongoing scrutiny
of a utility rather than once every few years if a general rate case is filed.

e Other Tangible Benefits — The FARE will result in better and more
reliable provision of water and sewer service by Arizona utilities, including
reduced water loss.

e Compliance with Arizona’s Fair Value Requirement — As written, the
FARE proposed as a pilot program for Liberty BV/RR is designed to comply
with Arizona's fair value requirement and, specifically, the recent SIB
decision.

Fair Value Arizona Rate Evaluation Model
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I

Attachment A
FAIR VALUE ARIZONA RATE EVALUATION
(FARE) MODEL
SCHEDULES 1-20




Line
No

10

"

12

[APPLICANT NAME]
Year Ended
Computation of Increase in Gross Revenue
Requirements As Adjusted

Description
Fair Value Rate Base (a)

Adjusted Operating Revenues (b)

Adjusted Operating Expenses (b)

Adjusted Operating Income (b} (Ln. 2 - In. 3)

Current Rate of Return (%) (In.2/1In. 1) x 100

Required Rate of Return on Fair Value Rate Base (% )Xc)
Required Operating Income (In. 6 xin. 1)

Operating Revenue Deficiency (In. 4 - In. 7)

Gross Revenue Conversion Factor (d)

Increase in Gross Revenue Requirement (In. 8 x In. 9)
Revenue Requirement (In. 2 + In. 10)

% Increase (In. 10 /in. 2) x 100

Projected Revenue

Customer Class Due to Increase in Rates(e) Increase (Decrease)(e)
SUPPORTING SCHEDULES:
(a) Schedule 2

(b) Schedule 11
(c) As authorized in last general rate case decision
(d) Schedule 15
(e) Schedule 16

Exhibit
Schedule 1
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Line
No.

(a) Income Statement for 12 Months Ended
(b) Schedule 12

[APPLICANT NAME] Exhibit
Year Ended Schedule 11
Revenues and Expenses
(1) (2) (3) (3
Year End
Year End Adjusted
Book Results
Description Results (a) Adiustment (b} (Col. 2+ Col 3.}
Total Rate Revenues
Total Other Operating Revenues
Total Operating Revenues (A)
Operating Expenses
(by Function)
‘Depreciation and Amortization (b)
Property Taxes (¢)
Other Taxes (c)
Income Taxes (d)
Total Operating Expenses (A)
Operating Income A)
SUPPORTING SCHEDULES: RECAP SCHEDULES:

(A) Schedule 1
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Line

[APPLICANT NAME]
Year Ended
Computation of Gross Revenue Conversion Factor (GRCF)

No. _Description

1

2

3

Arizona Effective Income Tax Rate (a)
Federal Effective Income Tax Rate (a)
Property Taxes (a)

Uncollectible Factor (a)

Total Tax Percentage

Operating income % = 100% - Total Tax Percentage

1 = Gross Revenue Conversion Factor (A)

Operating Income %

SUPPORTING SCHEDULES:

(a) As needed

Exhibit
Schedule 15

Percentage
of
Incremental
Gross
Revenues

100.000%

RECAP SCHEDULES:

(A) Schedule 1




[APPLICANT NAME] Exhibit
Year Ended Schedule 16
Summary of Rate Revenues by Customer Classification

M @ 3 4 5

Revenues Revenues Revenue %
Line from from Increase (Decrease) Increase(Decrease)
No.  Customer Classification Present Rates(a) Proposed Rates(a) (Col. 3 - Col. 2) (Col. 4/Col. 2)
Total Revenues
SUPPORTING SCHEDULES: RECAP SCHEDULES:

(a) Schedule 17 (A) Schedule 1
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SHAPIRO LAW FIRM

A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION

SHAPIRO LAW FIRM, P.C.

Jay L. Shapiro (No. 014650)

1819 E. Morten Avenue, Suite 280
Phoenix, Arizona 85020
Telephone (602) 559-9575

LIBERTY UTILITIES

Todd C. Wiley (No. 015358)

12725 W. Indian School Road, Suite D-101
Avondale, Arizona 85392

Attorneys for Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp.

BEFORE THE ARIZONA CORPORATION COMMISSION

IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION | DOCKET NO: WS-02676A-15-

OF LIBERTY UTILITIES (RIO RICO
WATER & SEWER) CORP., AN ARIZONA
CORPORATION, FOR A
DETERMINATION OF THE FAIR VALUE
OF ITS UTILITY PLANTS AND
PROPERTY AND FOR INCREASES IN ITS
WATER AND WASTEWATER RATES
AND CHARGES FOR UTILITY SERVICE
BASED THEREON.

DIRECT TESTIMONY OF
WILLIAM R. KILLEEN

October 27, 2015
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SHAPIRO LAW FIRM

A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION

A.

INTRODUCTION AND PURPOSE OF TESTIMONY.
PLEASE STATE YOUR NAME AND BUSINESS ADDRESS.

My name is William R. Killeen. My business address is 345 Davis Road, Oakville,
Ontario, Canada, L6J 2X1.
BY WHOM ARE YOU EMPLOYED AND IN WHAT CAPACITY?
I am the Director of Regulatory Operations for Liberty Utilities (Canada) Corp.
(“Liberty Utilities Canada™). Liberty Utilities Canada is the ultimate parent
company of Liberty Utilities Co. (“Liberty Utilities”). Liberty Ultilities Canada is a
wholly owned subsidiary of Algonquin Power & Utilities Corp. (“APUC”).
Liberty Utilities (Bella Vista Water) Corp. (“Liberty Bella Vista”) and Liberty
Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. (“Liberty Rio Rico™) (collectively,
“Applicants”) are wholly owned subsidiaries of Liberty Utilities (Sub) Corp.
Liberty Utilities (Sub) Corp. is a wholly owned subsidiary of Liberty Utilities Co.
As the Director of Regulatory Operations, I am responsible for strategy
development and management of regulatory affairs for all of Liberty Ultilities’
regulated utilities currently providing water, wastewater, electric and gas utility
services in Arizona, Arkansas, California, Georgia, Illinois, Iowa, Massachusetts,
Missouri, New Hampshire and Texas. Liberty Utilities is continuing to expand its
regulated utility footprint and holdings throughout the United States. For example,
Liberty Utilities recently acquired three new regulated water utilities—two in
California and one in Montana.'
PLEASE DESCRIBE YOUR EDUCATIONAL BACKGROUND AND
PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE.

I earned a Bachelor of Engineering Science (Chemical) degree from the University

' Those acquisitions are subject to approval by the regulatory commissions in Montana
and California, which are currently pending.

1
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e

of Western Ontario (now Western University) in 1985. I also earned a Master’s
degree in Business Administration from the Ivey School of Business at Western
University in 1989.

I have 26 years of professional experience in the energy and utilities
industries in the areas of regulation, supply, operations and customer service.
I have worked at natural gas and electric utilities, as well as in consulting,
marketing, and government positions. Early in my careér, I was employed by
Union Gas Limited, a major natural gas utility serving over 1.4 million customers
in Ontario, Canada, for twelve years in varying capacities, including regulatory and
supply.

Prior to joining Liberty Utilities in February 2014, 1 was employed by
Enersource Hydro Mississauga Inc., a major electric utility serving the City of
Mississauga, Ontario, for three years as Manager, Regulatory Affairs. In between
my employment at these two large utilities, I was employed at various other
companies, always retaining responsibility for oversight of regulatory affairs,
typically in Ontario or eastern Canada. These companies include Engage Energy
Canada Inc., Direct Energy as Manager, Regulatory Affairs and a consulting
company, ECNG Energy LP, as Director, Supply and Regulatory Affairs for eight
years. Following ECNG, I spent a brief tenure within the Ministry of Energy of the
Ontario Government. My Curriculum Vitae is attached as Exhibit WRK-DT1.
DO YOU HAVE ANY PROFESSIONAL DESIGNATIONS?

Yes. I am a licensed Professional Engineer in the Province of Ontario and a
member of the Ontario Society of Professional Engineers.

HAVE YOU PREVIOUSLY TESTIFIED BEFORE THIS OR ANY OTHER
COMMISSION?

My direct testimony was filed in the Liberty Utilities (Black Mountain Sewer)

i 2
!
|
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IIL.

Corp. rate proceeding on June 22, 2015, Docket Nos. SW-02361A-15-0206 and
SW-02361A-15-0207 (consolidated). It is the first proceeding before the Arizona
Corporation Commission in which I am providing testimony. I have testified,
however, in a number of gas and electric utility pricing cases and facility approval
cases before the Ontario Energy Board. Also, I recently testified in a rate case
before the Arkansas Public Service Commission (Docket No. 14-020-U) on behalf
of Liberty Utilities (Pine Bluff Water) Inc.

WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY?

The purpose of my direct testimony is to support the Applicants’ requests for new
rates by addressing the corporate costs and allocation methods employed by all
companies within the APUC organization. In my testimony, I explain the APUC
and Liberty Ultilities corporate cost allocation model and the benefits of our shared
service model to Applicants and the other regulated utilities operated by Liberty
Utilities.”

OVERVIEW OF LIBERTY UTILITIES’ BUSINESS MODEL.

WILL YOU PLEASE SUMMARIZE THE LIBERTY UTILITIES BUSINESS
MODEL?

As mentioned above, APUC serves as the overall corporate parent and has two
major operating subsidiaries, Algonquin Power Co. (“APCo”) and Liberty Ultilities.
APCo is an unregulated entity that provides renewable power generation from
facilities owned throughout the United States and Canada. Liberty Utilities owns

regulated water, wastewater, gas and electric utilities in ten states.

2 My direct testimony is being filed concurrently in rate case dockets for Liberty Bella
Vista and Liberty Rio Rico.
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PLEASE EXPLAIN THE LIBERTY UTILITIES SHARED SERVICES AND
CORPORATE COST ALLOCATION MODEL.

Two corporate groups provide shared services to entities within the APUC
organizational structure, including Liberty Utilities and its regulated utilities.
One is APUC, and the other is the shared services department within Liberty
Utilities Canada.

WHAT SHARED SERVICES DOES APUC PROVIDE?

APUC is structured as a publicly traded holding company and provides substantial
benefits to its regulated utilities and generation facilities through access to capital
markets. As the ultimate corporate parent, APUC also provides financial, strategic
management, corporate governance, administrative and support services to Liberty
Utilities and APCo.

APUC’s Financing Services involve selling units to public investors in order
to generate the funding and capital necessary (be it short term or long term funding,
including equity and debt) for Liberty Utilities, as well as providing legal services
in connection with the issuance of public debt. In connection with the provision of
Financing Services, APUC incurs the following types of costs: (i) strategic
management costs (board of director, third-party legal services, accounting
services, tax planning and filings, insurance, and required auditing); (ii) capital
access costs (communications, investor relations, trustee fees, escrow and transfer
agent fees); (iii) financial control costs (audit and tax expenses); and
(iv) administrative (rent, depreciation, general office costs).” Non-labor costs,
including corporate capital, are pooled and allocated to Liberty Utilities and APCo

using the “multi-factor” method summarized in Table 1 of the APUC Cost

3 Appendix 2 of the APUC Cost Allocation Manual or “CAM” referenced below provides
a more detailed discussion of the costs incurred by APUC.

4
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Allocation MLmual (“CAM”). Without question, the services provided by APUC
are necessary for Liberty Utilities and its regulated subsidiaries to have access to
capital markets for capital projects and operations.
WHAT TYPES OF SHARED SERVICES DOES LIBERTY UTILITIES
CANADA PROVIDE?
Liberty Utilities Canada provides Liberty Utilities (and its regulated utilities) with
the following services: accounting, administration, corporate finance, human
resources (including training and development), information technology, rates and
regulatory affairs, environment, health and safety, and security, customer service,
procurement, risk management, legal and utility planning. Specific examples of
these services include: (i) budgeting, forecasting, and financial reporting services
including preparation of reports and preservation of records, cash management
(including electronic fund transfers, cash receipts processing, managing short-term
borrowings and investments with third parties); (ii) development of customer
service policies and procedures; (iii) development of human resource policies and
procedures; (iv) selection of information systems and equipment for accounting,
engineering, administration, customer service, emergency restoration and other
functions and implementation thereof; (v) development, placement and
administration of insurance coverages and employee benefit programs, including
group insurance and retirement annuities, property inspections and valuations for
insurance; (vi) purchasing services including preparation and analysis of product
specifications, requests for proposals and similar solicitations, and vendor and
vendor-product evaluations; and (vii) development of regulatory strategy.

Liberty Utilities Canada will direct charge or assign costs that can be
directly attributable to a specific utility. Those costs include direct labor and direct

non-labor costs. Indirect Liberty Utilities Canada costs, however, cannot be

5




o 0 3 N AW N

N N NN N N e e b e e e e ed
WD A W N = O VW N R WN =

26
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directly attributed to an individual utility. Within the formal organizational

structure, Liberty Utilities Canada provides certain services that benefit the entire
company, i.e., both Liberty Utilities and APCo. Those indirect business services
and costs from these shared service functions are allocated between APCo and
Liberty Utilities using the “multi-factor” methodology shown in Table 4 of the
CAM. Those factors are designed to closely align the costs with the driver of the
activity. These shared service functions include risk management, information
technology, human resources, training, facilities and building rent, financial
reporting and administration, environmental health safety and security, legal costs,
treasury, internal auditing, procurement, and communications.

Once those indirect costs are allocated between APCo and Liberty Utilities,
the indirect labor and indirect non-labor costs, including capital costs, attributable
to Liberty Utilities are then reallocated to its regulated utilities using the Utility
Four Factor Methodology set forth in Table 2 of the CAM:

CAM Table 2: Utility Four Factor Methodology

Factor Weight
Utility Plant 25%
Customer Count 25%
Non-Labor Expenses 25%
Labor 25%
Total 100%

HOW DOES LIBERTY UTILITIES SERVICE CORP. FIT INTO THIS
BUSINESS MODEL?

Liberty Utilities Service Corp. (“LUSC”) is a wholly owned subsidiary of Liberty
Utilities. All United States regulated utility employees are employed by LUSC.

The purpose of LUSC is to streamline administration of payroll across the United

6




,

1 States-based companies. All employee costs, such as salaries, benefits, insurance,
2 etc. are paid by LUSC and direct charged to the extent possible to the regulated
3 utility for which the employee performs dedicated work. In situations where time
4 sheets do not allow direct charging of LUSC costs (which is expected to be an
5 infrequent occurrence), those indirect costs are allocated using the allocation
6 methodology set forth in Table 5 of the CAM.

71 Q. HOW DO APPLICANTS AND THE OTHER REGULATED UTILITIES IN

8 ARIZONA BENEFIT FROM THIS SHARED-SERVICES MODEL?

91 A. The Liberty Utilities shared services business model serves a significant and very
10 important role for the Applicants and their sister companies in Arizona.
11 The benefits of this shared service model are significant, including:

12 1. Access to Skilled Strategic Management. This means Applicants enjoy
13 access to wide ranging expertise and resources that are typically not
14 available to small utilities with less than 20,000 customers. That is a direct
15 result of the nationwide utility footprint of Liberty Utilities and our shared
16 services model.

17 2 Controls and Processes. Through this business model, controls and
18 processes are in place to ensure that accounting methodologies are
19 consistent with generally accepted accounting principles and fully adhere to
20 Sarbanes-Oxley compliance and other appropriate internal controls.
21 That means Applicants benefits from sound accounting, capital investment
22 and operational expertise.

23 3 Economies of Scale. By sharing regional resources with other utilities,
24 Applicants enjoy the benefits of lower overall cost structures while at the
25 same time maintaining a local flavor in its day-to-day operations and
26 customer contact. Further, as Liberty Utilities grows, its overall costs will

Rrearassonat Conrossrion i 7
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be allocated over a larger base of utilities, lowering the cost of shared
services to each subsidiary utility, including the Applicants.
4. Access to Capital. As discussed earlier, APUC is the entity that is traded

on the Toronto Stock Exchange and ensures that Applicants have
uninterrupted access to capital. The APUC family (including Liberty
Utilities) has access to over $600M in credit facilities and, from 2010-2014,
raised over $1.7B in capital through the issuance of long-term debt and
equity. The capital expenditure budget for 2015 is $106M for Liberty
Utilities.
AND THESE APUC AND LUC COSTS ARE NECESSARY AND
BENEFICIAL?
Yes. Among other things, many of these costs are requirements of APUC being a
publicly traded entity on the Toronto Stock Exchange (TSX). As a publicly traded
entity, APUC must issue certain communications subject to the TSX’s rules and
regulations. For example, Section 714 of the TSX Company Manual states that
“TSX may delist securities of a listed issuer that has failed to comply with the
TSX’s Timely Disclosure Policy... or with disclosure requirements under any
securities law to which the issuer is subject.” Additionally, section 406 of the TSX
Company Manual in part states “It is a cornerstone policy of the Exchange that all
persons investing in securities listed on the Exchange have equal access to
information that may affect their investment decisions.... Companies whose
securities are listed on the Exchange are legally obligated to comply with the
provisions on timely disclosure...” Finally, Ontario Securities Commission
National Policy 51-201 states in Section 4.5 that “Companies who do not comply
with an exchange's requirements could find themselves subject to an administrative

proceeding before a provincial securities regulator.”

8
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These requirements and related costs are no different than publicly traded
companies on the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE), whose Listed Company
Manual, Section 202.05 states “A listed company is expected to release quickly to
the public any news or information which might reasonably be expected to
materially affect the market for its securities. This is one of the most important and
fundamental purposes of the listing agreement which the company enters into with
the Exchange.” Put simply, the APUC and LUC costs are the same types of costs
that entities traded on the NYSE are required to incur. These costs are a necessary
and unavoidable part of a publicly traded entity’s cost of doing business. APUC’s
presence on the TSX is the means by which Liberty Utilities obtains capital for
investment and I do not think anyone disputes that APUC’s access to capital is a
benefit to Applicants and their customers in Arizona. If we need access to capital,
then we must incur those costs to obtain the needed capital, and those costs should
be included if we show they are required. The underlying record illustrates that
those costs are required. Copies of these pertinent provisions of the TSX and
NYSE rules are attached as Exhibit WRK-DT2.

COST ALLOCATION MANUAL.

YOU HAVE REFERRED TO A COST ALLOCATION MANUAL OR CAM
THAT GOVERNS THE LIBERTY UTILITIES BUSINESS MODEL.
CAN YOU PLEASE DESCRIBE THE CAM?

Yes. Our cost allocation methodologies and processes are set forth in the
Algonquin Power & Ultilities Corp. Cost Allocation Manual or CAM, which is
attached as Exhibit WRK-DT3. Shared services and corporate costs are allocated
to Applicants in accordance with the methodologies and processes set forth in the
CAM. Specifically, the CAM outlines the methods of direct charge and cost
allocations between (1) APUC and its affiliates, APCo and Liberty Ultilities;

9
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(2) Liberty Utilities Canada and APCo/Liberty Utilities; (3) Liberty Utilities and its

regulated utility subsidiaries; and (4) LUSC and its affiliates.

The CAM is based on the National Association of Regulatory Utility
Cofnmissions (“NARUC”) Guidelines for Cost Allocations and Affiliate
Transactions. The NARUC Guidelines are attached as Appendix 1 to the CAM.
The fundamental premise of those guidelines and the CAM is to direct charge costs
as much as possible and to use reasonable allocation factors where allocation of
indirect costs is necessary and direct charging is not possible.

CAN YOU CITE THE KEY PRINCIPLES FROM THE NARUC

GUIDELINES TO WHICH YOU ARE REFERRING?

Yes. The CAM utilizes the following “Cost Allocation Principles™ as stated in the

NARUC Guidelines:

1. To the maximum extent practicable, in consideration of administrative costs,
costs should be collected and classified on a direct basis for each asset,
service or product provided (NARUC Guidelines at 2, § B.1).

2. The general method for charging indirect costs should be on a fully
allocated cost basis. = Under appropriate circumstances, regulatory
authorities may consider incremental cost, prevailing market pricing or other
methods for allocating costs and pricing transactions among affiliates
(NARUC Guidelines at 2, § B.2).

3. To the extent possible, all direct and allocated costs between regulated and
non-regulated services and products should be traceable on the books of the
applicable regulated utility to the applicable Uniform System of Accounts.
Documentation should be made available to the appropriate regulatory
authority upon request regarding transactions between the regulated utility

and its affiliates (NARUC Guidelines at 2, § B.3).

10
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4. The allocation methods should apply to the regulated entity's affiliates in
order to prevent subsidization from, and ensure equitable cost sharing
among, the regulated entity and its affiliates, and vice versa (NARUC
Guidelines at 2-3, § B.4).

5. All costs should be classified to services or products, which, by their very
nature, are regulated, non-regulated, or common to both (NARUC
Guidelines at 3, § B.5).

6. The primary cost driver of common costs, or a relevant proxy in the absence
of a primary cost driver, should be identified and used to allocate the cost
between regulated and non-regulated services or products (NARUC
Guidelines at 3, § B.6).

7. The indirect costs of each business unit, including the allocated costs of
shared services, should be spread to the services or products to which they
relate using relevant cost allocators (NARUC Guidelines at 3, § B.7).

Our CAM follows these cost allocation principles and, as a result, provides for the

appropriate allocation of prudently incurred corporate costs and shared services to

Applicants.

CAN YOU BRIEFLY EXPLAIN HOW THE ALLOCATION PROCESS

WORKS FOR APUC CORPORATE COSTS AND SHARED SERVICES?

Yes. APUC will charge costs that can be directly attributable to a specific utility to

that utility. APUC charges labor rates for these shared services at cost.

These labor costs are charged directly to a specific utility based on timesheets.

If such labor is for the benefit of all subsidiaries and, therefore, not directly

chargeable to a single entity, then those indirect labor costs are allocated using the

methodologies in the CAM. To start, indirect non-labor and indirect labor costs

incurred by APUC, including corporate capital, are pooled and allocated to Liberty

11
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Utilities Canada and APCo using the methodology in Table 1 of the CAM.
Once those costs are allocated between Liberty Utilities Canada and APCo, the
APUC costs allocated to Liberty Utilities Canada are then allocated to the regulated
utilities under Liberty Utilities using the Four Factor Methodology set forth in
Table 2 of the CAM (as set forth above).

CAN YOU BRIEFLY EXPLAIN HOW THE ALLOCATION PROCESS
WORKS FOR LIBERTY UTILITIES CANADA CORPORATE COSTS AND
SHARED SERVICES?

Liberty Utilities Canada will charge costs that can be directly attributable to a
specific utility to that utility. Those costs include direct labor and direct non-labor
costs. Any remaining indirect corporate costs incurred by Liberty Utilities Canada
that can’t be directly attributed or billed to an individual utility are then allocated
using the Four Factor Method in Table 2 of the CAM.

Due to an internal restructuring, Liberty Utilities Canada, through a shared
services department, now provides certain services to both Liberty Utilities (and its
regulated utilities) and APCo. Those shared services are as follows: treasury;
financial reporting and administration; internal audit; risk management; training;
information technology; human resources; environmental, health, safety, and
security; legal; procurement; and communication. These services were previously
within APUC prior to the restructuring. As noted above, costs will continue to be
directly charged where possible.

When shared services costs cannot be directly assigned to a specific entity
such as either APCo or Liberty Utilities, indirect costs incurred by the shared
services department within Liberty Utilities Canada first will be allocated between
Liberty Utilities and APCo using the cost drivers and methodologies shown in

Table 4 of the CAM. Once those indirect corporate costs are allocated between

12
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APCo and Liberty Utilities, the resulting indirect charges of Liberty Ultilities
Canada that are allocated to Liberty Utilities by the shared services department are
then reallocated to the regulated utilities using the Four Factor Methodology noted
above. Put simply, Liberty Utilities Canada allocates its indirect labor and indirect
non-labor costs, including capital costs, to its regulated utilities using the Four
Factor Methodology noted above to allocate those costs incurred for the benefit of
all of its regulated utilities. Those indirect costs are allocated to the Liberty
Utilities regulated entities from the shared services departments within Liberty
Utilities Canada, using the Four Factor Utility Methodology (utility plant, customer
count, non-labor expenses, and labor). Each factor is equally weighted to more
accurately reflect the size and scope of each utility.

CAN YOU PLEASE DESCRIBE HOW THE CAM IS USED TO ASSIGN
AND ALLOCATE COSTS TO THE APPLICANTS?

Yes, under the CAM, a utility incurs costs in one of three ways: (1) Direct Costs —
costs incurred directly by a local operating company for its own purposes;
(2) Assigned costs — costs incurred by one company for the exclusive benefit of
one or more other companies, and which are directly charged to the company or
companies that specifically benefited; and (3) Allocated costs — costs incurred by
one company that are for the benefit of either (a) all of the Algonquin companies or
(b) all of the regulated Liberty Utilities companies. Allocated costs are charged to
the benefited companies using a methodology and set of logical allocation factors
that establish a reasonable link between cost causation and cost recovery.

CAN YOU PROVIDE EXAMPLES?

Yes. First, costs that are incurred by the Applicants as part of providing utility
services in Arizona are direct costs, and thus are neither assigned nor allocated

under the CAM. Second, costs that are incurred by APUC, LUC, or LUSC for the

13
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exclusive benefit of any utility’s operations are directly assigned. Third, costs that
are incurred by APUC, LUC or LUSC that benefit other companies within the
Algonquin corporate family are allocated on a rational basis that logically links
cost causation to cost recovery using a two-step process.

WHAT IS THAT TWO-STEP ALLOCATION PROCESS?

The CAM addresses those assigned and allocated costs under the following two-
step process. Boiled down, all allocated costs have two levels of allocation filters
applied. The first level is designed to appropriately separate common costs
between the regulated and the unregulated businesses. The second level is
designed to appropriately allocate the costs that have been allocated to the group of
regulated utilities to each of the individual regulated utilities.

PLEASE ILLUSTRATE THESE CORPORATE COST ALLOCATION
METHODOLOGIES.

As noted above, Applicants can be assigned and/or allocated costs from APUC,
LUC and LUSC. I provide an overview of the methodology for each cost center in
the following paragraphs.

LET’S START WITH APUC.

As noted below on Appendix 1 (Illustration of CAM Allocation of APUC Services)
and as described in §3.1 of the CAM, APUC incurs three types of costs that are
allocated to its direct and indirect subsidiaries. The first type is APUC’s costs that
directly benefit a particular unregulated company. Those “Assigned Costs” on
Appendix 1 are directly assigned to that unregulated company (APCo).
The second type is APUC’s Assigned Costs that directly benefit a particular
regulated company. Those costs are directly assigned to that regulated company.
The third type is APUC’s remaining “Allocated Costs™ that benefit the entire

enterprise (both regulated and unregulated), which are allocated between regulated

14
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and unregulated company groups under CAM Table 1. CAM Table 1 specifies:
(a) each type of cost incurred by APUC that is to be allocated between regulated
and unregulated parts of the business; (b) the factors used to allocate each type of
cost between regulated and unregulated activity; (c) the rationale for selecting the
factors that are used for allocation; and (d) examples of the specific allocated costs.

Once those Allocated Costs are allocated between APCo (unregulated) and
Liberty Utilities (regulated) using CAM Table 1, the total of those Allocated Costs
allocated to Liberty Ultilities is then reallocated to individual utilities using the
Four-Factor Utility Allocation Methodology set forth in CAM Table 2.

Appendix 1 below labeled “Illustration of CAM Allocation of APUC
Services” provides a flow chart illustration of how the APUC direct and indirect
costs are allocated under the CAM. The APUC cost allocations for Applicants here

follow this allocation methodology and process.

15
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(A):
(B):
©):

APPENDIX 1:
ILLUSTRATION OF CAM ALLOCATION OF APUC SERVICES

CAM TABLE 1
(Allocation of APUC costs between
regulated entities under Liberty Utilities
and unregulated entities under APCo)

UTILITY 4-FACTOR
CAM TABLE 2

(Allocation of APUC costs
between regulated utilities)

25% Utility Plant
25% Customer Count
25% Non-Labor Expenses
25% Labor

Costs that are directly assigned and charged to unregulated entities (APCo).
Costs that benefit both unregulated entities and regulated utilities.
Costs that are directly assigned and charged to regulated utilities (Liberty Utilities).
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THANK YOU. CAN YOU PLEASE ILLUSTRATE THE LIBERTY
UTILITIES CANADA ALLOCATIONS?
As illustrated in Appendix 2 below and as described in section 4 of the CAM,
Liberty Utilities Canada incurs three types of costs that are passed on to other
direct or indirect subsidiaries of APUC. The first type is Assigned Costs that
directly benefit a particular regulated company, which are directly assigned to that
regulated company. The second type is Shared Services Costs that benefit both the
regulated group of companies and the unregulated group of companies.
Those Shared Services Costs are allocated between the two groups under the
methodology set forth in CAM Table 4. CAM Table 4 includes: (a) each type of
cost incurred by Liberty Utilities Canada that is to be allocated between regulated
and unregulated parts of the business; (b) the factors used to allocate each type of
cost between regulated and unregulated activity; (c) the rationale for selecting the
factors that are used for allocation; and (d) examples of the specific allocated costs.
In turn, the Shared Services costs that are allocated to the regulated companies as a
group are then reallocated to individual companies using the four-factor utility
allocation methodology set forth in CAM Table 2, resulting in utility-specific
allocated charges from Liberty Utilities Canada.

The third type of costs allocated by Liberty Utilities Canada is Allocated
Costs that benefit all of the regulated companies, which are allocated using the
four-factor method in CAM Table 2. Appendix 2 below illustrates the cost
allocation methodology relating to the direct and indirect services provided and
costs incurred by Liberty Utilities Canada for the benefit of Applicants.
The Liberty Utilities Canada cost allocations for Applicants follow this allocation

methodology and process.

i 17
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APPENDIX 2:

ILLUSTRATION OF CAM ALLOCATION OF LUC AND LUSC SERVICES

CAM TABLE4

(Allocation of LUC cosjs between
regulated entities undgr Liberty

Utilities and unregulated entities
under APCo, CAM TABLE 5
¢ (Allocation of LUSC
A4 costs between
CAM TABLE 2 regulated utilities)
UTIL 4-FACTOR

25% Noij-Labor Expenses
% Labor

(A):  Costs that are directly assigned to unregulated companies.

(B):  Costs that are directly assigned to regulated companies.

(C):  Costs that benefit both unregulated and regulated companies and operations.
(D):  Costs that benefit all regulated companies and operations.

18
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FINALLY, CAN YOU ILLUSTRATE HOW THE ALLOCATION PROCESS
WORKS FOR LUSC COSTS?

As illustrated in Appendix 2 above and as described in section 5 of the CAM,
LUSC can incur two types of costs that can be passed on to regulated utilities of
Liberty Utilities. The first type is LUSC Assigned Payroll Costs that directly
benefit a particular regulated company. Those Assigned Payroll Costs are directly
assigned to that regulated company. Currently, payroll expenses for all regulated
operating company employees are incurred by LUSC, and those utility-specific
expenses are directly assigned to each operating utility.

The second type of cost that may be incurred by LUSC is Allocated Costs
that benefit all of the regulated operating companies. LUSC does not provide
indirect services to any unregulated entity, so there is no reason to allocate these
costs between APCo and Liberty Utilities. As such, the only allocation by LUSC
occurs under CAM Table 5 between the regulated utilities of Liberty Utilities.
Currently, LUSC is not incurring any indirect costs and LUSC has not allocated
any Allocated Costs to Applicants. I only mention it here because if those costs are
incurred by LUSC in the future, those costs would be allocated to Applicants under
CAM Table 5.

HOW WOULD YOU SUMMARIZE APUC’S COST ALLOCATION
METHODOLOGIES AS APPLIED TO APPLICANTS UNDER THE CAM?

Ultimately, our cost allocation process applies a reasonable and common sense
approach. To start, costs are assigned and allocated from the three cost centers
(APUC, LUC and LUSC) each month. Where there is a factual basis to do so,
costs incurred specifically for Liberty Bella Vista are directly assigned to Liberty
Bella Vista. And costs incurred specifically for Liberty Rio Rico are directly

assigned to Liberty Rio Rico. The cost allocation methodologies are applied only
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after all direct charges have been assigned to Applicants and the other APUC
subsidiaries. The allocations deal only with remaining costs that are not specific to
a particular operating entity. Cost allocations involve a two-step approach.
The first step is to split all costs between the unregulated businesses (APCo) and
the regulated businesses (Liberty Utilities and its subsidiaries). The second step is
to allocate the costs that are attributable to the regulated utilities among those
regulated entities, including Applicants, to determine utility-specific charges.
All of those costs are allocated among the regulated utilities to determine utility-
specific charges.

WHEN WAS THE CAM MOST RECENTLY UPDATED?

The current methodology within the CAM became effective January 1, 2014 and
includes updates to reflect the growth of the companies within the APUC group of
companies and Liberty Utilities. As discussed above, some corporate service
functions were relocated from APUC into Liberty Ultilities Canada, further
enhancing the shared services department structure. A thorough review of the cost
drivers also was done to develop and affirm the current methodology, including a
department-by-department identification of cost drivers.  Essentially, each
department was asked to confirm the factors driving their costs, and the weightings
of the factors if there were multiple drivers. Going forward, we intend to review
the CAM annually to evaluate whether the methodology is achieving its
purposes—i.e., to achieve a fair allocation of shared services and corporate costs,
and to adjust for changes in the number and size of companies receiving shared
services and benefitting from the shared services model. This could occur more
frequently in the event of a significant acquisition that could change the balance of

utility sizes and scope or the overall cost structure.
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HAS THE ARIZONA CORPORATION COMMISSION APPROVED THIS
COST ALLOCATION MODEL IN THE MOST RECENT RATE CASES
FOR LIBERTY UTILITIES?

I was not involved in the most recent rate cases for Liberty Utilities (Litchfield
Park Water & Sewer) Corp. and Liberty Rio Rico, but my understanding is that the
Commission approved the APUC/Liberty Utilities cost allocation model in the
recent case decisions for those entities. In both of those cases, the Liberty entities
reached an accord with Commission Staff and RUCO relating to the allocated level
of costs. We also have received favorable treatment and review of this cost
allocation model in other states.

HAVE THE APUC AND LUC CORPORATE COST POOLS CHANGED
SINCE THE LAST RATE CASES FOR LIBERTY UTILITIES?

No, the general costs allocated from APUC and LUC have not changed. We are
allocating the same general corporate costs from APUC and LUC to the Applicants
and the other Arizona utilities. Although the types of costs allocated have not
changed, we have made changes to how those costs are allocated. As noted above,
we updated the cost methodologies to reflect the growth of APUC and its
subsidiaries, and we made some changes in allocation factors to ensure that the
proper cost drivers are reflected in the allocation methodologies. As Liberty
Utilities evolves as a company, we continually strive to implement our own best
practices and link costs to cost drivers. That is why we intend to annually review
the allocation methodologies and the results of the APUC and LUC allocations.
That review process involves evaluating and updating the allocation factors based
on current information relating to plant, customer numbers, and other similar

information.
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WHAT ARE THE CORPORATE COST ALLOCATION AMOUNTS FOR
THE APPLICANTS IN THE 2014 TEST YEAR?

For 2014, the corporate cost allocation is $348,548 for Liberty Bella Vista,
$203,159 for Liberty Rio Rico’s water division and $85,591 for Liberty Rio Rico’s
wastewater division. That is a very good price for the level of services received.
DOES THIS CONCLUDE YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY?

Yes.

22
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CURRICULUM VITAE OF WILLIAM R. KILLEEN
Work Experience:

Liberty Utilities (Canada) Corp. (2014 to Present)
Director, Regulatory Strategy

Enersource Hydro Mississauga Inc. (2011 — 2014)
Manager, Regulatory Affairs

Ministry of Energy, Energy Supply and Competition Branch (2011)
Senior Advisor, External Energy Supply

ECNG Energy LP (2003 -2010)
Director, Energy Supply and Regulatory

Direct Energy (2002-2003)
Manager, Regulatory Affairs

Engage Energy Canada Inc. (2001-2002)
Manager, Marketing and Sales

Union Gas Limited (1989 — 2001)
Team Leader, Customer Support Services
Manager, Gas Supply Planning
Coordinator, Regulatory Affairs

Education:

Masters of Business Administration, Richard lvey School of Business, University
of Western Ontario (now Western University), 1989

Bachelor of Engineering Science, Chemical Engineering, University of Western
Ontario (now Western University), 1985

Appearances before the Ontario Energy Board (on behalf of Union Gas):

EBRO 499

EBRO 493-04/494-06
EBRO 493/494
EBRO 486-04

EBRO 486-03

EBRO 486

EBO 174

EBLO 243

EBRM 103



EBRM 104
EBLO 244
EBRO 476-03

Appearances before the Ontario Energy Board (on behalf of Enersource):
EB-2012-0033
Other Representations at the Ontario Energy Board:

EB-2002-0130
EB-2005-0520
EB-2008-0106
EB-2008-0219
EB-2008-0292

Other Testimony (on behalf of Liberty Utilities):

Arkansas Public Service Commission - Docket No. 14-020-U — on behalf of
Liberty Utilities (Pine Bluff Water) Inc.

Arizona Corporation Commission — Docket Nos. SW-02361A-15-0206 & SW-
02361A-15-0207 (consolidated) — on behalf of Liberty Utilities (Black Mountain
Sewer) Corp.

Memberships:

Professional Engineers of Ontario

Ontario Society of Professional Engineers

Ontario Energy Association (OEA): Former Chairperson, Energy Markets
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OSC (http://lwww.osc.gov.on.ca/en/home.htm)

Securities Law & Instruments
—_——'—""—_%

PDF Version (/documents/en/Securities-Category5/pol_20020712_51-201 .|5df)

NATIONAL POLICY 51-201 DISCLOSURE STANDARDS

Part 1 - Introduction

1.1 Purpose

(1 ) It is fundamental that everyone investing in securities have equal access to
;‘information that may affect their investment decisions. The Canadian Securities
~dministrators ("the CSA" or “We") are concemed about the selective disclosure of
ématerial corporate information by companies to analysts, institutional in\restors,é

investment dealers and other market professionals. Selective disclosure occurs when

‘s company discloses material nonpublic information to one or more individuals o
companies and not broadiy to the investing public. Selective disclosure can creatz—i
| ;
opportunities for insider trading and also undermines retail investors' confidence in theF

§marketplace as a level playing field.

(2) This policy provides guidance on "best disclosure” practices in a difficult area
involving competing business pressures and :legislative requirements. Our
recommendations are not intended to be prescriptive. We encourage companies to
=dopt the suggested measures, but they should be implemented flexibly and sensiblyi
io fit the situation of individual companies.

(3) The timely disclosure requirements and prohibitions against selective disclosure

|

zre substantially similar everywhere in Canada, but there are differences among the

fprovinces and territories, so companies should carefully review the legislation which |s

zpplicable to them for the details. E

http://www.osc.gov.on.ca/en/SecuritiesLaw_pol_20020712_51-201.jsp , 6/15/2015
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in government policy that affects most companies in a particular industry does not require an
announcement, but if it affects only one or a few companies in a material way, such companies

should make an announcement.

4.5 Exchange Policies

(1 )ﬁﬁ'lﬁér'l’roronto Stock Exchange Inc. (rthre V'V'TVSX';) énd theTSX V\Ientureml?:xché;ge Inc.
j("TS)( Venture") each have adopted timely disclosure policy statements which include
‘many examples of the types of events or information which may be material.
Companies should also refer to the guidance provided in these policies when trying to

assess the materiality of a particular fact, change or piece of information.

;5(2) The TSX and TSX Venture policies require the timely disclosure of "material
information”. Material information includes both material facts and material changes
relating to the business and affairs of 2a company. The timely disclosure abligations |n
the exchanges' policies exceed those found in securities legislation. It is not?
uncommon, or inappropriate, for exchanges to impose requirements on their listed
companies which go beyond those imposed by securities legislation.31 We expec
listed companies to comply with the requirements of the exchange they are listed on.
Companies who do not comply with an exchange's requirements could find
“hemselves subject to an administrative proceeding before a provincial securitieé

regulator.32

Part V - Risks Associated with Certain Disclosures

5.1 Private Briefings with Analysts, Institutional Investors and other Market Professionals

http:/lwww.osc.gov.on.ca/en/SecquitiesLaw _pol 20020712 51-201.jsp 6/15/2015
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The determination to impose restrictions is based on a careful inspection of the trading for the latest one week period, defir
year's average weekly volume to the volume for the period considered, arbitrage, stop order bans, short position, earnings

The restriction itself is aimed primarily at eliminating the extension of credit to those who buy a security and sell it the same
requirement is usually imposed on all other margin customers in that they must put up the full purchase price within five bu
in seven days.

202.05 Timely Disclosure of Material News Developments

A listed company is expected to release guickly to the public any news or information which might reasonably be expected
into with the Exchange.

A listed company should also act promptly to dispel unfounded rumors which result in unusual market aclivity or price varia

The issuer of income deposit securities traded as a unit shall publicize any change in the terms of the unit, such as change
component), or to the ratio of the components within the unit. Such publication shall be made as soon as practicable in rels
issuer must provide information regarding the terms and conditions of the components of the unit (including information wit

202.06 Procedure for Public Release of Information

(A) Immediate Release Policy

Information required to be released quickly to the public under Section 202.05 above should be disclosed by means of any
issuers must comply with the timely alert policy set forth in Section 202.05 and may do so by any method (or combination ¢
companies to comply with the immediale release policy by issuing press releases.

The spirit of the immediate release policy is not considered to be violated on weekends where a "Hold for Sunday or Mond.

Annual and quarterly eamings, dividend announcements, mergers, acquisitions, tender offers, stock splits, major managen
News of major new products, contract awards, expansion plans, and discoveries very often fall into the same category. Un
disguise unfavorable news endangers management's reputation for integrity. Changes in accounting methods to mask suc

It should be a company’s primary concern to assure that news will be handled in proper perspective. This necessitates app
qualified, conservative and factual. Excessive or misleading conservatism should be avoided. Likewise, the repetitive relea

Few things are more damaging to a company’s shareholder relations or to the general public's regard for a company's set
trivia.

Premature announcements of new products whose commercial application cannot yet be realistically evaluated should be :
not match earlier projections, this too should be reported and explained.

Judgment must be exercised as to the timing of a public release on those corporate developments where the immediate re
company should weigh the faimess to both present and potential shareholders who at any given moment may be consideri

(B) Telephone Alert to the Exchange

When the announcement of news of a material event or a statement dealing with a rumor which calls for immediale release
representative by telephone at least ten minutes prior to release of the announcement, to inform the Exchange of the subs!
information necessary to locate the news upon publication, When the announcement is in written form, the company must.
to release of the announcement. if the Exchange receives such notification in time, it wilt be in a position to consider wheth
openings and trading halts.) A delay in trading after the appearance of the news on the Dow Jones, Reuters or Bloomberg
specialist's book in view of the news announcement. Even if limit orders are not canceled or changed during the hait, the fe
regardless of the previously entered limit. A ionger delay in trading may be necessary if there is an unusual influx of orders
overall importance of faimess to all those participating in the market demands that these procedures be followed.

{C) Release to Newspapers and News Wire Services

http://nysemanual.nyse.com/LCMTools/TOCChapter.asp?manual=/lcm/sections/lcm-secti... 6/15/2015
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ALGONQUIN POWER & UTILITIES CORP.

COST ALLOCATION
MANUAL

Effective: January 1st, 2014

This document outlines the methods of direct charge and cost allocations:
(i) between Algonquin Power & Utilities Corp. and its affiliates, Algonquin
Power Company and Liberty Utilities {Canada) Corp.;(ii) between Liberty
Utilities (Canada) Corp. and its regulated utility subsidiaries; (iii) between
Liberty Utilities {Canada) Corp.’s service companies and its reguiated utility
subsidiaries; and (iv) between Liberty Utilities {Canada) Corp and Algonquin
Power Company.
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1. INTRODUCTION

The purpose of this paper is to provide a detailed explanation of services provided
by Algonquin Power & Ultilities Corp (“APUC”), and its affiliates, Algonquin
Power Company (“APCo”), Liberty Utilities (Canada) Corp. (“LUC”), and Liberty
Utilittes Setrvice Corp. (“LUSC”) to the regulated utilities and to describe the
Direct Chatge and Cost Allocation Methodologies used by APUC, APCo, LUC,
and LUSC. The following organization chart identifies the relationships between
the separate entities.

Figure 1: Algonquin Power & Utilities Corporate Structure

F1ALGONQUIN
TR 2omer & tinies Corpj

: ™ Algonquin . Liberty Utilities

1ib

Repulated 3 s
Service Corp.

Utilities

This Cost Allocation Manual (“CAM”) has been completed in accordance and
conformance with the NARUC Guidelines for Cost Allocations and Affiliate
Transactions (“NARUC Guidelines”). More specifically, the founding ptinciples of
this Cost Allocation Manual are to a) directly charge as much as possible to the
entity that procures any specific service, and b) to ensure that inapproptiate
subsidization of unregulated activities by regulated activities, and vice versa, does
not occur. For ease of reference, the NARUC Guidelines are attached as
Appendix 1.

Costs charged and allocated pursuant to this CAM shall include direct labor, direct
materials, direct purchased services associated with the related asset or services,
and overhead amounts. The direct charges ate assigned as follows:

a. Tariffed rates or other pricing mechanisms established by rate
setting authorities shall be used to provide all regulated services;

{ “"F»._ H . apege
FATALCONQUIN <™ Algonquin ., Liberty Utilties
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b. Services not covered by (a) shall be charged by the providing party
to the recetving party at fully distributed cost; and

c. Faciliies and administrative services rendered to a rate-regulated
subsidiary shall be charged on the following basis:

(i) the prevailing price for which the service is provided for
sale to the general public by the providing party (i.e., the
price charged to non-affiliates if such transactions with non-
affiliates constitute a substantial portion of the providing
party’s total revenues from such transactions) or, if no such
prevailing price exists, (i) an amount not to exceed the fully
distributed cost incurred by the providing party in providing
such service to the receiving party.

2. THE APUC CORPORATE STRUCTURE

APUC’s primary business is direct interest or equity ownership in renewable and
thermal power generating facilities and regulated utilities. APUC owns a widely
diversified portfolio of independent power production facilities and regulated
utilities consisting of water distribution, wastewater treatment facilities, electric and
gas utilities. While power production facilities are located in both Canada and the
United States, regulated utility operations are exclusively in the United States.
APUC is publicly traded on the Toronto Stock Exchange. Its structure as a
publicly traded holding company provides substantial benefits to its regulated
utilities through access to capital matkets.

APUC is the ultimate cotporate parent and affiliate that provides financial,
strategic management, corporate governance, administrative and support setvices
to LUC and its subsidiaties as well as to the numerous generation assets held by
APCo. The services provided by APUC are necessary for LUC and its subsidiaties
to have access to capital markets for capital projects and operations. These services
are expensed at APUC and are petformed for the benefit of APCo and LUC and
their respective businesses.

APUC and its affiliates capitalize on APUC’s expertise and access to the capital
markets through the use of certain shated services, which maximizes economies of -
scale and minimizes redundancy. In short, it provides for maximum expertise at
lower costs. Further, the use of shared expertise allows each of the entities to

i o . . cpegs
FAIAGONQUN <™ Aloonquin ., Liberty tilities
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teceive a benefit they may not be able to achieve on a stand-alone basis such as
strategic management advice and access to capital at more competitive rates.

3. SCOPE OF SERVICES AMONG AFFILIATES AND
HOW THOSE COSTS ARE ALLOCATED

3.1. Labor Services and Cost Allocation from APUC to LUC and
APCo

APUC provides benefits to its affiliate companies by use of certain shared services.
APUC charges labor rates for these shared services at cost, which is the dollar
houtly rate per employee as recorded in APUC’s payroll systems, grossed up for
burdens such as payroll taxes, health benefits, retirement plans, other insurance
provided to employees, and other employee benefits. These labor costs are
charged directly based on timesheets to the extent possible. If labor is for the
benefit of all subsidiaries then the allocation methodologies used for non-labor
costs ate applied.

APUC’s non-labor services include Financing Services. As used herein Financing
Services means the selling of units to public investors in order to generate the
funding and capital necessary (be it short term or long term funding, including
equity and debt) for LUC and APCo as well as providing legal services in

connection with the issuance of public debt.

The capital and funds obtained from the sale of shares in APUC are used by LUC
and APCo for current and future capital investments. The services provided by
APUC are critical and necessary to LUC and APCo because without those setvices
they would not have a readily available source of capital funding. Further,
relatively small utilities may have difficulty attracting capital on a stand-alone basis.

The services provided by APUC specifically optimize the petformance of the
utilities, keeping rates low for customers while ensuring access to capital is
available. If the utilities did not have access to the services provided by APUC,
then they would be forced to incur associated costs for financing, capital
mnvestment, audits, taxes and other similar services on a stand-alone basis, which
would substantially increase such costs. Simply put, without incurring these costs,
APUC would not be able to invest capital in its subsidiaries, including the
regulated utilities.

Fl Aconouin
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In connection with the provision of Financing Services, APUC incurs the
following types of costs: (i) strategic management costs (board of director, third-
party legal services, accounting services, tax planning and filings, insurance, and
required auditing); (i) capital access costs (communications, investor relations,
trustee fees, escrow and transfer agent fees); (iif) financial control costs (audit and
tax expenses); and (iv) administrative (rent, depreciation, general office costs). See
Appendix 2 for a more detailed discussion of the costs incurred by APUC.

Non-labor costs, including corporate capital, are pooled and allocated to LUC and
APCo using the method summarized in Table 1. Each corporate cost type, or
function, has been carefully reviewed to propetly identify the factors driving those
costs. Fach function or cost type is typically driven by more than one factor each
has been assigned an appropriate weighting. Table 1 includes brief commentary
on the rationale for each cost driver and weighting, along with examples for each

cost type.

Table 1: Summary of Corporate Allocation Method of APUC Indirect Costs

Type of Cost Allocation Rationale Examples
Methodology
Legal Costs Net Plant 33.3% | This function is Employee labor

Number of driven by factors and related

Employees  33.3% | which include Net | administration

O&M 33.3% | Plant, as typically and programs;
the higher the value | third party legal
of plant, the more
legal work it

attracts; similarly, a
greater number of
employees are
typically more
indicative of larger
facilities that
require greater
levels of attention;
and O&M costs
tend to be a third
factor indicative of
size and legal

complexity.

71 ALGONQUIN MW Algonquin . Liberty Utilities
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Tax Services Revenue 33.3% | This function 1s Employee labor
O&M 33.3% | dtiven by a variety | and related
Net Plant 33.3% | of factors that administration
influence the size and programs,
and relative tax including Third
complexity, party tax advice
including Revenues, | and services
O&M and Net
Plant. Tax activity
can be driven by
each of these
factors.
Audit Revenue 33.3% | This function is Employee labor
O&M 33.3% | driven by a variety | and related
Net Plant 33.3% | of factors that administration
influence the size and programs,
and complexity of | including t
Audit, including Third party
Revenues, O&M accounting and
and Net Plant. audit services
Audit activity can
be dtiven by each
of these factots.
Investor Relations | Revenue 33.3% | This function is Employee labor
O&M 33.3% | driven by factors and related
Net Plant 33.3% | which reflect the administration
relative size and and programs,
scope of each including third
affiliate - Revenues, | party Investor
Net Plant and day
O&M costs. communications
and materials
Director Fees and | Revenue 33.3% | This function is Board of
Insurance O&M 33.3% | driven by factors Director fees,
Net Plant 33.3% | which reflect the insurance and
relative size and administration
scope of each
affiliate - Revenues,
Net Plant and
O&M costs.
1771 ALconquin

PR poues & Utilities Corp.
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Licenses, Fees and
Permits

33.3%
33.3%
33.3%

Revenue
Oo&M
Net Plant

This function is
driven by factors
which reflect the
relative size and
scope of each
affiliate - Revenues,
Net Plant and
O&M costs.

Third party

COoSsts

Escrow and
Transfer Agent
Fees

33.3%
33.3%
33.3%

Revenue

O&M
Net Plant

This function is
driven by factors
which reflect the
relative size and
scope of each
affiliate - Revenues,
Net Plant and
O&M costs.

Third party

costs

Other
Professional
Services

33.3%
33.3%
33.3%

Revenue
Oo&M
Net Plant

This function is
driven by factors
which reflect the
relative size and
scope of each
affiliate - Revenues,
Net Plant and
O&M costs.

Third party

COosts

Office
Administration

Oakville Employees
50%
Square Footage 50%

This function 1s
driven by factors
which are indicative
of number of
employees and
square footage
utilized by these

employees.

Office space

and utility costs.
Employee labor

and related
administration

Notwithstanding the above, if a charge is related either solely to the regulated
utility business, i.e., LUC, or to the power generation business, i.e., APCo, then all
of those costs will be allocated to the business segment for which they are incurred

(Le. it is a direct charge).

i1 ALGONQUIN
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Lastly, if a cost can be directly attributable to a specific entity, it will be directly
charged to that entity. For an example of how an invoice would be allocated,
please see Appendix 3.

Certain costs, which are incurred for the benefit of APUC’s businesses, are not
allocated to any subsidiary. These include costs such as donations, certain
corporate travel, and certain overheads.

3.2. Labor Services and Cost Allocation From APCo To LUC

From time to time, APCo may provide Engineering and Technical Labor to LUC
or its utilities. These charges plus an allocation for corporate overheads such as
rent, materials/supplies, etc. are capitalized and directly chatged to the relevant
utility.

From time to time, APCo employees may provide administrative support to LUC
or its utilities. These charges are direct charged using time sheets.

4. SCOPE OF SERVICES PROVIDED BY LUC TO ITS
SUBSIDIARIES, APUC AND APCO, AND HOW
THOSE COSTS ARE ALLOCATED

LUC provides its regulated utilities with the following services: accounting,
administration, corporate finance, human resources (including training and
development), information technology, rates and regulatory affairs, environment,
health and safety, and security, customer setvice, procurement, tisk management,
legal, and utility planning. The following are examples of some of the setvices
provided: (i) budgeting, forecasting, and financial reporting services including
preparation of reports and preservation of records, cash management (including
electronic fund transfers, cash receipts processing, managing short-term
borrowings and investments with third parties); (ii) development of customer
service policies and procedures; (iii) development of human resoutce policies and
procedures; (iv) selection of information systems and equipment for accounting,
engineering, administration, customer setvice, emergency trestoration and other
functions and implementation thereof; (v) development, placement and
administration of insurance coverages and employee benefit programs, including
group insurance and retirement annuities, propetty inspections and valuatons for
insurance; (vi) purchasing services including preparation and analysis of product
specifications, requests for proposals and similar solicitations; and vendor and

71 Arconquin - m Algoﬂquin w Liberty Utilities
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vendor-product evaluations; (vil) energy procurement oversight and load
forecasting; and (viil) development of regulatory strategy.

LUC will charge costs that can be directly attributable to a specific utility. These
include direct labor and direct non-labor costs. However, the indirect LUC costs
cannot be directly attributed to an individual utility. LUC allocates its indirect
labor and indirect non-labor costs, including capital costs, to its regulated utilities
using a Utlity Four Factor Methodology. LUC uses the Utlity Four Factor
Methodology to allocate costs incurred for the benefit of all of its regulated assets
(“System-Wide Costs”) to all of its utilities.

The Utlity Four Factor Methodology allocates costs by relative size of the utilities.
The methodology used by LUC involves four allocating factors, or drivers, (1)
Utility Plant, (2) Total Customers, (3) Non-Labor Expenses, and (4) Labor, with
each factor assigned an equal weight, as shown in Table 2 below.

Table 2: Utility Four Factor Methodology Factors and Weightings

| Factor Weight
Utlity Plant 25%
Customer Count 25%
Non-Labor Expenses 25%
Labor 25%
Total 100%

LUC also uses the Udlity Four Factor Methodology to allocate to its regulated
utilities the system-wide indirect labor and indirect non-labor costs allocated to

LUC from APUC.

Table 3 provides a simplified hypothetical example to demonstrate how the Utility
Four Factor Methodology would be calculated based on ownership of only two
hypothetical utilities.

= L .
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Table 3: Utility Four Factor Methodology Example

Total All | Utility1 % | Factor Utility 1
Factor Utility 1 | |Utility 2 Utlities of Total Weight Allocation

Utility Plant ($) 727 371 1098 66% 25% 17%

Customer 6000 1000 7000 86% 25% 21%
Count (#)

Labor ($) 57 32 89 64% 25% 16%

Non-Labor 108 # 149 72% 25% 18%

Expenses ($)
Total Allocation 72%

As can be seen from these hypothetical numbers in Table 3, Udlity 1 would be
allocated 72% of the total Administrative/Ovethead Costs incutred by LUC,
based on its relative size and application of the Utlity Four Factor Methodology.
Utility 2 would be allocated the remaining 28%. LUC has developed and utilized
this methodology to better allocate costs, recognizing that larger utilities require
more time and management attention and incur greater costs than smaller ones.

LUC may also provide setvices to APUC and APCo. In these instances, LUC staff
provide time sheets that depict the amount of time that is to be direct charged to
either APUC or APCo.

In addition, LUC provides certain services that benefit the entire company, i.e.,
APCo and the utlities. These indirect costs are allocated using the following
methodology shown in Table 4, which are designed to closely align the costs with
the driver of the activity.

Table 4: Summary of Corporate Allocation Method of LUC Indirect Costs

Type of Cost Allocation Rationale Examples
Methodology
Risk Management | Net Plant 33.3% | This function is Software

Revenue 33.3% | driven by factors platform, fees

O&M 33.3% | which reflect the and
relative size and administration
complexity of Risk
Management -

f
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Revenues, Net

Plant and O&M

Costs.
Information Number of IT function is Enterprise wide
Technology Employees 90% | driven by factors suppott,

O&M 10% | which include architecture, etc.
number of Third party fees
employees and
O&M. The larget
the number of
employees, the
mote support,
software and IT
infrastructure is
required.

Human Resources | Number of HR function is HR policies,

Employees  100% | driven by number | payroll
of employees. A processing,
greater number of | benefits,
employees requires | employee
additional HR surveys
support

Training Number of Training is directly | Courses,

Employees ~ 100% | proportional to the | lectures, in
number of house training
employees per sessions by third
function party providers

Facilities and Square Footage Office space Corporate office

Building Rent 100% occupied accurately | building
reflects space
requitements of
each subsidiary
Financial Revenue 33.3% | This function is Employee labor
Reporting and O&M 33.3% | driven by factors and related
Administration Net Plant 33.3% | which reflect the administration
relative size and and third party
complexity of fees
Financial Reporting
and Admin. -
Revenues, Net
F¢1 ALGONQUIN

VA powees & Utrities Corp
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Plant and O&M
costs.
Environment, Number of EHSS training, etc. | Enterprise wide
Health, Safety and | Employees ~ 100% | is directly programs,
Security proportional to the | employee labor
number of and related
employees per administration
function
Legal Costs Net Plant 33.3% | This function is Employee labor
Number of dtiven by factors and related
Employees  33.3% | which include Net | administration
O&M 33.3% | Plant, as typically and programs,
the higher the value | including third
of plant, the more | party legal
legal work it
attracts; similatly, a
greater number of
employees are
typically more
indicative of larger
facilities that
require greater
levels of attention;
and O&M costs
tend to be a third
factor indicative of
size and legal
complexity.
Treasury Capital Expenditures | Treasury activity is | Third patty
25% typically guided by | financing,
O&M 50% | the amount of employee labor
Net Plant 25% | necessary and related
capex/plant for administration
each utility, and and programs
operating
costs/cashflow
Internal Audit Net Plant 25% | This function is Third party fees,
O&M 75% | driven by factors employee labor
which reflect the and related
relative size and administration
.1 ALGONQUIN
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complexity of and programs
Internal audit
activity. Larger
Plant and operating
costs drive of a
given facility drive
more activity from
IA.
Procurement O&M 50% | Procurement Enterprise wide
Capital Expenditures | function is based support and
50% on typical related
proportion of administration
expenditures
Communications | Number of Communications Enterprise wide
Employees ~ 100% | cost is directly support and
proportional to the | related
number of administration
employees

5. LIBERTY UTILTIES SERVICE CORP.

All US utility employees are employed by Liberty Utllities Service Corp. (LUSC).
All employees’ costs, such as salaries, benefits, insurances etc. ate paid by LUSC
and direct charged to the extent possible. Services provided from LUSC to each
regulated utility shall be done on a time sheet basis to the extent possible. In
instances where time sheeting may not be possible, the allocation factors shown in
Table 5 are to be used.

Table 5: Summary of Corporate Allocation Method of LUSC Indirect Costs

Type of Cost Allocation Rationale Examples
Methodology |
Customer Care Customer count Customer count Customer Care |
and Billing 100% accurately reflects | and Billing i
the resource employees and |
requirements of the | related
Customer Care and | administrations

21 ALGoNQUIN ;a AEgQi’tquin w Liberty Utilities
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Billing group
IT/Tech Support | Number of Technical support | Tech suppott
Employees ~ 100% | requirements ate staff, associated
related to the administration,
number of and required
employees software,
hardware, etc.
Human Resources | Number of HR function is HR policies,
Employees ~ 100% | driven by number | payroll
of employees. A processing,
greater number of | benefits,
employees requires | employee
additional HR surveys
support
Gas Control Net Plant 100% | The greater the Gas Control
plant, the more labor,
control required administration,
and associated
programs
Legal Net Plant 33.3% | Allocated based on | Employee labor
Number of the relative size of | and related
Employees  33.3% | affiliate and administration
O&M 33.3% | employee count. and programs,
including third
party legal
Regulatory Net Plant 33.3% | Allocated based on | Utility-wide
Number of the relative size of | studies or third
Employees  33.3% | affiliate and party costs
O&M 33.3% | employee count. beneficial to all
utilities
Environment, Number of EHSS training, etc. | Utlity-wide
Health, Safety and | Employees 100% | is directly programs,
Security proportional to the | employee labor
number of and related
employees administration
Procurement O&M 50% | Based on typical Utility-wide
Capital Expenditures | proportion of support and
50% expenditures related
administration
£%1 AconQuin
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Please note the allocation methodology can be adjusted based on the number of
participating utilities. For example, Customer Service representatives who serve
only the New Hampshire utilities will only have their costs allocated based on the
number of customers within New Hampshire. Labor cost associated with energy
procurement is directly billed to the utilities using timesheets.

6. CORPORATE CAPITAL

From time to time, APUC or LUC makes capital investments for the benefit of all
the utlities or facilities it owns (examples include corporate headquarters, IT
systems, etc.). All the capital investments will be kept at corporate level and
charged monthly in the form of corporate capital rents to the regulated utilities. All
costs associated to service the investment will be allocated to each utility based on
that department’s allocation where the capital investment is made. For example, if
the capital investment is made in HR then the allocation methodology used for
HR to allocate non-capital indirect costs as shown in Table 4 will be used to
allocate the rent associated with the corporate capital expenditures, including the
cost of capital, depreciation, property tax, operation and maintenance costs and all
other cost associated with it. .
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7. APPENDICES

APPENDIX 1- NARUC GUIDELINES FOR COST
ALLOCATIONS

Guidelines for Cost Allocations and Affiliate Transactions:

The following Guidelines for Cost Allocations and Affiliate Transactions
(Guidelines) are intended to provide guidance to jurisdictional regulatory
authorities and regulated utilities and their affiliates in the development of
procedures and recording of transactions for services and products between a
regulated entity and affiliates. The prevailing premise of these Guidelines is that
allocation methods should not result in subsidization of non-regulated setrvices or
products by regulated entities unless authorized by the jurisdictional regulatory
authority. These Guidelines are not intended to be rules or regulations presctibing
how cost allocations and affiliate transactions are to be handled. They are intended
to provide a framework for regulated entities and regulatory authorities in the
development of their own policies and procedures for cost allocations and
affiliated transactions. Variation in regulatory environment may justify different
cost allocation methods than those embodied in the Guidelines.

The Guidelines acknowledge and reference the use of several different practices
and methods. It is intended that there be latitude in the application of these
guidelines, subject to regulatory oversight. The implementation and compliance
with these cost allocations and affiliate transaction guidelines, by regulated utilities
under the authority of jurisdictional regulatory commissions, is subject to Federal
and state law. Each state or Federal regulatoty commission may have unique
situations and circumstances that govern affiliate transactions, cost allocations,
and/or service or product pricing standards. For example, The Public Utility
Holding Company Act of 1935 requires registered holding company systems to
price "at cost” the sale of goods and setrvices and the undertaking of construction
contracts between affiliate companies.

The Guidelines were developed by the NARUC Statf Subcommittee on Accounts
in compliance with the Resolution passed on March 3, 1998 entided "Resolution
Regarding Cost Allocation for the Energy Industry” which directed the Staff
Subcommittee on Accounts together with the Staff Subcommittees on Strategic
Issues and Gas to prepare for NARUC's consideration, "Guidelines for Enetgy
Cost Allocations." In addition, input was requested from other industty parties.
Various levels of input were obtained in the development of the Guidelines from

FAIALCONQUN ™ Aloonquin ., Liberty Utilities
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the Edison Electtic Institute, American Gas Association, Securities and Exchange
Commission, the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, Rural Utilities Service
and the National Rural Electric Cooperatives Association as well as staff of various
state public utility commissions.

In some instances, non-structural safeguards as contained in these guidelines may
not be sufficient to prevent market power problems in strategic markets such as
the generation market. Problems arise when a firm has the ability to raise prices
above market for a sustained petiod and/ot impede output of a product or service.
Such concerns have led some states to develop codes of conduct to govern
relationships between the regulated utility and its non-regulated affiliates.
Consideration should be given to any "unique" advantages an incumbent utility
would have over competitors in an emerging market such as the retail energy
market. A code of conduct should be used in conjunction with guidelines on cost
allocations and affiliate transactions.

A. DEFINITIONS

1. Affiliates - companies that are related to each other due to common ownership
or control.

2. Attestation Engagement - one in which a certified public accountant who is in
the practice of public accounting is contracted to issue a written communication
that expresses a conclusion about the reliability of a written assettion that is the
responsibility of another party.

3. Cost Allocation Manual (CAM) - an indexed compilation and documentation of
a company's cost allocation policies and related procedures.

4. Cost Allocations - the methods or ratios used to apportion costs. A cost
allocator can be based on the otigin of costs, as in the case of cost dtivers; cost-
causative linkage of an indirect nature; or one or more overall factors (also known
as general allocators).

5. Common Costs - costs associated with setvices or products that ate of joint
benefit between regulated and non-regulated business units.

6. Cost Driver - a measurable event or quantity which influences the level of costs
incurred and which can be directly traced to the origin of the costs themselves.

VAN oover & Utiities Corp
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7. Direct Costs - costs which can be specifically identified with a particular service
or product.

8. Fully Allocated costs - the sum of the direct costs plus an approptiate shate of
indirect costs.

9. Incremental pricing - pricing services or products on a basis of only the
additional costs added by their operations while one or more pre-existing setvices
or products support the fixed costs.

10. Indirect Costs - costs that cannot be identified with a particular setvice ot
product. This includes but not limited to overhead costs, administrative and
general, and taxes.

11. Non-regulated - that which is not subject to regulation by regulatory
authorities.

12. Prevailing Market Pricing - a generally accepted matket value that can be
substantiated by clearly comparable transactions, auction ot appraisal.

13. Regulated - that which is subject to regulation by tegulatory authorities.

14. Subsidization - the recovery of costs from one class of customers or business
unit that are attributable to anothet.

B. COST ALLOCATION PRINCIPLES

The following allocation principles should be used whenever products or services
are provided between a regulated utility and its non-regulated affiliate or division.

1. To the maximum extent practicable, in consideraton of administrative costs,
costs should be collected and classified on a direct basis for each asset, service or
product provided.

2. The general method for charging indirect costs should be on a fully allocated
cost basis. Under appropriate circumstances, tegulatory authorites may consider
incremental cost, prevailing market pricing ot other methods for allocating costs
and pricing transactions among affiliates.

: Sy . R aregs
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3. To the extent possible, all direct and allocated costs between regulated and non-
regulated services and products should be traceable on the books of the applicable
regulated utility to the applicable Uniform System of Accounts. Documentation should
be made available to the approprate regulatory authority upon request regarding
transactions between the regulated utility and its affiliates.

4. The allocation methods should apply to the regulated entity's affiliates in order
to prevent subsidization from, and ensure equitable cost sharing among the
regulated entity and its affiliates, and vice versa.

5. All costs should be classified to services or products which, by their very nature,
are either regulated, non-regulated, or common to both.

6. The primary cost driver of common costs, or a relevant proxy in the absence of
a primary cost driver, should be identified and used to allocate the cost between
regulated and non-regulated services or products.

7. The indirect costs of each business unit, including the allocated costs of shared
services, should be spread to the services or products to which they relate using
relevant cost allocatots.

C. COST ALLOCATION MANUAL (NOT TARIFFED)

Each entity that provides both regulated and non-regulated services or products
should maintain a cost allocation manual (CAM) or its equivalent and notify the
jurisdictional regulatory authorities of the CAM's existence. The determination of
what, if any, information should be held confidential should be based on the
statutes and rules of the regulatory agency that requires the information. Any entity
required to provide notification of a CAM(s) should make arrangements as
necessary and appropriate to ensure competitively sensitive information detived
therefrom be kept confidential by the regulator. At a minimum, the CAM should
contain the following:

1. An organization chart of the holding company, depicting all affiliates, and
regulated entities.

2. A description of all assets, services and products provided to and from the
regulated entity and each of its affiliates.

FAIMIGONQUN £ ™ Aleonquin . Liberty Utilities
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3. A description of all assets, services and products provided by the regulated
entity to non-affiliates.

4. A description of the cost allocators and methods used by the regulated entity
and the cost allocators and methods used by its affiliates related to the regulated
services and products provided to the regulated entity.

D. AFFILIATE TRANSACTIONS (NOT TARIFFED)

The affiliate transactions pricing guidelines are based on two assumptions. Fitst,
affiliate transactions raise the concern of self-dealing where matket forces do not
necessarily drive prices. Second, utilities have a natural business incentive to shift
costs from non-regulated competitive operations to regulated monopoly
operations since recovery is more certain with captive ratepayers. Too much
flexibility will lead to subsidization. However, if the affiliate transaction pticing
guidelines are too rigid, economic transactions may be discouraged.

The objective of the affiliate transactions' guidelines is to lessen the possibility of
subsidization in order to protect monopoly ratepayets and to help establish and
preserve competition in the electric generation and the electric and gas supply
markets. It provides ample flexibility to accommodate exceptions where the
outcome is in the best interest of the utility, its ratepayers and competition. As
with any transactions, the burden of proof for any exception from

the general rule rests with the proponent of the exception.

1. Generally, the price for services, products and the use of assets provided by a
regulated entity to its non-regulated affiliates should be at the higher of fully
allocated costs or prevailing matket ptrices. Undet appropriate circumstances,
prices could be based on incremental cost, or othet pricing mechanisms as
determined by the regulator.

2. Generally, the price for services, products and the use of assets provided by a
non-regulated affiliate to a regulated affiliate should be at the lower of fully
allocated cost or prevailing market prices. Under appropriate circumstances, prices
could be based on incremental cost, or other pricing mechanisms as determined by
the regulator.

3. Generally, transfer of a capital asset from the utility to its non-regulated affiliate
should be at the greater of prevailing market price ot net book value, except as

SalAconquin < Algonquin . iberty tilities
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otherwise required by law or regulation. Generally, transfer of assets from an
affiliate to the utility should be at the lower of prevailing market price or net book
value, except as otherwise required by law or regulation. To determine prevailing
market value, an appraisal should be required at certain value thresholds as
determined by regulators.

4. Entities should maintain all information underlying affiliate transactions with the
affiliated utility for a minimum of three years, or as required by law or regulation.

E. AUDIT REQUIREMENTS

1. An audit trail should exist with respect to all transactions between the regulated
entity and its affiliates that relate to regulated services and products. The regulator
should have complete access to all affiliate records necessary to ensure that cost
allocations and affiliate transactions are conducted in accordance with the
guidelines. Regulators should have complete access to affiliate records, consistent
with state statutes, to ensure that the regulator has access to all relevant
information necessary to evaluate whether subsidization exists. The auditors, not
the audited utilities, should determine what information is relevant for a particular
audit objective. Limitations on access would compromise the audit process and
impair audit independence.

2. Each regulated entity's cost allocation documentation should be made available
to the company's internal auditors for periodic teview of the allocation policy and
process and to any jurisdictional regulatory authority when approptiate and upon
request.

3. Any jurisdictional regulatory authority may tequest an independent attestation
engagement of the CAM. The cost of any independent attestation engagement

associated with the CAM, should be shared between regulated and non-regulated
operations consistent with the allocation of similar common costs.

4. Any audit of the CAM should not otherwise limit or restrict the authority of
state regulatory authorities to have access to the books and records of and audit
the operations of jurisdictional utilities. -

5. Any entity required to provide access to its books and records should make
arrangements as necessary and appropriate to ensure that competitively sensitive
information derived therefrom be kept confidential by the regulatot.
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F. REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

1. The regulated entity should report annually the dollar amount of non-tariffed
transactions associated with the provision of each service or product and the use
or sale of each asset for the following:

a. Those provided to each non-regulated affiliate.
b. Those received from each non-regulated affiliate.
c. Those provided to non-affiliated entities.

2. Any additional information needed to assure compliance with these Guidelines,
such as cost of service data necessary to evaluate subsidization issues, should be

provided.

Soutce:
http:/ /www.natuc.org/Publications/Guidelines%20for%20Cost%20Allocations%20and

%20Affiliate%20Transactions.pdf
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APPENDIX 2 - DETAILED EXPLANATION OF APUC COSTS

1. APUC STRATEGIC MANAGEMENT COSTS

Strategic management decisions are critical for any public utility. The need for
strategic management is even more pronounced for APUC as a publicly traded
company, which depends on access to capital funding through public sales of
units. APUC seeks to hire talented strategic managers that aid in running each
facility owned by the company as efficiently and effectively as possible. This
ensures the long term health of each utility and ensures that rates ate kept as low
as possible without compromising the level of service. It also facilitates each
regulated utility’s access to necessary capital funding at reduced costs. The costs
included in Strategic Management Costs fall into the following categoties.

a. Board of Directors

The Board of Directors provides strategic oversight on all company affairs
including high level approvals of strategy, operation and maintenance budgets,
capital budgets, etc. In addition, the Board of Directors provides corporate
governance and ensures that capital and costs are incurred prudently, which
ultimately protects ratepayers.

b. General Legal Setrvices

General legal services involve legal matters not specific to any single facility,
including review of audited financial statements, annual information filings, Sedar
filings, review of contracts with credit facilities, incotporation, tax issues of a legal
nature, market compliance, and other similar legal costs. These legal setvices are
required in order for APUC to provide capital funding to individual utilities,
without which the utilities could not provide adequate setvice. Additionally, the
services ensure that APUC’s subsidiaries remain compliant in all aspects of
operations and prevents those entities from being exposed to unnecessaty tisks.

c. Professional Services

Professional Services including strategic plan reviews, capital market advisory
services, ERP System maintenance, benefits consulting, and other similar
professional services. By providing these setvices at a parent level, the subsidiaries
are able to benefit from economies of scale. Additionally, some of these services
improve APUC’s access to capital which benefits all of its subsidiaties.

FAYALCONQUIN <™ AloonqUIN . Liberty Utilities
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2. ACCESS TO CAPITAL MARKETS

One of APUC’s primary functions is to ensure its subsidiaries have access to
quality capital. APUC is listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange, a leading financial
market. In order to allow its subsidiaries to have continued access to those capital
markets, APUC incurs the following costs. These services and costs are a
prerequisite to the subsidiaries continued access to those capital markets.

a. License and Permit Fees

In connection with APUC’s participation in the Toronto Stock Exchange, APUC
incurs certain license and permit fees such as Sedar fees, annual filing fees,
licensing fees, etc. These licensing and permit fees are requited in order to sell
units on the Toronto Stock Exchange, which in turn provides funding for utility
operations.

b. Escrow Fees

In connection with the payment of dividends to unit holders, APUC incuts escrow
fees. Escrow fees are incurred to ensute continued access to capital and ensure
continuing and ongoing investments by shareholders. Without such esctow fees,
APUC’s subsidiaries would not have a readily available source of capital funding.

¢. Unit Holder Communications

Unit holder communication costs are incurred to comply with filing and regulatory
requirements of the Toronto Stock Exchange and meet the expectations of
shareholders. These costs include items such as news releases and unit holder
conference calls. In the absence of shareholder communication costs, investors
would not invest in the units of APUC, and in turn, APUC would not have capital
to invest in its subsidiaries. With such communications services, the subsidiaties
would not have a readily available source of capital funding.

3. APUC FINANCIAL CONTROLS

Financial control costs incurred by APUC include costs for audit services and tax
services. These costs are necessaty to ensure that the subsidiaties are operating in a
manner that meets audit standards and regulatory requirements, which have strong
financial and operational controls, and financial transactions are recorded

FATALONQUIN ™ Aloonquin ., Liberty Utilities
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accurately and prudently. Without these services, the regulated utilities would not
have a readily available source of capital funding,

2. Audit Fees

Audits are done on a yeatly basis and reviews are performed quartetly on all
facilities owned by APUC on an aggregate level. These corporate parent level
audits reduce the cost of the stand-alone audits significantly for utilities which
must perform its own separate audits. Where stand-alone audits are not required,
ratepayers receive benefits of additional financial rigor, as well as access to capital,
and financial soundness checks by third patties. Finally, duting rate cases, the
existence of audits provides staff and intervenors additional reliance on the
company records, thus reducing overall rate case costs. The aggregate audit is
necessary for the regulated utilities to have continued access to capital matkets and
unit holders.

b. Tax Services

Taxes are paid on behalf of the regulated utlities at the parent level as part of a
consolidated United States tax retumn. Tax services such as planning and filing are
provided by third parties. Filing tax returns on a consolidated basis benefits each
regulated utility by reducing the costs that otherwise would be incutred by such
utility in filing its own separate tax return.

4, APUC ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS

Finally, administrative costs incurred by APUC such as rent, depreciation of office
furniture, depreciation of computers, and general office costs ate required to house
all the services mentioned above. Without these administrative costs, the
employees of APUC could not perform their work and provide the necessaty
services to the regulated utilities. These administrative costs also include training
for corporate employees.

VI K pover & Utiities Corp
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APPENDIX 3 — LIFE OF AN INVOICE

A hypothetical example is being provided of an invoice received by APUC for
services to be allocated to its subsidiaries. The diagram below is intended to
visually explain APUC’s allocation to APCo and Liberty Utilities.

Invoice
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INTRODUCTION.
PLEASE STATE YOUR NAME AND BUSINESS ADDRESS.

My name is Thomas J. Bourassa. My business address is 139 W. Wood Drive,
Phoenix, Arizona 85029.

WHAT IS YOUR PROFESSION AND BACKGROUND?

I am a Certified Public Accountant and am self-employed, providing consulting
services to utility companies as well as general accounting services. I have a B.S. in
Chemistry and Accounting from Northern Arizona University (1980) and an M.B.A.
with an emphasis in Finance from the University of Phoenix (1991).

WOULD YOU BRIEFLY SUMMARIZE YOUR PRIOR WORK AND
REGULATORY EXPERIENCE?

Prior to becoming a private consultant, I was employed by High-Tech Institute, Inc.,
and served as controller and chief financial officer. Prior to working for High-Tech
Institute, I worked as a division controller for the Apollo Group, Inc. Before joining
the Apollo Group, I was employed at Kozoman & Kermode, CPAs. In that position,
I prepared compilations and other write-up work for water and wastewater utilities,
as well as tax returns.

In my private practice, I have prepared and/or assisted in the preparation of
numerous water and wastewater utilities rate applications before the Arizona
Corporation Commission (“Commission”). A copy of my regulatory work
experience is attached as Exhibit TJB-DT1.

ON WHOSE BEHALF ARE YOU TESTIFYING IN THIS PROCEEDING?

On behalf of Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. (“Liberty Rio Rico™)
and Liberty Utilities (Bella Vista Water) Corp. (“Liberty Bella Vista”) (collectively,
“Applicants”). Liberty Rio Rico and Liberty Bella Vista are seeking a determination

of their fair value rate bases (“FVRB”) and the setting of rates and charges for utility

1
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service based on those findings.

WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY?

I will testify in support of each applicant’s proposed adjustments to its rates and
charges for utility service. I am sponsoring the direct schedules (A through C and
E and F), which are filed concurrently herewith. 1 was responsible for the
preparation of these schedules based on my investigation and review of each
applicant’s relevant books and records. The Applicants have not prepared cost of
service studies (G schedules) for either division. Consequently, the G Schedules are
omitted.

WHY DIDN'T THE APPLICANTS PREPARE COST OF SERVICE
STUDIES?

Because the Commission does not generally set rates for water and wastewater utility
service based on cost of service, and because the changes to the rate designs the
Applicants are proposing do not necessitate a cost of service study, the substantial
expense of doing a cost of service study could not be justified. I have taken a similar
approach in other cases without complaint.

For convenience, my direct testimony is being filed in two volumes. In this
volume, I address rate base, income statement (revenue and operating expenses),
required increase in revenue, and rate design and proposed rates and charges for
service.

PLEASE CONTINUE.

In the second volume, I address cost of capital and sponsor the D schedules.
As shown on the D-1 Schedules, the capital structures for the Applicants are as
follows:

Liberty Rio Rico — 30 percent debt/70 percent equity

Liberty Bella Vista — 30 percent debt/70 percent equity

2
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The weighted average costs of capital (“WACC”) for the Applicants are as follows:
Liberty Rio Rico — 8.60 percent
Liberty Bella Vista — 9.16 percent

OVERVIEW OF RATE APPLICATIONS.
A. LIBERTY RIO RICO.

PLEASE SUMMARIZE LIBERTY RIO RICO’S APPLICATION.

Liberty Rio Rico is seeking a revenue increase of 22.55 percent for the water division
and a revenue increase of 15.31 percent for the wastewater division. The test year
used is the 12-month period ending December 31, 2014. Liberty Rio Rico is
requesting an 8.60 percent return on its FVRB. Liberty Rio Rico has also proposed
certain pro forma adjustments to take into account known and measurable changes
to rate base, expenses, and revenues. These pro forma adjustments are consistent
with normal ratemaking and are contemplated by the Commission’s rules and
regulations governing rate applications.! Such adjustments are necessary to obtain
a normal or realistic relationship between revenues, expenses, and rate base on a
going-forward basis.

Liberty Rio Rico’s FVRB for the water division is $8,861,632. The increase
in revenues to provide for recovery of operating expenses and an 8.60 percent return
on rate base is approximately $683,836, an increase of approximately 22.55 percent
over the adjusted and annualized test year revenues.

Liberty Rio Rico’s FVRB for the wastewater division is $5,355,381.
The increase in revenues to provide for recovery of operating expenses and an
8.60 percent return on rate base is approximately $226,351, an increase of

approximately 15.31 percent over the adjusted and annualized test year revenues.

I See A.A.C.R14-2-103.
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1. Liberty Rio Rico’s Water Division.

a. Summary of A, E and F Schedules.

PLEASE DESCRIBE THE SCHEDULES FOR THE WATER DIVISION
LABELED AS A, E, ANDF.

The A-1 Schedule is a summary of the water division rate base, operating income,
current operating margin, required operating margin, operating income deficiency,
and the increase in gross revenue. Revenues at present and proposed and customer
classifications are also shown on this schedule.

The A-2 Schedule is a summary of results of operations for the test year, prior
years, and a projected year at present rates and proposed rates.

Schedule A-3 contains Liberty Rio Rico’s capital structure for the test year
and the two prior years.

Schedule A-4 contains the plant construction and plant-in-service (“PIS”) for
the test year and prior years. The projected plant additions are also shown on this
schedule.

Schedule A-5 is the summary of the changes in financial position (cash flow)
for the prior two years, the test year at present rates, and a projected year at present
and proposed rates.

The E Schedules are based on Liberty Rio Rico water division’s actual
operating results, as reported in annual reports filed with the Commission. The E-1
Schedule contains the comparative balance sheet data the years 2012, 2013, and 2014
ending on December 31.

Schedule E-2, page 1, contains the income statement for the years 2012, 2013,
and 2014 ending on December 31.

Schedule E-3 contains the statements of changes in Liberty Rio Rico water

division’s financial position for the test year and the two prior years.

4
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Schedule E-4 provides the changes in membership equity.

Schedule E-5 contains PIS at the end of the test year, and one year prior to the
end of the test year.

Schedule E-7 contains operating statistics for the years ended 2012, 2013, and
2014 ending on December 31.

Schedule E-8 contains the taxes charged to operations.

The accountant’s notes to the financial statements and the financial
assumptions used in preparing the rate filing schedules are shown on Schedules E-9
and F-4, respectively, in accordance with the Commission’s standard filing
requirements.

Schedule F-1 contains the results of operations at the present rates (actual and
adjusted) and at proposed rates. |

Schedule F-2 contains the summary of changes in financial position (cash
flow) for the prior two years, the test year at present rates, and a projected year at
present and proposed rates.

Schedule F-3 shows Liberty Rio Rico water division’s projected construction
requirements for 2015, 2016, and 2017.

Schedule F-4 contains the assumptions used in developing the adjustments
and projections contained in the rate filing.

b. Rate Base (B Schedules).
WOULD YOU EXPLAIN THE RATE BASE SCHEDULES, WHICH ARE
LABELED AS THE B SCHEDULES?

Yes. I will start with Schedule B-5, which is the cash working capital allowance.
Liberty Rio Rico’s proposed cash working capital allowance for the water division
is based upon a lead-lag study. The proposed cash working capital allowance is

$89,192.
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PLEASE CONTINUE.
Liberty Rio Rico did not file Schedules B-3 and B-4 for the water division. To limit
issues in dispute, Liberty Rio Rico is requesting that its original cost rate base
(“OCRB”) for the water division be used as the FVRB.
HAVE YOU PREPARED SCHEDULES SHOWING ADJUSTMENTS TO
THE OCRB?
Yes. Schedule B-2 shows adjustments to the OCRB cost rate base proposed by
Liberty Rio Rico for the water division. Schedule B-2, pages 2 through 7, provides
the supporting information.

| i PIS and Accumulated Depreciation.
PLEASE DISCUSS THE PIS ADJUSTMENTS FOR THE WATER
DIVISION.

B-2 adjustment number 1, as shown on Schedule B-2, page 2, adjusts PIS. There
are four PIS adjustments included in Adjustment 1. These are shown on Schedule
B-2, page 3, and are labeled as adjustments “A,” “B,” “C,” and “D.”

Adjustment “A” of B-2 adjustment number 1 removes $1,821 of capitalized

affiliate profit recorded to PIS since the end of the last test year.

Adjustment “B” of B-2 adjustment number 1 increases PIS by $816,367 for
revenue neutral post-test year plant (“PTY plant™). At this stage the PTY plant is
based upon an estimate through June 2015 and will be trued-up later in the instant
case. Mr. Garlick discusses the proposed PTY plant in his direct testimony.?

Adjustment “C” of B-2 adjustment number 1 increases PIS for allocated

corporate plant totaling $290,620.

2 Direct Testimony of Matthew Garlick (“Garlick Dt.”) at 15.

6
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Adjustment “D” of B-2, adjustment number 1, adjusts PIS to reflect the

reconciliation of Liberty Rio Rico’s PIS detail for the water division to recorded
general ledger amounts as reflected on Schedule E-1.

PLEASE DISCUSS THE ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
ADJUSTMENTS FOR THE WATER DIVISION.

B-2 adjustment number 2, as shown on Schedule B-2, page 2, adjusts PIS. There
are three PIS adjustments included in Adjustment 2. These are shown on Schedule
B-2, page 4, and are labeled as adjustments “A,” “B,” and “C.”

Adjustment “A” of B-2 adjustment number 2 removes $204 of accumulated
depreciation (“A/D”) related to affiliate profit recorded to PIS since the end of the
last test year.

Adjustment “B” of B-2 adjustment number 2 increases A/D by $50,695
related to allocated corporate plant.

Adjustment “C” of B-2, adjustment number 2, adjusts A/D to reflect the
reconciliation of Liberty Rio Rico’s PIS detail for the water division to recorded
general ledger amounts as reflected on Schedule E-1.

DO THE PLANT AND A/D BALANCES SHOWN ON SCHEDULE B-2
REFLECT THE LAST COMMISSION RATE ORDER FOR LIBERTY RIO
RICO’S WATER DIVISION?

Yes. Liberty Rio Rico’s reconstruction of the PIS balance started with the PIS
balance approved in the last rate case. Plant additions and retirements since the end
of the last test year have been added to and deducted from total plant shown on
Schedule B-2, pages 3.5 to 3.7. Pages 3.5 to 3.7 of the schedule also show the details
for the A/D from the end of the last test year through the end of the test year using

the half-year convention for depreciation.
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il Contributions-in-Aid of Construction and Advances-

in-Aid of Construction.

PLEASE DISCUSS THE CONTRIBUTIONS-IN-AID OF CONSTRUCTION
ADJUSTMENTS FOR THE WATER DIVISION.

B-2 adjustment number 3, as shown on Schedule B-2, page 2, adjusts contributions-
in-aid of construction (“CIAC”) and accumulated amortization (“A.A.”) to the
reconstructed balances shown on Schedule B-2, page 5.1 and summarized on
Schedule B-2, page 5.

DO THE CIAC AND A.A. BALANCES SHOWN ON SCHEDULE B-2
REFLECT THE LAST COMMISSION RATE ORDER FOR THE WATER
DIVISION?

Yes. The starting CIAC and A.A. balances shown in the reconstruction are the
balances approved in the last rate order. Additional CIAC recorded since the end of
the last year have been added to CIAC and are shown on Schedule B-2, page 5.1.
Computed amortization for each year, based upon the annual composite depreciation
rate for plant, has been added to A.A. and is also shown on Schedule B-2, page 5.1
PLEASE DISCUSS THE ADVANCES-IN-AID OF CONSTRUCTION
ADJUSTMENT FOR THE WATER DIVISION.

B-2 adjustment number 4, as shown on Schedule B-2, page 2, adjusts Advances-in-
Aid of Construction (“AIAC”) to the reconstructed amounts shown on Schedule B-
2, page 6.1 to 6.2 and summarized on Schedule B-2, page 6.

DOES THE AIAC BALANCE SHOWN ON SCHEDULE B-2 REFLECT THE
LAST COMMISSION RATE ORDER FOR THE WATER DIVISION?

Yes. The starting AIAC balance shown in the reconstruction is the balance approved

in the last rate order. Additional AIAC recorded since the end of the last year have
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been added to AIAC along with reductions to AIAC from refunds are shown on

Schedule B-2, page 6.1 to 6.2.

ili.  Accumulated Deferred Income Taxes and Cash
Working Capital.

PLEASE DISCUSS THE ACCUMULATED DEFERRED INCOME TAXES
ADJUSTMENT FOR THE WATER DIVISION.
Adjustment number 5, shown on Schedule B-2, page 2, reflects the computed
deferred income taxes at the end of the test year. Liberty Rio Rico’s computation is
based on the adjusted PIS, A/D, AIAC, and CIAC balances for both divisions in the
instant case and the adjusted tax basis of its assets using the effective tax rates
computed on the Schedule C-3, page 2. Upon determination of the total accumulated
deferred income taxes (“ADIT”) balance for Liberty Rio Rico’s water division, the
ADIT is allocated based upon the proportion of the water division’s rate base to the
total rate base of both divisions. The detail of Liberty Rio Rico’s deferred income
tax computation is shown on Schedule B-2, pages 7.0 and 7.1.

iv.  Cash Working Capital.
PLEASE DISCUSS THE WORKING CAPITAL ADJUSTMENT FOR THE
WATER DIVISION.
Adjustment number 6, shown on Schedule B-2, page 2, reflects Liberty Rio Rico’s
proposed cash working capital allowance of $89,192, which is based upon a lead-lag
study and is summarized on Schedule B-5.

c. Income Statement (C Schedules).

WOULD YOU EXPLAIN THE C SCHEDULES FOR THE WATER

DIVISION?
Schedule C-1, page 1 summarizes the test year actual and adjusted revenues and

expenses. Schedule C-1, page 2.1 and 2.2 shows the individual adjustments to the

9
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test year. The following is a summary of adjustments shown on Schedule C-1, pages
2.1 and 2.2:

Adjustment 1 annualizes depreciation expense. The proposed depreciation
rate for each component of utility plant is shown on Schedule C-2, page 2.
The depreciation rates approved in the last rate case were plant account specific.
Liberty Rio Rico proposes to continue to use account specific rates on a going
forward basis.

Adjustment 2 increases the property taxes based on proposed revenues.
The details of the computation are shown on Schedule C-2, page 3.

Adjustment 3 shows the annual rate case expense estimated for the water
division, which is $27,272.
WHAT IS THE TOTAL AMOUNT OF RATE CASE EXPENSE
REQUESTED FOR THE WATER DIVISION?
Liberty Rio Rico estimates total rate case expense of $165,860 to be recovered over
five years if the Commission approves the Fair Value Arizona Ratemaking
Evaluation Model (“FARE”) in the instant case.? Under the FARE, Liberty Rio Rico
will likely be required to file a general rate case in five years.
WHAT IF THE FARE IS DENIED?
If the FARE is not approved, a shorter recovery period and amortization period of
three years should be used because Liberty Rio Rico will almost certainly have to
file another rate case within three years.
WHAT JIF LIBERTY RIO RICO IS REQUIRED TO FILE SOONER?
As set forth in the FARE, if Liberty Rio Rico’s earnings fall outside the earnings

bandwidth under the FARE, Liberty Rio Rico will be required to file a general rate

3 See Garlick Dt. at 17.
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case. In that case, Liberty Rio Rico would reserve the right to continue recovery of

any unrecovered rate case expense.

WHAT ABOUT THE COST OF ANNUAL FILINGS OF THE FARE?

Those costs should be captured in the annual operating expenses in future FARE
filings, including additional costs from unexpected testimony and/or hearings in
future proceedings.

HOW WAS THE RATE CASE EXPENSE AMOUNT FOR LIBERTY RIO
RICO’S WATER DIVISION IN THIS RATE CASE DETERMINED?

It is an allocated amount based on the total rate case expense estimate for the
Applicants totaling $500,000. Liberty Rio Rico water division was allocated a
portion of this amount based upon a 3-factor formula consisting of rate base,
operating expenses, and number of customers (all equally weighted). The total rate
case expense for the Applicants is an estimate based on the significant combined
experience for lead counsel and myself before the Commission in rate cases,
including the past rate cases for the Applicants. Mr. Shapiro and I developed an
estimate, taking into account the anticipated circumstances in this rate case, and
further considered that estimate in consultation with Liberty Ultilities’
representatives, who themselves have considerable experience in Commission
ratemaking procedures.

PLEASE CONTINUE WITH YOUR DISCUSSION OF THE EXPENSE
ADJUSTMENTS FOR THE WATER DIVISION.

Adjustment 4 annualizes revenues to the year-end number of customers.
The annualization of revenues is based on the number of customers at the end of the
test year, compared to the actual number of customers during each month of the test
year. Average revenues per customer by month were computed for the test year and

then multiplied by the increase (or decrease) in number of customers for each month

11
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of the test year. The total of the monthly revenue change comprises the revenue

annualization totaling $27,272. In addition to the upward adjustment in revenues,
purchased power expense, chemicals expense, and office expense have been adjusted
upward by $1,593, $23, and $118, respectively, to reflect the additional pumping
power expense, treatment costs, and postage related to the anticipated additional
gallons sold and additional customer billings.

Adjustment number 5 reflects Liberty Rio Rico’s proposed usage
normalization adjustment to the water division revenues. Liberty Rio Rico’s usage
normalization adjustment reduces metered revenues by $96,762 and is based on the
trend in customer water usage by customer class measured over the past five years.
I have used similar methods to estimate changes in usage (i.e. declining usage
adjustment) in past cases before the Commission.* In addition to the reduction in
revenues, purchased power expense, and chemicals expense have been reduced by
$21,271, and $303, respectively, to reflect the reduced pumping power expense and
treatment costs related to the anticipated reduction in gallons sold.

Adjustment 6 reduces Contractual Services — Professional by $45,395 to
reflect a true-up of test-year allocated corporate non-labor costs. Those corporate
costs are incurred by entities in the Liberty Utilities and Algonquin Power & Utilities
Corp. family of companies providing necessary and useful services to Liberty Rio
Rico and other regulated utilities. The true-up includes removing expenses that are
not being sought from ratepayers. William Killeen, Liberty Utilities’ Director of

Regulatory Strategy, explains Liberty Utilities’ corporate cost allocation

4 See EPCOR Water Arizona, Inc., Decision No. 75268 (September 8, 2015). EPCOR
Water Arizona, Inc.’s proposed declining usage adjustment was adopted. See Liberty
Utilities (Litchfield Park Water & Sewer% Corp., Decision No. 74437 (April 18, 2014).
The Commission approved the settlement between the parties, which included Liberty
Utilities (Litchfield Park Water & Sewer) Corp.’s proposed declining usage adjustment.

‘ 12
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methodologies and Cost Allocation Manual in more detail in his direct testimony.

Adjustment 7 increases Contractual Services — Professional by $46,334 and
Contractual Services — Other by $3,984 for allocated corporate labor expected wages
increases in 2015 and 2016.

Adjustments 9 through 14 are intentionally left blank.

Adjustment 15 adjusts interest expense to reflect interest synchronization with
the water division rate base.

Adjustment 16 reflects income taxes based upon the water division’s adjusted
test year revenue and expense.

d. Rate Design (H Schedules).

WHAT ARE LIBERTY RIO RICO WATER DIVISION’S PRESENT RATES

FOR WATER SERVICE?

The present rates are set forth on Schedule H-3, pages 1 through 3.

WHAT ARE LIBERTY RIO RICO’S PROPOSED RATES FOR WATER
SERVICE? |

The proposed rates are set forth on Schedule H-3, pages 1 through 3.

IS LIBERTY RIO RICO PROPOSING CHANGES TO THE WATER
DIVISION RATE DESIGN?

Yes and no. Liberty Rio Rico continues to propose a conservation oriented inverted
3-tier rate design for the 5/8x3/4 inch metered customers and a conservation oriented
inverted 2-tier rate design for the % inch and larger metered customers. No changes
to the current break-over points are proposed. In the prior case, the approved rates
were intended to recover approximately 29 percent of water revenues from the
monthly fixed charges under present rates. The proposed rates reflect revenue
recovery from the monthly fixed charges of approximately 44 percent. This change

is intended to improve revenue stability, as one of the driving factors for the required

13
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rate increase in the instant case has been the trend in reduced water usage due to

conservation oriented rates.

ARE THERE ANY PROPOSED CHANGES TO LIBERTY RIO RICO
WATER DIVISION’S MISCELLANEOUS SERVICE CHARGES?

Yes. See Schedule H-3, page 3. The notable changes include: (1) increasing the
Establishment charge from $15 to $30; (2) removing the Establishment (After Hours)
charge;> (3) increasing the Reconnection charge to $30 (the same as the
Establishment charge) and including additional language to include the costs of
physical disconnection; (4) increasing the Meter Test charge from $15 to $30; and
(5) Reducing the NSF Check charge from $25 to $10.

ARE THERE ANY PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE METER AND
SERVICE LINE INSTALLATION CHARGES?

No.

IS LIBERTY RIO RICO PROPOSING ANY MODIFICATIONS TO ITS
LOW INCOME TARIFF?

Yes. I'will discuss the modifications to the Low Income Tariff for Liberty Rio Rico’s
water division and wastewater division later in my testimony.

2. Liberty Rio Rico Wastewater Division.

a. Summary of A, E and F Schedules.
PLEASE DESCRIBE THE SCHEDULES FOR THE WATER DIVISION
LABELED AS A, E, AND F.

The A-1 Schedule is a summary of the wastewater division rate base, operating
income, current operating margin, required operating margin, operating income

deficiency, and the increase in gross revenue. Revenues at present and proposed and

> After Hours Service Charge applies to all work performed after hours and at the customer’s
request. Thus, the Establishment after hours charge is duplicative.

14
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customer classifications are also shown on this schedule.

The A-2 Schedule is a summary of results of operations for the test year, prior
years, and a projected year at present rates and proposed rates.

Schedule A-3 contains Liberty Rio Rico’s capital structure for the test year
and the two prior years.

Schedule A-4 contains the plant construction and PIS for the test year and
prior years. The projected plant additions are also shown on this schedule.

Schedule A-5 is the summary of the changes in financial position (cash flow)
for the prior two years, the test year at present rates, and a projected year at present
and proposed rates.

The E Schedules are based on Liberty Rio Rico wastewater division’s actual
operating results, as reported in annual reports filed with the Commission. The E-1
Schedule contains the comparative balance sheet data the years 2012, 2013, and 2014
ending on December 31.

Schedule E-2, page 1, contains the income statement for the years 2012, 2013,
and 2014 ending on December 31.

Schedule E-3 contains the statements of changes in Liberty Rio Rico
wastewater division’s financial position for the test year and the two prior years.

Schedule E-4 provides the changes in membership equity.

Schedule E-5 contains PIS at the end of the test year, and one year prior to the
end of the test year.

Schedule E-7 contains operating statistics for the years ended 2012, 2013, and
2014 ending on December 31.

Schedule E-8 contains the taxes charged to operations.

The accountant’s notes to the financial statements and the financial

assumptions used in preparing the rate filing schedules are shown on Schedules E-9

15
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and F-4, respectively, in accordance with the Commission’s standard filing
requirements.

Schedule F-1 contains the results of operations at the present rates (actual and
adjusted) and at proposed rates.

Schedule F-2 contains the summary of changes in financial position (cash
flow) for the prior two years, the test year at present rates, and a projected year at
present and proposed rates.

Schedule F-3 shows Liberty Rio Rico wastewater division’s projected
construction requirements for 2015, 2016, and 2017.

Schedule F-4 contains the assumptions used in developing the adjustments
and projections contained in the rate filing.

b. Rate Base (B Schedules).
WOULD YOU EXPLAIN THE RATE BASE SCHEDULES FOR THE
WASTEWATER DIVISION, WHICH ARE LABELED AS THE B
SCHEDULES?

Yes. I will start with Schedule B-5, which is the cash working capital allowance.
Liberty Rio Rico’s proposed cash working capital allowance is based upon a lead-
lag study. The proposed cash working capital allowance is $11,300.

PLEASE CONTINUE.

Liberty Rio Rico did not file Schedules B-3 and B-4 for the wastewater division.
To limit issues in dispute, Liberty Rio Rico is requesting that its wastewater division
OCRB be used as the FVRB.

HAVE YOU PREPARED SCHEDULES SHOWING ADJUSTMENTS TO
THE OCRB FOR THE WASTEWATER DIVISION?

Yes. Schedule B-2 shows adjustments to the proposed OCRB. Schedule B-2, pages

2 through 7, provides the supporting information.

16
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i. PIS and A/D.
PLEASE DISCUSS THE PIS ADJUSTMENTS FOR THE WASTEWATER

DIVISION.

B-2 adjustment number 1, as shown on Schedule B-2, page 2, adjusts PIS. There
are four PIS adjustments included in Adjustment 1. These are shown on Schedule
B-2, page 3, and are labeled as adjustments “A,” “B,” “C,” and “D.”

Adjustment “A” of B-2 adjustment number 1 removes $893 of capitalized
affiliate profit recorded to PIS since the end of the last test year.

Adjustment “B” of B-2 adjustment number 1 increases PIS by $577,537 for
revenue neutral PTY plant. At this stage the PTY plant is based hpon an estimate
through June 2015 and will be trued-up later in the instant case. As mentioned earlier
in my testimony, Mr. Garlick discusses the proposed PTY plant in his direct
testimony.®

Adjustment “C” of B-2 adjustment number 1 increases PIS for allocated
corporate plant totaling $122,438.

Adjustment “D” of B-2, adjustment number 1, adjusts PIS to reflect the
reconciliation of Liberty Rio Rico’s PIS detail for the wastewater division to
recorded general ledger amounts as reflected on Schedule E-1.

PLEASE DISCUSS THE A/D ADJUSTMENTS FOR THE WASTEWATER
DIVISION.

B-2 adjustment number 2, as shown on Schedule B-2, page 2, adjusts PIS. There
are three PIS adjustments included in Adjustment 2. These are shown on Schedule

B-2, page 4, and are labeled as adjustments “A,” “B,” and “C.”

¢ Garlick Dt. at 15.

17
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Adjustment “A” of B-2 adjustment number 2 removes $162 of A/D related to

affiliate profit recorded to PIS since the end of the last test year.

Adjustment “B” of B-2 adjustment number 2 increases A/D by $21,358
related to allocated corporate plant.

Adjustment “C” of B-2, adjustment number 2, adjusts A/D to reflect the
reconciliation of Liberty Rio Rico’s PIS detail for the wastewater division to
recorded general ledger amounts as reflected on Schedule E-1.

DO THE PLANT AND A/D BALANCES SHOWN ON SCHEDULE B-2
REFLECT THE LAST COMMISSION RATE ORDER FOR LIBERTY RIO
RICO’S WASTEWATER DIVISION?

Yes. Liberty Rio Rico’s reconstruction of the PIS balance started with the PIS
balance approved in the last rate case. Plant additions and retirements since the end
of the last test year have been added to and deducted from total plant shown on
Schedule B-2, pages 3.5 to 3.7. Pages 3.5 to 3.7 of the schedule also show the details
for the A/D from the end of the last test year through the end of the test year using
the half-year convention for depreciation.

ii. CIAC and AIAC.
PLEASE DISCUSS THE CIAC ADJUSTMENTS FOR THE WASTEWATER

DIVISION.

B-2 adjustment number 3, as shown on Schedule B-2, page 2, adjusts CIAC and
A.A. to the reconstructed balances shown on Schedule B-2, page 5.1 and
summarized on Schedule B-2, page 5.

DO THE CIAC AND A.A. BALANCES SHOWN ON SCHEDULE B-2
REFLECT THE LAST COMMISSION RATE ORDER?

Yes. The starting CIAC and A.A. balances shown in the reconstruction are the

balances approved in the last rate order. Additional CIAC recorded since the end of

18
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the last year have been added to CIAC and are shown on Schedule B-2, page 5.1.

Computed amortization for each year, based upon the annual composite depreciation
rate for plant, has been added to A.A. and is also shown on Schedule B-2, page 5.1
PLEASE DISCUSS THE AIAC ADJUSTMENT FOR THE WASTEWATER
DIVISION.
B-2 adjustment number 4, as shown on Schedule B-2, page 2, adjusts AIAC to the
reconstructed amounts shown on Schedule B-2, page 6.1 to 6.2 and summarized on
Schedule B-2, page 6.
DOES THE ATIAC BALANCE SHOWN ON SCHEDULE B-2 REFLECT THE
LAST COMMISSION RATE ORDER FOR THE WASTEWATER
DIVISION?
Yes. The starting AIAC balance shown in the reconstruction is the balance approved
in the last rate order. Additional AIAC recorded since the end of the last year have
been added to AIAC along with reductions to AIAC from refunds are shown on
Schedule B-2, page 6.1 to 6.2.

iii. ADIT.
PLEASE DISCUSS THE ADIT ADJUSTMENT FOR THE WASTEWATER
DIVISION.
Adjustment number 5, shown on Schedule B-2, page 2, reflects the computed
deferred income taxes at the end of the test year. Liberty Rio Rico’s computation is
based on the adjusted PIS, A/D, AIAC, and CIAC balances for both divisions in the
instant case and the adjusted tax basis of its assets using the effective tax rates
computed on the Schedule C-3, page 2. Upon determination of the total ADIT
balance for Liberty Rio Rico, the ADIT is allocated to the wastewater division based

upon the proportion of wastewater division’s rate base to the total rate base of both

19
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divisions. The detail of Liberty Rio Rico’s deferred income tax computation is

shown on Schedule B-2, pages 7.0 and 7.1.
Iv. Cash Working Capital.
PLEASE DISCUSS THE WORKING CAPITAL ADJUSTMENT FOR THE

WASTEWATER DIVISION.
Adjustment number 6, shown on Schedule B-2, page 2, reflects Liberty Rio Rico’s
proposed cash working capital allowance for the wastewater division of $11,300,
which is based upon a lead-lag study and summarized on Schedule B-5.

c. Income Statement (C Schedules).
WOULD YOU EXPLAIN THE C SCHEDULES FOR THE WASTEWATER
DIVISION?

Schedule C-1, page 1 summarizes the test year actual and adjusted revenues and
expenses. Schedule C-1, page 2.1 and 2.2 shows the individual adjustments to the
test year. The following is a summary of adjustments shown on Schedule C-1, pages
2.1 and 2.2:

Adjustment 1 annualizes depreciation expense. The proposed depreciation
rate for each component of utility plant is shown on Schedule C-2, page 2.
The depreciation rates approved in the last rate case were plant account specific.
Liberty Rio Rico proposes to continue to use account specific rates on a going
forward basis.

Adjustment 2 increases the property taxes based on proposed revenues.
The details of the computation are shown on Schedule C-2, page 3.

Adjustment 3 shows the estimated annual rate case expense for the

wastewater division of $14,717.

20
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WHAT IS THE REQUESTED RATE CASE EXPENSE?
Liberty Rio Rico estimates total rate case expense of $73,583 for the wastewater
division to be recovered over five years, which is the allocated amount based on the
total rate case expense estimate of $500,000 and using the 3-factor formula.
I explained both the amortization and how we determined the amount, as well as the
applicability of the FARE and will not repeat that testimony again as it applies
equally to the wastewater division.
PLEASE CONTINUE WITH YOUR DISCUSSION OF THE EXPENSE
ADJUSTMENTS FOR THE WASTEWATER DIVISION.
Adjustment 4 annualizes revenues to the year-end number of customers.
The annualization of revenues is based on the number of customers at the end of the
test year, compared to the actual number of customers during each month of the test
year. Average revenues per customer by month were computed for the test year and
then multiplied by the increase (or decrease) in number of customers for each month
of the test year. The total of the monthly revenue change comprises the revenue
annualization of $784. In addition to the upward adjustment in revenues, purchased
power expense, chemicals expense, and office expense have been adjusted upward
by $0, $0, and $1, respectively, to reflect the additional pumping power expense,
treatment costs, and postage related to the anticipated additional gallons treated and
additional customer billings.

Adjustment number 5 increases revenues by $9,695 for billing errors made
during the test year.

Adjustment number 6 increases revenues by $23,000 to account for under-
accrual of revenues during the test year.

Adjustment 7 reduces Contractual Services — Professional by $10,655 to

reflect a true-up of test-year allocated corporate non-labor costs. As mentioned these
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corporate costs are addressed in Mr. Killeen’s testimony.

Adjustment 8 increases Contractual Services — Professional by $4,065 and
Contractual Services — Other by $1,296 for allocated corporate labor expected wages
increases in 2015 and 2016.

Adjustments 9 through 14 are intentionally left blank.

Adjustment 15 adjusts interest expense to reflect interest synchronization with
rate base.

Adjustment 16 reflects income taxes based upon Liberty Rio Rico wastewater
division adjusted test year revenue and expense.

d. Rate Design (H Schedules).
WHAT ARE LIBERTY RIO RICO’S PRESENT RATES FOR
WASTEWATER SERVICE?

The present rates are set forth on Schedule H-3, page 1.

WHAT ARE LIBERTY RIO RICO’S PROPOSED RATES FOR
WASTEWATER SERVICE?

The proposed rates are set forth on Schedule H-3, page 1.

IS LIBERTY RIO RICO PROPOSING CHANGES TO THE WASTEWATER
DIVISION BASIC RATE DESIGN?

No. Liberty Rio Rico continues to propose a flat rate design for the residential
customers and single tier design for the commercial customers. Revenue recovery
from the fixed charges under the rate design adopted in the last case is similar to the
revenue recovery from the fixed charges in the instant case.

ARE THERE ANY PROPOSED CHANGES TO LIBERTY RIO RICO
WASTEWATER DIVISION’S MISCELLANEOUS SERVICE CHARGES?
Yes. See Schedule H-3, page 2. The notable changes include: (1) increasing the

Establishment charge from $15 to $25; (2) increasing the Reconnection (delinquent)
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charge from $15 to $25 (the same as the Establishment charge) and including

additional language to also include the costs of physical disconnection; and (3)
Reducing the NSF Check charge from $25 to $10.
ARE THERE ANY PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE SERVICE LINE
INSTALLATION CHARGES?
No.
B. LIBERTY BELLA VISTA.
PLEASE SUMMARIZE LIBERTY BELLA VISTA’S APPLICATION.
Liberty Bella Vista is seeking a revenue increase of 33.61 percent. The test year
used is the 12-month period ending December 31, 2014. Liberty Bella Vista is
requesting a 9.16 percent return on its FVRB. Liberty Bella Vista has also proposed
certain pro forma adjustments to take into account known and measurable changes
to rate base, expenses, and revenues. These pro forma adjustments are consistent
with normal iratemaking and are contemplated by the Commission’s rules and
regulations governing rate applications.” Such adjustments are necessary to obtain
a normal or realistic relationship between revenues, expenses, and rate base on a
going-forward basis.

Liberty Bella Vista’s FVRB is $13,205,189. The increase in revenues to
provide for recovery of operating expenses and a 9.16 percent return on rate base is
approximately $1,554,297, an increase of approximately 33.61 percent over the

adjusted and annualized test year revenues.

7See A.A.C. R14-2-103.
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1. Summary of A, E and F Schedules.

MR. BOURASSA, LET’S TURN TO LIBERTY BELLA VISTA’S
SCHEDULES. PLEASE DESCRIBE THE SCHEDULES LABELED AS A E,
ANDF.

The A-1 Schedule is a summary of the rate base, operating income, current operating
margin, required operating margin, operating income deficiency, and the increase in
gross revenue. Revenues at present and proposed and customer classifications are
also shown on this schedule.

The A-2 Schedule is a summary of resulté of operations for the test year, prior
years, and a projected year at present rates and proposed rates.

Schedule A-3 contains Liberty Bella Vista’s capital structure for the test year
and the two prior years.

Schedule A-4 contains the plant construction and PIS for the test year and
prior years. The projected plant additions are also shown on this schedule.

Schedule A-5 is the summary of the changes in financial position (cash flow)
for the prior two years, the test year at present rates, and a projected year at present
and proposed rates.

The E Schedules are based on Liberty Bella Vista’s actual operating results,
as reported in annual reports filed with the Commission. The E-1 Schedule contains
the comparative balance sheet data the years 2012, 2013, and 2014 ending on
December 31.

Schedule E-2, page 1, contains the income statement for the years 2012, 2013,
and 2014 ending on December 31.

Schedule E-3 contains the statements of changes in Liberty Bella Vista’s
financial position for the test year and the two prior years.

Schedule E-4 provides the changes in membership equity.
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Schedule E-5 contains PIS at the end of the test year, and one year prior to the

end of the test year.

Schedule E-7 contains operating statistics for the years ended 2012, 2013, and
2014 ending on December 31.

Schedule E-8 contains the taxes charged to operations.

The accountant’s notes to the financial statements and the financial
assumptions used in preparing the rate filing schedules are shown on Schedules E-9
and F-4, respectively, in accordance with the Commission’s standard filing
requirements.

Schedule F-1 contains the results of operations at the present rates (actual and
adjusted) and at proposed rates.

Schedule F-2 contains the summary of changes in financial position (cash
flow) for the prior two years, the test year at present rates, and a projected year at
present and proposed rates.

Schedule F-3 shows Liberty Bella Vista’s projected construction
réquirements for 2016, 2017, and 2018.

Schedule F-4 contains the assumptions used in developing the adjustments
and projections contained in the rate filing.

2. Rate Base (B Schedules).

WOULD YOU EXPLAIN THE RATE BASE SCHEDULES, WHICH ARE
LABELED AS THE B SCHEDULES?

Yes. I will start with Schedule B-5, which is the cash working capital allowance.
Liberty Bella Vista’s proposed cash working capital allowance is based upon a lead-

lag study. The proposed cash working capital allowance is $160,647.
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PLEASE CONTINUE.
Liberty Bella Vista did not file Schedules B-3 and B-4. To limit issues in dispute,
Liberty Bella Vista is requesting that its OCRB be used as its FVRB.
HAVE YOU PREPARED SCHEDULES SHOWING ADJUSTMENTS TO
THE OCRB?
Yes. Schedule B-2 shows adjustments to the OCRB cost rate base proposed by
Liberty Bell Vista. Schedule B-2, pages 2 through 7, provides the supporting
information.

a. PIS and A/D.
PLEASE DISCUSS THE PIS ADJUSTMENTS.
B-2 adjustment number 1, as shown on Schedule B-2, page 2, adjusts PIS. There
are four PIS adjustments included in Adjustment 1. These are shown on Schedule
B-2, page 3, and are labeled as adjustments “A,” “B,” “C,” and “D.”
Adjustment “A” of B-2 adjustment number 1 removes $92,510 of capitalized
affiliate profit recorded to PIS since the end of the last test year.

Adjustment “B” of B-2 adjustment number 1 increases PIS by $872,772 for
revenue neutral PTY plant. At this stage the PTY plant is based upon an estimate
through June 2015 and will be trued-up later in the instant case. As mentioned
earlier in my testimony, Mr. Garlick discusses the proposed PTY plant in his direct
testimony.?

Adjustment “C” of B-2 adjustment number 1 increases PIS for allocated
corporate plant totaling $431,849.

Adjustment “D” of B-2, adjustment number 1, adjusts PIS to reflect the

reconciliation of Liberty Bella Vista’s PIS detail to recorded general ledger amounts

8 Garlick Dt. at 11.
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as reflected on Schedule E-1.

PLEASE DISCUSS THE A/D ADJUSTMENTS.

B-2 adjustment number 2, as shown on Schedule B-2, page 2, adjusts PIS. There
are three PIS adjustments included in Adjustment 2. These are shown on Schedule
B-2, page 4, and are labeled as adjustments “A,” “B,” and “C.”

Adjustment “A” of B-2 adjustment number 2 removes $11,770 of A/D related
to affiliate profit recorded to PIS since the end of the last test year.

Adjustment “B” of B-2 adjustment number 2 increases A/D by $72,081 for
A/D related to allocated corporate plant.

Adjustment “C” of B-2, adjustment number 2, adjusts A/D to reflect the
reconciliation of Liberty Bella Vista’s PIS detail to recorded general ledger amounts
as reflected on Schedule E-1.

DO THE PLANT AND A/D BALANCES SHOWN ON SCHEDULE B-2
REFLECT THE LAST COMMISSION RATE ORDER FOR LIBERTY
BELLA VISTA?
Yes. Liberty Bella Vista’s reconstruction of the PIS balance started with the PIS
balance approved in the last rate case. Plant additions and retirements since the end
of the last test year have been added to and deducted from total plant shown on
Schedule B-2, pages 3.5 to 3.10. Pages 3.5 to 3.10 of the schedule also show the
details for A/D from the end of the last test year through the end of the test year
using the half-year convention for depreciation.

b. CIAC and AIAC.
PLEASE DISCUSS THE CIAC ADJUSTMENTS FOR LIBERTY BELLA
VISTA.

B-2 adjustment number 3, as shown on Schedule B-2, page 2, adjusts CIAC and

A.A. to the reconstructed balances shown on Schedule B-2, page 5.1 and
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summarized on Schedule B-2, page 5.
DO THE CIAC AND A.A. BALANCES SHOWN ON SCHEDULE B-2
REFLECT THE LAST COMMISSION RATE ORDER FOR LIBERT
BELLA VISTA?
Yes. The starting CIAC and A.A. balances shown in the reconstruction are the
balances approved in the last rate order. Additional CIAC recorded since the end of
the last year have been added to CIAC and are shown on Schedule B-2, page 5.1.
Computed amortization for each year, based upon the annual composite depreciation
rate for plant has been added to A.A. and is also shown on Schedule B-2, page 5.1.
PLEASE DISCUSS THE AIAC ADJUSTMENT FOR LIBERTY BELLA
VISTA.
B-2 adjustment number 4, as shown on Schedule B-2, page 2, adjusts AIAC to the
reconstructed amounts shown on Schedule B-2, page 6.1 to 6.2 and summarized on
Schedule B-2, page 6.
DOES THE AIAC BALANCE SHOWN ON SCHEDULE B-2 REFLECT THE
LAST COMMISSION RATE ORDER FOR LIBERTY BELLA VISTA?
Yes. The starting AIAC balance shown in the reconstruction is the balance approved
in the last rate order. Additional AIAC recorded since the end of the last year have
been added to AIAC along with reductions to AIAC from refunds are shown on
Schedule B-2, page 6.1 to 6.2.

c. ADIT.
PLEASE DISCUSS THE ADIT ADJUSTMENT.
Adjustment number 5, shown on Schedule B-2, page 2, reflects the computed
deferred income taxes at the end of the test year. Liberty Bella Vista’s computation
is based on the adjusted PIS, A/D, AIAC, and CIAC balances in the instant case and

the adjusted tax basis of its assets using the effective tax rates computed on the
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Schedule C-3, page 2. The detail of Liberty Bella Vista’s deferred income tax

computation is shown on Schedule B-2, pages 7.0 and 7.1.
d. Cash Working Capital.

PLEASE DISCUSS THE WORKING CAPITAL ADJUSTMENT.
Adjustment number 6, shown on Schedule B-2, page 2, reflects Liberty Bella Vista’s
proposed cash working capital allowance of $160,647, which is based upon a lead-
lag study which is summarized on Schedule B-5.

3. Income Statement (C Schedules).
WOULD YOU EXPLAIN THE C SCHEDULES FOR LIBERTY BELLA
VISTA?

Schedule C-1, page 1 summarizes the test year actual and adjusted revenues and
expenses. Schedule C-1, page 2.1 and 2.2 shows the individual adjustments to the
test year. The following is a summary of adjustments shown on Schedule C-1, pages
2.1and 2.2:

Adjustment 1 annualizes depreciation expense. The proposed depreciation
rate for each component of utility plant is shown on Schedule C-2, page 2.
The depreciation rates approved in the last rate case were plant account specific.
Liberty Bella Vista proposes to continue to use account specific rates on a going
forward basis.

Adjustment 2 increases the property taxes based on proposed revenues.
The details of the computation are shown on Schedule C-2, page 3.

Adjustment 3 shows the estimated annual rate case expense of $52,111.
WHAT IS THE REQUESTED RATE CASE EXPENSE?
Liberty Bella Vista’s total rate case expense estimate is $260,557 to be recovered
over five years, which is the allocated amount based on the total rate case expense

estimate of $500,000 and using the 3-factor formula. Again, I explained both the
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amortization and how we determined the amount, as well as the applicability of the
FARE earlier and will not repeat that testimony again as it applies equally to Liberty
Bella Vista.

PLEASE CONTINUE WITH YOUR DISCUSSION OF THE EXPENSE
ADJUSTMENTS.

Adjustment 4 annualizes revenues to the year-end number of customers. The
annualization of revenues is based on the number of customers at the end of the test
year, compared to the actual number of customers during each month of the test year.
Average revenues per customer by month were computed for the test year and then
multiplied by the increase (or decrease) in number of customers for each month of
the test year. The total of the monthly revenue change comprises the revenue
annualization of 41,402. In addition to the upward adjustment in revenues,
purchased power expense, chemicals expense, and office expense have been adjusted
upward by $2,600, $84, and $279, respectively, to reflect the additional pumping
power expense, treatment costs, and postage related to the anticipated additional
gallons sold and additional customer billings.

Adjustment number 5 reflects Liberty Bella Vista’s proposed usage
normalization adjustment to revenues. The usage normalization adjustment reduces
metered revenues by $92,497 and is based on the trend in customer water usage by
customer class measured over the past 5 years which, as I discussed earlier, is similar
to the declining usage adjustments adopted by the Commission in prior proceedings.
In addition to the reduction in revenues, purchased power expense, and chemicals
expense have been reduced by $24,001, and $1,248, respectively, to reflect the
reduced pumping power expense and treatment costs related to the anticipated

reduction in gallons sold.
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Adjustment 6 reduces Contractual Services — Professional by $63,200 to

reflect a true-up of test-year allocated corporate non-labor costs. The corporate cost
allocation is explained further by Mr. Killeen in his direct testimony.

Adjustment 7 increases Contractual Services — Professional by $43,490 and
Contractual Services — Other by $37,370 for allocated corporate labor expected wage
increases in 2015 and 2016.

Adjustments 9 through 14 are intentionally left blank.

Adjustment 15 adjusts interest expense to reflect interest synchronization with
rate base.

Adjustment 16 reflects income taxes based upon Liberty Bella Vista’s
adjusted test year revenue and expense.

4. Rate Design (H Schedules).

WHAT ARE LIBERTY BELLA VISTA’S PRESENT RATES FOR WATER

SERVICE?

The present rates are set forth on Schedule H-3, pages 1 through 3.

WHAT ARE LIBERTY BELLA VISTA’S PROPOSED RATES FOR WATER
SERVICE?

The proposed rates are set forth on Schedule H-3, pages 1 through 3.

IS LIBERTY BELLA VISTA PROPOSING CHANGES TO THE BASIC
RATE DESIGN?

Yes and no. As with Liberty Rio Rico water division, Liberty Bella Vista continues
to propose a conservation oriented inverted 3-tier rate design for the 5/8x3/4 inch
metered customers and a conservation oriented inverted 2-tier rate design for the %4
inch and larger metered customers. No changes to the current break-over points are
proposed. In the prior case, the approved rates were intended to recover

approximately 48 percent of water revenues from the monthly fixed charges under
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present rates. The proposed rates reflect revenue recovery from the monthly fixed
charges of approximately 50 percent. While small, the increase in revenue recovery
from the fix charges is intended to improve revenue stability.

ARE THERE ANY PROPOSED CHANGES TO LIBERTY BELLA VISTA’S
MISCELLANEOUS SERVICE CHARGES?

Yes. See Schedule H-3, page 4. The notable changes include: (1) removing the
Establishment (After Hours) charge and the Reconnection (delinquent) (After
Hours) charge;’ (2) leaving the Reconnection (delinquent) charge at $30 (the same
as the Establishment charge) and including additional language to include the costs
of physical disconnection; (3) Increasing the Meter Re-read (if correct) charge from
$15 to $20; and (4) Reducing the NSF Check charge from $15 to $10.

ARE THERE ANY PROPOSED CHANGES TO LIBERTY BELLA VISTA’S
METER AND SERVICE LINE INSTALLATION CHARGES?

Yes. Liberty Bella Vista proposes that the charges for the 1 inch and smaller meters
to be changed to “at cost” rather than a specific charges. The Commission has
previously adopted “at cost” charges for these meter and service line charges for
Liberty Rio Rico. See Schedule H-3, page 5.

ARE THERE ANY PROPOSED CHANGES TO LIBERTY BELLA VISTA’S
OFF-SITE CAPACITY RESERVATION CHARGES (HOOK-UP FEES)?
Yes. Liberty Bella Vista proposes changes to its Hook-Up Fees (“HUF”) for the
reasons set forth in Docket Nos. 09-0116 and 09-0120 approving a HUF for Liberty
Utilities (Litchfield Park Water & Sewer) Corp. The proposed HUF here is designed
to assist Liberty Bella Vista in equitably apportioning the cost of constructing

additional off-site wastewater transmission, delivery and disposal facilities among

® After Hours Service Call applies to all work performed after hours and at the customer’s
request. Thus, the Establishment after hours charge is duplicative.
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III.

new service connections. The proposed HUF provides partial funding of the costs
for off-site facilities for new service connections, and is based on meter size. Liberty
Bella Vista also proposes a HUF of $1,800 for a 5/8” meter and other associated
meter sizes in order to standardize the HUF tariff amount for all of the Arizona
utilities owned by and operated by Liberty Utilities. Liberty Bella Vista believes.
that standardizing the HUF tariffs will reduce administrative and processing costs.
Under Liberty Bella Vista’s existing HUF tariff, the fee for a 5/8” meter is $1,600.
Liberty Bella Vista maintains that the proposed $1,800 HUF is consistent with that
prior approved HUF, especially when considering increased costs since the
Commission approved that existing HUF in Liberty Bella Vista’s last rate case.
See Schedule H-3, page 5.

IS LIBERTY BELLA VISTA PROPOSING ANY MODIFICATIONS TO ITS
LOW INCOME TARIFF?

Yes. I will discuss the proposed modifications to Liberty Bella Vista’s Low Income
Tariff below.

APPLICANTS’ LOW INCOME TARIFFS.

HAVE THE APPLICANTS MADE ANY MODIFICATIONS TO THEIR

LOW INCOME TARIFFS?

While the Applicants have made clarifications to their tariffs regarding the
administration of its low income tariff, the program is basically unchanged. The
Applicants propose to continue the existing low income tariffs for Liberty Bella
Vista, Liberty Rio Rico water, and Liberty Rio Rico sewer customers, with each
proposal being based upon the already existing low income tariff. The existing low
income tariff provides for a discount of 15 percent applied to a qualified customer’s
total bill before any adjustments or application of any other taxes, credit, penalties

or fees.
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Iv.

A.

|

In order to qualify for the low income discount, the customer’s income must

be at or below 150% of the federal poverty level. Participation in the low income
program is also subject to certain participation limits. Presently, participation is
limited to 2,400, 2,200 and 725 customers for Liberty Bella Vista, Liberty Rio Rico
water and Liberty Rio Rico Sewer, respectively, and the Applicants are not
proposing any changes to the participation levels.

The cost of the low income tariff shall be recovered by the Applicants from a
monthly low income tariff surcharge on all residential water and wastewater
customers who are not participating in the low income program. Applicants shall
maintain separate balancing accounts for water and wastewater programs detailing
the beginning and ending balance of the cumulative over recovered or under
recovered program costs for each month. Applicants’ authorized rates of return shall
be applied to the monthly average of the cumulative over recovered or under
recovered program costs. Using the separate balancing accounts for water and
wastewater customers and the Applicants’ most recent bill counts, the Applicants
shall calculate separate monthly surcharges for water and wastewater customers on
an annual basis.

More detailed information on the calculation of the surcharge is included on
the proposed low income tariffs.!?

PURCHASED POWER ADJUSTER MECHANISM AND PROPERTY TAX
ADJUSTER MECHANISM.

PLEASE DISCUSS APPLICANTS’ PROPOSED PURCHASED POWER
ADJUSTER MECHANISM AND PROPERTY TAX ADJUSTER
MECHANISM.

As discussed by Mr. Garlick in his direct testimony, Applicants are seeking

10 See Application, Attachment 2.
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Commission approval of two adjuster mechanisms: (1) a Purchased Power Adjuster

Mechanism (“PPAM”); and (2) a Property Tax Adjuster Mechanism (“PTAM”).!!
WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF THE PPAM AND HOW WOULD THE PPAM
WORK?

The proposed PPAM would allow Applicants to pass-through increases or decreases
in purchased power costs that are due to changes in the rates for electric utility
service. The intent of the PPAM is to isolate changes in purchased power cost that
is due exclusively to a rate change that is beyond the control of Applicants.
Purchased power is a significant expense and beyond the control of the Applicants.
The increases/decreases in power costs will be allocated on a per customer basis and
passed-through to customer as a separate line item on the customer bill. The PPAM
Plan of Administration (“POA™), attached to the Application as Attachment 3,
outlines the implementation and filing requirements as well as how the surcharge
will be computed. The form of the PPAM proposed by Applicants is consistent with
the form of PPAM approved in Decision No. 74437 for Liberty Utilities (Litchfield
Park Water & Sewer) Corp.

WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF THE PTAM AND HOW WOULD THE PTAM
WORK?

The proposed PTAM would allow Applicants to pass-through increases or decreases
in property taxes that are due to changes in the assessment ratio and effective
property tax rate. The intent of the PTAM is to isolate changes in property taxes that
are due to assessment ratio and rate charges that are beyond the control of Applicants.
The increases/decreases in property taxes will be allocated on a per customer basis

and passed-through to customer as a separate line item on the customer bill.

1 See Garlick Dt. at 20-22.
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The PTAM POA, attached to the Application as Attachment 4, outlines the
implementation and filing requirements as well as how the surcharge will be
computed.

BUT MR. BOURASSA, ISN’'T LIBERTY REQUESTING APPROVAL OF
THE FAIR VALUE ARIZONA RATEMAKING EVALUATION MODEL OR
FARE FOR THE TWO APPLICANTS?

Yes, as introduced in Mr. Garlick’s direct testimony and then discussed in detail in
Mr. Eichler’s direct testimony.

WHY DOES LIBERTY STILL NEED THESE TWO ADJUSTERS IF THE
COMMISSION APPROVES THE FARE?

Because the costs covered by these two adjusters — the rate paid for power and the
rate at which property taxes are set — should not impact the determination of whether
Applicants are in the FARE’s “Established Range” of plus or minus 20 basis points.
These are narrowly defined expenses outside the utility’s control, costs that
consistently increase, and it isn’t fair to automatically require the Applicants to bear
the expected and routine increases in those costs.

DOES THIS CONCLUDE YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY ON RATE BASE,
INCOME STATEMENT AND RATE DESIGN FOR BOTH APPLICANTS?
Yes.
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RESUME OF THOMAS J. BOURASSA, CPA
EDUCATIONAL BACKGROUND

B.S. Northern Arizona University Chemistry/Accounting (1980)

M.B.A. University of Phoenix with Emphasis in Finance (1991)

C.P.A. State of Arizona (1995)

Continuing Professional Education — In areas of tax, accounting, management,
economics, finance, business valuation, consulting, and ethics (80 hrs every two years)

MEMBERSHIPS

Arizona Society of CPAs

Water Utilities Association of Arizona
American Water Works Association
Society of Regulatory Financial Analysts

EMPLOYMENT EXPERIENCE

1995 — Present CPA - Self Employed
Consultant to utilities on regulatory matters including all aspects of
rate applications (rate base, income statement, cost of capital, cost
of service, and rate design), rate reviews, certificates of
convenience and necessity (CC&N), CC&N extensions, financing
applications, accounting order applications, and off-site facilities
hook-up fee applications. Provide expert testimony as required.

Consult on various aspects of business, financial and accounting
matters including best business practices, generally accepted
accounting principles, generally accepted ratemaking principles,
project analysis, cash flow analysis, regulatory treatment of certain
expenditures and investments, business valuations, and rate
reviews.

Litigation support services.

1992-1995 Employed by High-Tech Institute, Phoenix, Arizona as Controller
and C.F.O.
1989-1992 Employed by Alta Technical School, a division of University of
Phoenix as Division Controller.
1985-1989 Employed by M.L.R. Builders, Tampa and Pensacola, Florida as
Operations/Accounting Manager
1982-1985 Employed by and part owner in Area Sand and Clay Company,
Pensacola, Florida.
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1981-1982

Employed by Purdue University, West Lafayette, Indiana as
Teaching Assistant.
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SUMMARY OF REGULATORY WORK EXPERIENCE AS SELF EMPLOYED

CONSULTANT

COMPANY/CLIENT
Tierra Buena Water Company
ACC Docket No. W-02076A-15-013

Red Rock Utilities, LLC
ACC Docket No. W-04245A-14-0295

Quail Creek Water Company
ACC Docket No. W-02514A-14-0370

Tonto Basin Water Company
ACC Docket No. W-03515A-14-0310

Navajo Water
ACC Docket No. W-03511A-14-304

Alaska Power Company
Regulatory Commission of Alaska
Docket No. U-14-002

Anchorage Municipal Light & Power
Regulatory Commission of Alaska
Docket No. U-13-184

Liberty Utilities (Pine Bluff) Inc.
Arkansas Public Service Commission
Docket No. 14-020-U

Abra Water Company

FUNCTION
Permanent Rate Application — Water.
Assisted in preparation of short-form
schedules.

Permanent Rate Application — Water and
Wastewater. Prepared schedules and
testified on Rate Base, Plant, Income
Statement, Revenue Requirement, Rate
Design, and Cost of Capital.

Permanent Rate Application — Water.
Prepared schedules and testified on Rate
Base, Plant, Income Statement, Revenue
Requirement, Rate Design, and Cost of
Capital.

Permanent Rate Application — Water.
Prepared short-form schedules for Rate
Base, Income Statement, Plant, Bill
Counts, and Rate Design.

Permanent Rate Application — Water.
Prepared short-form schedules for Rate
Base, Income Statement, Plant, Bill
Counts, and Rate Design.

Prepared schedules and testified on cost of
capital.

Prepared schedules and testified on cost of
capital.

Permanent Rate Application — Prepared
schedules and testified on Rate Base,
Plant, Income Statement, Revenue
Requirement, Cost of Service, Rate
Design, and Cost of Capital.

Permanent Rate Application — Prepared
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COMPANY/CLIENT
ACC Docket No. W-01782A-14-0084

EPCOR Water Arizona, Inc.
ACC Docket No. W-01303A-14-0010

Liberty Utilities (Midstates Natural Gas),
Inc.

Missouri Public Service Commission
Case No. GR-2014-0152

Hydro Resources, LLC.
ACC Docket No. W-20770A-13-0313

Little Park Water Company
ACC Docket No. W-02192A-13-0336

Utility Source, LLC.
ACC Docket No. WS-04235A-13-0331

Payson Water Company
ACC Docket No. W-03514A-13-0111
ACC Docket No. W-03514A-13-0142

Goodman Water Company

FUNCTION

schedules and testified on Rate Base,
Plant, Income Statement, Revenue
Requirement, Rate Design, and Cost of
Capital.

Permanent Rate Application — Prepared
rate designs and cost of Service studies for
Mohave Water District, Mohave
Wastewater District, Paradise Valley
Water District, Tubac Water District, and
Sun City Water District.

Permanent Rate Application — Assist in
preparing required rate application
schedules for Rate Base, Plant, Income
Statement, Revenue Requirement, and
Rate Design.

Certificate of Convenience and Necessity
— Water. Prepared pro-forma balance
sheets, income statements, plant
schedules, rate base, and initial rates.

Permanent Rate Application — Water.
Prepared short-form schedules for Rate
Base, Income Statement, Plant, Bill
Counts, and Rate Design.

Permanent Rate Application — Water and
Sewer. Prepared schedules and testified
on Rate Base, Plant, Income Statement,
Revenue Requirement, Rate Design, and
Cost of Capital.

Permanent Rate Application — Water.
Prepared schedules and testified on Rate
Base, Plant, Income Statement, Revenue
Requirement, Rate Design, and Cost of
Capital.

Financing Application. Prepared financial
ratios and debt surcharge mechanism.

Valuation
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COMPANY/CLIENT
Verde Santa Fe Wastewater
ACC Docket No. SW-03437A-13-0292

Lago Del Oro Water Company
ACC Docket No. W-01944A-13-0215

Chaparral City Water Company
ACC Docket No. W-02113A-13-0118

Las Quintas Serenas Water Company
ACC Docket No. W-01583A-13-0117

Southwest Environmental Utilities. Inc.
ACC Docket No. WS-20878A-13-0065

Litchfield park Service Company
ACC Docket No. SW-01428A-13-0043
ACC Docket No. W-01428A-13-0042

Beaver Dam Water Company
ACC Docket No. WS-03067A-12-0232

Rio Rico Utilities

ACC Docket No. WS-02676A-12-0196

Vail Water Company
ACC Docket No. W-01651B-12-0339

FUNCTION
Permanent Rate Application — Sewer.
Prepared schedules and testified on Rate
Base, Plant, Income Statement, Revenue
Requirement, Rate Design, and Cost of
Capital.

Permanent Rate Application — Water.
Prepared schedules and testified on Rate
Base, Plant, Income Statement, Revenue
Requirement, Cost of Service, Rate
Design, and Cost of Capital.

Permanent Rate Application ~ Prepared
and testified on cost of service study.

Permanent Rate Application — Water.
Prepared schedules and testified on Rate
Base, Plant, Income Statement, Revenue
Requirement, Rate Design, and Cost of
Capital.

Certificate of Convenience and Necessity
— Water and Wastewater. Prepared pro-
forma balance sheets, income statements,
plant schedules, rate base, and initial rates.

Permanent Rate Application — Water and
Sewer. Prepared schedules and testified
on Rate Base, Plant, Income Statement,
Revenue Requirement, Rate Design, Cost
of Service, and Cost of Capital.

Permanent Rate Application. Prepared
schedules on Plant, Income Statement,
Revenue Requirement, and Rate Design.

Permanent Rate Application — Water and
Sewer. Prepared schedules and testified
on Rate Base, Plant, Income Statement,
Revenue Requirement, Cost of Service,
Rate Design, and Cost of Capital.

Permanent Rate Application. Prepared
schedules and testified on Rate Base,
Plant, Income Statement, Revenue
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COMPANY/CLIENT

Avra Water Co-Op.
ACC Docket No. W-02126A-11-0480

Pima Utility Company
ACC Docket No. W-02199A-11-0329
ACC Docket No. SW-02199A-11-0330

Liberty Utilities (CALPECO Electric),
LLC)
Docket No. 11202020

Livco Water Company
ACC Docket No. SW-02563A-11-0213

Orange Grove Water Company
ACC Docket No. W-02237A-11-0180

Goodman Water Company
ACC Docket No. W-02500A-10-0382

Doney Park Water
ACC Docket No. W-01416A-10-0450

Grimmelmann, et. al. v. Pulte Home
Corporation, et. al., case no. CV-08-1878-
PHX-FJM, the United States District Court

FUNCTION
Requirement, Cost of Service, Rate
Design, and Cost of Capital.

Permanent Rate Application. Prepared
schedules and testified on Rate Base,
Plant, Income Statement, Revenue
Requirement, Cost of Service, Rate
Design, and Cost of Capital.

Permanent Rate Application — Water and
Sewer. Prepared schedules and testified
on Rate Base, Plant, Income Statement,
Revenue Requirement, Cost of Service,
Rate Design, and Cost of Capital.

Work on financing application.

Work on preparation of permanent rate
application. Prepared schedules on Rate
Base, Plant, Income Statement, Revenue
Requirement.

Permanent Rate Application — Water and
Sewer. Prepared short-form schedules for
Rate Base, Income Statement, Plant, Bill
Counts, and Rate Design.

Permanent Rate Application. Prepared
schedules on Plant, Income Statement,
Revenue Requirement, and Rate Design.

Permanent Rate Application — Water.
Prepared schedules and testified on Rate
Base, Plant, Income Statement, Revenue
Requirement, Rate Design, and Cost of
Capital.

Permanent Rate Application — Water.
Prepared schedules and testified on Rate
Base, Plant, Income Statement, Revenue
Requirement, and Rate Design.

Consultant to defendant and expert
witness for defendant on rates and
ratemaking.
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COMPANY/CLIENT
for the District of Arizona.

Southern Arizona Home Builders
Association

H20 Water Company
Tierra Linda HOA Water Company

Las Quintas Serenas Water Company
ACC Docket No. W-01583A-09-0589

Coronado Utilities
ACC Docket No. SW-04305A-09-0291

Little Park Water Company
ACC Docket No. W-02192A-09-0531

Sahuarita Water Company
ACC Docket No. W-03718A-09-0359

Bella Vista Water Company

Southern Sunrise Water Company
Northern Sunrise Water Company
ACC Docket No. W-02465A-09-0414
ACC Docket No. W-02453A-09-0414
ACC Docket No. W-02454A-09-0414

Rio Rico Utilities, Inc
ACC Docket No. WS-02676A-09-0257

FUNCTION

Consultant on ratemaking aspects to line
extension policies (electric).

Valuation
Valuation

Permanent Rate Application — Water.
Prepared schedules and testified on Rate
Base, Plant, Income Statement, Revenue
Requirement, Rate Design, and Cost of
Capital.

Permanent Rate Application —
Wastewater. Prepared schedules and
testified on Rate Base, Plant, Income
Statement, Revenue Requirement, Rate
Design, and Cost of Capital.

Permanent Rate Application. Prepared
schedules on Plant, Income Statement,
Revenue Requirement, and Rate Design.

Permanent Rate Application — Water.
Prepared schedules and testified on Rate
Base, Plant, Income Statement, Revenue
Requirement, Rate Design, Cost of
Service, and Cost of Capital.

Permanent Rate Application — Water.
Prepared schedules and testified on Rate
Base, Plant, Income Statement, Revenue
Requirement, Rate Design, Cost of
Service, and Cost of Capital.

Permanent Rate Application — Water and
Sewer. Prepared schedules and testified
on Rate Base, Plant, Income Statement,
Revenue Requirement, Rate Design, and
Cost of Capital.
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COMPANY/CLIENT

Litchfield park Service Company

ACC Docket No. SW-01428A-09-0103
ACC Docket No. W-01428A-09-0104

Town of Thatcher v. City of Safford, CV
2007-240, Superior Court of Arizona

Valencia Water Company
California Public Utility Commission Case
No. 09-05-002

Valley Utilities
ACC Docket No. W-01412A-08-0586

Black Mountain Sewer Company
ACC Docket No. SW-02361A-08-0609

Far West Water and Sewer Company
ACC Docket No. WS-03478A-08-0608

Farmers Water Company
ACC Docket No. W-01654A-08-0502

Far West Water and Sewer Company
ACC Docket No. WS-03478A-08-0454

Ridgeline Water Company, LLC
ACC Docket No. W-20589A-08-0173

FUNCTION

Permanent Rate Application — Water and
Sewer. Prepared schedules and testified
on Rate Base, Plant, Income Statement,
Revenue Requirement, Rate Design, Cost
of Service, and Cost of Capital.

Consultant to plaintiff on ratemaking and
cost of service.

Cost of Capital

Permanent Rate Application. Prepared
schedules and testified on Rate Base,
Plant, Income Statement, Revenue
Requirement, and Rate Design.

Permanent Rate Application — Sewer.
Prepared schedules and testified on Rate
Base, Plant, Income Statement, Revenue
Requirement, Rate Design, and Cost of
Capital.

Interim Rate Application (Emergency
Rates)

Permanent Rate Application. Prepared
schedules and testified on Rate Base,
Plant, Income Statement, Revenue
Requirement, and Rate Design.

Permanent Rate Application. Sewer.
Prepared schedules and testified on Rate
Base, Plant, Income Statement, Revenue
Requirement, Rate Design and Cost of
Capital.

Certificate of Convenience and Necessity
— Water. Prepared pro-forma balance
sheets, income statements, plant
schedules, rate base, financing, and intitial
rates.
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COMPANY/CLIENT
Sacramento Utilities, Inc.
ACC Docket No. SW-20576A-08-0067

Johnson Utilities
ACC Docket No. WS-02987A-08-0180

Orange Grove Water Company
ACC Docket No. W-02237A-08-0455

Far West Water and Sewer Company
ACC Docket No. WS-03478A-07-0442

Oak Creek Water No.1
ACC Docket No. W-01392A-07-0679

ICR Water Users Association
Docket W-02824-07-0388

Johnson Utilities

H20, Inc
ACC Docket No. W-02234A-07-0550

Chaparral City Water Company
ACC Docket No. W-02113A-07-0551

FUNCTION
Certificate of Convenience and Necessity
— Wastewater. Prepared pro-forma
balance sheets, income statements, plant
schedules, rate base, and financing.

Permanent Rate Application. Water and
Sewer. Prepared schedules and testified
on Rate Base, Plant, Income Statement,
Revenue Requirement, Rate Design and
Cost of Capital.

Participate in 40-252 proceeding.

Permanent Rate Application. Prepared
schedules on Plant, Income Statement,
Revenue Requirement, and Rate Design.

Financing Application. Prepare schedules
to support application.

Permanent Rate Application. Prepared
schedules and testified on Rate Base,
Plant, Income Statement, Revenue
Requirement, and Rate Design.

Permanent Rate Application. Prepared
schedules and testified on Rate Base,
Plant, Income Statement, Revenue
Requirement, and Rate Design.

Valuation consultant in the matter of the
sale of Johnson Ultilities assets to the
Town of Florence.

Permanent Rate Application. Prepared
schedules and testified on Rate Base,
Plant, Income Statement, Revenue
Requirement, Rate Design, and Cost of
Capital.

Permanent Rate Application. Prepared
schedules and testified on Rate Base, Plant,
Income Statement, Revenue Requirement,
Rate Design, and Cost of Capital.
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COMPANY/CLIENT
Valley Utilities
ACC Docket No. W-01412A-07-0561

Valley Utilities
ACC Docket No. W-01412A-07-280

Valley Utilities
ACC Docket No. W-01412A-07-0278

Litchfield Park Service Company
ACC Docket No. W-01427A-06-0807

Golden Shores Water Company
ACC Docket No. W-01815A-07-0117

Diablo Village Water Company
ACC Docket No. W-02309A-07-0140

Diablo Village Water Company
ACC Docket No. W-02309A-07-0399

Sahuarita Water Company
(Rancho Sahuarita Water Co.)
ACC Docket No. W-03718A-07-0687

Utility Source, L.L.C.
ACC Docket No. WS-04235A-06-0303

FUNCTION
Financing Application. Prepare schedules
to support application.

Emergency Rate Application. Prepare
schedules to support application.

Accounting Order. Assist in preparing
definition and scope of costs for deferral
for future regulatory consideration and
treatment.

Accounting Order. Assist in preparing
definition and scope of costs for deferral
for future regulatory consideration and
treatment.

Permanent Rate Application. Water.
Prepared schedules and testified on Rate
Base, Plant, Income Statement, Revenue
Requirement, Rate Design, and Cost of
Capital.

Off-site facilities hook-up fee application.
Prepare schedules to support application.

Permanent Rate Application (Class C).
Water. Prepared schedules and testified
on Rate Base, Plant, Income Statement,
Revenue Requirement, Rate Design, and
Cost of Capital.

Extension Certificate of Convenience and
Necessity — Water. Prepared pro-forma
balance sheets, income statements, plant
schedules, rate base, and financing.

Permanent Rate Application- Water and
Wastewater. Prepared schedules and
testified on Rate Base, Plant, Income
Statement, Revenue Requirement, Rate
Design, and Cost of Capital.
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COMPANY/CLIENT
Tierra Buena Water Company

Goodman Water Company
ACC Docket No. W-02500A-06-0281

Links at Coyote Wash Ultilities
ACC Docket No. SW-04210A-06-0220

New River Utilities
ACC Docket No. W-0173A-06-0171

Johnson Ultilities
ACC Docket No. WS-02987A-04-0501
Docket WS-02987A-04-0177

Bachmann Springs Utility
ACC Docket No. WS-03953A-07-0073

Avra Water Cooperative
ACC Docket No. W-02126A-06-0234

Gold Canyon Sewer Company
ACC Docket No. SW-025191A-06-0015

State of Arizona v. Far West Water and
Sewer, No. 1 CA-CR 06-0160

Far West Water and Sewer Company

FUNCTION
Valuation of Tierra Buena Water
Company for estate purposes.

Permanent Rate Application (Class C).
Water. Prepared schedules and testified
on Rate Base, Plant, Income Statement,
and Cost of Capital.

Certificate of Convenience and Necessity
— Sewer. Prepared pro-forma balance
sheets, income statements, plant
schedules, rate base, financing, and initial
rate design.

Extension Certificate of Convenience and
Necessity — Water. Prepared pro-forma
balance sheets, income statements, plant
schedules, rate base, and financing.

Extension of Certificate of Convenience
and Necessity — Sewer. Prepared pro-
forma balance sheets, income statements,
plant schedules, rate base, financing, and
initial rate design.

Permanent Rate Application — Water and
Sewer. Prepared short-form schedules for
Rate Base, Income Statement, Plant, Bill
Counts, and Rate Design.

Permanent Rate Application — Water.
Prepared schedules and testified on Rate
Base, Plant, Income Statement, Revenue
Requirement, and Rate Design.

Permanent Rate Application — Sewer.
Prepared schedules and testified on Rate
Base, Plant, Income Statement, Revenue
Requirement, Rate Design, and Cost of
Capital.

Expert witness on behalf of defendant in
penalty phase of case.
Permanent Rate Application — Sewer.
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COMPANY/CLIENT
ACC Docket No. WS-03478A-05-0801

Black Mountain Sewer Company
ACC Docket No. SW-02361A-05-0657

Balterra Sewer Company
ACC Docket No. SW-02304A-05-0586

Community Water Company of Green
Valley
ACC Docket No. W-02304A-05-0830

McClain Water Systems
Northern Sunrise Water
Southern Sunrise Water
ACC Docket No. W-020453A-06-0251

Valley Utilities Water Company
ACC Docket No. W-01412A-04-0376

Valley Utilities Water Company
ACC Docket No. W-01412A-04-0376

Beardsley Water Company
ACC Docket No. W-02074A-04-0358

Pine Water Company, Inc.
ACC Docket No. W-03512A-03-0279

FUNCTION
Prepared schedules and testified on Rate
Base, Plant, Income Statement, Revenue
Requirement, Rate Design, and Cost of
Capital.

Permanent Rate Application — Sewer.
Prepared schedules and testified on Rate
Base, Plant, Income Statement, Revenue
Requirement, Rate Design, and Cost of
Capital.

Certificate of Convenience and Necessity
— Sewer. Prepared pro-forma balance
sheets, income statements, plant
schedules, rate base, financing, and initial
rate design.

Permanent Rate Application — Water.
Prepared schedules and testified on Rate
Base, Plant, Income Statement, Revenue
Requirement, and Rate Design.

Certificate of Convenience and Necessity
— Water. Prepared pro-forma balance
sheets, income statements, plant
schedules, rate base, financing, and initial
rate design.

Off-site facilities hook-up fee application.
Prepare schedules to support application.

Permanent Rate Application — Water.
Prepared schedules and testified on Rate
Base, Plant, Income Statement, and
Revenue Requirement. Assisted in
preparation of Rate Design.

Permanent Rate Application — Water.
Prepared short-form schedules for Rate
Base, Income Statement, Plant, Bill
Counts, and Rate Design.

Interim and Permanent Rate Application,
Financing Application - Water. Prepared
schedules and testified on Rate Base,
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COMPANY/CLIENT

Chaparral City Water Company
ACC Docket No. W-02113A-04-0616

Tierra Linda Home Owners Association
ACC Docket No. W-0423 A-04-0075

Diamond Ventures - Red Rock Utilities
ACC Docket No. WS-04245A-04-0184

Arizona-American Water Company, Inc.

ACC Docket No. WS-01303A-02-0867
ACC Docket No. WS-01303A-02-0868
ACC Docket No. WS-01303A-02-0869
ACC Docket No. WS-01303A-02-0870
ACC Docket No. WS-01303A-02-0908

Bella Vista Water Company, Inc.
ACC Docket No. W-02465A-01-0776

Green Valley Water Company
Docket (2000 Not Filed)

Gold Canyon Sewer Company
ACC Docket No. SW-02519A-00-0638

FUNCTION
Plant, Income Statement, Cost of Capital,
and Rate Design.

Permanent Rate Application. Prepared
schedules and testified on Rate Base,
Plant, and Income Statement. Assisted in
preparation Rate Design.

Certificate of Convenience and Necessity
— Water. Prepared pro-forma balance
sheets, income statements, plant
schedules, rate base, financing, and initial
rate design.

Certificate of Convenience and Necessity
— Water and Sewer. Prepared pro-forma
balance sheets, income statements, plant
schedules, rate base, financing, and initial
rate design.

Permanent Rate Application Water and
Sewer (10 divisions). Prepared schedules
and testimony on Rate Base, Plant,
Income Statement, and Revenue
Requirement. Assisted in preparation of
Rate Design.

Permanent Rate Application - Water.
Prepared schedules and testimony on Rate
Base, Plant, Income Statement, and
Revenue Requirement. Assisted in
preparation of Cost of Capital and Rate
Design.

Permanent Rate Application. Prepared
schedules and testimony on Rate Base,
Plant, Income Statement, and Revenue
Requirement. Assisted in preparation of
Cost of Capital and Rate Design.

Permanent Rate Application - Sewer.
Prepared schedules and testimony on Rate
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COMPANY/CLIENT

Rio Verde Utilities, Inc.
ACC Docket No. WS-02156A-00-0321

Livco Water Company
Livco Sewer Company
ACC Docket No. SW-02563A-05-0820

Livco Water Company
ACC Docket No. SW-02563A-07-0506

Cave Creek Sewer Company

Avra Water Cooperative
ACC Docket No. W-02126A-00-0269

Town of Oro Valley
Far West Water Company

ACC Docket No. WS-03478A-99-0144

MHC Operating Limited Partnership
Sedona Venture Wastewater
ACC Docket No. W-

Vail Water Company

FUNCTION

Base, Plant, Revenue Requirement, and
Income Statement. Assisted in
preparation of Cost of Capital and Rate
Design.

Permanent Rate Application — Water and
Sewer. Prepared schedules and testimony
on Rate Base, Plant, Revenue Requirement,
and Income Statement. Assisted in
preparation of Cost of Capital and Rate
Design.

Permanent Rate Application — Water.
Prepared short-form schedules for Rate
Base, Income Statement, Plant, Bill
Counts, and Rate Design.

Permanent Rate Application — Water and
Sewer. Prepared short-form schedules for
Rate Base, Income Statement, Plant, Bill
Counts, and Rate Design.

Revenue Requirement, Rate Adjustment
and Rate Design - Sewer.

Permanent Rate Application — Water.
Assisted in preparation of Rate Base, Plant,
Income Statement, Revenue Requirement,
and Rate Design.

Revenue Requirements, Water Rate
Adjustments and Rate Design.

Permanent Rate Application — Water.
Assisted in preparation of schedules for
Rate Base, Income Statement, Revenue
Requirement, Lead-Lag Study, Cost of
Capital, and Rate Design.

Permanent Rate Application — Sewer.
Assisted in preparation of schedules for
Rate Base, Plant, Income Statement, and
Rate Design.

Permanent Rate Application. Assisted in
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COMPANY/CLIENT
ACC Docket No. W-01651B-99-0406

E&T Water Company
ACC Docket No. W-01409A-95-0440

New River Utility
ACC Docket No. W-01737A-99-0633

Golden Shores Water
ACC Docket No. W-01815A-98-0645

Ponderosa Utility Company
ACC Docket No. W-01717A-99-0572

Chaparral City Water Company
Docket (1999 Not Filed)

FUNCTION
preparation of schedules for Rate Base,
Plant, Income Statement, and Rate Design.

Permanent Rate Application - Water.
Assisted in preparation of schedules for
Rate Base, Plant, Income Statement, and
Rate Design.

Permanent Rate Application - Water.
Assisted in preparation of schedules for
Rate Base, Plant, Income Statement, and
Rate Design.

Permanent Rate Application — Water.
Assisted in preparation of schedules for
Rate Base, Plant, Income Statement, and
Rate Design.

Permanent Rate Application — Water.
Assisted in preparation of schedules for
Rate Base, Plant, Income Statement, and
Rate Design.

Permanent Rate Application - Water.
Prepared schedules and testimony on Rate
Base, Plant, Revenue Requirement, and
Income Statement. Assisted in preparation
of Cost of Capital and Rate Design.
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Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division Exhibit
Test Year Ended December 31, 2014 Schedule A-1
Computation of Increase in Gross Revenue Page 1
Requirements As Adjusted Witness: Bourassa
Line
No.

1 Fair Value Rate Base $ 8,861,632
2
3 Adjusted Operating Income $ 340,290
4
5 Current Rate of Return 3.84%
6
7 Required Operating Income $ 762,189
8
9 Required Rate of Return on Fair Value Rate Base 8.60%
10
11 Operating Income Deficiency $ 421,899
12
13 Gross Revenue Conversion Factor 1.6209
14
15 Increase in Gross Revenue
16 Requirement $ 683,836
17
18 Adjusted Test Year Revenues $ 3,032,792
19 Increase in Gross Revenue Revenue Requirement $ 683,836
20 Proposed Revenue Requirement $ 3,716,628
21 % Increase 22.55%
22 |
23 Customer Present Proposed Dollar Percent |
24 Classification Rates Rates Increase Increase
25 5/8X3/4 Inch Residential $ 2,380,134 $ 2,931,588 $ 551,454 23.17%
26 3/4 Inch Residential 4,550 5,561 1,011 22.21%
27 1Inch Residential 31,958 38,968 7.010 21.94%
28 11/2inch Residential 5,704 6,948 1,244 21.82%
29 2 Inch Residential 6,720 8,180 1,460 21.72%
30 Subtotal 2,429,066 2,991,245 562,179 23.14%
31 - - - 0.00%
32 5/8X3/4 Inch Commercial 47,700 58,980 11,279 23.65%
33 1 Inch Commercial 99,874 123,080 23,206 23.24%
34 11/2 Inch Commercial 19,775 24,088 4,313 21.81%
35 2 Inch Commercial 144,375 177,547 33,172 22.98%
36 3 Inch Commercial 37,364 45,536 8,172 21.87%
37 4 Inch Commercial 56,854 70,800 13,946 24.53%
38 Subtotal 405,943 500,032 94,089 23.18%
39 - - - 0.00%
40 5/8X3/4 Inch School 383 469 86 22.59%
41 11/2 Inch School 969 1,183 214 22.10%
42 2 Inch School 31,055 37,812 6,757 21.76%
43 3 Inch School 62,589 77,460 14,872 23.76%
44 4 Inch School 12,624 15,632 3,008 23.83%
45 6 inch School 30,503 37,244 6,741 22.10%
46 Subtotal 138,122 169,800 31,679 22.94%
47 - - - 0.00%
48 5/8X3/4 Inch Industriat 3,095 3,808 713 23.04%
49 2inch Industrial 33,159 40,872 7,713 23.26%
50 Subtotal 36,254 44,680 8,426 23.24%
51 - - - 0.00%
52 5/8X3/4 Inch Mutti-family 3,659 4,505 846 23.12%
53 11/2Inch Multi-family 1,258 1,533 275 21.82%
54 Subtotal 4,917 6,038 1,121 22.7%%
55 - - - 0.00%
56 6 Inch Bulk 36,310 43,076 6,766 18.63%
57 Fire Lines up to 8 Inch 1,085 1,085 - 0.00%
58
59 Decliining Usage Adjustment (96,762) (120,004) (23,242) 24.02%
60 Revenue Annualization ’ 27,094 32,279 5,185 19.14%
61 Subtotal $ 2,982,030 $ 3,668,232 § 686,202 23.01%
62
63 Other Water Revenues 48,254 48,254 - 0.00%
64 Reconciling Amount 2,508 142 (2,366)  -94.34%
65
66 Total of Water Revenues $ 3032792 % 3716628 $ 683,836 22.55%
67
68
69 SUPPORTING SCHEDULES:
70 B-1
71 C-1
72 C-3

73 H-1
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Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division
Test Year Ended December 31, 2014
Summary of Results of Operations

Exhibit

Schedule A-2
Page 1

Witness: Bourassa

Projected Year

Test Year Present Proposed
Prior Years Ended Actual Adjusted Rates Rates

Description 12/31/2012 12/31/2013 12/31/2014 12/31/2014 12/31/2015 12/31/2015
Gross Revenues $ 2,800,671 $ 3,032,259 $ 3,102,459 $ 3,032,792 $ 3,032,792 $ 3,716,628
Revenue Deductions and 2,068,280 2,092,811 2,562,254 2,692,502 2,692,502 2,954,439

Operating Expenses
Operating Income $ 732391 § 939448 $ 540,205 $ 340,290 $ 340,290 $ 762,189
Other Income and - 6,193 4,545 4,545 4,545 4,545

Deductions
Interest Expense 37,827 (12,306) (10,405) (92,250) (92,250) (92,250)
Net Income $ 770218 $ 933334 § 534344 § 252585 $ 252585 $ 674,484
Common Shares 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000
Earned Per Average

Common Share 770.22 933.33 534.34 252.58 252.58 674.48
Dividends Paid - - - - - -
Dividends Per

Common Share - - - - - -
Payout Ratio - - - - - -
Return on Average

Invested Capital 3.54% 4.17% 2.29% 1.08% 1.06% 2.82%
Return on Year End

Capital 3.52% 4.08% 2.25% 1.08% 1.04% 2.77%
Return on Average

Common Equity 10.23% 10.04% 4.95% 2.46% 2.18% 5.72%
Return on Year End

Common Equity 9.09% 9.22% 4.66% 2.43% 2.16% 5.56%
Times Bond Interest Earned

Before income Taxes (19.36) 76.34 51.92 5.28 5.28 12.57
Times Total Interest and

Preferred Dividends Earned

After Income Taxes (19.36) 76.84 52.35 3.74 3.74 8.31

SUPPORTING SCHEDULES
C-1
E-2
F-1



Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division
Test Year Ended December 31, 2014
Summary of Capital Structure

Line
No.
1
2
3
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12

13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
a7
48
49
50

Description:

Short-Term Debt
Long-Term Debt

Total Debt

Preferred Stock

Common Equity

Total Capital & Debt

Capitalization Ratios:
Long-Term Debt

Total Debt

Preferred Stock

Common Equity

Total Capital

Weighted Cost of
Senior Capital

SUPPORTING SCHEDULES:

Exhibit
Schedule A-3
Page 1
Witness: Bourassa

E-1
D-1

Test Projected
Prior Years Ended Year Year
12/31/2012 12/31/2013 12/31/2014 12/31/2015

- - - 4,924 545

$ -8 - - $ 4924545

8,470,297 10,125,334 11,459,457 11,490,604

$ 8470297 $ 10,125,334 11,459,457 $ 16,415,149
0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 30.00%

0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 30.00%
100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 70.00%
100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 1.04%



Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division Exhibit

Test Year Ended December 31, 2014 Scheduie A-4
Construction Expenditures Page 1
and Gross Utility Plant in Service Witness: Bourassa

Net Plant Gross

Placed Utility

Line Construction in Plant

Expenditures Service in Service

Prior Year Ended 12/31/2012 726,935 726,935 36,622,679
Prior Year Ended 12/31/2013 (719,808) (1,137,246) 35,485,434
Test Year Ended 12/31/2014 2,949,040 869,492 36,354,926
Projected Year Ended 12/31/2015 1,391,146 1,391,146 37,746,072

WWWWNNNNNRNNNNN=D @A aaaaaaa P
wN—‘ocooo\:oumAwM-aocooo\lmmAwm--5“°°°\'°’°""’“'°'\"‘|o

34 SUPPORTING SCHEDULES:
35 B-2

36 E-5

37 F-3

38

39

i
o




Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division
Test Year Ended December 31, 2014
Summary Statements of Cash Flows

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net Income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and Amortization
Other -Adjustments
Changes in Certain Assets and Liabilities:
Accounts Receivable
Unbilled Revenues
Materials and Supplies Inventory
Prepaid Expenses
Deferred Charges
Notes Receivable
Accounts Payable
Intercompany payable
Customer Meter Deposits
Taxes Payable
Other assets and liabilities
Rounding
Net Cash Flow provided by Operating Activities
Cash Flow From Investing Activities:
Capital Expenditures
Plant Held for Future Use
Changes in debt reserve fund
Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Cash Flow From Financing Activities
Change in Restricted Cash
Proceeds from Long-Term Debt
Net receipt of contributions in aid of construction
Net receipts of advances in aid of construction
Repayments of Long-Term Debt
Distributions/Dividends Paid
Deferred Financing Costs
Paid in Capital
Net Cash Flows Provided by Financing Activities
Increase(decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivaients at Beginning of Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year

SUPPORTING SCHEDULES:
E-3
F-2

Exhibit

Schedule A-5
Page 1

Witness: Bourassa

Prior Prior Test Projected Year
Year Year Year Present Proposed
Ended Ended Ended Rates Rates
12/31/2012 12/31/2013 12/31/2014 12/31/2015 12/31/2015
$ 770218 $ 933,334 $§ 534344 § 252585 $§ 674,484
105,427 (90,293) 564,167 562,211 562,211
(453,776) (2,447,986) (524,116)
(83,946) (116,368) (59,170)
1,890 243 (1,508)
(243,205) - (130,278)
1,192,778 (337,398) 52,976
2,140 (2,128) (750)
6,177 (3,480) (105,701)
(806) 1,471 20,722
(2,086,063) (215,708) 1,605,896
$ (789,166) $ (2,278,313) $§ 1,956,582 $ 814,796 $ 1,236,695
(726,935) 719,808 (2,949,040) (1,391,146) (1,391,146)
$ (726,935) $ 719,808 $ (2,949.040) $ (1,391,146) $ (1,391,146)
13,034 318,511 (784,430) (150,962) (150,962)
(56,732) (27,465) 966,492 294,098 294,098
933,260 536,507 799,778 - -
$ 889,562 $ 827,553 $§ 981,840 § 143,137 $ 143,137
(626,539) (730,952) (10,618) (433,213) (11,314)
39,401 (587,138) (1,318,089) (1,328,708) (1,328,708)

$ (587,138) §

(1,318,089) $ (1,328,708) § (1,761,921) $ (1,340,022)




Line

- Z

[$. 00 -~ T N HB DB WWWW W W W wWww

Summary of Rate Base

Gross Utility Plant in Service
Less: Accumulated Depreciation

Net Utility Plant in Service

Less:

Advances in Aid of Construction

Contributions in Aid of Construction

Accumulated Amortization of CIAC

Customer Meter Deposits
Custmer Security Deposits
Accumulated Deferred Income Tax

Plus:

Deferred Regulatory Assets TCE Plume

Prepayments

Materials and Supplies

Working capital

Total Rate Base

SUPPORTING SCHEDULES:

B-2
B-3
B-5
E-1

Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division
Test Year Ended December 31, 2014

Exhibit

Schedule B-1
Page 1
Witness: Bourassa
Original Cost Fair Value
Rate base Rate Base
$ 37,384,534 37,384,534
16,309,712 16,309,712
$ 21,074,821 21,074,821
976,558 976,558
20,261,911 20,261,911

(10,388,151)

(10,388,151)

332,034 332,034
1,121,537 1,121,537

1,508 1,508

89,192 89,192

$ 8,861,632 8,861,632




Line
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45
48
47
48
49
50
51

Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division

Test Year Ended December 31, 2014

Original Cost Rate Base Proforma Adjustments

Gross Utility
Plant in Service

Less:
Accumulated
Depreciation

Net Utility Plant
in Service

Less:
Advances in Aid of
Construction

Contributions in Aid of
Construction - Gross

Accumulated Amortization of CIAC

Customer Meter Deposits
Custmer Security Deposits
Accumulated Deferred income Tax

Plus:

Deferred Regulatory Assets TCE Plume
Prepayments

Materials and Supplies

Working capital

Total

SUPPORTING SCHEDULES:
B-2, page 2
E-1

Actual
at
End of
Test Year

$ 36,354,926
15,881,917
$ 20,473,009

960,148

20,267,791
(11,040,770)

332,034

1,608

S 0955313

Exhibit

Schedule B-2
Page 1

Witness: Bourassa

Adjusted
at end
Proforma of
Adjustment Test Year
1,029,608 $ 37,384,534
427,795 16,309,712
$ 21,074,821
16,410 976,558
(5,880) 20,261,911
652,619 (10,388,151)
- 332,034
1,121,537 1,121,537
1,508
89,192 89,192

S Be61632

RECAP SCHEDULES:
B-1
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Test Year Ended December 31, 2014
Original Cost Rate Base Proforma Adjustments
Adjustment Number 1 - A

Remove Affiliate Profit

Line

No.

1

2

3

4 Acct.
5 No.
6 301
7 302
8 303
9 304
10 305
1 306
12 307
13 308
14 309
15 310
16 31
17 320
18 3201
19 320.2
20 330
21 3301
22 330.2
23 331
24 333
25 334
26 335
27 336
28 339
29 340
30 340.1
31 341
32 342
33 343
34 344
35 345
36 346
37 347
38 348
39

40

41

42

Description

Organization Cost

Franchise Cost

Land and Land Rights
Structures and Improvements
Collecting and Impounding Res.
Lake River and Other Intakes
Wells and Springs

Infiltration Galleries and Tunnels

Supply Mains

Power Generation Equipment
Electric Pumping Equipment
Water Treatment Equipment
Water Treatment Plant
Chemical Solution Feeders
Dist. Reservoirs & Standpipe
Storage tanks

Pressure Tanks

Trans. and Dist. Mains
Services

Meters

Hydrants

Backflow Prevention Devices
Other Plant and Misc. Equip.
Office Furniture and Fixtures
Computers and Software
Transportation Equipment
Stores Equipment

Tools and Work Equipment
Laboratory Equipment
Power Operated Equipment
Communications Equipment
Miscellaneous Equipment
Other Tangible Plant

TOTALS

43 SUPPORTING SCHEDULE
44  Work papers

Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division

Exhibit

Schedule B-2
Page 3.1
Witness: Bourassa

2012 2013 Total
$ - $ - $ -
) - (7)
(19) - (19)
(1. 96) ) (7) (2-04)
;86) (:;27) (20) (4:32)
(773) (50) (822)
(158) ¥3) (160)
(13) - (13)
(6) - (6)
(17) - (17)
(1-07) ) (1_07)
(34) - (34)
$ (1415 $ (386) $ (20) $ - 8 - 8 (1,5;21)
RECAP SCHEDULES:
B-2, page 3



Line
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Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division
Test Year Ended December 31, 2014
Original Cost Rate Base Proforma Adjustments

Adjustment Number 1 - B

Post-Test Year Plant

Acct.
No.
101
301
302
303
304
305
306
307
308
309
310
311
320

3201

320.2
330

330.1

330.2
331
333
334
335
336
339
340

340.1
341
342
343
344
345
346
347
348

Description

Plant-in-Service

Organization Cost

Franchise Cost

Land and Land Rights
Structures and Improvements
Collecting and Impounding Res.
Lake River and Other Intakes
Wells and Springs

Infiltration Galleries and Tunnels
Supply Mains

Power Generation Equipment
Electric Pumping Equipment
Water Treatment Equipment
Water Treatment Plant
Chemical Solution Feeders
Dist. Reservoirs & Standpipe
Storage tanks

Pressure Tanks

Trans. and Dist. Mains
Services

Meters

Hydrants

Backflow Prevention Devices
Other Plant and Misc. Equip.
Office Furniture and Fixtures
Computers and Software
Transportation Equipment
Stores Equipment

Tools and Work Equipment
Laboratory Equipment

Power Operated Equipment
Communications Equipment
Miscellaneous Equipment
Other Tangible Plant

TOTALS

SUPPORTING SCHEDULE
Work papers
Testimony

$

RECAP SCHEDULES:
B-2, page 3

Orginal
Cost

816,367

Exhibit

Schedule B-2
Page 3.2

Witness: Bourassa




Line

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46

zooo\ncam:sww-lg

Liberty Utilities (Rio Rica Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division

Corporate Plant

Acct.

Test Year Ended December 31, 2014

Original Cost Rate Base Proforma Adjustments

No. Description

903 Land and Land Rights
904  Structures and Improvments
940.1 Computers and Software

LU Sub-Corp. Plant

Adjustment Number 1-C

0] (21

Liberty

Orginal Utilities

Cost Eactor
1,396,196 15.64%
12,560,664 15.64%
2,187,630 15.64%

903 Land and Land Rights -
904  Structures and improvments 405,370
940 Office Furniture and Equipment 257,704

940.1 Computers and Software

TOTALS

SUPPORTIN
Work papers

CHEDULE

1,359,281

$ 18,166,846

Exhibit

Schedule B-2
Page 3.3
Witness: Bourassa

[3] [4] = [1]x[2]x[3]
Rio Rico Allocated

Water Orginal

Eactor Cost
6.39% 13,956
6.39% 125,550
6.39% 21,866
6.39% -
6.39% 25,907
6.39% 16,470
6.39% 86,871

$ 290,620

RECAP SCHEDULES:

B-2, page 3



Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division Exhibit

Test Year Ended December 31, 2014 Schedule B-2
Original Cost Rate Base Proforma Adjustments Page 3.4
Adjdstment Number 1-D Witness: Bourassa

Line
No.
1 Reconciliation of Plant to Plant Recongtruction
2
3 Adjusted Plant
4 Acct. Orginal B-2 Orginal Per
5 No. Description Cost Adjustments Cost Reconstruction  Difference
6 101 Plant-in-Service 38,941 - 38,941 - (38,941)
7 301 Organization Cost - - - 5,785 5,785
8 302 Franchise Cost 417 - 417 417 -
9 303 Land and Land Rights 45,975 (7) 45,968 45,968 -
10 304 Structures and Improvements 3,145,518 9,935 3,155,453 3,030,713 (124,740)
11 305 Collecting and Impounding Res. - - - - -
12 306 Lake River and Other Intakes - - - - -
13 307 Wells and Springs 464,558 - 464,558 505,898 41,340
14 308 Infiltration Galleries and Tunnels - - - - -
15 309 Supply Mains 272,500 - 272,500 272,502 2
16 310 Power Generation Equipment 218,988 - 218,988 219,360 373
17 311 Electric Pumping Equipment 1,688,960 10,789 1,699,749 1,952,570 252,821
18 320 Water Treatment Equipment 384,882 - 384,882 369,996 (14,886)
19 320.1 Water Treatment Plant - - - 92 92
20 320.2 Chemical Solution Feeders - - - 4,975 4,975
21 330 Dist. Reservoirs & Standpipe 760,531 - 760,531 759,320 (1,211)
22 330.1 Storage tanks - - - 1,066 1,066
23 330.2 Pressure Tanks - - - 144 144
24 331 Trans. and Dist. Mains 22,854,490 27,689 22,882,179 22,759,460 (122,718)
25 333 Services 3,850,509 205,529 4,056,038 4,034,788 (21,250)
26 334 Meters . 1,188,305 555,878 1,744,183 1,696,383 (47,800)
27 335 Hydrants ’ 635,021 847 635,868 635,868 0)
28 336 Backflow Prevention Devices 10,198 - 10,198 15,855 5,658
29 339 Other Plant and Misc. Equip. 145,475 - 145,475 123,778 (21,696)
30 340 Office Furniture and Fixtures 115,475 392 115,867 115,867 ()}
31 340.1 Computers and Software - - - 76,919 76,919
32 341 Transportation Equipment 141,868 17) 141,852 141,853 1
33 342 Stores Equipment - - - - -
34 343 Tools and Work Equipment 94,119 3,545 97,663 97,663 (0)
35 344 Laboratory Equipment 3,061 - 3,061 3,061 -
36 345 Power Operated Equipment - - - - -
37 346 Communications Equipment 295,136 (34) 295,102 218,183 (76,919)
38 347 Miscellaneous Equipment - - - 5,427 5,427
39 348 Other Tangible Plant - - - - -
40 - -
41 TOTALS $ 36,354,926 $ 814,546 $ 37,169,472 $ 37,093913 $ (75,558)
42
43
44 SUPPORTING SCHEDULE RECAP SCHEDULES:
45 B-2, pages 3.1 through 3.3 B-2, page 3

46 B-2, pages 3.5 through 3.7
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Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division
Test Year Ended December 31, 2014
Original Cost Rate Base Proforma Adjustments

Adjustment Number 2 - A

Remove A/D related to Affiliate Profit

Acct.
No.
301
302
303
304
305
306
307
308
309
310
311
320

320.1

320.2
330

330.1

330.2
331
333
334
335
336
339
340

340.1
341
342
343
344
345
346
347
348

Description

Organization Cost

Franchise Cost

Land and Land Rights
Structures and improvements
Collecting and Impounding Res.
Lake River and Other Intakes
Wells and Springs

Infiltration Galleries and Tunnels
Supply Mains

Power Generation Equipment
Electric Pumping Equipment
Water Treatment Equipment
Water Treatment Plant
Chemical Solution Feeders
Dist. Reservoirs & Standpipe
Storage tanks

Pressure Tanks

Trans. and Dist. Mains
Services

Meters

Hydrants

Backflow Prevention Devices
Other Plant and Misc. Equip.
Office Furniture and Fixtures
Computers and Software
Transportation Equipment
Stores Equipment

Tools and Work Equipment
Laboratory Equipment

Power Operated Equipment
Communications Equipment
Miscellaneous Equipment
Other Tangible Plant

TOTALS

SUPPORTING SCHEDULE
Work papers

Depr
Rate
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
3.33%
2.50%
2.50%
3.33%
6.67%
2.00%
5.00%
12.50%
3.33%
3.33%
20.00%
2.22%
2.22%
5.00%
2.00%
3.33%
8.33%
2.00%
6.67%
6.67%
6.67%
20.00%
20.00%
4.00%
5.00%
10.00%
5.00%
10.00%
10.00%
10.00%

Exhibit

Schedule B-2
Page 4.1

Witness: Bourassa

2012 2013 Total
- - - $ .
(0) (1 (1 (1)
(10 (25) (25) E61)
(1 (5) (8) (14)
(11) 27 (27) (65)
(5) (13) (13) (32)
(0) (0) (0) M
(0) (0) (0) m
(1 (3) (3 (8)
(2) (5) (5) (13)
(m (3 (3) (8)
(33)_ 3 (83) $ (88) $ - 8 - 3 (204)

RECAP SCHEDULES:
B-2, page 4




Line
No.

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8

9
10
1
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
a4
45
46

Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division
Test Year Ended December 31, 2014
Original Cost Rate Base Proforma Adjustments

Corporate Plant A/D

Adjustment Number 2 - B

i1l

Acct.

No. Description AID

903 Land and Land Rights $ -
904 Structures and Improvments 322,068
940.1 Computers and Software 218,763

LU Sub-Corp. Plant

903 Land and Land Rights -
904  Structures and Improvments 74,974
940 Office Furniture and Equipment 21,535
940.1 Computers and Software 612,134

TOTALS

$ 1,249,474

SUPPORTING SCHEDULE

Work papers

{2]
Liberty
Utilities
Eactor
15.64%
15.64%
15.64%

3]

Rio Rico
Water
Eactor

B-2, page 4

6.39%
6.39%
6.39%

6.39%
6.39%
6.39%
6.39%

Exhibit

Schedule B-2
Page 4.2

Witness: Bourassa

[4] = [1]x21x(3]
Allocated
Orginal
Cost

3,218
2,187

4,792
1,376
39,121

$ 50,695

RECAP SCHEDULES:



o
5
o

P =
N_,ocooa\nmm.hwm—\l'o

Reconciliation of A/D to A/D Reconstnuction

Acct.
No.
108
301
302
303
304
305
306
307
308
309
310
311
320

320.1

320.2
330

330.1

330.2
331
333
334
336
336

Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division
Test Year Ended December 31, 2014

Original Cost Rate Base Proforma Adjustments
Adjustment Number2-C

Description

Accumulated Depreciation
Organization Cost

Franchise Cost

Land and Land Rights
Structures and improvements

Collecting and Impounding Res.

Lake River and Other Intakes
Wells and Springs

Infiltration Galleries and Tunnels

Supply Mains

Power Generation Equipment
Electric Pumping Equipment
Water Treatment Equipment
Water Treatment Plant
Chemical Solution Feeders
Dist. Reservoirs & Standpipe
Storage tanks

Pressure Tanks

Trans. and Dist. Mains
Services

Meters

Hydrants

Backflow Prevention Devices
Other Plant and Misc. Equip.
Office Furniture and Fixtures
Computers and Software
Transportation Equipment
Stores Equipment

Tools and Work Equipment
Laboratory Equipment
Power Operated Equipment
Communications Equipment
Miscellaneous Equipment
Other Tangible Plant

TOTALS

SUPPORTING SCHEDULE
B-2, pages 4.1
B-2, pages 3.5 through 3.7

Exhibit
Schedule B-2
Page 4.3
Witness: Bourassa

Adjusted Plant
Orginal B-2 Orginal Per
Cost Adjustments Cost Reconstruction  Difference

397,915 - 397,915 - (397,915)

- (1) (1) - 1

793,667 - 793,667 876,050 82,383

246,439 - 246,439 267,496 21,057
52,888 - 52,888 52,885 (3)

133,362 61) 133,302 134,264 962

728,611 - 728,611 1,450,340 721,729
220,016 - 220,016 218,101 (1,915)

- - - 2 2

- - - 498 498
287,817 - 287,817 238,934 (48,883)

- - - 12 12

- (14) (14) 4 18

10,833,354 (65) 10,833,289 10,838,809 5,520

721,051 (32) 721,019 731,730 10,711
733,659 (1) 733,658 705,382 (28,276)
235,483 - 235,483 217,184 (18,298)

1,795 - 1,795 4,180 2,385
60,760 (1) 60,759 52,219 (8,540)

31,242 - 31,242 37,006 5,764

- (8) (8) 76,919 76,927

138,720 - 138,720 139,877 1,158

- (13) (13) - 13

5,623 - 5,623 5,654 31

3,061 - 3,061 3,061 -

- (8) (8) - 8
266,210 - 266,210 206,595 (59,615)

(9,755) - (9,755) 1,815 11,570

$ 16,881,917 $ (204) 15,881,713 $ 16,259,017 $ 377,304

RECAP SCHEDULES:

B-2, page 4



Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division Exhibit

Test Year Ended December 31, 2014 Schedule B-2
Original Cost Rate Base Proforma Adjustments Page 5
Adjustment 3 Witness: Bourassa

Contributions-in-Aid of Construction (CIAC) and Accumulated Amortization

Line

Gross Accumulated
CIAC Amortization

Computed balance at End of Test Year $ 20,261,911 10,388,151

¥

Book balance at End of Test Year $ 20,267,791 11,040,770

©®O~NO» Awm—\lg

&

(652,619)

©«»

Increase (decrease) (5,880)

12 Adjustment to CIAC/AA CIAC $ (5,880) $ 652,619
13 Label 3a 3b

19 SUPPORTING SCHEDULES RECAP SCHEDULES:
20 E-1 B-2, page 2
21 B-2, page 5.1
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Line
No.
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8

9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18

Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division Exhibit

Test Year Ended December 31, 2014
Original Cost Rate Base Proforma Adjustments
Adjustment 4
Advances-in-Aid of Construction (AIAC)

Computed balance at End of Test Year
Book balance at End of Test Year

Increase (decrease)

SUPPORTING SCHEDULES
E-1
B-2, page 6.1

Schedule B-2
Page 6
Witness: Bourassa

$ 976,558

S 960148

$ 16,410

RECAP SCHEDULES:

B-2, page 2
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Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division

Test Year Ended December 31, 2014

Income Statement

Revenues
Metered Water Revenues
Unmetered Water Revenues
Other Water Revenues

Operating Expenses
Salaries and Wages
Purchased Water
Purchased Power
Chemicals
Fuel for Power Production
Repairs and Maintenance
Office Supplies and Expense
Outside Services
Contractual Services - Professional
Contractual Services - Testing
Contractual Services - Other
Water Testing
Rents
Transportation
Insurance
Regulatory Commission Expense
Materials and Supplies
Miscellaneous
Depreciation
Taxes Other Than Income
Property Taxes
Income Tax

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income

Other Income (Expense)
Interest and Dividend Income
AFUDC income
Miscellaneous Non-Utility Expenses
Interest Expense

Total Other Income (Expense)
Net Profit (Loss)

SUPPORTING SCHEDULES:
C-1, page 2
E-2

Exhibit
Schedule C-1
Page 1

Witness: Bourassa

Test Year Test Year Proposed Adjusted
Book Adjusted Rate with Rate
Results Adjustment Results Increase Increase
$ 3,054,205 $ (69,667) $ 2,984,538 $ 683,836 § 3,668,374
48,254 - 48,254 48,254
$ 3,102,459 $ (69,667) $ 3,032,792 § 683,836 $ 3,716,628
$ - - $ - $ -
69,895 - 69,895 69,895
343,825 (19,678) 324,148 324,148
4,882 (280) 4,602 4,602
33,953 118 34,071 34,071
1,038,097 939 1,039,036 1,039,036
41,807 - 41,807 41,807
93,820 3,984 97,904 97,904
4,169 - 4,169 4,169
60,352 - 60,352 60,352
27,865 - 27,865 27,865
5,900 27,272 33,172 33,172
29,680 - 29,680 29,680
61,392 - 61,392 61,392
564,167 (1,956) 562,211 562,211
182,351 (27,294) 155,057 11,658 166,715
- 147,142 147,142 250,279 397,421
$ 2,562254 $ 130,248 $ 2692502 § 261,937 $ 2,954,439
$ 540,205 $ (199,915) $ 340,290 $ 421,899 $ 762,189
5,045 - 5,045 5,045
(500) - (500) (500)
(10,405) (81,844) (92,250) (92,250)
$ (5,861) $ (81,844) $ (87,705) $ - $ (87,705)
$ 534,344 $ (281,759) $ 252,585 § 421899 % 674,484
RECAP SCHEDULES:
A-1
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Revenues
Expenses

Operating
Income

Interest
Expense

Other
Income /
Expense

Net Income

Revenues
Expenses

Operating
Income

Interest
Expense

Other
Income /
Expense

Net Income

Revenues
Expenses

Operating
Income

Interest
Expense

Other
Income /
Expense

Net Income

Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division

Test Year Ended December 31, 2014
Adjustments to Revenues and Expenses

Exhibit

Schedule C-2
Page 1

Witness: Bourassa

Adjustments to Revenues and Expenses

1 2 3 4 5 3] Subtotal
Allocated
Depreciation Property Rate Case Revenue Usage Adj. Corporate
Expense ' Taxes Expense Annualization =~ Normalization Costs
- - - 27,094 (96,762) - (69,667)
(1,956) (27,294) 27,272 1,734 (21,574) (45,395) (67,212)
1,956 27,294 (27,272) 25,361 (75,187) 45395 (2,455)
1,956 27,294 (27,272) 25,361 (75,187) 45,395 (2,455)
Adjustments to Revenues and Expenses
z 8 El 10 n 12 Subtotal
Allocated Intentionally Intentionaily Intentionally Intentionally Intentionally
Salaries Left Left Left Left Left
and Waages Blank Blank Blank Blank Blank
- - - - - - (69,667)
50,318 - - - - - (16,894)
(50,318) - - - - - (52,773)
(50,318) - - - - - (52,773)
Adjustments to Revenues and Expenses
13 14 15 16 Total
Intentionally Intentionally
Left Left Interest Income
Blank Blank Synchronization Taxes
. - - - (69,667)
- - - 147,142 - 130,248
- - - (147,142) - - (199,915)
(81,844) (81,844)
- - (81,844) (147,142) - - (281,759)




Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division
Test Year Ended December 31, 2014

Adjustments to Revenues and Expenses

Description

Plant-in-Service

Organization Cost

Franchise Cost

Land and Land Rights
Structures and Improvements
Coliecting and Impounding Res.
Lake River and Other Intakes
Wells and Springs

Infiltration Galleries and Tunneis
Supply Mains

Power Generation Equipment
Electric Pumping Equipment
Water Treatment Equipment
Water Treatment Plant
Chemical Solution Feeders
Dist. Reservoirs & Standpipe
Storage tanks

Pressure Tanks

Trans. and Dist. Mains
Services

Meters

Hydrants

Backflow Prevention Devices
Other Plant and Misc. Equip.
Office Furniture and Fixtures
Computers and Software
Transportation Equipment
Stores Equipment

Tools and Work Equipment
Laboratory Equipment

Power Operated Equipment
Communications Equipment
Miscellaneous Equipment
Other Tangibie Plant
SUBTOTAL

Land and Land Rights

Structures and Improvments

Office Furniture and Fixtures

Computers and Software
TOTALS

Less: Amortization of Contributions

Total Depreciation Expense

Adjusted Test Year Depreciation Expense

Increase (decrease) in Depreciation Expense

Adjustment to Revenues and/or Expenses

Line Acct.
No.  No.
1 101
2 301
2 302
3 303
4 304
5 305
6 306
7 307
8 308
9 309
10 310
11 311
12 320
13 320.1
14 320.2
15 330
16 330.1
17 330.2
18 331
19 333
20 334
21 335
22 336
23 339
24 340
25 340.1
26 341
27 342
28 343
29 344
30 345
31 346
32 347
33 348
34
35
36
37 903
38 904
39 940
40 940.1
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56

SUPPORTING SCHEDULE

B-2, page 3

Adjustment Number 1

Depreciation Expense

Exhibit
Schedule C-2
Page 2

Witness: Bourassa

Adjusted Non-Depr. Depreciable
Original and Fully Original Proposed Depreciation
Cost Depr. Plant Cost Rates Expense
- - - 0.00% -
5,785 (5,785) - 0.00% -
417 (417) - 0.00% -
45,968 (45,968) - 0.00% -
3,030,713 3,030,713 3.33% 100,923
- - 2.50% -
- - 2.50% -
505,898 505,898 3.33% 16,846
- - 6.67% -
272,502 272,502 2.00% 5,450
219,360 219,360 5.00% 10,968
1,952,570 1,952,570 12.50% 244,071
369,996 369,996 3.33% 12,321
92 92 3.33% 3
4,975 4,975 20.00% 995
759,320 759,320 2.22% 16,857
1,066 1,066 2.22% 24
144 144 5.00% 7
22,759,460 22,759,460 2.00% 455,189
4,034,788 4,034,788 3.33% 134,358
1,696,383 1,696,383 8.33% 141,309
635,868 635,868 2.00% 12,717
15,855 15,855 6.67% 1,058
123,778 123,778 6.67% 8,256
115,867 115,867 6.67% 7,728
76,919 (76,919) - 20.00% -
141,853 (138,029) 3,823 20.00% 765
- - 4.00% -
97,663 97,663 5.00% 4,883
3,061 (3,061) - 10.00% -
- - 5.00% -
218,183 218,183 10.00% 21,818
5,427 5427 10.00% 543
- - 10.00% -
$ 37,093913 $ (270,179) $ 36,823,734 $ 1,197,090
13,956 (13,956) - 0.00% -
151,457 161,457 2.56% 3,877
38,336 38,336 6.67% 2,557
86,871 86,871 20.00% 17,374
$ 37,384,534 $ (284,135) $ 37,100,399 $ 1,220,898
Gross Amort. Rate
$ 20,261,911 3.2509% $ (658,687)
S (658,687)
$ 562,211
564,167
(1,956)
$ (1,956)
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Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division

DESCRIPTION

Test Year Ended December 31, 2014
Adjustment to Revenues and Expenses
Adjustment Number 2

Property Taxes

Company Adjusted Test Year Revenues

Weight Factor

Subtotal (Line 1 ® Line 2)

Company Recommended Revenue

Subtotal (Line 4 + Line 5)
Number of Years

Exhibit

Schedule C-2
Page 3

Witness: Bourassa

Three Year Average (Line 5/ Line 6)
Department of Revenue Mutilplier
Revenue Base Value (Line 7 * Line 8)

Plus: 10% of CWIP (intentionally excluded)
Less: Net Book Value of Licensed Vehicles
Full Cash Value (Line 9 + Line 10 - Line 11)

Assessment Ratio

Assessment Value (Line 12 * Line 13)
Composite Property Tax Rate - Obtained from ADOR
Test Year Adjusted Property Tax Expense (Line 14 * Line 15)

Tax on Parcels

Total Property Taxes (Line 16 + Line 17)
Test Year Property Taxes
Adjustment to Test Year Property Taxes (Line 18 - Line 19)

Property Tax on Company Recommended Revenue (Line 16 + Line 17)

Company Test Year Adjusted Property Tax Expense (Line 18)
Increase in Property Tax Due to Increase in Revenue Requirement

Increase in Property Tax Due to Increase in Revenue Requirement (Line 24)

Increase in Revenue Requirement

Increase in Property Tax Per Dollar increase in Revenue (Line 26 / Line 27)

Test Year Company

as adjusted Recommended

$ 3,032,792 $ 3,032,792
2 2

6,065,584 6,065,584
3,032,792 3,716,628
9,098,376 9,782,212

3 3

3,032,792 3,260,737

2 2

6,065,584 6,521,474

1,975 1,975

6,063,608 6,519,499
18.0% 18.0%

1,091,450 1,173,510
14.2066% 14.2066%

$ 165,057 $ 166,715

$ 155,057
_$ 182,351
_$ (27,294)

$ 166,715

3 155,057

$ 11,658

$ 11,658

$ 683,836
1.70479%



Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division
Test Year Ended December 31, 2014
Adjustment to Revenues and Expenses
Adjustment Number 3

Rate Case Expense

No

Estimated Rate Case Expense
Estimated Amortization Period in Years

Annual Rate Case Expense

OCOoO~NOOHWN -

Test Year Rate Case Expense
11 Increase(decrease) Rate Case Expense
13 Adjustment to Revenue and/or Expense

16 Reference
17 Testimony

Exhibit

Schedule C-2
Page 4

Witness: Bourassa

165,860
5

33,172
5,900
27,272

27,272
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Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division
Test Year Ended December 31, 2014
Adjustment to Revenues and Expenses
Adjustment Number 4

Revenue Annualization

Revenue Annualization

Total Revenue from Annualization

Purchased Power Expense

Gallons Sold During Test Year (in 1,000s)

Cost per 1,000 gallons

Additional Gallons Soid from Annualization (in 1,000s)

Increase (decrease) in Purchased Power

TY Chemicals Expense

Gallons Soid During Test Year (in 1,000s)

Cost per 1,000 gallons

Additional Gallons Sold from Annualization (in 1,000s)

Increase (decrease) in Chemicals Expense

Additional billings from annualization
Postage rate

Increase (decrease) in Office Expense

Adjustment to Revenue and/or Expense

SUPPORTING SCHEDULES
Work Papers
H-1

Exhibit

Schedule C-2
Page 5

Witness: Bourassa

$ 27,094

$ 27,094

$ 343,825

636,008

$ 0.5406

2,947

3 1,593

$ 4,882

636,008

$ 0.0077

2,947

$ 23

256

$ 0.46

$ 118
S 25383




Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division Exhibit
Test Year Ended December 31, 2014 Schedule C-2
Adjustment to Revenues and Expenses Page 6
Adjustment Number 5 Witness: Bourassa

Usage Normalization Adjustment

Line

No.
1 Usage Nomalization Adjustment
2
3 Normalization Revenue Adjustment $ (96,762)
4
5 ————————————————————————
6 Adjustment to Revenues $ (96,762)
7
8 Purchased Power Expense $ 343,825
9 Gallons Sold During Test Year (in 1,000s) 636,008
10 Cost per 1,000 gallons $ 0.5406
11
12 Additional Gallons Sold from Usage Normalization (in 1,000s) (39,347)
13
14 Increase (decrease) in Purchased Power $ (21,271)
15
16 TY Chemicals Expense $ 4,882
17 Gallons Sold During Test Year (in 1,000s) 636,008
18 Cost per 1,000 gallons’ $ 0.0077
19
20 Additional Gallons Sold from Usage Normalization (in 1,000s) (39,347)
21
22 Increase (decrease) in Chemicals Expense $ 303
23
24
25 Adjustment to Revenue and/or Expense $ (75,187)
26
27 Reference
28 Testimony
29 Work Papers
30




Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division Exhibit
Test Year Ended December 31, 2014 Schedule C-2
Adjustment to Revenues and Expenses Page 7
Adjustment Number 6 Witness: Bourassa

Corporate Cost Adjustment - Non-Labor

Line

Corporate Allocation Adjustment

Adjusted Allocated Non-Labor Costs During Test Year $ 203,159
Allocated Non-Labor Costs During Test Year $ 248,554
Adjustment to Contractual Services Professional $ (45,395)
Adjustment to Revenue and/or Expense $ (45,395)
Reference

Testimony

Work Papers
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Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division
Test Year Ended December 31, 2014
Adjustment to Revenues and Expenses
Adjustment Number 7

Corporate Cost Adjustment - Labor

Test Year Allocated Labor Costs
Factor (1)
Increase in Labor Costs

Adjustment to Contractual Services - Professional

Test Year Aliocated Labor Costs
Factor (1)
Increase in Labor Costs

Adjustment to Contractual Services - Other

Adjustment to Revenue and/or Expense

Reference
Testimony
Work papers

(1) Average wage increase of 3% compounded over 2 years.

Exhibit

Schedule C-2
Page 8

Witness: Bourassa

760,821
6.09%
46,334

46,334

65,420
6.09%
3,984

3,984

50,318
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Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division
Test Year Ended December 31, 2014
Adjustment to Revenues and Expenses
Adjustment Number 8

INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

Exhibit

Schedule C-2
Page 9

Witness: Bourassa



Line

|\ JS UK NS NS N (T QI I N G Y Z
CONOORRNaOPENOOL "‘"\’—‘lp

Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division
Test Year Ended December 31, 2014
Adjustment to Revenues and Expenses
Adjustment Number 9

INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

Exhibit

Schedule C-2
Page 10

Witness: Bourassa
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Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division Exhibit
Test Year Ended December 31, 2014 Schedule C-2
Adjustment to Revenues and Expenses Page 11
Adjustment Number 10 Witness: Bourassa

INTENTIONALLY { EFT BLANK

Line
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Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division
Test Year Ended December 31, 2014
Adjustment to Revenues and Expenses
Adjustment Number 11

INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

Exhibit

Schedule C-2
Page 12

Witness: Bourassa
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Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division
Test Year Ended December 31, 2014
Adjustment to Revenues and Expenses
Adjustment Number 12

INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

Exhibit

Schedule C-2
Page 13

Witness: Bourassa
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Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division
Test Year Ended December 31, 2014
Adjustment to Revenues and Expenses
Adjustment Number 13

INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

Exhibit

Schedule C-2
Page 14

Witness: Bourassa




Line

[\ JR N N I (I QI I QG Y Z
COXMNODOARWNaOPRIRNOOA wN—‘lp

Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division
Test Year Ended December 31, 2014
Adjustment to Revenues and Expenses
Adjustment Number 14

INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

Exhibit

Schedule C-2
Page 15

Witness: Bourassa
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Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division
Test Year Ended December 31, 2014
Adjustment to Revenues and Expenses

Adjustment Number 15

Interest Synchronization

Fair Value Rate Base
Weighted Cost of Debt
Interest Expense

Test Year Interest Expense

Increase (decrease) in Interest Expense

Adjustment to Revenue and/or Expense

Weighted Cost of Debt Computation

Debt
Equity
Total

Percent
30.00%

70.00%

100.00%

8,861,632
1.04%

Cost
3.47%
10.80%

Exhibit
Schedule C-2
Page 16

Witness: Bourassa

$ 92,250
$ 10,405

81,844

3 (81,844)

Weighted
Cost
1.04%
7.56%
8.60%
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Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division

Test Year Ended December 31, 2014
Adjustment to Revenues and/or Expenses

Income Taxes

Computed Income Tax
Test Year Income tax Expense
Adjustment to Income Tax Expense

SUPPORTING SCHEDULE
C-3, page 2

Adjustment Number 16

Exhibit

Schedule C-2
Page 17

Witness: Bourassa

Test Year Test Year
at Present Rates at Proposed Rates
147,142 $ 397,421
- 147,142
147,142 $ 250,279




Line
No.

PRI DOCOIPNOT D WN A

14

16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26

28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36

38
39
40

Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division Exhibit
Test Year Ended December 31, 2014 Schedule C-3

Computation of Gross Revenue Conversion Factor Page 1
Witness: Bourassa

Percentage
of
Incremental
Gross
Description Revenues
Combined Federal and State Effective Income Tax Rate 37.234%
Property Taxes 1.070%
Total Tax Percentage 38.304%
Operating Income % = 100% - Tax Percentage 61.696%
1 = Gross Revenue Conversion Factor

Operating Income % 1.6209
SUPPORTING SCHEDULES: RECAP SCHEDULES:
C-3, page 2 A-1
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Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division
Test Year Ended December 31, 2014

Line
No,

1
2
3
4
5
6

© ®~

=)

12
13
14
15
16
17

24

25

27

29

30
31

33

35

37

3

o

58
59

GROSS REVENUE CONVERSION FACTOR

Deseripti
Calculation of Gross R Conversion E

Revenue

Uncollecible Factor (Line 11)

Revenues (L1-12)

Combined Federal and State income Tax and Property Tax Rate (Lina 23)
Subtotal (L3 - L4)

Revenue Conversion Factor (L1/L5)

Calculation of Uncollectible Factor.
Unity

Combined Federal and State Tax Rate (L17)
One Minus Combined Income Tax Rate (L7 -L8 )
Uncoliectible Rate

Uncollectible Factor (L9 * L10 )

Operating Income Before Taxes (Arizona Taxable Income)
Arizona State income Tax Rate

Federal Taxable Income {L12 - L13)

Applicable Federal Income Tax Rate (L55 Col F)

Effective Federal Income Tax Rate (L14 x L15}

Combined Federal and State income Tax Rate (L13 +L16)

c ion of Effective P Tax E:
Unity f

Combined Federal and State Income Tax Rate (L17)

One Minus Combined Income Tax Rate (L18-L19)

Property Tax Factor

Effective Property Tax Factor (L20*L21)

Combined Federal and State Income Tax and Property Tax Rate (L17+L22)

Required Operating Income
AdjustedTest Year Operating Income (Loss)
Required Increase in Operating Income {L24 - L25)

income Taxes on Recommended Revenue (Col. (F), L52)
Income Taxes on Test Year Revenue (Col. (C), L52)
Required Increase in Revenue to Provide for income Taxes (L27 - L 28)

Revenue
Uncollectible Rate (Line 10)
L ible Expense on Revenue (124 * [ 25)
Adjusted Test Year Uncollectible Expense
Required Increase in Revenue to Provide for Uncollectible Exp.

Property Tax with Recommended Revenue
Property Tax on Test Year Revenue
increase in Property Tax Due to Increase in Revenue (L35-136)

Total Required Increase in Revenue (L26 + 129 + 1.37)

Calculation of income Tax:
Revenue

Operating Expenses Exciuding Income Taxes
Synchronized interest (1.47)

Arizona Taxable Income (L39 - L40 - L41)

Arizona State Effective income Tax Rate {see work papers)
Arzona Income Tax (L42 x L43)

Federal Taxable Income (L42- 44)

Federal Tax on First Income Bracket ($1 - $50,000) @ 15%

Federatl Tax on Second Income Bracket ($50,001 - $75,000) @ 26%
Federal Tax on Third Income Bracket {$75,001 - $100,000) @ 34%
Federal Tax on Fourth Income Bracket ($100,001 - $335,000) @ 39%
Federal Tax on Fifth Income Bracket ($335,001 -$10,000,000) @ 34%

Total Federal Income Tax
Combined Federal and State Income Tax (L35 + L42)

COMBINED Applicable Federal income Tax Rate [Col. [D], L53 - Col. [A], L53/[Col. [D], L45 - Cot. [A], L45]

Exhibit

Schedule C-3
Page 2

Witness: Bourassa

Applicable Federal Income Tax Rate [Col. [E), L53 - Col. {B). L53]/ [Col. [E], L45 - Col. [B). L45)

YWATER Applicable Federal Income Tax Rate [Col. [F], L53 - Col. [C], L83]/[Col. [F), L45 - Col. [C], L45)

[of jon of Interest

Rate Base

Weighted Average Cost of Debt
Synchronized Interest (L59 X L60)

A) (8) ©) (D) [E) [F}
100.0000%
1.620851
100.0000%
0.0000%
100.0000%
4.8000%
95.1000%
34.0000%
32.3340%
37.2340%
100.0000%
37.2340%
62.7660%
1.7048%
1.0700%
38.3040%
s 762,189
$ 340,290
3 421,899
s 397,421
$ 147,142
s 250,279
] 3,716,628
0.0000%
B _
$ .
s -
$ 166,715
$ 155,057
2 11,658
3 683 836
G (B) (©) (D) €] IFl
Test Year
Total Total
Water Water
% 3,032,792 s 3,082,792 $ 3,716,628 $ 3,716,628
2,545,360 2,545,360 2,557,018 2.557,018
92,250 92,250 92,250 92,250
$ 395,182 $ 395,182 3 1,067,361 $ 1,067,360
4.9000%) 4.9000%| 4.9000%| 4.9000%)|
s 19,364 $ 19,364 $ 52,301 3 52,301
$ 375818 s 375,818 $ 1,015,061 $ 1,015,060
$ 7,500 $ 7.500 $ 7,500 s 7.500
3 6,250 $ 6,250 s 6,250 $ 6.250
$ 8,500 $ 8,500 $ 8.500 H 8,500
$ 91,650 $ 91,650 $ 91,650 s 91.650
$ 13,878 $ 13,678 3 231221 3 231,220
3 127,778 $ 127,778 $ 345,121 3 345120
$ 147,142 $ 147,142 $ 397,421 $ 397.421
34.0000%
0.0000%
34.0000%
Water
$ 8861632
1.0410%)
£ 92,250
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Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division
Test Year Ended December 31, 2014

Comparnative Balance Sheets

ASSETS
PLANT

Plant In Service
Non-Utility Plant
Construction Work in Progress
Property Held for Future Use
Accumulated Depreciation
Net Plant

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Equivalents
Restricted Cash
Net Accounts Receivable
Inter-Company Receivable
Notes Receivable
Materials
Prepayments
Other Current Assets

Total Current Assets

OTHER ASSETS
Deferred Finance Costs
QOther Deferred Debits
Other Non-Current Assets
Deferred Debits

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDER EQUITY

Stockholder's Equity
Long-Term Debt

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Current Portion of Long-Term Debt
Payables to Associated Companies
Customer Security Deposits
Customer Meter Deposits, Current
Current Portion of AIAC
Accrued Taxes
Accrued Interest
Other Current Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities

DEFERRED CREDITS
Customer Meter Deposits, less current
Advances in Aid of Construction
Accumulated Deferred Income Taxes
Contributions In Aid of Construction
Accumulated Amortization
Other Deferred Credits
Total Deferred Credits

Total Liabilities & Common Equity

SUPPORTING SCHEDULES:
Work papers

Exhibit

Schedule E-1
Page 1

Witness: Bourassa

Test
Year Year Year
Ended Ended Ended
12/31/2014 12/31/2013 12/31/2012
36,354,926 $ 35,485,434 $ 36,622,679
1,569,993 - -
1,069,432 559,877 142,440
(15,881,817) (15,211,209) (16,621,713)
23,112,434 3 20,834,102 $ 20,143,407
21,850 $ 32,467 $ 33,760
518,351 459,181 342,813
783 - -
1,508 - 243
- 1,555,234 1,380,083
542,491 $ 2,046,882 $ 1,756,899
- $ - $ -
130,278 - -
130,278 $ - $ -
23,785,203 $ 22,880,984 $ 21,900,306
11,459,457 $ 10,125,334 $ 8,470,297
- $ - 3 -
- $ - $ -
617,703 563,944 901,342
- 136,433 139,915
30,732 - -
5,000 - -
29,552 8,830 7,359
12,535 13,285 15,413
1,146,754 1,096,092 1,136,649
1,842,276 $ 1,818,584 $ 2,200,678
301,302 $ - $ -
955,148 294,958 322,423
20,267,791 21,052,221 20,733,710
(11,040,770) (10,410,113) (9,826,802)
10,483,471 3 10,937,066 $ 11,229,331
23,785,204 $ 22,880,984 $ 21,900,306
RECAP SCHEDULES:
A-3
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Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division

Test Year Ended December 31, 2014
Comparative Ihcome Statements

Revenues
Metered Water Revenue
Unmetered Water Revenue
Other Water Revenue

Total Revenues

Operating Expenses
Salaries and Wages
Purchased Water
Purchased Power
Chemicals
Fuel for Power Production
Repairs and Maintenance
Office Supplies and Expense
Outside Services
Contractual Services - Professional
Contractual Services - Testing
Contractual Services - Other
Water Testing
Rents
Transportation

Insurance

Regulatory Commission Expense
Materials and Supplies
Miscellaneous

Depreciation

Taxes Other Than Income
Property Taxes

Income Tax

Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income
Other Income (Expense)
Interest and Dividend Income
AFUDC Income
Miscellaneous Non-Utility Expenses
Interest Expense

Total Other Income (Expense)
Net Profit (Loss)

SUPPORTING SCHEDULES:
Work papers

Exhibit

Schedule E-2
Page 1

Witness: Bourassa

Test Prior Prior
Year Year Year
Ended Ended Ended
12/31/2014 12/31/2013 12/31/2012
$ 3,054205 $ 2,951,758 $ 2,716,235
48,254 80,500 84,437
$ 3,102,459 $ 3,032,259 $ 2,800,671
$ - $ - $ -
69,895 9,024 787
343,825 350,604 333,717
4,882 5,068 4,486
- 4,425 4,895
33,953 74,161 59,904
- 654,700 555,916
1,038,097 - -
41,807 50,011 26,421
93,920 454 171 546,254
4,169 3,542 6,131
60,352 102,702 23,150
27,865 50,585 43,782
5,900 184,615 132,384
29,680 - -
61,392 54,300 44,954
564,167 (90,293) 105,427
182,351 185,195 180,071
$ 2,562,254 $ 2,092,811 $ 2,068,280
$ 540,205 $ 939,448 $ 732,391
5,045 6,193 -
(500) - -
(10,405) (12,306) 37,827
$ (5,861) $ (6,113) $ 37,827
$ 534,344 § 933,334 $ 770,218
RECAP SCHEDULES:
A-2
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Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division
Test Year Ended December 31, 2014
Comparative Statements of Cash Flows

Exhibit

Schedule E-3
Page 1

Witness: Bourassa

Test Prior Prior
Year Year Year
Ended Ended Ended
12/31/2014 12/31/2013  12/31/2012
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net income $ 534344 $ 933,334 $ 770,218
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and Amortization 564,167 (90,293) 105,427
Depreciation and Amortization Adjustments (524,116)  (2,447,986) (453,776)
Changes in Certain Assets and Liabilities:
Accounts Receivable (59,170) (116,368) (83,946)
Restricted Cash
Materials and Supplies Inventory
Prepaid Expenses (1,508) 243 1,890
Deferred Charges (130,278) (243,205)
Receivables/Payables to Associated Co. 52,976 (337,398) 1,192,778
Accounts Payable
Interest Payable (750) (2,128) 2,140
Customer Meter and Security Deposits (105,701) (3,480) 6,177
Taxes Payable 20,722 1,471 (806)
Other assets and liabilities 1,605,896 (215,708)  (2,086,063)
Rounding
Net Cash Flow provided by Operating Activities $ 1,956,582 $(2,278,313) $ (789,166)
Cash Flow From Investing Activities:
Capital Expenditures (2,949,040) 719,808 (726,935)
Plant Held for Future Use
Changes in Special Funds
Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities $ (2,949040) $ 719,808 $ (726,935)
Cash Flow From Financing Activities
Change in Restricted Cash
Proceeds from Long-Term Debt
Net receipt of contributions in aid of construction (784,430) 318,511 13,034
Net receipts of advances in aid of construction 966,492 (27,465) (56,732)
Repayments of Long-Term Debt
Distributions
Deferred Financing Costs
Paid in Capital 799,778 536,507 933,260
Net Cash Flows Provided by Financing Activities $ 981,840 $ 827553 § 889,562
Increase(decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (10,618) (730,952) (626,539)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year (1,318,089) (587,138) 39,401
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year $ (1,328,708) $(1,318,089) $ (587,138)
SUPPORTING SCHEDULES: RECAP SCHEDULES:
Workpapers A-5
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Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division Exhibit

Test Year Ended December 31, 2014
Statement of Changes in Stockholder's Equity

Schedule E-4
Page 1
Witness: Bourassa

Stockholder's Retained
Equity Eamings Total
Balance, December 31, 2011 $ 6,586,748 $ - $ 6,586,748
Addnl Paid In Capital Adjustment 833,260 933,260
Distributions - -
Rounding - -
Net Income 770,218 770,218
Balance, December 31, 2012 $ 7520008 $ 770,218 $ 8,290,226
Addnl Paid In Capital Adjustment 536,507 536,507
Distributions - -
Rounding 1 1
Net income 933,334 933,334
Balance, December 31, 2013 $ 8056515 $ 1,703,554 $ 9,760,069
Addnl Paid In Capital Adjustment 799,778 799,778
Distributions - -
Rounding -
Net Income 534,344 534,344
Balance, December, 2014 $ 8856203 $ 2237898 $ 11,094,191

SUPPORTING SCHEDULES:

RECAP SCHEDULES:

E-1
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40
41
42
43
44

Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division

Acct.
No.
101
301
302
303
304
305
306
307
308
309
310
311
320
320

320.2

330.0
330

330.2
331
333
334
335
336
339
340

340.1
341
342
343
344
345
346
347
348

Test Year Ended December 31, 2014

Detail:of Plant in Service

Plant Description

Plant in Service

Organization Cost

Franchise Cost

Land and Land Rights

Structures & Improvements

Collecting & Impounding Reservoirs

Lake, River, Canal Intakes

Wells & Springs

Infiltration Galleries

Raw Water Supply Mains

Power Generation Equipment

Pumping Equipment

Water Treatment Equipment
Water Treatment Plants
Solution Chemical Feeders

Distribution Reservoirs & Standpipes
Storage Tanks
Pressure Tanks

Transmission & Distribution Mains

Services

Meters

Hydrants

Backflow Prevention Devices

Other Plant & Misc Equipment

Office Furniture & Equipment

Computers & Software

Transportation Equipment

Stores Equipment

Tools, Shop & Garage Equipment

Laboratory Equipment

Power Operated Equipment

Communication Equipment

Miscellaneous Equipment

Other Tangible Plant

Rounding
TOTAL WATER PLANT

SUPPORTING SCHEDULES
Work Papers
B-2 pages 3.1t0 3.4

Exhibit
Schedule E-5
Page 1
Witness: Bourassa
Plant
Additions,
Plant Reclass- Plant
Balance ications or Balance
at or at
12/31/2013 Retirements 12/31/2014
$ 38,941 § - $ 38,941
5,785 (5,785) -
417 - 417
45,975 - 45 975
3,045,966 99,552 3,145,518
464,558 - 464,558
276,978 (4,478) 272,500
218,988 - 218,988
1,632,992 55,968 1,688,960
379,815 5,067 384,882
759,320 1,211 760,531
22,768,375 86,115 22,854,490
3,348,225 502,284 3,850,509
1,106,472 81,833 1,188,305
605,546 29,474 635,021
10,198 - 10,198
145,475 - 145,475
114,317 1,159 115,475
146,027 (4,159) 141,868
72,867 21,251 94,119
3,061 - 3,061
295,136 - 295,136
$ 35485434 % 869,492 $ 36,354,926
RECAP SCHEDULES:
A-4
E-1
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Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division
Test Year Ended December 31, 2014

Operating Statistics

WATER STATISTICS:

Total Gallons Sold (in Thousands)

Water Revenues from Customers:

Year End Number of Customers

Annual Gallons (in Thousands)
Sold Per Year End Customer

Annual Revenue per Year End Customer

Pumping Cost Per 1,000 Galions
Purchased Water Cost per 1,000 Gallons

$

$

Test
Year
Ended

12/31/2014

636,008

3,102,459

6,798

190

456.38

0.5406
0.1099

$

& &

Prior
Year
Ended

12/31/2013

671,476

3,032,259

6,776

199

447.50

0.5221
0.0134

Exhibit

Schedule E-7
Page 1

Witness: Bourassa

Prior

Year

Ended

12/31/2012

643,479
$ 2,800,671
6,770
200
$ 413.69
$ 0.5186
$ 0.0012
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Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division
Test Year Ended December 31, 2014
Taxes Charged to Operations

Exhibit

Schedule E-8
Page 1

Witness: Bourassa

Test Prior
Year Year
Ended Ended
12/31/2014 12/31/2013 12/31/2012
Description
State Income Taxes $ - $ $ -
Federal Income Taxes - -
Payroll Taxes - -
Property Taxes 182,351 180,071
Totals $ 182,351 $ 185,195 § 180,071
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10
11
12

14
15
16

18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40

Liberty Utilities (RiojRico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division Exhibit
Test Year Ended December 31, 2014 Schedule E-9
Notes To Financial Statements Page 1
Witness: Bourassa

The Company does not conduct independent audits, reviews and/or compilations. Accordingly, there are no
notes which are typically associated with these financial statements. Management makes the following
notations to the finanical statements contained herein:

Significant Accounting Policies - The Company prepares its financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and the accounting records of the are
are maintained in accordance with the uniform system of accounts as prescribed by the National Association
of Regulatory Utility Commissioners (USOA 1996). Significant accounting policies are as follows:

Utility Plant - Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation provided on a
straight-line basis.

Depreciation rates for asset classes of utility property, plant and equipment are established by the
Commission. The cost of additions, including betterments and replacements of units of utility fixed assets are
charged to utility property, plant and equipment. When units of utility property are replaced, renewed or
retired, their cost plus removal or disposal costs, less salvage proceeds, is charged to accumulated
depreciation.

Revenue Recognition - Revenues are recognized on the accrual method. Under this method, revenue is
recognized when earned rather than when collected, and expenses are recognized when incurred rathet than
when paid.

Contributions in Aid of Construction - Contributions in aid of construction (CIAC) are nonrefundable contributions
by developers and customers for plant expansion. In addition, this amount includes the remaining balance, if any,

of advances in aid of construction at the end of the repayment period. The contributions in aid of construction are
being amortized at a rate equal to the rate allowed for depreciation, as a reduction of depreciation expense

Advances in Aid of Construction - Customer advances for construction are subject to refund in accordance with
agreements approved by the Arizona Corporation Commission. Agreements provide for refunds which are typically
equal to 10 percent of annual water revenue generated from the expansion. The repayments are for a maximum
agreed upon period or until repaid in full. Any balance remaining at the end of the agreed-upon period for repayment
becomes a contribution in aid of construction.
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Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division

Test Year Ended December 31, 2014
Projected Income Stateménts - Present & Proposed Rates

Revenues
Metered Water Revenues
Unmetered Water Revenues
Other Water Revenues

Operating Expenses
Salaries and Wages
Purchased Water
Purchased Power
Chemicals
Fuel for Power Production
Repairs and Maintenance
Office Supplies and Expense
Outside Services
Contractual Services - Professional
Contractual Services - Testing
Contractual Services - Other
Water Testing
Rents
Transportation
Insurance
Regulatory Commission Expense
Materials and Supplies
Miscellaneous
Depreciation
Taxes Other Than Income
Property Taxes
Income Tax

Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income
Other Income (Expense)
Interest Income
Other income
Interest Expense
Other Expense
Gain/Loss Sale of Fixed Assets
Total Other Income (Expense)
Net Profit (Loss)

SUPPORTING SCHEDULES:
C-1

Exhibit

Schedule F-1
Page 1

Witness: Bourassa

At Present At Proposed

Rates Rates

Test Year Year Year

Actual Ended Ended
Results 12/31/2015 12/31/2015
$ 3054205 $ 2,984,538 $ 3,668,374
48,254 48,254 48,254
$ 3,102459 $ 3,032,792 $ 3,716,628

$ - $ - $ -
69,895 69,895 69,895
343,825 324,148 324,148
4,882 4,602 4,602
33,953 34,071 34,071
1,038,097 1,039,036 1,039,036
41,807 41,807 41,807
93,920 97,904 97,904
4,169 4,169 4,169
60,352 60,352 60,352
27,865 27,865 27,865
5,900 33,172 33,172
29,680 29,680 29,680
61,392 61,392 61,392
564,167 562,211 562,211
182,351 155,057 166,715
- 147,142 397,421
$ 2562254 $ 2692502 $ 2954439
$ 540,205 $ 340,290 $ 762,189
5,045 5,045 5,045
(500) (500) (500)
(10,405) (92,250) (92,250)
$ (5,861) $ (87,705) $ (87,705)
$ 534,344 $ 252,585 $ 674,484
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Test Year Ended December 31, 2014

Projected Statements of Changes in Financial Position

Present and Proposed Rates

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net Income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and Amortization
Depreciation Adjustments
Changes in Certain Assets and Liabilities:
Accounts Receivable
Unbilled Revenues
Materials and Supplies Inventory
Prepaid Expenses
Deferred Charges
Notes Receivable
Accounts Payable
Intercompany payable
Customer Meter Deposits
Taxes Payable
Other assets and liabilities
Rounding
Net Cash Flow provided by Operating Activities
Cash Flow From Investing Activities:
Capital Expenditures
Plant Held for Future Use
Changes in debt reserve fund
Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Cash Flow From Financing Activities
Change in Restricted Cash
Change in net amounts due to parent and affiliates
Net Receipt contributions in aid of construction
Net receipts of advances in aid of construction
Repayments of Long-Term Debt
Dividends Paid
Deferred Financing Costs
Paid in Capital
Net Cash Flows Provided by Financing Activities
Increase(decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year

SUPPORTING SCHEDULES:
E-3

Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division

Exhibit

Schedule F-2
Page 1

Witness: Bourassa

At Present At Proposed
Rates Rates
Test Year Year Year
Ended Ended Ended
12/31/2014 12/31/2015 12/31/2015
$ 534,344 § 252,585 $ 674,484
564,167 562,211 562,211
(524,116)
(59,170)
(1,508)
(130,278)
52,976
(750)
(105,701)
20,722
1,605,896
$ 1956582 $ 814,796 $ 1,236,695
(2,949,040) (1,391,146) (1,391,146)
$ (2,949,040) $ (1,391,146) $ (1,391,146)
(784,430) (150,962) (150,962)
966,492 294,098 294,098
799,778 - -
$ 981,840 $ 143,137 § 143,137
(10,618) (433,213) (11,314)
(1,318,089) (1,328,708) (1,328,708)
$ (1,328,708) $ (1,761,921) $  (1,340,022)




Liberty Utilities (Rio Rica Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division Exhibit
Test Year Ended December 31, 2014 Schedule F-3
Projected Construction Requirements Page 1
Witness: Bourassa

Line

No.
1
2 Account
3 Number Piant Asset: Test Year 2015 2016 2017
4 301  Organization Cost $ (5,785) $ - $ - $ -
5 302 Franchise Cost - - - -
6 303 Land and Land Rights - - - -
7 304 Structures and Improvements 99,552 918,400 23,000 23,000
8 305 Collecting and Impounding Res. - - - -
9 306 Lake River and Other Intakes - - - -
10 307 Wells and Springs - 40,500 54,000 54,000
11 308 Infiltration Galleries and Tunnels - - - -
12 309  Supply Mains (4,478) - - -
13 310 Power Generation Equipment - - - R
14 311 Electric Pumping Equipment 55,968 13,500 18,000 18,000
15 320 Water Treatment Equipment 5,067 - - -
16 320.1  Water Treatment Plant - - 59,600 9,600
17 320.2 Chemical Solution Feeders - - - -
18 330 Dist. Reservoirs & Standpipe 1,211 - - 100,000

19 330.1 Storage tanks - - - -
20 330.2 Pressure Tanks - - - -
21 331 Trans. and Dist. Mains 86,115 8,400 71,200 71,200

22 333  Services 502,284 375,721 527,600 527,600
23 334  Meters 81,833 29,000 8,000 8,000
24 335  Hydrants 29,474 4,500 6,000 6,000
25 336 Backflow Prevention Devices - - - -
26 339  Other Plant and Misc. Equip. - - 7,000 7,000
27 340  Office Furniture and Fixtures 1,159 - 6,000 6,000
28 340.1 Computers and Software - - - -
29 341 Transportation Equipment (4,159) - - -
30 342  Stores Equipment - - - -
31 343  Tools and Work Equipment 21,251 1,125 1,500 1,500

32 344 Laboratory Equipment - - - -
33 345  Power Operated Equipment - - - -
34 346  Communications Equipment - - - -
35 347  Miscellaneous Equipment - - - -
36 348  Other Tangible Plant

37 Total $ 869,492 $ 1391146 § 781,900 § 831,900
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Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division Exhibit
Test Year Ended December 31, 2014 Schedule F4

Assumptions Used in Rate Filing Page 1
Witness: Bourassa

Property Taxes were computed using the method used by the Arizona Department
of Revenue modified for ratemaking.

Projected construction expenditures are shown on Schedule A-4.
Expense adjustments are shown on Schedule C2, and are explained in the testimony.

Income taxes were computed using statutory state and federal income tax rates.
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Line

31
32
33
34
35
36
37

Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division Exhibit
Changes in Representative Rate Schedules Schedule H-3
Test Year Ended December 31, 2014 Page 3

Witness: Bourassa

Present Proposed

Other Service Charges Rates Rates
Establishment $ 15.00 § 25.00
Reestablishment (within 12 months) ) 1)
Reconnection (Delinquent) $ 15.00 2
Meter test (If Correct) $ 1500 §$ 30.00
Meter Reread (if Correct) $ 2000 $ 20.00
Deposit (3) 3)
Deposit Interest 4 6%(4)
NSF Check $ 2500 $ 10.00
Late Payment Penalty 1.5% per month  1.5% per month
Deferred Payment (R-01-2-409.G) 1.5% per month  1.5% per month
Moving meter at customer request (R-14-2-405.B) at Cost at Cost
After Hours Service Call Charge (a) $ 50.00 $ 50.00

(1) Per Commission Rule A.A.C. R14-2-403(D) - residential and non-residential shall pay the
applicable monthly minimum charge times the number of months disconnected.

(2) Customer shall pay the cost of physical disconnection and Establishment charge (if same
customer) and there share be no charge for disconnection is not work is performed.

(3) Per Commission Rule A.A.C. R14-2-403 (B)

(4) Per Commission Rule A.A.C. R14-2-403(B)

(a) At customer's request. No charge for service during normal working hours.

IN ADDITION TO THE COLLECTION OF REGULAR RATES, THE UTILITY WILL COLLECT FROM
ITS CUSTOMERS A PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF ANY PRIVILEGE, SALES, USE, AND FRANCHISE
TAX. PER COMMISSION RULE 14-2-409D(5).
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Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division

Refundable Meter and Service Line Charges

5/8 x 3/4 Inch
3/4 Inch

1 Inch

1 1/2 Inch
2 Inch
3Inch

4 Inch

6 inch

8 Inch

10 Inch
12 Inch

Test Year Ended December 31, 2014
Meter and Service Line Charges

Present
Service
Line
Charge
At Cost
At Cost

At Cost

At Cost
At Cost
At Cost
At Cost
At Cost
At Cost
At Cost
At Cost

Present
Meter
Install-

ation

Charge

At Cost

At Cost

At Cost

At Cost

At Cost

At Cost

At Cost

At Cost

At Cost

At Cost

At Cost

Total
Present
Charge
At Cost
At Cost
At Cost
At Cost
At Cost
At Cost
At Cost
At Cost
At Cost
At Cost
At Cost

Proposed
Service
Line
Charge
At Cost
At Cost
At Cost
At Cost
At Cost
At Cost
At Cost
At Cost
At Cost
At Cost
At Cost

Proposed
Meter
Install-

ation
Charge
At Cost
At Cost
At Cost
At Cost
At Cost
At Cost
At Cost
At Cost
At Cost
At Cost
At Cost

Exhibit
Schedule H-3
Page 4
Witness: Bourassa

Total
Proposed
Charge
At Cost
At Cost
At Cost
At Cost
At Cost
At Cost
At Cost
At Cost
At Cost
At Cost
At Cost



Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division

Bill Comparispn Present and Proposed Rates
5/8x3/4 Inch Residential

Meter Size:’
Present
Usage Bill
- $ 1546 $
1,000 16.95
2,000 18.44
3,000 19.93
4,000 22.91
5,000 25.89
6,000 28.87
7,000 31.85
8,000 34.83
9,000 37.81
10,000 41.30
12,000 48.28
14,000 55.26
16,000 62.24
18,000 69.22
20,000 76.20
25,000 93.65
30,000 111.10
35,000 128.55
40,000 146.00
45,000 163.45
50,000 180.90
60,000 215.80
70,000 250.70
80,000 285.60
90,000 320.50
100,000 355.40
Average Usage
6,829 $ 3134 §
Median Usage
5,000 $ 2589 %

Proposed
Bill
1890 $
20.84
2279
24.73
28.33
31.82
35.62
39.11
42.71
46.30
50.64
59.33
68.02
76.71
85.40
94.09
115.81
137.53
159.26
180.98
202.70
224 .42
267.87
311.31
354.76
398.20
441.65

3850 §

3192 $

Dollar

Increase

344
3.89
4.35
4.80
542
6.03
6.65
7.26
7.88
8.49
9.34
11.05
12.76
14.47
16.18
17.89
2216
26.43
30.71
34.98
39.25
43.52
52.07
60.61
69.16
77.70
86.24

7.16

6.03

Percent
Increase
22.25%
22.98%
23.58%
24.10%
23.65%
23.30%
23.02%
22.80%
22.61%
22.45%
22.63%
22.89%
23.10%
23.25%
23.37%
23.48%
23.66%
23.79%
23.89%
23.96%
24.01%
24.06%
24.13%
24.18%
24.21%
24.24%
24.27%

22.83%

23.30%

Present Rates:

Monthly Minimum:
Gallons in Minimum
Charge Per 1,000 Gallons
Upto

Upto

Over

Proposed Rates:
Monthly Minimum:
Galions in Minimum
Charge Per 1,000 Gallons
Up to

Up to

Over

Exhibit

Schedule
Page
Witness: Bourassa

3,000
9,000
9,000

3,000
9,000
9,000

H-4

1

©¥ P&

@ N

15.46

1.49
298
3.49

18.90

1.94
3.59
434



Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division Exhibit

Bill Comparison Present and Proposed Rates

Meter Size:
Present
Usage Bill
- $ 2319 $
1,000 26.17
2,000 29.15
3,000 32.13
4,000 35.11
5,000 38.60
6,000 42.09
7,000 4558
8,000 49.07
9,000 52.56
10,000 56.05
12,000 63.03
14,000 70.01
16,000 76.99
18,000 83.97
20,000 90.95
25,000 108.40
30,000 125.85
35,000 143.30
40,000 160.75
45,000 178.20
50,000 195.65
60,000 230.55
70,000 265.45
80,000 300.35
90,000 335.25
100,000 370.15
Average Usage
4459 § 3671 $
Median Usage
3,000 $ 3213 $

3/4 Inch Residential

Proposed
Bill
2835 $
31.94
35.54
39.13
4273
47.07
51.42
55.76
60.11
64.45
68.79
77.48
86.17
94 .86
103.55
112.24
133.96
155.68
177.41
199.13
220.85
242.57
286.02
329.46
372.91
416.35
459.80

4472 $

39.13 $

Dollar

Increase

5.16

5.77

6.39

7.00

7.62

8.47

9.33
10.18
11.04
11.89
12.74
14.45
16.16
17.87
19.58
21.29
25.56
29.83
34.11
38.38
42.65
46.92
55.47
64.01
72.56
81.10
89.65

8.01

7.00

Percent
Increase
22.25%
22.07%
21.92%
21.80%
21.70%
21.95%
22.16%
22.34%
22.49%
22.62%
22.74%
22.93%
23.09%
23.21%
23.32%
23.41%
23.58%
23.71%
23.80%
23.87%
23.93%
23.98%
24.06%
24.11%
24.16%
24 19%
24.22%

21.82%

21.80%

Schedule
Page

Witness: Bourassa

Present Rates:

Monthly Minimum:

Gallons in Minimum

Charge Per 1,000 Gallons

Upto 4,000
Over 4,000

Proposed Rates:

Monthly Minimum:

Galions in Minimum

Charge Per 1,000 Gallons

Up to 4,000
Over 4,000

H-4
2

©¥ &P

23.19

298
3.49

28.35

3.59
434




Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division Exhibit

Bill Comparison Present and Proposed Rates

Meter Size:
Present
Usage Bill
- $ 3865 $
1,000 4163
2,000 44 61
3,000 47.59
4,000 50.57
5,000 53.55
6,000 56.53
7,000 59.51
8,000 62.49
9,000 65.47
10,000 68.45
12,000 74.41
14,000 80.37
16,000 86.33
18,000 92.29
20,000 98.25
25,000 114.17
30,000 131.62
35,000 149.07
40,000 166.52
45,000 183.97
50,000 201.42
60,000 236.32
70,000 271.22
80,000 306.12
90,000 341.02
100,000 375.92
Average Usage
10,937 $ 7124 %
Median Usage
6,000 $ 56.53 $

1 Inch Residential

Proposed
Bill
4725 §
50.84
54.44
58.03
61.63
65.22
68.82
72.41
76.01
79.60
83.19
90.38
97.57
104.76
111.85
119.14
138.61
160.33
182.06
203.78
22550
247.22
290.67
334.11
377.56
421.00
464.45

86.56 $

6882 $

Dollar

Increase

8.60

9.21

9.83
10.44
11.06
11.67
12.29
12.90
13.52
14.13
14.74
15.97
17.20
18.43
19.66
20.89
24.44
28.71
32.99
37.26
41.53
45.80
54.35
62.89
71.44
79.98
88.53

15.32

12.29

Percent
Increase
22.25%
22.13%
22.03%
21.94%
21.87%
21.80%
21.73%
21.68%
21.63%
21.58%
21.54%
21.47%
21.40%
21.35%
21.30%
21.26%
21.41%
21.82%
22.13%
22.37%
22.57%
22.74%
23.00%
23.19%
23.34%
23.45%
23.55%

21.50%

21.73%

Schedule
Page

Witness: Bourassa

Present Rates:

Monthly Minimum:

Gallons in Minimum

Charge Per 1,000 Gallons

Up to 23,000
Over 23,000

Proposed Rates:

Monthly Minimum:

Gallons in Minimum

Charge Per 1,000 Gallons

Up to 23,000
Over 23,000

H-4
3

@ &

38.65

298
349

47.25

3.59
434



Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division

Bill Comparison Present and Proposed Rates

Meter Size:
Present
Usage Bill
- $ 77.30 $
1,000 80.28
2,000 83.26
3,000 86.24
4,000 89.22
5,000 92.20
6,000 95.18
7,000 98.16
8,000 101.14
9,000 104.12
10,000 107.10
12,000 113.06
14,000 119.02
16,000 124.98
18,000 130.94
20,000 136.90
25,000 151.80
30,000 166.70
35,000 181.60
40,000 196.50
45,000 211.40
50,000 228.85
60,000 263.75
70,000 298.65
80,000 333.55
90,000 368.45
100,000 403.35
Average Usage
13,729 § 11821 $
Median Usage
10,000 $ 107.10 $

1 1/2 Inch Residential

Proposed
Bill

9450 $

98.09
101.69
105.28
108.88
112.47
116.07
119.66
123.26
126.85
130.44
137.63
144.82
152.01
159.20
166.39
184.36
202.33
220.31
238.28
256.25
277.97
321.42
364.86
408.31
451.75
495.20

14385 $

13044 §

Dollar

Increase

17.20
17.81
18.43
19.04
19.66
20.27
20.89
21.50
22.12
22.73
23.34
2457
25.80
27.03
28.26
29.49
32.56
35.63
38.71
41.78
4485
49.12
57.67
66.21
74.76
83.30
91.85

25.64

23.34

Percent

Increase

22.25%
22.19%
22.13%
22.08%
22.03%
21.99%
21.94%
21.90%
21.87%
21.83%
21.80%
21.73%
21.68%
21.63%
21.58%
21.54%
21.45%
21.38%
21.31%
21.26%
21.22%
21.46%
21.86%
22.17%
22.41%
22.61%
22.77%

21.69%

21.80%

Exhibit
Schedule
Page

Witness: Bourassa

Present Rates:

Monthly Minimum:
Gallons in Minimum
Charge Per 1,000 Gallons
Upto

Over

45,000
45,000

Proposed Rates:
Monthly Minimum:
Gallons in Minimum
Charge Per 1,000 Gallons
Up to

Over

45,000
45,000

H-4
4

©¥ N

77.30

298
3.49

94.50

3.59
4.34




Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division
Bill Comparison Present and Proposed Rates

Meter Size:
Present
Usage Bill
- $ 12368 $

1,000 126.66
2,000 129.64
3,000 132.62
4,000 135.60
5,000 138.58
6,000 141.56
7,000 144 54
8,000 147.52
9,000 150.50
10,000 153.48
12,000 159.44
14,000 165.40
16,000 171.36
18,000 177.32
20,000 183.28
25,000 198.18
30,000 213.08
35,000 227.98
40,000 242.88
45,000 257.78
50,000 272.68
60,000 302.48
70,000 332.28
80,000 366.16
90,000 401.06
100,000 435.96

Average Usage
21,083 $

Median Usage
10,000 $

186.51 $

15348 $

2 Inch Residential

Proposed
Bill
15120 $
154.79
158.39
161.98
165.58
169.17
172.77
176.36
179.96
183.55
187.14
194.33
201.52
208.71
215.90
223.09
241.06
259.03
277.01
294.98
312.95
330.92
366.87
402.81
44476
488.20
531.65

22698 $

187.14 $

Dollar

Increase

27.52
28.13
28.75
29.36
29.98
30.59
31.21
31.82
32.44
33.056
33.66
34.89
36.12
37.35
38.58
39.81
42.88
45.95
49.03
52.10
65.17
58.24
64.39
70.53
78.60
87.14
95.68

40.47

33.66

Percent

Increase

22.25%
22.21%
22.18%
22.14%
22.1%
22.08%
22.04%
22.02%
21.99%
21.96%
21.93%
21.88%
21.84%
21.80%
21.76%
21.72%
21.64%
21.57%
21.50%
21.45%
21.40%
21.36%
21.29%
21.23%
21.46%
21.73%
21.95%

21.70%

21.93%

Present Rates:
Monthly Minimum:
Gallons in Minimum

Exhibit

Schedule H-4
Page 5
Witness: Bourassa

Charge Per 1,000 Gallons

Up to
Over

Proposed Rates:
Monthly Minimum:
Gallons in Minimum

$ 12368

72,000 $ 298

72,000 $ 3.49
|

$ 151.20

Charge Per 1,000 Gallons

Upto
Over

72,000 $ 3.59
72,000 $ 4.34




H-4
6

4 N &

@B L

Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division Exhibit
Bill Comparison Present and Proposed Rates Schedule
Meter Size: 5/8 Inch Commercial Page
Witness: Bourassa
Present Proposed Dollar Percent
Usage Bill Bill Increase Increase
- $ 1546 §$ 1890 $ 3.44 22.25%
1,000 16.95 20.84 3.89 22.98% Present Rates:
2,000 18.44 22.79 435 23.58% Monthly Minimum:
3,000 19.93 2473 4.80 24.10% Gallons in Minimum
4,000 22.91 28.33 5.42 23.65% Charge Per 1,000 Gallons
5,000 25.89 31.92 6.03 23.30% Up to 3,000
6,000 28.87 35.62 6.65 23.02% Up to 9,000
7,000 31.85 39.11 7.26 22.80% Over 9,000
8,000 34.83 42.71 7.88 22.61%
9,000 37.81 46.30 8.49 22.45%
10,000 41.30 50.64 9.34 22.63%
12,000 48.28 59.33 11.05 22.89% Proposed Rates:
14,000 55.26 68.02 12.76 23.10% Monthly Minimum:
16,000 62.24 76.71 14.47 23.25% Galions in Minimum
18,000 69.22 85.40 16.18 23.37% Charge Per 1,000 Gallons
20,000 76.20 94.09 17.89 23.48% Up to 3,000
25,000 93.65 115.81 22.16 23.66% Up to 9,000
30,000 111.10 137.53 26.43 23.79% Over 9,000
35,000 128.55 159.26 30.71 23.89%
40,000 146.00 180.98 34.98 23.96%
45,000 163.45 202.70 39.25 24.01%
50,000 180.90 224.42 4352 24.06%
60,000 215.80 267.87 52.07 24.13%
70,000 250.70 311.31 60.61 24.18%
80,000 285.60 354.76 69.16 24.21%
90,000 320.50 398.20 77.70 24.24%
100,000 355.40 441.65 86.24 24.27%
Average Usage
10,978 § 4471 $ 5490 $ 10.18 22.77%
Median Usage
2,000 $ 1844 $ 2279 §$ 4.35 23.58%

15.46

1.49
2.98
349

18.90

1.94
3.59
434



Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division Exhibit
Bill Comparison Present and Proposed Rates Schedule H-4
Meter Size: 1 Inch Commercial Page 7

Witness: Bourassa

Present Proposed Dollar Percent
Usage Bill Bill Increase Increase
- $ 3865 $ 4725 $ 8.60 22.25%
1,000 4163 50.84 9.21 22.13% Present Rates:
2,000 44 61 54.44 9.83 22.03% Monthly Minimum: $ 38.65
3,000 47.59 58.03 10.44 21.94% Gallons in Minimum -
4,000 50.57 61.63 11.06 21.87% Charge Per 1,000 Gallons
5,000 53.55 65.22 11.67 21.80% Up to 23,000 $ 2.98
6,000 56.53 68.82 12.29 21.73% Over 23,000 $ 3.49
7,000 59.51 72.41 12.90 21.68%
8,000 62.49 76.01 13.52 21.63%
9,000 65.47 79.60 14.13 21.58%
10,000 68.45 83.19 14.74 21.54%
12,000 74.41 90.38 15.97 21.47% Proposed Rates:
14,000 80.37 97.57 17.20 21.40% Monthly Minimum: $ 47.25
16,000 86.33 104.76 18.43 21.35% Gallons in Minimum -
18,000 92.29 111.95 19.66 21.30% Charge Per 1,000 Gallons
20,000 98.25 119.14 20.89 21.26% Up to 23,000 $ 3.59
25,000 114.17 138.61 24 .44 21.41% Over 23,000 $ 4.34
30,000 131.62 160.33 28.71 21.82%
35,000 149.07 182.06 3299 22.13%
40,000 166.52 203.78 37.26 22.37%
45,000 183.97 225.50 41.53 22.57%
50,000 201.42 247.22 45.80 22.74%
60,000 236.32 290.67 54.35 23.00%
70,000 271.22 334.11 62.89 23.19%
80,000 306.12 377.56 71.44 23.34%
90,000 341.02 421.00 79.98 23.45%
100,000 375.92 464.45 88.53 23.55%

Average Usage

35387 $ 15042 $ 183.74 § 33.32 22.15%
Median Usage

7,000 $ 5951 $ 7241 $ 12.90 21.68%



Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division Exhibit

Bill Comparison Present and Proposed Rates

Meter Size:
Present
Usage Bill
- $ 7730 §
1,000 80.28
2,000 83.26
3,000 86.24
4,000 89.22
5,000 92.20
6,000 95.18
7,000 98.16
8,000 101.14
9,000 104.12
10,000 107.10
12,000 113.06
14,000 119.02
16,000 124.98
18,000 130.94
20,000 136.90
25,000 151.80
30,000 166.70
35,000 181.60
40,000 196.50
45,000 211.40
50,000 228.85
60,000 263.75
70,000 208.65
80,000 333.55
90,000 368.45
100,000 403.35
Average Usage
24783 $ 15115 §
Median Usage
14,000 $ 119.02 $

1 1/2 Inch Commercial

Proposed
Bill

9450 $

98.09
101.69
105.28
108.88
112.47
116.07
119.66
123.26
126.85
130.44
137.63
144.82
152.01
159.20
166.39
184.36
202.33
220.31
238.28
256.25
277.97
321.42
364.86
408.31
451.75
495.20

18358 $

14482 §

Dollar

Increase

17.20
17.81
18.43
19.04
19.66
20.27
20.89
21.50
2212
2273
23.34
24.57
25.80
27.03
28.26
29.49
32.56
35.63
38.71
41.78
4485
49.12
57.67
66.21
74.76
83.30
91.85

32.43

25.80

Percent

Increase

22.25%
22.19%
22.13%
22.08%
22.03%
21.99%
21.94%
21.90%
21.87%
21.83%
21.80%
21.73%
21.68%
21.63%
21.58%
21.54%
21.45%
21.38%
21.31%
21.26%
21.22%
21.46%
21.86%
22.17%
22.41%
22.61%
22.77%

21.45%

21.68%

Schedule
Page

Witness: Bourassa

Present Rates:

Monthly Minimum:

Gallons in Minimum

Charge Per 1,000 Gallons

Up to 45,000
Over 45,000

Proposed Rates:

Monthly Minimum:

Gallons in Minimum

Charge Per 1,000 Gallons

Up to 45,000
Over 45,000

H-4
8

“ &P

77.30

298
3.49

94.50

3.59
4.34



Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division Exhibit
Bill Comparison Present and Proposed Rates

Meter Size:
Present
Usage Bill
- $ 12368 $
1,000 126.66
2,000 129.64
3,000 132.62
4,000 135.60
5,000 138.58
6,000 141.56
7,000 144.54
8,000 147.52
9,000 150.50
10,000 153.48
12,000 159.44
14,000 165.40
16,000 171.36
18,000 177.32
20,000 183.28
25,000 198.18
30,000 213.08
35,000 227.98
40,000 242.88
45,000 257.78
50,000 272.68
60,000 302.48
70,000 332.28
80,000 366.16
90,000 401.06
100,000 435.96
Average Usage
69,216 $ 32994 $
Median Usage
11,000 $ 156.46 $

2 Inch Commercial

Proposed
Bill
151.20 $
154.79
158.39
161.98
165.58
169.17
172.77
176.36
179.96
183.55
187.14
194.33
201.52
208.71
215.90
223.09
241.06
259.03
277.01
294.98
312.95
330.92
366.87
402.81
44476
488.20
531.65

39999 $

190.74 §

Dollar
Increase
27.52
28.13
28.75
29.36
29.98
30.59
31.21
31.82
32.44
33.05
33.66
34.89
36.12
37.35
38.58
39.81
42.88
4595
49.03
52.10
55.17
58.24
64.39
70.53
78.60
87.14
95.68

70.05

34.28

Percent

Increase

22.25%
22.21%
22.18%
22.14%
22.11%
22.08%
22.04%
22.02%
21.99%
21.96%
21.93%
21.88%
21.84%
21.80%
21.76%
21.72%
21.64%
21.57%
21.50%
21.45%
21.40%
21.36%
21.29%
21.23%
21.46%
21.73%
21.95%

21.23%

21.91%

Schedule H-4
Page 9
Witness: Bourassa

Present Rates:
Monthly Minimum: $
Gallons in Minimum

Charge Per 1,000 Gallons

Up to 72,000
Over 72,000

¥ &

Proposed Rates:
Monthly Minimum: $
Gallons in Minimum

Charge Per 1,000 Gallons

Upto 72,000
Over 72,000

& &

123.68

2.98
3.49

151.20

3.59
4.34



Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division Exhibit
Bill Comparigon Present and Proposed Rates

Meter Size:
Present
Usage Bill
- $ 24736 $
1,000 250.34
2,000 253.32
3,000 256.30
4,000 259.28
5,000 262.26
6,000 265.24
7,000 268.22
8,000 271.20
9,000 274.18
10,000 277.16
12,000 283.12
14,000 289.08
16,000 295.04
18,000 301.00
20,000 306.96
25,000 321.86
30,000 336.76
35,000 351.66
40,000 366.56
45,000 381.46
50,000 396.36
60,000 426.16
70,000 455.96
80,000 485.76
90,000 515.56
100,000 545.36
Average Usage
31697 $ 34182 $
Median Usage
17,000 $ 298.02 $

3 Inch Commercial

Proposed
Bill

302.40
305.99
309.59
313.18
316.78
320.37
323.97
327.56
331.16
334.75
338.34
345.53
352.72
359.91
367.10
374.29
392.26
410.23
428.21
446.18
464.15
482.12
518.07
554.01
589.96
625.90
661.85

416.33

363.51

Dollar
Increase

$ 55.04
55.65
66.27
56.88
57.50
58.11
58.73
58.34
59.96
60.57
61.18
62.41
63.64
64.87
66.10
67.33
70.40
73.47
76.55
79.62
82.69
85.76
91.91
98.05
104.20
110.34
116.49

$ 74.52

$ 65.49

Percent
Increase

22.25%
22.23%
22.21%
22.19%
22.18%
22.16%
22.14%
22.12%
22.11%
22.09%
22.08%
22.04%
22.02%
21.99%
21.96%
21.93%
21.87%
21.82%
21.77%
21.72%
21.68%
21.64%
21.57%
21.50%
21.45%
21.40%
21.36%

21.80%

21.97%

Schedule H-4
Page 10
Witness: Bourassa

Present Rates:
Monthly Minimum: $
Gallons in Minimum

Charge Per 1,000 Gallons

Up to 144,000
Over 144,000

A h

Proposed Rates:

Monthly Minimum: $
Gallons in Minimum

Charge Per 1,000 Gallons

Up to 144,000 $
Over 144000 $

247.36

2.98
3.49

302.40

3.59
434




Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division Exhibit
Bill Comparison Present and Proposed Rates Schedule H-4

Meter Size: 4 Inch Commercial Page - 11
Witness: Bourassa

Present Proposed Dollar Percent
Usage Bill Bill Increase Increase
- $ 366.50 $ 47250 $ 106.00 28.92%
1,000 369.48 476.09 106.61 28.86% Present Rates:
2,000 372.46 479.69 107.23 28.79% Monthly Minimum: $ 366.50
3,000 375.44 483.28 107.84 28.72% Gallons in Minimum -
4,000 378.42 486.88 108.46 28.66% Charge Per 1,000 Gallons
5,000 381.40 490.47 109.07 28.60% Up to 225,000 $ 2.98
6,000 384.38 494.07 109.69 28.54% Over 225,000 $ 3.49
7,000 387.36 497.66 110.30 28.48%
8,000 390.34 501.26 110.92 28.42%
9,000 393.32 504.85 111.53 28.36%
10,000 396.30 508.44 112.14 28.30%
12,000 402.26 515.63. 113.37 28.18% Proposed Rates:
14,000 408.22 522.82 114.60 28.07% Monthly Minimum: $ 47250
16,000 414,18 530.01 115.83 27.97% Gallons in Minimum -
18,000 420.14 537.20 117.06 27.86% Charge Per 1,000 Gallons
20,000 426.10 544 .39 118.29 27.76% Up to 225,000 $ 3.59
25,000 441.00 562.36 121.36 27.52% Over 225,000 $ 4.34
30,000 455.90 580.33 124.43 27.29%
35,000 470.80 598.31 127.51 27.08%
40,000 485.70 616.28 130.58 26.88%
45,000 500.60 634.25 133.65 26.70%
50,000 515.50 652.22 136.72 26.52%
60,000 545.30 688.17 142.87 26.20%
70,000 575.10 724.11 149.01 25.91%
80,000 604.90 760.06 155.16 25.65%
90,000 634.70 796.00 161.30 25.41%
100,000 664.50 831.95 167.45 25.20%

Average Usage

254313 $ 1,13930 $ 140860 $ 269.30 23.64%
Median Usage

190,000 $ 93270 $ 1,15545 § 22275 23.88%



Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division

Bill Comparison Present and Proposed Rates

Meter Size:
Present
Usage Bill
- $ 1469 $

1,000 16.10
2,000 17.52
3,000 18.93
4,000 21.76
5,000 24.60
6,000 27.43
7,000 30.26
8,000 33.09
9,000 35.92
10,000 39.24
12,000 45,87
14,000 52.50
16,000 59.13
18,000 65.76
20,000 72.39
25,000 88.97
30,000 105.55
35,000 122.12
40,000 138.70
45,000 155.28
50,000 171.86
60,000 205.01
70,000 238.17
80,000 271.32
90,000 304.48
100,000 337.63

Average Usage
440 $
Median Usage
- 3

1531 §$

1469 %

5/8 Inch School

Proposed
Bill
17.96 $
19.80
21.65
23.50
26.91
30.33
33.74
37.16
40.57
43.99
48.11
56.37
64.62
72.88
81.13
89.38
110.02
130.66
151.29
171.93
192.57
213.20
254 .47
295.75
337.02
378.29
419.56

1877 §

17.96 $

Dollar
Increase
3.27
3.70
413
4.56
5.15
5.73
6.31
6.90
7.48
8.07
8.88
10.50
12.12
13.75
15.37
16.99
21.05
25.11
29.17
33.23
37.29
41.35
49.46
57.58
65.70
73.82
81.93

3.46

3.27

Percent
Increase

22.25%
22.98%
23.58%
24.10%
23.65%
23.30%
23.02%
22.80%
22.61%
22.45%
22.63%
22.89%
23.10%
23.25%
23.37%
23.48%
23.66%
23.79%
23.89%
23.96%
24.01%
24.06%
24.13%
24.18%
24.21%
24.24%
24.27%

22.59%

22.25%

Exhibit

Schedule

Page

H-4
12

Witness: Bourassa

Present Rates:

Monthty Minimum:
Gallons in Minimum
Charge Per 1,000 Gallons
Up to

Up to

Over

Proposed Rates:
Monthly Minimum:
Gallons in Minimum
Charge Per 1,000 Gallons
Up to

Upto

Over

3,000
9,000
9,000

3,000
9,000
9,000

$h BB

¥ PP

14.69

1.42
2.83
3.32

17.96

1.85
3.41
413




Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division Exhibit
Bill Comparison Present and Proposed Rates

Meter Size:
Present
Usage Bill
- $ 73.44
1,000 76.27
2,000 79.10
3,000 81.93
4,000 84.76
5,000 87.59
6,000 90.42
7,000 93.25
8,000 96.08
9,000 98.91
10,000 101.75
12,000 107.41
14,000 113.07
16,000 118.73
18,000 124.39
20,000 130.06
25,000 144.21
30,000 158.37
35,000 172,52
40,000 186.68
45,000 200.83
50,000 217.41
60,000 250.56
70,000 283.72
80,000 316.87
90,000 350.03
100,000 383.18
Average Usage
2583 $ 80.75

Median Usage
2500 $

80.51

$

$
$

Proposed
Bill

89.78

93.19

96.60
100.02
103.43
106.85
110.26
113.68
117.09
120.51
123.92
130.75
137.58
144.41
151.24
158.07
175.14
192.22
209.29
226.36
243.44
264.07
305.35
346.62
387.89
42916
470.44

98.60

98.31

1 1/2 Inch Schi

$

$
$

Dollar

Increase

16.34
16.92
17.51
18.09
18.67
19.26
10.84
20.43
21.01
21.59
22.18
23.34
24.51
2568
26.85
28.01
30.93
33.85
36.77
39.69
42.61
46.67
54.78
62.90
71.02
79.14
87.25

17.85

17.80

Percent
Increase
22.25%
22.19%
22.13%
22.08%
22.03%
21.99%
21.94%
21.90%
21.87%
21.83%
21.80%
21.73%
21.68%
21.63%
21.58%
21.54%
21.45%
21.38%
21.31%
21.26%
21.22%
21.46%
21.86%
22.17%
22.41%
22.61%
22.77%

22.10%

22.11%

Schedule
Page

Witness: Bourassa

Present Rates:

Monthly Minimum:

Galions in Minimum

Charge Per 1,000 Gallons

Upto 45,000
Over 45,000

Proposed Rates:

Monthly Minimum:

Gallons in Minimum

Charge Per 1,000 Gallons

Up to 45,000
Over 45,000

H-4
13

A &N

73.44

283
3.32

89.78

3.41
413



Bill Comparison Present and Proposed Rates

Schedule H-4

Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division Exhibit “
|

Meter Size:
Present
Usage Bill
- $ 117.50 $
1,000 120.33
2,000 123.16
3,000 125.99
4,000 128.82
5,000 131.65
6,000 134.48
7,000 137.31
8,000 140.14
9,000 142.98
10,000 145.81
12,000 151.47
14,000 157.13
16,000 162.79
18,000 168.45
20,000 174.12
25,000 188.27
30,000 202.43
35,000 216.58
40,000 230.74
45,000 244 89
50,000 259.05
60,000 287.36
70,000 31567
80,000 347.85
90,000 381.01
100,000 414.16
Average Usage
40,576 § 23237 %
Median Usage
24,000 $ 18544 $

2 Inch Schl
Proposed Dollar
Bill Increase
14364 $ 26.14
147.05 26.73
150.47 27.31
153.88 27.90
157.30 28.48
160.71 29.06
164.13 29.65
167.54 30.23
170.96 30.81
174.37 31.40
177.79 31.98
184.62 33.15
191.45 34.32
198.28 35.48
205.11 36.65
211.93 37.82
229.01 40.74
246.08 43.66
263.16 46.57
280.23 49.49
297.30 52.41
314.38 55.33
348.52 61.17
382.67 67.00
422.52 74.67
463.79 82.78
505.06 90.90
28220 $ 49.83
22559 $ 40.15

Percent

Increase

22.25%
22.21%
22.18%
22.14%
22.11%
22.08%
22.04%
22.02%
21.99%
21.96%
21.93%
21.88%
21.84%
21.80%
21.76%
21.72%
21.64%
21.57%
21.50%
21.45%
21.40%
21.36%
21.29%
21.23%
21.46%
21.73%
21.95%

21.44%

21.65%

Page 14
Witness: Bourassa

Present Rates:
Monthly Minimum; $ 117.50
Gallons in Minimum -
Charge Per 1,000 Gallons

Up to 72,000
Over 72,000

2.83
3.32

©¥ &N

Proposed Rates:

Monthly Minimum: $ 14364
Gallons in Minimum -
Charge Per 1,000 Gallons

Up to 72,000 $ 3.41
Over 72,000 $ 413



Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division Exhibit

Bill Comparison Present and Proposed Rates

Meter Size:
Present
Usage Bill
- $ 23499 $
1,000 237.82
2,000 240.65
3,000 243.49
4,000 246.32
5,000 249.15
6,000 251.98
7,000 254.81
8,000 257.64
9,000 260.47
10,000 263.30
12,000 268.96
14,000 274.63
16,000 280.29
18,000 285.95
20,000 291.61
25,000 305.77
30,000 319.92
35,000 334.08
40,000 348.23
45,000 362.39
50,000 376.54
60,000 404.85
70,000 433.16
80,000 461.47
90,000 489.78
100,000 518.09
Average Usage
733833 $§ 259825 $
Median Usage
407,000 $ 151463 $

3 Inch School
Proposed Dollar

Bill Increase
287.28 $ 52.29
290.69 52.87
294.11 £63.46
297.52 54.04
300.94 54.62
304.35 55.21
307.77 55.79
311.18 56.37
314.60 56.96
318.01 57.54
321.43 58.13
328.26 69.29
335.09 60.46
341.92 61.63
348.75 62.80
355,57 63.96
372.65 66.88
389.72 69.80
406.80 7272
423.87 75.64
440.94 78.56
458.02 81.47
492.16 87.31
526.31 93.15
560.46 98.99
594.61 104.82
628.75 110.66
321338 $ 615.13
186446 $ 349.83

Percent

Increase

22.25%
22.23%
22.21%
22.19%
22.18%
22.16%
22.14%
22.12%
22.11%
22.09%
22.08%
22.04%
22.02%
21.99%
21.96%
21.93%
21.87%
21.82%
21.77%
21.72%
21.68%
21.64%
21.57%
21.50%
21.45%
21.40%
21.36%

23.67%

23.10%

Schedule
Page

Witness: Bourassa

Present Rates:

Monthly Minimum:

Gallons in Minimum

Charge Per 1,000 Gallons

Up to 144,000
Over 144,000

Proposed Rates:

Monthly Minimum:

Gallons in Minimum

Charge Per 1,000 Gallons

Upto 144,000
Over 144,000

H-4
15

@ N

234.99

2.83
3.32

287.28

341
4.13




.

Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division Exhibit
Bill Comparisoh Present and Proposed Rates Schedule H-4
Meter Size: 4 Inch Schl Page 16
Witness: Bourassa
Present Proposed Dollar Percent
Usage Bill Bill Increase Increase
- $ 348.18 $ 448.88 $ 100.70 28.92%
1,000 351.01 452.29 101.28 28.86% Present Rates:
2,000 353.84 455.70 101.87 28.79% Monthly Minimum: $ 348.18
3,000 356.67 459.12 102.45 28.72% Gallons in Minimum -
4,000 359.50 462.53 103.03 28.66% Charge Per 1,000 Gallons
5,000 362.33 465.95 103.62 28.60% Up to 225,000 $ 2.83
6,000 365.16 469.36 104.20 28.54% Over 225,000 $ 3.32
7,000 367.99 472.78 104.79 28.48%
8,000 370.82 476.19 105.37 28.42%
9,000 373.65 479.61 105.95 28.36%
10,000 376.49 483.02 106.54 28.30%
12,000 382.15 489.85 107.70 28.18% Proposed Rates:
14,000 387.81 496.68 108.87 28.07% Monthly Minimum: $ 44888
16,000 393.47 503.51 110.04 27.97% Gallons in Minimum -
18,000 399.13 510.34 111.21 27.86% Charge Per 1,000 Galions
20,000 404.80 517.17 112.37 27.76% Up to 225,000 $ 341
25,000 418.95 534.24 115.29 27.52% Over 225,000 $ 413
30,000 433.11 551.32 118.21 27.29%
35,000 447.26 568.39 121.13 27.08%
40,000 461.42 585.46 124.05 26.88%
45,000 475.57 602.54 126.97 26.70%
50,000 489.73 619.61 129.89 26.52%
60,000 518.04 653.76 135.72 26.20%
70,000 546.35 687.91 141.56 2591%
80,000 574.66 722.05 147.40 25.65%
90,000 602.97 756.20 153.24 25.41%
100,000 631.28 790.35 159.07 25.20%
Average Usage
242,167 $ 104207 $ 1,28804 $ 245.97 23.60%
Median Usage
242,000 $ 104151 $ 128735 § 245.84 23.60%




Usaage

1,000
2,000
3,000
4,000
5,000
6,000
7,000
8,000
9,000
10,000
12,000
14,000
16,000
18,000
20,000
25,000
30,000
35,000
40,000
45,000
50,000
60,000
70,000
80,000
90,000
100,000

Average Usage

604,167

Median Usage

654,000

Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division Exhibit

Bill Comparison Present and Proposed Rates

Meter Size:

Present
Bill
$ 73435 $
737.18
740.01
742.84
745.67
748.51
751.34
754.17
757.00
759.83
762.66
768.32
773.98
779.65
785.31
790.97
805.13
819.28
833.44
847.59
861.75
875.90
904.21
932.52
960.83
989.14
1,017.45

$ 251944 $

$ 268466 §$

6 Inch School
Proposed Dollar

Bill Increase
89775 $ 163.40
901.16 163.98
904.58 164.57
907.99 165.15
911.41 165.73
914.82 166.32
918.24 166.90
921.65 167.49
925.07 168.07
928.48 168.65
931.90 169.24
938.73 170.40
945.56 171.57
952.39 172.74
959.22 173.91
966.04 175.07
983.12 177.99
1,000.19 180.91
1,017.27 183.83
1,034.34 186.75
1,051.41 189.67
1,068.49 192.59
1,102.63 198.42
1,136.78 204.26
1,170.93 210.10
1,205.08 215.94
1,239.22 221.77
3,07066 $ 551.22
327633 $ 591.67

Percent

Increase

22.25%
22.24%
22.24%
22.23%
22.23%
22.22%
22.21%
22.21%
22.20%
22.20%
22.19%
22.18%
22.17%
22.16%
22.15%
22.13%
22.11%
22.08%
22.06%
22.03%
22.01%
21.99%
21.94%
21.90%
21.87%
21.83%
21.80%

21.88%

22.04%

Schedule

Page

Witness: Bourassa

Present Rates:

Monthly Minimum:
Gallons in Minimum
Charge Per 1,000 Gallons
Up to

Over

Proposed Rates:
Monthly Minimum:
Gallons in Minimum
Charge Per 1,000 Gallons
Up to

Over

450,000
450,000

450,000
450,000

H-4
17

© ¥

734.35

2.83
3.32

897.75

3.41
413



Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division

Bill Comparison Present and Proposed Rates

Meter Size: 5/8 Inch Multi-Family
Present Proposed Dollar Percent
Usage Bill Bill Increase Increase
- $ 1546 § 1890 $ 3.4 22.25%
1,000 16.95 20.84 3.89 22.98%
2,000 18.44 22.79 435 23.58%
3,000 19.93 2473 4.80 24.10%
4,000 22.91 28.33 542 23.65%
5,000 25.89 31.92 6.03 23.30%
6,000 28.87 35.52 6.65 23.02%
7,000 31.85 39.11 7.26 22.80%
8,000 34.83 42.71 7.88 22.61%
9,000 37.81 46.30 8.49 22.45%
10,000 41.30 50.64 9.34 22.63%
12,000 48.28 59.33 11.05 22.89%
14,000 55.26 68.02 12.76 23.10%
16,000 62.24 76.71 14.47 23.25%
18,000 69.22 85.40 16.18 23.37%
20,000 76.20 94.09 17.89 23.48%
25,000 93.65 115.81 22.16 23.66%
30,000 111.10 137.53 26.43 23.79%
35,000 128.55 159.26 30.71 23.89%
40,000 146.00 180.98 34.98 23.96%
45,000 163.45 202.70 39.25 24.01%
50,000 180.90 224 .42 43.52 24.06%
60,000 215.80 267.87 52.07 24.13%
70,000 250.70 311.31 60.61 24.18%
80,000 285.60 354.76 69.16 24.21%
90,000 320.50 398.20 77.70 24.24%
100,000 355.40 441.65 86.24 24.27%
Average Usage
10,429 §$ 4280 $ 5251 § 9.71 22.69%
Median Usage
8,000 $ 3483 § 4271 § 7.88 22.61%

Exhibit

Schedule

Page

Witness: Bourassa

Present Rates:

Monthly Minimum:
Gallons in Minimum
Charge Per 1,000 Gallons

Up to 3,000
Up to 9,000
Over 9,000
Proposed Rates:

Monthly Minimum:

Gallons in Minimum

Charge Per 1,000 Gallons

Up to 3,000
Up to 9,000
Over 9,000

H-4
18

$ 1546

$ 1.49

$ 2.98

$ 3.49

$ 1890 |

$ 1.94

$ 3.59

$ 4.34



Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico'Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division Exhibit

Bill Comparison Present and Proposed Rates

Meter Size:
Present
Usage Bill
- $ 7730 $
1,000 80.28
2,000 83.26
3,000 86.24
4,000 89.22
5,000 92.20
6,000 95.18
7,000 98.16
8,000 101.14
9,000 104.12
10,000 107.10
12,000 113.06
14,000 119.02
16,000 124.98
18,000 130.94
20,000 136.90
25,000 151.80
30,000 166.70
35,000 181.60
40,000 196.50
45,000 211.40
50,000 228.85
60,000 263.75
70,000 298.65
80,000 333.55
90,000 368.45
100,000 403.35
Average Usage
9250 $ 104.87 $
Median Usage
8,500 $ 10263 $

1 1/2 Inch Multi-Family

Proposed
Bill

9450 §

98.09
101.69
105.28
108.88
112.47
116.07
119.66
123.26
126.85
130.44
137.63
144.82
152.01
159.20
166.39
184.36
202.33
220.31
238.28
256.25
277.97
321.42
364.86
408.31
451.75
495.20

12775 $

125.05 $

Dollar

Increase

17.20
17.81
18.43
19.04
19.66
20.27
20.89
21.50
22.12
22.73
23.34
24.57
25.80
27.03
28.26
29.49
32.56
35.63
38.71
41.78
44.85
49.12
57.67
66.21
74.76
83.30
91.85

22.88

22.42

Percent

Increase

22.25%
22.19%
22.13%
22.08%
22.03%
21.99%
21.94%
21.90%
21.87%
21.83%
21.80%
21.73%
21.68%
21.63%
21.58%
21.54%
21.45%
21.38%
21.31%
21.26%
21.22%
21.46%
21.86%
22.17%
22.41%
22.61%
22.77%

21.82%

21.85%

Schedule
Page

Witness: Bourassa

Present Rates:

Monthly Minimum:

Gallons in Minimum

Charge Per 1,000 Gallons

Upto 45,000
Over 45,000

Proposed Rates:

Monthly Minimum:

Gallons in Minimum

Charge Per 1,000 Gallons

Up to 45,000
Over 45,000

H-4
19

4 PH

@ B

77.30

2.98
3.49

94.50

3.59
434



H-4
20

& P

Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division Exhibit
Bill Comparison Present and Proposed Rates Schedule
Meter Size: 5/8 Inch Industrial Page
Witness: Bourassa
Present Proposed Dollar Percent
Usage Bill Bill Increase Increase
- $ 1546 $ 18980 $ 3.44 22.25%
1,000 16.95 20.84 3.89 22.98% Present Rates:
2,000 18.44 22.79 435 23.58% Monthly Minimum:
3,000 19.93 2473 4.80 24.10% Gallons in Minimum
4,000 22.91 28.33 5.42 23.65% Charge Per 1,000 Gallons
5,000 25.89 31.92 6.03 23.30% Up to 3,000
6,000 28.87 35.52 6.65 23.02% Up to 9,000
7,000 31.85 39.11 7.26 22.80% Over 9,000
8,000 34.83 42.71 7.88 22.61%
9,000 37.81 46.30 8.49 22.45%
10,000 41.30 50.64 9.34 22.63%
12,000 48.28 59.33 11.05 22.89% Proposed Rates:
14,000 55.26 68.02 12.76 23.10% Monthly Minimum:
16,000 62.24 76.71 14.47 23.25% Gallons in Minimum
18,000 69.22 85.40 16.18 23.37% Charge Per 1,000 Gallons
20,000 76.20 94.09 17.89 23.48% Up to 3,000
25,000 93.65 115.81 22.16 23.66% Up to 9,000
30,000 111.10 137.53 26.43 23.79% Over 9,000
35,000 128.55 159.26 30.71 23.89%
40,000 146.00 180.98 34.98 23.96%
45,000 163.45 202.70 39.25 24.01%
50,000 180.90 224 .42 43.52 24.06%
60,000 215.80 267.87 52.07 24.13%
70,000 250.70 311.31 60.61 24.18%
80,000 285.60 354.76 69.16 24.21%
90,000 320.50 398.20 77.70 24.24%
100,000 355.40 441.65 86.24 24.27%
Average Usage
5065 $ 26.08 $ 3216 $ 6.07 23.28%
Median Usage
3,000 $ 1993 § 2473 % 4.80 24.10%

15.46

1.49
2.98
3.49

18.90

1.94
3.59
4.34




Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division Exhibit
Bill Comparison Present and Proposed Rates

Meter Size:
Present
Usage Bill
- $ 12368 $
1,000 126.66
2,000 129.64
3,000 132.62
4,000 135.60
5,000 138.58
6,000 141.56
7,000 144.54
8,000 147.52
9,000 150.50
10,000 153.48
12,000 159.44
14,000 165.40
16,000 171.36
18,000 177.32
20,000 183.28
25,000 198.18
30,000 213.08
35,000 227.98
40,000 24288
45,000 257.78
50,000 272.68
60,000 302.48
70,000 332.28
80,000 366.16
90,000 401.06
100,000 435.96
Average Usage
169,708 $ 679.24 $
Median Usage
94,000 $ 41502 $

2 Inch Industrial

Proposed
Bill
15120 $
154.79
158.39
161.98
165.58
169.17
172.77
176.36
179.96
183.55
187.14
194.33
201.52
208.71
215.90
223.09
241.06
259.03
277.01
294.98
312.95
330.92
366.87
402.81
44476
488.20
531.65

83449 §

505.58 $

Dollar

Increase

27.52
2813
28.75
29.36
29.98
30.59
31.21
31.82
32.44
33.05
33.66
34.89
36.12
37.35
38.58
39.81
42.88
45.95
49.03
52.10
55.17
58.24
64.39
70.53
78.60
87.14
95.68

155.26

90.56

Percent

Increase

22.25%
22.21%
22.18%
22.14%
22.11%
22.08%
22.04%
22.02%
21.99%
21.96%
21.93%
21.88%
21.84%
21.80%
21.76%
21.72%
21.64%
21.57%
21.50%
21.45%
21.40%
21.36%
21.29%
21.23%
21.46%
21.73%
21.95%

22.86%

21.82%

Schedule H-4
Page 21
Witness: Bourassa

Present Rates:
Monthly Minimum: $ 12368
Gallons in Minimum -
Charge Per 1,000 Gallons

Up to 72,000
Over 72,000

2.98
3.49

& H

Proposed Rates:

Monthly Minimum: $ 151.20
Gallons in Minimum -
Charge Per 1,000 Gallons

Up to 72,000 $ 3.59
Over 72,000 $ 4.34



Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division Exhibit
Bill Comparison Present and Proposed Rates Schedule H-4
Meter Size: 6 Inch Bulk (MSR) Page 22
Witness: Bourassa

Present Proposed Doliar Percent
Usage Bill 8ill Increase Increase
- $ 549.00 $ 671.00 $ 122.00 22.22%
1,000 553.79 676.64 122.85 22.18% Present Rates:
2,000 558.58 682.29 123.71 22.15% Monthly Minimum: $  549.00
3,000 563.37 687.93 124.56 22.11% Gallons in Minimum -
4,000 568.16 693.58 125.42 22.07% Charge Per 1,000 Gallons
1 5,000 572.95 699.22 126.27 22.04% All gallons $ 4.79
i 6,000 577.74 704.87 127.13 22.00%
7,000 582.53 710.51 127.98 21.97%
‘ 8,000 587.32 716.16 128.84 21.94%
} 9,000 592.11 721.80 129.69 21.90%
‘ 10,000 596.90 727.44 130.54 21.87%
| 12,000 606.48 738.73 132.25 21.81% Proposed Rates:
} 14,000 616.06 750.02 133.96 21.75% Monthly Minimum: $ 671.00
| 16,000 625.64 761.31 135.67 21.69% Gallons in Minimum -
18,000 635.22 772.60 137.38 21.63% Charge Per 1,000 Gallons
20,000 644.80 783.89 139.08 21.57% All gallons $ 5.64
25,000 668.75 812.11 143.36 21.44%
30,000 692.70 840.33 147.63 21.31%
35,000 716.65 868.56 151.91 21.20%
40,000 740.60 896.78 156.18 21.09%
45,000 764.55 925.00 160.45 20.99%
50,000 788.50 953.22 164.72 20.89%
60,000 836.40 1,008.67 173.27 20.72%
70,000 884.30 1,066.11 181.81 20.56%
80,000 932.20 1,122.56 190.36 20.42%
90,000 980.10 1,179.00 198.90 20.29%
100,000 1,028.00 1,235.45 207.45 20.18%

Average Usage

517,083 $ 3,02583 $ 3,589.65 % 563.82 18.63%
Median Usage

443500 $ 267337 $ 3,17431 § 500.95 18.74%




Liberty Utilities (Rio Rico Water & Sewer) Corp. - Water Division Exhibit

Bill Comparison Present and Proposed Rates
Fire Lines Up to 8 Inch

Meter Size:
Present
Usage Bill
- $ 500 $
1,000 5.00
2,000 5.00
3,000 5.00
4,000 5.00
5,000 5.00
6,000 5.00
7,000 5.00
8,000 5.00
9,000 5.00
10,000 5.00
12,000 5.00
14,000 5.00
16,000 5.00
18,000 5.00
20,000 5.00
25,000 5.00
30,000 5.00
35,000 5.00
40,000 5.00
45,000 5.00
50,000 5.00
60,000 5.00
70,000 5.00
80,000 5.00
90,000 5.00
100,000 5.00
Average Usage
- 500 $
Median Usage
- 3 500 $

Proposed
Bill
500 $
5.00
5.00
5.00
5.00
5.00
5.00
5.00
5.00
5.00
5.00
5.00
5.00
5.00
5.00
5.00
5.00
5.00
5.00
5.00
5.00
5.00
5.00
5.00
5.00
5.00
5.00

500 $

500 §$

Dollar

Increase

Percent

Increase

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

Schedule H-4
Page 23
Witness: Bourassa

Present Rates:
Monthly Minimum: $ 5.00

Proposed Rates:
Monthly Minimum: $ 5.00
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